
For the best experience, open this PDF portfolio in
 
Acrobat X or Adobe Reader X, or later.
 

Get Adobe Reader Now! 

http://www.adobe.com/go/reader




 
OFFICIAL NOTICE AND AGENDA 
Notice is hereby given that the Personnel Committee of the City of Stoughton, 
Wisconsin will hold a regular or special meeting as indicated on the date, time 
and location given below. 


 
Meeting of the:  
 


Date/Time:  
 


Location: 
  


 
 


Members: 
 


 


City Personnel: 


Personnel Committee of the City of Stoughton 
 


Tuesday, August 16, 2022 @ 5:30 pm 
 


Stoughton Utilities – Ed Malinowski Room 
600 S 4th Street, Stoughton, WI 53589 


 


  
Lisa Reeves (Chair), Frederick Hundt (Vice-Chair), Brett Schumacher, Greg Jenson 
and Mayor Timothy Swadley (ex-officio member) 


 


Director Gillingham 


 


1 Call to Order 
 


2 Approval of the Monday, July 18, 2022 Personnel Meeting minutes  
 


3 Communications/Updates  
 
4 Discussion and possible action regarding Utilities Realignment 


 
5 Future Agenda Items 


• Leadership Backup Plan Outline 
• Accrued Sick Leave for Retiring Employee – Sworn Police and City Staff 
• Disciplinary Action & Compensation 


 
6  Adjournment 


 
 


** May move to closed session per State Statute 19.85(1)(c) considering employment, promotion, 
compensation, or performance evaluation data of any public employee over which the governmental 
body has jurisdiction or exercises responsibility. 
 
Any person wishing to attend the meeting, whom because of a disability, requires special accommodation, 
should contact the City Clerk’s Office at (608) 873-6692 at least 24 hours before the scheduled meeting time 
so appropriate arrangements can be made. In addition, any person wishing to speak or have their comments 
heard but does not have access to the internet should also contact the City Clerk’s Office at the number 
above at least 24 hours before the scheduled meeting so appropriate arrangements can be made. 
 
NOTE: AN EXPANDED MEETING MAY CONSTITUTE A QUORUM OF THE COUNCIL.   








 
 
 
PERSONNEL COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES 
Monday, July 18, 2022 @ 5:30 pm 
Ed Malinowski Boardroom 
 
 
Present: Lisa Reeves (Chair), Brett Schumacher, Greg Jenson, Mayor Swadley (ex-officio member), 
               Director Gillingham  
Absent & Excused: Fred Hundt (Vice-Chair) 
 


1. CALL TO ORDER:  
Chair Reeves called the meeting to order at 5:30 pm.  


 
2. Approval of the minutes from Monday, June 6, 2022 


Motion to approve Schumacher, Jenson second, Approved 3-0 
 


3. Communications/Updates 
POLICE 


• Director Gillingham stated that Dan Jenks was sworn in as the Interim Police Chief on 
Friday, July 8th.  She stated that the recruiting process is closed for the Chief’s position 
and that the PFC has the month of July off, so they would be holding interviews in 
August.  


• Director Gillingham stated that the Police Officer position recruitment is open until July 
27th and that she was working with the Interim Chief to expedite the hiring process for 
Police Officers by having the assessment and testing held on the same day instead of 
separate days. She stated that this would decrease the hiring process from its current 
time of 3 weeks. 


• Director Gillingham stated that with the last hire of a full time Dispatcher the full time 
positions are now filled. She stated that interviews for a part-time Dispatcher were held 
today and that they had three good candidates for the position. 
 
Recreation 


• Director Gillingham stated that the part-time Recreation Assistant position had finally 
been filled. 
 
Human Resources 


• Director Gillingham stated that the Human Resources department had sent out a 
newsletter for the first time in June and that it was something the department hoped to 
do every month going forward. 


• Director Gillingham stated that from the meeting with CVMIC she had learned that 
insurance renewals are looking rough as the market has hardened. She stated that the 
City may be looking at a 100% increase for cyber coverage.  


• Director Gillingham stated that Health for mid-year has been running just south of 20%. 
She stated that Mercy has dropped Quartz and that this has affected some on the City 
employees who will now have to travel further for services. She also stated that she had 
told Director Ehlinger that renewal could run about 13-15%. 


 
WORK RULES 


• Director Gillingham stated that the Work Rules & Policy Manual Group had met both 1st 
& 2nd quarters to discuss and then finalize changes to be made. She stated that the 
Committee will be reviewing those changes tonight and the 3rd quarter Group meeting 
would be scheduled for September. 
 
 
 







 
 
Staffing 


• Director Gillingham stated that the new Admin Assistant for HR had started is doing 
great. She stated that the Admin is asking for full time and HR could use full time. 
 
Labor Day 


• Director Gillingham stated that the September Personnel meeting falls on Labor Day and 
asked what the group wanted to do. There was some discussion and the Committee 
members said they would look at their calendars and let Director Gillingham know. 
 
Department Head Meetings 


• Director Gillingham stated that she had been meeting with each Department Head 
regarding their employee’s compensation. She stated that she is analyzing the data but 
she feels that we need to focus on compensation because we have fallen behind other 
municipalities in some cases.  


• Director Gillingham told the Committee that renewals were coming up and that there 
more information on this in the next 4-6 weeks. 


 
4. Discussion and possible action regarding Work Rules & Policy Manual updates from 1st and 


2nd quarter review by Work Rules Group  
Director Gillingham updated the Committee on the changes made to the Work Rules. There 
was some discussion but no changes to be made. 
Jenson Motion to approve all updates, Schumacher 2nd, All in Favor 3-0 
Director Gillingham updated the Committee on the changes made to the Policy Manual. 
There was some discussion and recommendations to change some of the wording 
regarding the Covid Pandemic Policy. Chair Reeves also asked that the “changes made” 
spreadsheet be updated to show correct pages/items. 
Jenson Motion to approve all updates, Schumacher 2nd, All in Favor 3-0 


 
5. Future Agenda Item 


There was some discussion regarding g Sick Time Donation. The Committee told Director 
Gillingham that this is not a program the City is interested in developing at this time. 


• Leadership Backup Plan  
• Accrued Sick Leave for Retiring Employee – Sworn Police and City Staff  
• Disciplinary Action & Compensation 


 
6. Motion to adjourn Schumacher, second Jenson, Approved 3-0.  


Meeting adjourned 6:40 pm. 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Respectfully submitted 6/8/2022 by HR Generalist Skarda 








- UPDATED


- COLLECTIONS


- ACCURATE REFLECTION OF DUTIES


- STRUCTURE CHANGE


Water System Supervisor


*** Customer Service Technician ***


Utilities Director (e)


Accounting Specialist Distribution System Coordinator


Finance Manager (e)


Electric Supervisor


Lead Journeyman Lineworker


Journeyman Lineworker


Apprentice Lineworker


- STRUCTURE CHANGE


- PARITY 


Basic Certified Operator


- STRUCTURE CHANGE


- PARITY 


Operator


- STRUCTURE CHANGE


Billing & Metering Supervisor (e)


- INCREASED RESPONSIBLITY


- ALREADY PERFORMING DUTIES


- ALREADY PERFORMING SOME DUTIES


Education & Outreach Coordinator 


- INCREASED RESPONSIBILTY


Operator


Common Council Utilities Committee


Assistant Utilities Director (e)


Tim Swadley


Mayor


- PARITY 


Electric System Division Wastewater System Division


Energy Services Representative


Wastewater System Supervisor


- PARITY 


- EXEMPT


UPDATED


NEW POSITION


FUTURE REVISIONS


Apprentice Meter Technician


- STRUCTURE CHANGE


- ALREADY PERFORMING DUTIES


*** Operations Specialist *** 


Permanently Vacant Until Needed


Journeyman Meter Technician


Customer Service Technician


Advanced Certified Operator


- ACCURATE REFLECTION OF DUTIES


- REPORTING STRUCTURE CHANGE


*** Billing & Metering Specialist *** 


- STRUCTURE CHANGE


- ALREADY PERFORMING DUTIES


- EXEMPT


- ACCURATE REFLECTION OF DUTIES


Asset & Facilities Coordinator


Water System DivisionFinance Division Technical Operations Division


*** Engineering Technician *** 


- STRUCTURE CHANGE


- PARITY


Advanced Certified Operator


- STRUCTURE CHANGE- STRUCTURE CHANGE


- STRUCTURE CHANGE


- PARITY 


- STRUCTURE CHANGE


Basic Certified Operator


- PARITY 


Apprentice Operator








Council Approved ADD DATE 


 


 


 


 


UTILITIES DEPARTMENT  


Wastewater System Division 


Advanced Certified Wastewater Operator 


REPORTS TO: Wastewater System Supervisor   PAY GRADE: W-4    FLSA: N                   
 


 
SUMMARY OF POSITION 


The purpose of this position is to maintain and operate the water pumping, storage, 
and distribution systems, and the wastewater treatment facilities and sanitary 


sewer collection system for the City of Stoughton, with a focus on wastewater 
collection and treatment operations. This position is identical to other Advanced 


Certified Operator positions in terms of job scope and required qualifications and 
certifications, however may differ in day-to-day duties and assignments. 


 
DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES 


Core Duties and Responsibilities - The following duties are the primary duties of 
this position but do not compose an exclusive or all-encompassing list of duties. 


Other duties may be assigned or required to accomplish the main goals of this 


position. 
 


• Provides safe drinking water conditions to protect Stoughton Utilities 
customers, via obtaining and testing routine water samples, monitoring and 


recording well pump operations and storage tank volumes, monitoring and 
testing water and wastewater quality conditions, and monitoring and 


recording data and operations on the water/wastewater SCADA system. 
 


• Ensures environmentally responsible wastewater treatment and discharge via 
obtaining and testing routine wastewater treatment samples throughout the 


treatment process, monitoring and recording plant operations and tank 
volumes, monitoring and testing wastewater influent and effluent quality 


conditions, and monitoring and recording data and operations on the 
water/wastewater SCADA system. 


 


• Repairs and maintains water distribution mains, pumps, valves, curb stops, 
services, and hydrants. Installs and maintains water service connections. 


Performs routine maintenance to other water system infrastructure and 
equipment. Exercises system valves and flushes hydrants. 


 
• Repairs and maintains sanitary sewer collection mains and pumps. Performs 


routine maintenance to sanitary sewer collection system infrastructure and 







Council Approved ADD DATE 


equipment. Flushes, televises, cleans, and repairs the sanitary sewer 
collection system. 


 
• Repairs and maintains pumps, motors, valves, flow meters, screens, and all 


other equipment at the wastewater treatment facility.  
 


• Obtains and prepares samples of drinking water and wastewater treatment, 
and performs laboratory analysis including sample testing and calculations for 


biochemical oxygen demand (BOD), suspended solids, pH levels, volatile 
solids, phosphorous, ammonia, fecal coliform, chlorine residual, fluoride 


content, industrial effluents, glucose glutamic acid, and other analysis as 


directed, and/or delivers samples to outside laboratories. Prepares graphs, 
charts, and reports from sample data, and reports out findings. Makes 


adjustments to drinking water and wastewater treatment operations and 
calculates amount of chemical additives according to test results. 


 
• Prepares, or assists with the preparation of monthly water pumpage and 


wastewater treatment reports, and submits to the Wisconsin Department of 
Natural Resources (DNR). 


 
• Maintains, calibrates, and repairs testing equipment. Maintains knowledge 


regarding testing requirements for wastewater treatment facilities. Cleans 
and maintains lab equipment. Prepares and sends EPA samples as directed. 


 
• Operates the water/wastewater SCADA system to monitor system health, 


record data and equipment readings, operate controls, evaluate system 


performance, and investigate trouble conditions. 
 


• Responds to customer inquiries and complaints and performs corrective 
measures. Communicates with customers as required to resolve inquiries and 


complaints, and to provide notice of planned system outages.  
 


• Performs work tasks at active job sites to plan, direct, and oversee system 
and equipment maintenance and repair tasks. Works onsite to recommend 


operational changes and safety improvements, and to evaluate safety 
compliance. 


 
• Attends and assists with utility-sponsored public events, prepares public 


educational materials and participates in outreach efforts, conducts system 
demonstrations and tours, and gives safety and conservation presentations. 


 


• Completes and maintains work orders, time sheets, preflight checklists, 
tailgate meetings, inventory forms, and all other division paperwork, and 


maintains records and prepares reports as directed. Conducts system 
inspections and records findings. 


 







Council Approved ADD DATE 


• Maintains GIS software applications and databases, including service 
connection details, flushing and exercising maintenance records, televising 


records, equipment maintenance tasks, and other records as directed. 
 


• Maintains an ability to work a flexible schedule to accommodate planned 
activities outside of the typical work schedule, including but not limited to 


planned customer outages or system maintenance work, as well as planned 
seasonal schedule changes and tasks. 


 
• Maintains an ability to serve on standby on-call duty, scheduled on a 


rotational basis within the Water and Wastewater System Divisions. Maintains 


an ability whenever possible to respond to utility emergencies and assist 
those serving on-call. 


 
• Complies with all Stoughton Utilities safety programs, and guidelines and 


regulations set by the Public Service Commission of Wisconsin (PSCW). 
Ensures full Water and Wastewater System Divisions compliance of the same. 


 
Additional Duties and Responsibilities - The following duties are necessary for 


operations, but may be shared with or performed by other employees. The listed 
duties do not compose an exclusive or all-encompassing list of additional duties. 


Other duties may be assigned or required to accomplish the main goals of this 
position. 


 
• Disconnects water service to customers upon receipt of disconnection 


workorders due to delinquency or safety violations, and at customers’ 


request. Conducts periodic reviews of disconnected properties for connection 
evaluation. 


 
• Installs water meters at customer premises, including temporary and 


permanent services. Assists the meter technician with the maintenance and 
repair of water meters. Reconnects water services and transfers water 


meters. 
 


• Maintains grounds and facilities, such as painting surfaces, ice and snow 
removal, custodial tasks, basic carpentry, basic commercial electrical 


maintenance, basic plumbing, and similar tasks as assigned. 
 


• Provides emergency after-hours support to the Electric System Division, 
including basic system repair, traffic control and direction, site preparation 


and cleanup, equipment transport and operation, groundsman duties, and  


• other tasks as directed. Provides local and regional emergency disaster 
response. 


 
• Performs routine vehicle maintenance. 


 
• Performs other Stoughton Utilities tasks as directed. 







Council Approved ADD DATE 


 
• At the discretion of the Utilities Director, this position may temporarily be 


assigned as the designated Operator in Charge of the Stoughton Wastewater 
Treatment Facility and assume all obligations and responsibility for regulatory 


compliance. 
 


QUALIFICATIONS 
The ability to perform the Core Duties and Additional Duties listed above and: 


 
Education/Training/Certifications  


• High School diploma or equivalent, and three or more years water and/or 


wastewater operator experience. 
 


• Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources (DNR) Wastewater Treatment 
Plant Operator – Advanced certification for the Stoughton Wastewater 


Treatment facilities. 
 


• Wisconsin DNR Grade 1 Waterworks Operator Certification with subclasses G 
and D for the Stoughton Waterworks. 


 
• Successful completion of the DNR Advanced Laboratory exam. 


 
• Ability to maintain the required continuing education credits for the above 


DNR operator and laboratory certifications. 
 


• Commercial driver’s license with tanker and air brake certification required. 


 
Language Ability and Interpersonal Communication Skills 


• Ability to perform mid-level data analysis, including the ability to audit, 
deduce, assess, conclude, and appraise. Requires discretion in determining 


and referencing such to established criteria to define consequences and 
develop alternatives. 


 
• Ability to classify, compute, and tabulate data and information, following a 


prescribed plan requiring the exercise of some individual judgment, with 
reference to established criteria/standards. Ability to compare, count, 


differentiate, measure, and sort information, as well as assemble, copy, 
record, and transcribe data and information. 


 
• Ability to utilize a variety of advisory data and information, such as work 


orders; utility maps and diagrams; construction specifications; blueprints; lab 


records and reports; facilities operation and maintenance manuals; 
engineering reports; technical operating manuals; city and utility policies and 


procedures; guidelines; non-routine correspondence; Public Service 
Commission of Wisconsin rules, regulations, and tariffs; Wisconsin 


Department of Natural Resources rules and regulations; and safety rules and 
manuals. 







Council Approved ADD DATE 


 
• Ability to explain, demonstrate, and clarify to others within well-established 


policies, procedures, and standards, as well as the ability to follow specific 
instructions and respond to requests. 


 
• Ability to communicate effectively in writing and orally with customers, 


department and all levels of City personnel, plumbers, contractors, regulatory 
representatives, and the general public.  


 
Mathematical Ability 


• Ability to perform addition, subtraction, multiplication, and division; calculate 


percentages, fractions, and decimals; interpret and develop basic descriptive 
statistical reports; and may require the ability to perform mathematical 


operations with algebra. 
 


Judgment and Situational Reasoning Ability 
• Ability to carry out directives without direct supervision. Ability to exercise 


independent judgment to apply facts and principles for developing approaches 
and techniques to problem resolution. 


 
• Ability to apply principles of influence systems such as leading and teaching. 


 
• Ability to exercise the judgment, decisiveness and creativity required in 


situations involving the evaluation of information against sensory and 
judgmental criteria. 


 


Physical Requirements 
• Ability to operate equipment and machinery such as impact tools, sewer line 


jet truck, back hoe, roller, loaders, dump truck, forklift, wood chipper, meters, 
hand and power tools, snow plows and blowers, lab instruments, excavation 


hand tools, and other equipment requiring monitoring multiple conditions and 
making multiple, complex, and rapid adjustments. Ability to repair complex 


equipment and machinery. 
 


• Ability to coordinate eyes, hands, feet, and limbs in performing skilled 
movements such as operating heavy excavation and pumping equipment. 


 
• Ability to install and repair meters and perform coordinated activity, 


potentially in tight spaces. 
 


• Ability to exert regular and sustained heavy physical effort in very heavy 


work, typically involving some combination of climbing, balancing, stooping, 
kneeling, crouching, crawling, and lifting, carrying, pushing, shoveling and 


digging, and pulling heavy objects and materials in excess of 100 pounds. 
 







Council Approved ADD DATE 


• Ability to recognize and identify degrees of similarities or differences between 
characteristics of color, shape, sound, texture, and odor associated with job-


related objects, materials, and tasks. 
 


Environmental Adaptability 
• Ability to work under uncomfortable and potentially unsafe conditions that 


require exposure to severe environmental factors such as temperature 
variations, high winds, rain and snow, odors, toxic agents, noise, vibrations, 


wetness, dusts, machinery, explosives, gas, vehicular traffic, high voltage 
electrical currents, and disease. This exposure may cause discomfort and 


presents a high risk of injury or death. 


 
 


 
 


 
 


 
 


 
 


 
 


 
 


 


 
 


 
 


 
 


 
 


 
 


 
 


 
 


 


 
 


 
 


 
 







Council Approved ADD DATE 


 
EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER 


 
The City of Stoughton is an Equal Opportunity Employer.  In compliance with 


applicable state and federal law, the City will provide reasonable accommodations to 
qualified individuals with disabilities and encourages both prospective and current 


employees to discuss potential accommodations with the City. 
 


 
 


 


 
 


 
 


 
 


 
 


 
 


 
 


 
 


 


 
 


 
ACKNOWLEDGEMENT: 


 
All requirements of the described position are subject to change over time. The 


employee may be required to perform other duties as requested by the City. 
 


I acknowledge that this job description is neither an employment contract nor a 
legal document. I have received, read, and understand the expectations for the 


successful performance of this job. 
 


 
Printed Name: ____________________________________ 


 


 
Signature: _______________________________________ Date: _____________ 


 
  


  







Council Approved ADD DATE 


 


 


 
 


UTILITIES DEPARTMENT  
Water System Division 


Advanced Certified Water Operator 


REPORTS TO: Water System Supervisor     PAY GRADE: W-4      FLSA: N                   
 
 
SUMMARY OF POSITION 
The purpose of this position is to maintain and operate the water pumping, storage, 
and distribution systems, and the wastewater treatment facilities and sanitary 
sewer collection system for the City of Stoughton, with a focus on water distribution 
operations. This position is identical to other Advanced Certified Operator positions 
in terms of job scope and required qualifications and certifications, however may 
differ in day-to-day duties and assignments. 
 
DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES 
Core Duties and Responsibilities - The following duties are the primary duties of 
this position but do not compose an exclusive or all-encompassing list of duties. 
Other duties may be assigned or required to accomplish the main goals of this 
position. 
 


• Provide safe drinking water conditions to protect Stoughton Utilities 
customers, via obtaining and testing routine water samples, monitoring and 
recording well pump operations and storage tank volumes, monitoring and 
testing water and wastewater quality conditions, and monitoring and 
recording data and operations on the water/wastewater SCADA system. 
 


• Ensures environmentally responsible wastewater treatment and discharge via 
obtaining and testing routine wastewater treatment samples throughout the 
treatment process, monitoring and recording plant operations and tank 
volumes, monitoring and testing wastewater influent and effluent quality 
conditions, and monitoring and recording data and operations on the 
water/wastewater SCADA system. 
 


• Repairs and maintains water distribution mains, pumps, valves, curb stops, 
services, and hydrants. Installs and maintains water service connections. 
Performs routine maintenance to other water system infrastructure and 
equipment. Exercises system valves and flushes hydrants. 
 


• Repairs and maintains sanitary sewer collection mains and pumps. Performs 
routine maintenance to sanitary sewer collection system infrastructure and 







Council Approved ADD DATE 


equipment. Flushes, televises, cleans, and repairs the sanitary sewer 
collection system. 


 
• Repairs and maintains pumps, motors, valves, flow meters, screens, and all 


other equipment at the wastewater treatment facility. 
 


• Obtains and prepares samples of drinking water and wastewater treatment, 
and performs laboratory analysis including sample testing and calculations for 
biochemical oxygen demand (BOD), suspended solids, pH levels, volatile 
solids, phosphorous, ammonia, fecal coliform, chlorine residual, fluoride 
content, industrial effluents, glucose glutamic acid, and other analysis as 
directed, and/or delivers samples to outside laboratories. Prepares graphs, 
charts, and reports from sample data, and reports out findings. Makes 
adjustments to drinking water and wastewater treatment operations and 
calculates amount of chemical additives according to test results. 
 


• Prepares, or assists with the preparation of monthly water pumpage and 
wastewater treatment reports, and submits to the Wisconsin Department of 
Natural Resources (DNR). 
 


• Maintains, calibrates, and repairs testing equipment. Maintains knowledge 
regarding testing requirements for wastewater treatment facilities. Cleans 
and maintains lab equipment. Prepares and sends EPA samples as directed. 
 


• Operates the water/wastewater SCADA system to monitor system health, 
record data and equipment readings, operate controls, evaluate system 
performance, and investigate trouble conditions. 
 


• Responds to customer inquiries and complaints and performs corrective 
measures. Communicates with customers as required to resolve inquiries and 
complaints, and to provide notice of planned system outages. 
 


• Performs work tasks at active job sites to plan, direct, and oversee system 
and equipment maintenance and repair tasks. Works onsite to recommend 
operational changes and safety improvements, and to evaluate safety 
compliance. 
 


• Attends and assists with utility-sponsored public events, prepares public 
educational materials and participates in outreach efforts, conducts system 
demonstrations and tours, and gives safety and conservation presentations. 
 


• Completes and maintains work orders, time sheets, preflight checklists, 
tailgate meetings, inventory forms, and all other division paperwork, and 
maintains records and prepares reports as directed. Conducts system 
inspections and records findings. 







Council Approved ADD DATE 


• Maintains GIS software applications and databases, including service 
connection details, flushing and exercising maintenance records, televising 
records, equipment maintenance tasks, and other records as directed. 
 


• Maintains an ability to work a flexible schedule to accommodate planned 
activities outside of the typical work schedule, including but not limited to 
planned customer outages or system maintenance work, as well as planned 
seasonal schedule changes and tasks. 
 


• Maintains an ability to serve on standby on-call duty, scheduled on a 
rotational basis within the Water and Wastewater System Divisions. Maintains 
an ability whenever possible to respond to utility emergencies and assist 
those serving on-call. 
 


• Complies with all Stoughton Utilities safety programs, and guidelines and 
regulations set by the Public Service Commission of Wisconsin (PSCW). 
Ensures full Water and Wastewater System Divisions compliance of the same. 


 
Additional Duties and Responsibilities - The following duties are necessary for 
operations, but may be shared with or performed by other employees. The listed 
duties do not compose an exclusive or all-encompassing list of additional duties. 
Other duties may be assigned or required to accomplish the main goals of this 
position. 
 


• Disconnects water service to customers upon receipt of disconnection 
workorders due to delinquency or safety violations, and at customers’ 
request. Conducts periodic reviews of disconnected properties for connection 
evaluation. 
 


• Installs water meters at customer premises, including temporary and 
permanent services. Assists the meter technician with the maintenance and 
repair of water meters. Reconnects water services and transfers water 
meters. 
 


• Maintains grounds and facilities, such as painting surfaces, ice and snow 
removal, custodial tasks, basic carpentry, basic commercial electrical 
maintenance, basic plumbing, and similar tasks as assigned. 
 


• Provides emergency after-hours support to the Electric System Division, 
including basic system repair, traffic control and direction, site preparation 
and cleanup, equipment transport and operation, groundsman duties, and 
other tasks as directed. Provides local and regional emergency disaster 
response. 
 


• Performs routine vehicle maintenance. 
 


• Performs other Stoughton Utilities tasks as directed. 







Council Approved ADD DATE 


 
• At the discretion of the Utilities Director, this position may temporarily be 


assigned as the designated Operator in Charge of the Stoughton Wastewater 
Treatment Facility and assume all obligations and responsibility for regulatory 
compliance. 
 


QUALIFICATIONS 
The ability to perform the Core Duties and Additional Duties listed above and: 
 
Education/Training/Certifications  


• High School diploma or equivalent and three or more years water and/or 
wastewater operator experience. 
 


• Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources (DNR) Wastewater Treatment 
Plant Operator – Advanced certification for the Stoughton Wastewater 
Treatment facilities. 
 


• Wisconsin DNR Grade 1 Waterworks Operator Certification with subclasses G 
and D for the Stoughton Waterworks. 
 


• Successful completion of the Wisconsin DNR Advanced Laboratory exam. 
 


• Ability to maintain the required continuing education credits for the above 
DNR operator and laboratory certifications. 
 


• Commercial driver’s license with tanker and air brake certification required. 
 


Language Ability and Interpersonal Communication Skills 
• Ability to perform mid-level data analysis, including the ability to audit, 


deduce, assess, conclude, and appraise. Requires discretion in determining 
and referencing such to established criteria to define consequences and 
develop alternatives. 
 


• Ability to classify, compute, and tabulate data and information, following a 
prescribed plan requiring the exercise of some individual judgment, with 
reference to established criteria/standards. Ability to compare, count, 
differentiate, measure, and sort information, as well as assemble, copy, 
record, and transcribe data and information. 
 


• Ability to utilize a variety of advisory data and information, such as work 
orders; utility maps and diagrams; construction specifications; blueprints; lab 
records and reports; facilities operation and maintenance manuals; 
engineering reports; technical operating manuals; city and utility policies and 
procedures; guidelines; non-routine correspondence; Public Service 
Commission of Wisconsin rules, regulations, and tariffs; Wisconsin 
Department of Natural Resources rules and regulations; and safety rules and 
manuals. 







Council Approved ADD DATE 


 
• Ability to explain, demonstrate, and clarify to others within well-established 


policies, procedures, and standards, as well as the ability to follow specific 
instructions and respond to requests. 
 


• Ability to communicate effectively in writing and orally with customers, 
department and all levels of City personnel, plumbers, contractors, regulatory 
representatives, and the general public. 


 
Mathematical Ability 


• Ability to perform addition, subtraction, multiplication, and division; calculate 
percentages, fractions, and decimals; interpret and develop basic descriptive 
statistical reports; and may require the ability to perform mathematical 
operations with algebra. 


 
Judgment and Situational Reasoning Ability 


• Ability to carry out directives without direct supervision. Ability to exercise 
independent judgment to apply facts and principles for developing approaches 
and techniques to problem resolution. 
 


• Ability to apply principles of influence systems such as leading and teaching. 
 


• Ability to exercise the judgment, decisiveness and creativity required in 
situations involving the evaluation of information against sensory and 
judgmental criteria. 
 


Physical Requirements 
• Ability to operate equipment and machinery such as impact tools, sewer line 


jet truck, back hoe, roller, loaders, dump truck, forklift, wood chipper, meters, 
hand and power tools, snow plows and blowers, lab instruments, excavation 
hand tools, and other equipment requiring monitoring multiple conditions and 
making multiple, complex, and rapid adjustments. Ability to repair complex 
equipment and machinery. 
 


• Ability to coordinate eyes, hands, feet, and limbs in performing skilled 
movements such as operating heavy excavation and pumping equipment. 
 


• Ability to install and repair meters and perform coordinated activity, 
potentially in tight spaces. 
 


• Ability to exert regular and sustained heavy physical effort in very heavy 
work, typically involving some combination of climbing, balancing, stooping, 
kneeling, crouching, crawling, and lifting, carrying, pushing, shoveling and 
digging, and pulling heavy objects and materials in excess of 100 pounds. 
 







Council Approved ADD DATE 


• Ability to recognize and identify degrees of similarities or differences between 
characteristics of color, shape, sound, texture, and odor associated with job-
related objects, materials, and tasks. 
 


Environmental Adaptability 
Ability to work under uncomfortable and potentially unsafe conditions that 
require exposure to severe environmental factors such as temperature 
variations, high winds, rain and snow, odors, toxic agents, noise, vibrations, 
wetness, dusts, machinery, explosives, gas, vehicular traffic, high voltage 
electrical currents, and disease. This exposure may cause discomfort and 
presents a high risk of injury or death. 
 
 
 
 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 







Council Approved ADD DATE 


 
EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER 


 
The City of Stoughton is an Equal Opportunity Employer.  In compliance with 


applicable state and federal law, the City will provide reasonable accommodations to 
qualified individuals with disabilities and encourages both prospective and current 


employees to discuss potential accommodations with the City. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
ACKNOWLEDGEMENT: 
 
All requirements of the described position are subject to change over time. The 
employee may be required to perform other duties as requested by the City. 
 
I acknowledge that this job description is neither an employment contract nor a 
legal document. I have received, read, and understand the expectations for the 
successful performance of this job. 
 
 
Printed Name: ____________________________________ 
 
 
Signature: _______________________________________ Date: _____________ 
  


  







Council Approved ADD DATE 


 


 


 
 


UTILITIES DEPARTMENT  
Electric System Division 


Apprentice Lineworker 


REPORTS TO: Electric System Supervisor     PAY GRADE: EL-2     FLSA: N                   
 
 
SUMMARY OF POSITION 
The purpose of positions in this classification is to efficiently and safely assist in 
performing electrical distribution line construction, maintenance, and repair tasks, in 
accordance with Stoughton Utilities construction specifications and standards. 
Responsibilities for this position will increase in complexity and level of individual 
responsibility as the employee progresses through the utility’s Apprentice 
Lineworker program. 
 
This position is intended to provide education and on-the-job training leading to 
Journeyman Lineworker status and requires continual progression, and is not 
considered a permanent employment status. Advancement to Journeyman 
Lineworker status occurs upon completion of required classroom instruction, on-the-
job training hours, and demonstration of job knowledge and competency. 
 
 
DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES 
Core Duties and Responsibilities - The following duties are the primary duties of 
this position but do not compose an exclusive or all-encompassing list of duties. 
Other duties may be assigned or required to accomplish the main goals of this 
position. 
 


• Operates diggers, bucket trucks, and hand tools near and around electrical 
distribution lines. Operates live-line tools to connect and disconnect 
distribution lines and components. Installs primary and secondary overhead 
and underground electrical systems. Performs all other industry-standard 
duties expected of an apprentice lineworker. 
 


• Prepares and secures safe work sites, including truck and equipment setup, 
placement of warning signs and cones, traffic control and direction, and more. 
Conducts tailboard meetings to review projects and safety. 
 


• Completes field staking using staking sheets provided by the Utilities 
Distribution System Coordinator. 
 







Council Approved ADD DATE 


• Operates the electric SCADA system to monitor system health, record data 
and equipment readings, operate controls, evaluate circuit performance and 
load, and investigate outage conditions. 


 
• Performs Responds to customer inquiries and complaints and performs 


corrective measures. Communicates with customers as required to resolve 
customer inquiries and complaints, and to provide notice of planned system 
outages. 
 


• Performs work tasks at active job sites to plan, direct, and oversee system 
and equipment maintenance and repair tasks. Works onsite to recommend 
operational changes and safety improvements, and to evaluate safety 
compliance. 
 


• Installs, repairs, and maintains municipal street lighting. 
 


• Monitors system tree trimming and removal needs, and ensures clearance 
program compliance. Works with division employees to trim and remove trees 
and brush. Communicates with customers to provide notice of upcoming line 
clearance projects and resolves line clearance complaints and inquiries. 
 


• Participates in the utility’s apprentice lineworker program, including soliciting 
and receiving education and mentorship, and working towards advancement 
through the program. 
 


• Attends and assists with utility-sponsored public events, prepares public 
educational materials and participates in outreach efforts, conducts system 
demonstrations and tours, and gives electrical safety presentations. 
 


• Completes and maintains work orders, staking sheets, outage reports, time 
sheets, preflight checklists, tailgate meetings, inventory forms, and all other 
division paperwork, and maintains records and prepares reports as directed. 
Conducts system inspections and records findings. 


 
• Attends Maintains GIS software applications and databases, including electric 


service connection details, circuit identifications, overhead and underground 
system inspections, equipment maintenance tasks, and other records as 
directed. 
 


• Maintains an ability to work a flexible schedule to accommodate planned 
activities outside of the typical work schedule, including but not limited to 
planned customer outages or system maintenance work, as well as planned 
seasonal schedule changes and tasks. 
 


• Maintains an ability to travel within Wisconsin to locations requiring overnight 
stays up to a week in length to complete the required apprenticeship 
classroom and hands-on training. 







Council Approved ADD DATE 


 
• Maintains an ability whenever possible to respond to utility emergencies and 


assist those serving on-call. As progression through the apprenticeship 
program occurs, maintains an ability to serve on standby on-call duty, 
scheduled on a rotational basis within the Electric System Division. 
 


• Complies with all Stoughton Utilities safety programs, and guidelines and 
regulations set by the Public Service Commission of Wisconsin (PSCW) and 
the National Electric Safety Code (NESC). 


 
Additional Duties and Responsibilities - The following duties are necessary for 
operations, but may be shared with or performed by other employees. The listed 
duties do not compose an exclusive or all-encompassing list of additional duties. 
Other duties may be assigned or required to accomplish the main goals of this 
position. 
 


• Disconnects electrical service to customers upon receipt of disconnection 
workorders due to delinquency or safety violations, and at customers’ 
request. Conducts periodic reviews of disconnected properties for connection 
evaluation. 
 


• Installs electric meters, including current transformers (CTs) and voltage 
transformers (VTs) as necessary, at customer premises, including temporary 
and permanent services. Assists the meter technician with the maintenance 
and repair of electric meters, CTs, and VTs. Reconnects and transfers electric 
meters. 
 


• Maintains grounds and facilities, such as painting surfaces, ice and snow 
removal, custodial tasks, basic carpentry, basic commercial electrical 
maintenance, basic plumbing, and similar tasks as assigned. 
 


• Provides emergency after-hours support to the Wastewater and Water 
System Divisions, including basic system repair, traffic control and direction, 
site preparation and cleanup, equipment transport and operation, and other 
tasks as directed. Provides local and regional emergency disaster response. 
 


• Performs routine vehicle maintenance. 
 


• Performs other Stoughton Utilities tasks as directed. 
 


QUALIFICATIONS 
The ability to perform the Core Duties and Additional Duties listed above and: 
 
Education/Training/Certifications  


• High School diploma or equivalent and vocational/technical training in 
electrical systems, or any combination of education and experience that 
provides equivalent knowledge, skills, and abilities. 







Council Approved ADD DATE 


 
• Successful completion of a nine-month electric power distribution technical 


course, or enrollment in the State of Wisconsin lineworker apprenticeship 
program preferred. 
 


• Ability to maintain enrollment in the State of Wisconsin lineworker 
apprenticeship program is required. 
 


• Ability to obtain and maintain forklift certification and CPR/First Aid 
certification is required. 
 


• Ability to obtain and maintain a commercial driver’s license with tanker and 
airbrake certification is required. A valid motor vehicle operator’s license is 
required at hire. 
 


Language Ability and Interpersonal Communication Skills 
• Ability to perform mid-level data analysis, including the ability to audit, 


deduce, assess, conclude, and appraise. Requires discretion in determining 
and referencing such to established criteria to define consequences and 
develop alternatives. 
 


• Ability to utilize a wide variety of advisory data and information, such as work 
orders; staking sheets; utility maps and diagrams; construction specifications; 
technical operating manuals; city and utility policies and procedures; 
guidelines; non-routine correspondence; Wisconsin Department of 
Transportation rules and regulations; and safety rules and manuals. 
 


• Ability to classify, compute, and tabulate data and information, following a 
prescribed plan requiring the exercise of some individual judgment, with 
reference to established criteria/standards. Ability to compare, count, 
differentiate, measure, and sort information, as well as assemble, copy, 
record, and transcribe data and information. 
 


• Ability to explain, demonstrate, and clarify to others within well-established 
policies, procedures, and standards, as well as the ability to follow specific 
instructions and respond to requests. 
 


• Ability to communicate effectively in writing and orally with customers, 
department and all levels of City personnel, electricians, contractors, and the 
general public. 
 


 
Mathematical Ability 


• Ability to perform addition, subtraction, multiplication, and division; calculate 
percentages, fractions, and decimals; interpret and develop basic descriptive 
statistical reports; and may require the ability to perform mathematical 
operations with algebra. 







Council Approved ADD DATE 


 
Judgment and Situational Reasoning Ability 


• Ability to carry out directives without direct supervision. Ability to exercise 
independent judgment to apply facts and principles for developing approaches 
and techniques to problem resolution. 
 


• Ability to apply principles of influence systems such as leading and teaching. 
 


• Ability to exercise the judgment, decisiveness and creativity required in 
situations involving the evaluation of information against sensory and 
judgmental criteria. 
 


Physical Requirements 
• Ability to operate equipment and machinery such as impact tools, aerial 


bucket truck, digger/derrick, forklift, wood chipper, chain saw, back hoe, 
roller, compression tools, cable cutters, nail gun, meters, hand and power 
tools, snow plows and blowers, and other equipment requiring monitoring 
multiple conditions and making multiple, complex, and rapid adjustments. 
Ability to repair complex equipment and machinery. 
 


• Ability to coordinate eyes, hands, feet, and limbs in performing skilled 
movements such as high voltage electrical work. 
 


• Ability to install and repair meters and perform coordinated activity around 
live electricity, potentially in tight spaces. 
 


• Ability to exert regular and sustained heavy physical effort in very heavy 
work, typically involving some combination of climbing, balancing, stooping, 
kneeling, crouching, crawling, and lifting, carrying, pushing, shoveling and 
digging, and pulling heavy objects and materials in excess of 100 pounds. 
 


• Ability to recognize and identify degrees of similarities or differences between 
characteristics of color, shape, sound, textures, and odor associated with job-
related objects, materials, and tasks. 
 


Environmental Adaptability 
• Ability to work under uncomfortable and potentially unsafe conditions that 


require exposure to severe environmental factors such as temperature 
variations, high winds, rain and snow, odors, toxic agents, noise, vibrations, 
wetness, dusts, machinery, explosives, gas, vehicular traffic, and high voltage 
electrical currents. This exposure may cause discomfort and presents a high 
risk of injury or death. 
 
 
 
 
 







Council Approved ADD DATE 


 
EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER 


 
The City of Stoughton is an Equal Opportunity Employer.  In compliance with 


applicable state and federal law, the City will provide reasonable accommodations to 
qualified individuals with disabilities and encourages both prospective and current 


employees to discuss potential accommodations with the City. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
ACKNOWLEDGEMENT: 
 
All requirements of the described position are subject to change over time. The 
employee may be required to perform other duties as requested by the City. 
 
I acknowledge that this job description is neither an employment contract nor a 
legal document. I have received, read, and understand the expectations for the 
successful performance of this job. 
 
 
Printed Name: ____________________________________ 
 
 
Signature: _______________________________________ Date: _____________ 
 
  


  







Council Approved ADD DATE 


 


 


 
 


UTILITIES DEPARTMENT  
Technical Operations Division 


Apprentice Meter Technician 


REPORTS TO: Billing & Metering Supervisor   PAY GRADE: EL-1    FLSA: N                   
 
 
SUMMARY OF POSITION 
The purpose of this position is to assist in the maintenance, repairs, testing, 
installation, and reading of electric and water meters, and to complete water cross 
connection inspections for the City of Stoughton. This position shall be responsible 
for assisting in the evaluation of electric and water services and determination of 
the appropriate metering design, procurement and maintenance of electric and 
water meters and test equipment, maintenance of electric and water meter records, 
and installation of electric and water meters and equipment. 
 
Responsibilities for this position will increase in complexity and level of individual 
responsibility as the employee progresses through the utility’s apprentice meter 
technician program. 
 
This position is intended to provide education and on-the-job training leading to 
Journeyman Meter Technician status and requires continual progression, and is not 
considered a permanent employment status. Advancement to Journeyman Meter 
Technician status occurs upon completion of required classroom instruction, on-the-
job training hours, and demonstration of job knowledge and competency. 
 
 
DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES 
Core Duties and Responsibilities - The following duties are the primary duties of 
this position but do not compose an exclusive or all-encompassing list of duties. 
Other duties may be assigned or required to accomplish the main goals of this 
position. 
 


• Maintains the utility’s electric and water meter testing programs to ensure 
compliance with Public Service Commission of Wisconsin (PSCW) regulations 
and periodic test schedules. 
 


• Tests single and three-phase electric meters both in the field and in the shop 
in accordance with PSC rules. Maintains, and repairs meters, current 
transformers (CTs), and voltage transformers (VTs). Prepares and issues 
reports on electric meter test quantities and results to division supervisors, 
customer service staff, and regulatory agencies as directed. 







Council Approved ADD DATE 


 
• Tests water meters both in the field and in the shop in accordance with PSC 


rules. Installs, maintains, and repairs water meters. Prepares and issues 
reports on water meter test quantities and results to division supervisors, 
customer service staff, and regulatory agencies as directed. 


 
• Manages the utility water and electric meter inventory. Establishes and 


maintains metering standardization programs, and collaborates with the Asset 
& Facilities Coordinator to maintain meter inventory, including the 
procurement of new meters and the discarding of damaged and retired 
meters. Prepares and issues reports on meter inventory and annual activity to 
division supervisors, financial staff, and regulatory agencies as directed. 
Completes the year-end inventory process for electric and water meters, CTs, 
and VTs. 
 


• Reviews applications for new and upgraded electric service connections, and 
determines proper meter type, cabinet size and type, and need for CTs and 
VTs, and wires customer meter sockets at commercial properties. Conveys 
cabinet and socket requirements to customers and electrical contractors. 
Collaborates with the Electric System Supervisor to coordinate electric meter 
sizing, installation, and repair. 
 


• Installs electric and water meters – including CTs and VTs as necessary – at 
customer premises, including temporary and permanent services. 
 


• Reviews applications for new water service connections, and determines the 
proper meter sizing and type. Conveys plumbing requirements to customers 
and plumbing contractors. Collaborates with the Water System Supervisor to 
coordinate water meter sizing, installation, and repair. 
 


• Maintains GIS software applications and databases, including electric and 
water meter inventory, electric and water meter testing history, electric and 
water service connection details and meter history, and other records as 
directed. 
 


• Assists in the management of the utility’s water Cross-Connection Control 
Program to eliminate existing and prevent future cross-connections, in 
accordance with Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources (DNR) rules. 
Performs household and business inspections, issues corrective orders, and 
performs follow-up inspections as necessary. 
 


• Assists with utility billing operations by investigating zero/low meter readings 
for both electric and water, and reports findings. Reviews customer history 
and consumption trends to detect potential meter issues. Performs meter 
rereads upon receipt of workorders. 
 







Council Approved ADD DATE 


• Completes the monthly collection of electric and water meter readings for 
cycle billing purposes. Maintains ability to work a flexible schedule in order to 
complete the monthly meter reading collection outside of standard working 
hours one day per month, typically on the first day of the month. 
 


• Completes the daily meter readings for newly opened or closed customer 
accounts. Processes all daily meter workorders. 
 


• Coordinates field delinquent collections operations, including disconnecting 
utility service to customers upon receipt of disconnection workorders. 
 


• Receives and responds to customer inquiries and complaints and recommends 
and performs corrective action in response. 
 


• Attends and assists with utility-sponsored public events, prepares public 
educational materials, and participates in outreach efforts. 
 


• Maintains an ability to work a flexible schedule to accommodate planned 
activities outside of the typical work schedule, including but not limited to 
planned customer outages or system maintenance work, as well as planned 
seasonal schedule changes and tasks. 
 


• Maintains an ability to travel within Wisconsin to locations requiring overnight 
stays up to a week in length to complete the required apprenticeship 
classroom and hands-on training. 
 


• Maintains an ability whenever possible to respond to utility emergencies and 
assist those serving on-call. 
 


• Complies with all Stoughton Utilities safety programs, and guidelines and 
regulations set by the Public Service Commission of Wisconsin (PSCW), 
Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources (DNR), and the National Electric 
Safety Code (NESC). 


 
Additional Duties and Responsibilities - The following duties are necessary for 
operations, but may be shared with or performed by other employees. The listed 
duties do not compose an exclusive or all-encompassing list of additional duties. 
Other duties may be assigned or required to accomplish the main goals of this 
position. 
 


• Greet and direct visitors. Answer, direct, and route telephone calls and 
messages. 
 


• Provide back up for various front-office tasks, including but not limited to: 
processing customer payments, preparation of committee meeting packets, 
preparation of daily bank deposits, organizational filing, negotiating deferred 
payment agreements, etc. 







Council Approved ADD DATE 


 
• Provide back up for processing customer payments received through various 


physical and electronic methods, including but not limited to, banking 
lockbox, online My Account payments, Autopay (ACH and credit card), night 
deposit box, in-person, energy assistance, etc. 
 


• Provide back up for daily visits to City Hall, local post office, and local bank 
branch to receive and process incoming and outgoing postal and 
interdepartmental mail and deliver the daily banking deposit. Sorts and 
distributes received postal and interdepartmental mail to their intended 
recipients. 
 


• Maintains grounds and facilities, such as painting surfaces, snow and ice 
removal, custodial tasks, basic carpentry, basic commercial electrical 
maintenance, basic plumbing, and similar tasks as assigned. 
 


• Provides emergency after-hours support to the Electric, Wastewater, and 
Water System Divisions, including basic system repair, traffic control and 
direction, site preparation and cleanup, equipment transport and operation, 
and other tasks as directed. Provides local and regional emergency disaster 
response. 
 


• Performs routine vehicle maintenance. 
 


• Performs other Stoughton Utilities tasks for all other divisions as directed. 
 


QUALIFICATIONS 
The ability to perform the Core Duties and Additional Duties listed above and: 
 
Education/Training/Certifications  


• High School diploma or equivalent, with one or more years electric metering 
experience and basic water metering experience required, or any combination 
of education and experience that provides equivalent knowledge, skills, and 
abilities. 
 


• Enrollment in the State of Wisconsin three-year Electric Meter Technician 
apprenticeship required, or the ability to begin enrollment immediately upon 
employment. 
 


• Basic knowledge of drinking water distribution systems required; Wisconsin 
Department of Natural Resources (WDNR) Grade T or Grade 1 Waterworks 
Operator Certification, with subclasses G and D, preferred. Ability to obtain 
and maintain such certification required. 
 


• Valid motor vehicle operator’s license required; commercial driver’s license 
with tanker and air brake certification preferred. 
 







Council Approved ADD DATE 


Language Ability and Interpersonal Communication Skills 
• Ability to analyze and categorize data and information in order to determine 


the relationship of the data with reference to established criteria/standards. 
Ability to compare, count, differentiate, measure and/or sort data, as well as 
assemble, copy, records and transcribe data. Ability to classify, compute and 
tabulate data. 
 


• Ability to explain, demonstrate and clarify to others within established 
policies, procedures and standards, as well as the ability to follow specific 
instructions and respond to requests. 
 


• Ability to utilize a variety of advisory data and information such as meter 
records, city ordinances, PSC and DNR reports and bulletins, charts, policy 
manuals, maintenance records, PSC and DNR rules and regulations, vehicle 
manuals, equipment manuals, meter and CT wiring diagrams, construction 
specifications and plans, service applications, electric service rules, safety 
manuals and codes, and maps. 
 


• Ability to communicate effectively orally and in writing with department 
personnel, customers, contractors, engineers, City employees, law 
enforcement, and PSC and DNR statistical reports. 
 


• Ability to prepare narrative and statistical reports, construction documents, 
and correspondence using prescribed formats according to accepted rules of 
punctuation, grammar, and style. 


 
Mathematical Ability 


• Ability to perform addition, subtraction, multiplication, and division; calculate 
percentages, fractions, and decimals; interpret and develop basic descriptive 
statistical reports; and may require the ability to perform mathematical 
operations with algebra. 


 
Judgment and Situational Reasoning Ability 


• Ability to carry out directives without direct supervision. Ability to exercise 
independent judgment to apply facts and principles for developing approaches 
and techniques to problem resolution. 
 


• Ability to use functional reasoning in performing diversified work activities. 
 


• Ability to exercise judgment, decisiveness, and creativity required in situations 
involving the evaluation of information against sensory and/or judgmental 
criteria. 
 


Physical Requirements 
• Ability to operate equipment and machinery requiring monitoring multiple 


conditions and making multiple, complex and rapid adjustments, such as 
motor vehicles, meter test bench, hand tools, generators, voltmeter, etc. 







Council Approved ADD DATE 


 
• Ability to operate office equipment and machinery requiring simple but 


continuous adjustments, such as computer terminal, photocopier, paper 
cutter, hand punch, and telephone. 
 


• Ability to repair meters and perform coordinated activity around live 
electricity, potentially in tight spaces. 
 


• Ability to coordinate eyes, hands, feet, and limbs in performing skilled 
movements such as electrical work. 
 


• Ability to exert heavy physical effort in moderate to heavy work, typically 
involving some combination of climbing, balancing, stooping, kneeling, 
crouching, crawling, lifting, and carrying, pushing and pulling over 100 
pounds. 
 


• Ability to recognize and identify degrees of similarities and differences 
between characteristics of color, sound, taste, texture, and odor associated 
with job-related objects, materials, and ingredients. 
 


Environmental Adaptability 
• Ability to work under uncomfortable and potentially unsafe conditions that 


require exposure to severe environmental factors such as temperature 
variations, high winds, rain and snow, odors, toxic agents, noise, vibrations, 
wetness, dusts, machinery, explosives, gas, and high voltage electrical 
currents. This exposure may cause discomfort and presents a high risk of 
injury or death. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 







Council Approved ADD DATE 


 
EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER 


 
The City of Stoughton is an Equal Opportunity Employer.  In compliance with 


applicable state and federal law, the City will provide reasonable accommodations to 
qualified individuals with disabilities and encourages both prospective and current 


employees to discuss potential accommodations with the City. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
ACKNOWLEDGEMENT: 
 
All requirements of the described position are subject to change over time. The 
employee may be required to perform other duties as requested by the City. 
 
I acknowledge that this job description is neither an employment contract nor a 
legal document. I have received, read, and understand the expectations for the 
successful performance of this job. 
 
 
Printed Name: ____________________________________ 
 
 
Signature: _______________________________________ Date: _____________ 
 
  


  







Council Approved ADD DATE 


 


 


 
 


UTILITIES DEPARTMENT  
Wastewater System Division 


Apprentice Operator 


REPORTS TO: Wastewater System Supervisor PAY GRADE: W-2    FLSA: N                   
 
 
SUMMARY OF POSITION 
The purpose of this position is to maintain and operate the water pumping, storage, 
and distribution systems, and the wastewater treatment facilities and sanitary 
sewer collection system for the City of Stoughton, with a focus on wastewater 
collection and treatment operations. 
 
Responsibilities for this position will increase in complexity and level of individual 
responsibility as the employee progresses through the utility’s Advanced Certified 
Operator Apprenticeship program. 
 
This position is intended to provide education and on-the-job training leading to 
Advanced Certified Operator status and requires continual progression, and is not 
considered a permanent employment status. Advancement to Advanced Certified 
Operator status occurs upon completion of required classroom instruction, on-the-
job training hours, and demonstration of job knowledge and competency. 
 
 
DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES 
Core Duties and Responsibilities - The following duties are the primary duties of 
this position but do not compose an exclusive or all-encompassing list of duties. 
Other duties may be assigned or required to accomplish the main goals of this 
position. 
 


• Ensures environmentally responsible wastewater treatment and discharge via 
obtaining and testing routine wastewater treatment samples throughout the 
treatment process, monitoring and recording plant operations and tank 
volumes, monitoring and testing wastewater influent and effluent quality 
conditions, and monitoring and recording data and operations on the 
water/wastewater SCADA system. 
 


• Repairs and maintains sanitary sewer collection mains and pumps. Performs 
routine maintenance to sanitary sewer collection system infrastructure and 
equipment. Flushes, televises, cleans, and repairs the sanitary sewer 
collection system. 
 







Council Approved ADD DATE 


 
• Repairs and maintains pumps, motors, valves, flow meters, screens, and all 


other equipment at the wastewater treatment facility. 
 


• Obtains and prepares samples of drinking water and wastewater treatment, 
and performs laboratory analysis including sample testing and calculations for 
biochemical oxygen demand (BOD), suspended solids, pH levels, volatile 
solids, phosphorous, ammonia, fecal coliform, chlorine residual, fluoride 
content, industrial effluents, glucose glutamic acid, and other analysis as 
directed. Prepares graphs, charts, and reports from sample data, and reports 
out findings. Makes adjustments to drinking water and wastewater treatment 
operations and calculates amount of chemical additives according to test 
results. 
 


• Provides safe drinking water conditions to protect Stoughton Utilities 
customers, via obtaining and testing routine water samples, monitoring and 
recording well pump operations and storage tank volumes, monitoring and 
testing water and wastewater quality conditions, and monitoring and 
recording data and operations on the water/wastewater SCADA system. 
 


• Repairs and maintains water distribution mains, pumps, valves, curb stops, 
services, and hydrants. Installs and maintains water service connections. 
Performs routine maintenance to other water system infrastructure and 
equipment. Exercises system valves and flushes hydrants. 
 


• Prepares, or assists with the preparation of monthly water pumpage and 
wastewater treatment reports, and submits to the Wisconsin Department of 
Natural Resources (DNR). 
 


• Maintains, calibrates, and repairs testing equipment. Maintains knowledge 
regarding testing requirements for wastewater treatment facilities. Cleans 
and maintains lab equipment. Prepares and sends EPA samples as directed. 
 


• Operates the water/wastewater SCADA system to monitor system health, 
record data and equipment readings, operate controls, evaluate system 
performance, and investigate trouble conditions. 
 


• Responds to customer inquiries and complaints and performs corrective 
measures. Communicates with customers as required to resolve inquiries and 
complaints, and to provide notice of planned system outages. 
 


• Performs work tasks at active job sites to plan, direct, and oversee system 
and equipment maintenance and repair tasks. Works onsite to recommend 
operational changes and safety improvements, and to evaluate safety 
compliance. 
 







Council Approved ADD DATE 


 
• Attends and assists with utility-sponsored public events, prepares public 


educational materials and participates in outreach efforts, conducts system 
demonstrations and tours, and gives safety and conservation presentations. 
 


• Completes and maintains work orders, time sheets, preflight checklists, 
tailgate meetings, inventory forms, and all other division paperwork, and 
maintains records and prepares reports as directed. Conducts system 
inspections and records findings. 
 


• Maintains GIS software applications and databases, including service 
connection details, flushing and exercising maintenance records, televising 
records, equipment maintenance tasks, and other records as directed. 
 


• Maintains an ability to work a flexible schedule to accommodate planned 
activities outside of the typical work schedule, including but not limited to 
planned customer outages or system maintenance work, as well as planned 
seasonal schedule changes and tasks. 
 


• Maintains an ability to travel within Wisconsin to locations requiring overnight 
stays up to a week in length to complete the required apprenticeship 
classroom and hands-on training. 
 


• Maintains an ability whenever possible to respond to utility emergencies and 
assist those serving on-call. As progression through the apprenticeship 
program occurs, maintains an ability to serve on standby on-call duty, 
scheduled on a rotational basis within the Water and Wastewater System 
Divisions. 
 


• Complies with all Stoughton Utilities safety programs, and guidelines and 
regulations set by the Public Service Commission of Wisconsin (PSCW). 
Ensures full Water and Wastewater System Divisions compliance of the same. 


 
Additional Duties and Responsibilities - The following duties are necessary for 
operations, but may be shared with or performed by other employees. The listed 
duties do not compose an exclusive or all-encompassing list of additional duties. 
Other duties may be assigned or required to accomplish the main goals of this 
position. 
 


• Disconnects water service to customers upon receipt of disconnection 
workorders due to delinquency or safety violations, and at customers’ 
request. Conducts periodic reviews of disconnected properties for connection 
evaluation. 
 


• Installs water meters at customer premises, including temporary and 
permanent services. Assists the meter technician with the maintenance and 







Council Approved ADD DATE 


repair of water meters. Reconnects water services and transfers water 
meters. 
 


• Maintains grounds and facilities, such as painting surfaces, ice and snow 
removal, custodial tasks, basic carpentry, basic commercial electrical 
maintenance, basic plumbing, and similar tasks as assigned. 
 


• Provides emergency after-hours support to the Electric System Division, 
including basic system repair, traffic control and direction, site preparation 
and cleanup, equipment transport and operation, groundsman duties, and 
other tasks as directed. Provides local and regional emergency disaster 
response. 
 


• Performs routine vehicle maintenance. 
 


• Performs other Stoughton Utilities tasks as directed. 
 


QUALIFICATIONS 
The ability to perform the Core Duties and Additional Duties listed above and: 
 
Education/Training/Certifications  


• High School diploma or equivalent with demonstrated mechanical and/or 
plumbing aptitude. 
 


• Successful completion of wastewater treatment technical courses, or 
enrollment in the State of Wisconsin wastewater treatment plant operator 
apprenticeship program preferred.  
 


• Ability to maintain enrollment in the State of Wisconsin wastewater treatment 
plant operator apprenticeship program is required. 
 


• Ability to obtain and maintain CPR/First Aid certification is required. 
 


• Ability to obtain and maintain a commercial driver’s license with tanker and 
airbrake certification is required. A valid motor vehicle operator’s license is 
required at hire. 
 


Language Ability and Interpersonal Communication Skills 
• Ability to perform mid-level data analysis, including the ability to audit, 


deduce, assess, conclude and appraise. Requires discretion in determining 
and referencing such to established criteria to define consequences and 
develop alternatives. 
 


• Ability to classify, compute, and tabulate data and information, following a 
prescribed plan requiring the exercise of some individual judgment, with 
reference to established criteria/standards. Ability to compare, count, 







Council Approved ADD DATE 


differentiate, measure, and sort information, as well as assemble, copy, 
record, and transcribe data and information. 
 


• Ability to utilize a variety of advisory data and information, such as work 
orders; utility maps and diagrams; construction specifications; blueprints; lab 
records and reports; facilities operation and maintenance manuals; technical 
operating manuals; city and utility policies and procedures; guidelines; non-
routine correspondence; and safety rules and manuals. 
 


• Ability to explain, demonstrate, and clarify to others within well-established 
policies, procedures, and standards, as well as the ability to follow specific 
instructions and respond to requests. 
 


• Ability to communicate effectively in writing and orally with customers, 
department and all levels of City personnel, plumbers, contractors, regulatory 
representatives, and the general public. 


 
Mathematical Ability 


• Ability to perform addition, subtraction, multiplication, and division; calculate 
percentages, fractions, and decimals; interpret and develop basic descriptive 
statistical reports; and may require the ability to perform mathematical 
operations with algebra. 


 
Judgment and Situational Reasoning Ability 


• Ability to carry out directives without direct supervision. Ability to exercise 
independent judgment to apply facts and principles for developing approaches 
and techniques to problem resolution. 
 


• Ability to apply principles of influence systems such as leading and teaching. 
 


• Ability to exercise the judgment, decisiveness and creativity required in 
situations involving the evaluation of information against sensory and 
judgmental criteria. 
 


Physical Requirements 
• Ability to operate equipment and machinery such as impact tools, sewer line 


jet truck, back hoe, roller, loaders, dump truck, forklift, wood chipper, meters, 
hand and power tools, snow plows and blowers, lab instruments, excavation 
hand tools, and other equipment requiring monitoring multiple conditions and 
making multiple, complex, and rapid adjustments. Ability to repair complex 
equipment and machinery. 
 


• Ability to coordinate eyes, hands, feet, and limbs in performing skilled 
movements such as operating heavy excavation and pumping equipment. 
 


• Ability to install and repair meters and perform coordinated activity, 
potentially in tight spaces. 







Council Approved ADD DATE 


 
• Ability to exert regular and sustained heavy physical effort in very heavy 


work, typically involving some combination of climbing, balancing, stooping, 
kneeling, crouching, crawling, and lifting, carrying, pushing, shoveling and 
digging, and pulling heavy objects and materials in excess of 100 pounds. 
 


• Ability to recognize and identify degrees of similarities or differences between 
characteristics of color, shape, sound, texture, and odor associated with job-
related objects, materials, and tasks. 
 


Environmental Adaptability 
• Ability to work under uncomfortable and potentially unsafe conditions that 


require exposure to severe environmental factors such as temperature 
variations, high winds, rain and snow, odors, toxic agents, noise, vibrations, 
wetness, dusts, machinery, explosives, gas, vehicular traffic, high voltage 
electrical currents, and disease. This exposure may cause discomfort and 
presents a high risk of injury or death. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


 







Council Approved ADD DATE 


EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER 
 


The City of Stoughton is an Equal Opportunity Employer.  In compliance with 
applicable state and federal law, the City will provide reasonable accommodations to 


qualified individuals with disabilities and encourages both prospective and current 
employees to discuss potential accommodations with the City. 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
ACKNOWLEDGEMENT: 
 
All requirements of the described position are subject to change over time. The 
employee may be required to perform other duties as requested by the City. 
 
I acknowledge that this job description is neither an employment contract nor a 
legal document. I have received, read, and understand the expectations for the 
successful performance of this job. 
 
 
Printed Name: ____________________________________ 
 
 
Signature: _______________________________________ Date: _____________ 
 
  


  







Council Approved ADD DATE 


 


 


 
 


UTILITIES DEPARTMENT  
Technical Operations Division 


Asset & Facilities Coordinator 


REPORTS TO: Assistant Utilities Director     PAY GRADE: NEX-1      FLSA: N                   
 
 
SUMMARY OF POSITION 
The purpose of this position is to coordinate inventory and construction 
management tasks for Stoughton Utilities, including contract maintenance, public 
bidding and requests for quotations, purchasing, warehousing, asset installation and 
retirement records, and inventory maintenance. This position is also responsible for 
the coordination of the construction workorder process from start to finish, including 
participating in the development of initial estimates, project closeout, and billing. 
 
This position also coordinates Stoughton Utilities vehicle procurement and 
maintenance programs, participates in the maintenance of the utility Geographic 
Information System (GIS), participates in the operation and maintenance of the 
utilities Outage Management System (OMS), and participates in the operation and 
maintenance of the utilities Supervisory Control and Data Acquisition (SCADA) 
systems. This position serves as the designated facilities coordinator and the safety 
program coordinator. 
 
 
DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES 
Core Duties and Responsibilities - The following duties are the primary duties of 
this position but do not compose an exclusive or all-encompassing list of duties. 
Other duties may be assigned or required to accomplish the main goals of this 
position. 
 


• Coordinates a variety of technical planning tasks for maintenance and 
construction projects, such as the preparation and distribution of materials 
and equipment specifications, the preparation of work orders and staking 
sheets, and the solicitation of materials and equipment proposals. 
Coordinates the purchasing and retirement of materials. Assigns, schedules, 
and performs construction management tasks in the office and the field. 
 


• Coordinates and maintains contracts with vendors, including assisting with 
the evaluation of proposals, solicitation of bids and/or quotations, review and 
negotiation of contract terms, follow up action to address contract deficiencies 
or violations, and all other contract management requirements. Participates 
in third-party service selection. Coordinates contract execution. 







Council Approved ADD DATE 


 
• Manages Stoughton Utilities Electric, Water, and Wastewater standard 


construction specifications. Conducts periodic reviews of the specification 
documents to ensure they remain accurate and up to date, collaborating with 
utilities division supervisors to obtain input. Shares construction specifications 
with project developers, engineering consultants, construction contractors, 
and others. 
 


• Participates in the planning of electric, water, and wastewater projects from 
conception through completion, in collaboration with the Distribution System 
Coordinator. Makes recommendations for new development design and 
system expansion. Coordinates customer construction estimating and new 
development design review process in the absence of the Distribution System 
Coordinator. 
 


• Assigns costs and monitors job orders for material sheets and places data 
into the GIS and financial continuing property records systems. Opens and 
closes construction and maintenance workorders, and allocates inventory. 
Prepares forms, records, and written correspondence necessary to complete 
project file information. Follows all accounting procedures to track materials, 
supplies, and equipment. 
 


• Collaborates with utilities division supervisors to maintain material inventory 
and procurement, including general construction, maintenance, safety, and 
vehicle items. Receives input and recommendations for material quality 
standards and specifications. Coordinates the evaluation of proposals and 
material acquisition. Coordinates the year- end inventory process for electric, 
water, and wastewater utility materials, collaborating with utilities division 
supervisors through completion of the assignment.  
 


• Conducts construction project plan and specification reviews, including utility 
easement review. Obtains, reviews, and approves as-built plans, quantities, 
and acceptance certifications for public utility infrastructure projects and land 
developments. Obtains and reviews private building construction projects, 
including reviewing compliance with existing utility easements and assisting 
in the acquisition of new utility easements as necessary. 
 


• Processes customer inquiries and requests for maintenance related to the 
electric utility; investigates complaints and performs corrective measures, or 
schedules and assigns workorders to resolve customer issues. Receives 
customer inquiries, writes and distributes work orders, provides information, 
and/or refers to appropriate person or agency for resolution. Communicates 
with customers as required to resolve inquiries and complaints, and to 
provide notice of planned service interruptions. 
 


• Collaborates within the Technical Operations Division to maintain and improve 
the utility Geographic Information System (GIS), including updating asset 







Council Approved ADD DATE 


data and locations for the electric, water, and wastewater divisions, 
developing maps and mobile services for utility employees and engineering 
consultants, and completing basic maintenance of GIS software, databases, 
geometric networks, and add-on systems. Collaborates with utility division 
supervisors to obtain, process, and verify data updates. Develops system 
documentation. Participates on and reports system changes to the GIS team. 
 


• Collaborates within the Technical Operations Division to operate and maintain 
the Supervisory Control and Data Acquisition (SCADA) systems for the 
electric system and the water/wastewater system. Participates in SCADA 
system maintenance projects, including system upgrades and improvements, 
security upgrades, remote facility networking projects, and OMS system 
integration. Provides training to utility operators. Develops system 
documentation. Participates on and reports system changes to the SCADA & 
OMS team. 
 


• Collaborates within the Technical Operations Division to operate and maintain 
the Outage Management System (OMS). Participates in OMS system 
maintenance projects, including system upgrades and improvements, security 
upgrades, and SCADA system integration. Provides training to field 
employees on mobile system use, office employees on data collection and 
entry, and all other software operators. Develops system documentation. 
Participates on and reports system changes to the SCADA & OMS team. 
 


• Serves as the Stoughton Utilities facilities coordinator for the administration 
building, wastewater treatment facility office, wells, and lift station buildings; 
schedules maintenance and repair efforts, mowing and landscaping services, 
snow removal, and janitorial services. Responds to all operational 
requirements of the occupants. 
 


• Serves as the Stoughton Utilities safety program coordinator. Coordinates 
employee safety training programs to ensure regulatory compliance and 
maintains documentation of employee training history. Conducts periodic job 
site inspections upon request and documents observations. Manages written 
safety programs and conducts periodic reviews to ensure they remain up to 
date. Serves as the Safety Team Leader and schedules and participates in 
periodic meetings. Responds to all safety requirements, requests, and 
concerns of utility employees. 
 


• Maintains an ability to work a flexible schedule to accommodate planned 
activities outside of the typical work schedule, including but not limited to 
planned customer outages or system maintenance work, as well as planned 
seasonal schedule changes and tasks. 
 


• Complies with all Stoughton Utilities Safety programs, and guidelines and 
regulations set by the Public Service Commission of Wisconsin (PSCW), 







Council Approved ADD DATE 


Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources (DNR), and the National Electric 
Safety Code (NESC). 


 
Additional Duties and Responsibilities - The following duties are necessary for 
operations, but may be shared with or performed by other employees. The listed 
duties do not compose an exclusive or all-encompassing list of additional duties. 
Other duties may be assigned or required to accomplish the main goals of this 
position. 
 


• Serves as a backup for the monthly collection of electric and water meter 
readings for cycle billing purposes. Maintains ability to work a flexible 
schedule in order to complete the monthly meter reading collection outside of 
standard working hours one day per month, typically on the first day of the 
month. 
 


• Serves as a backup to collect the daily meter readings for newly opened or 
closed customer accounts. Processes all daily meter workorders. 
 


• Serves as the backup outage coordinator during routine work hours, including 
scheduled outages and service disconnections. 
 


• Provides emergency after-hours support to the Electric, Wastewater, and 
Water System Divisions, including basic system repair, traffic control and 
direction, site preparation and cleanup, equipment transport and operation, 
and other tasks as directed. Provides local and regional emergency disaster 
response. 
 


• Maintains active certificate of appointment as a State of Wisconsin Notary 
Public. 
 


• Performs other Stoughton Utilities tasks as directed. 
 


QUALIFICATIONS 
The ability to perform the Core Duties and Additional Duties listed above and: 
 
Education/Training/Certifications  


• High School diploma or equivalent, vocational/technical training in electrical 
distribution, civil engineering, information technology, or another field that 
provides relevant experience, three to five years utility experience, or any 
combination of education and experience that provides equivalent knowledge, 
skills, and abilities. 
 


• Vocational or utility industry training in one or more of the following is 
preferred: facilities management, cost accounting, project management, 
Supervisory Control and Data Acquisition (SCADA), Geographic Information 
Systems (GIS), Outage Management Systems (OMS), basic networking and 
information technology. 







Council Approved ADD DATE 


 
• Valid motor vehicle operator’s license is required. 


 
Language Ability and Interpersonal Communication Skills 


• Ability to perform mid-level data analysis including the ability to audit, 
deduce, assess, conclude, and appraise. Requires discretion in determining 
and referencing such to established criteria to define consequences and 
develop alternatives. 
 


• Ability to classify, compute, and tabulate data and information, following a 
prescribed plan requiring the exercise of significant individual judgment. 
Ability to compare, count, differentiate, measure, and sort information, as 
well as assemble, copy, record, and transcribe data and information. 
 


• Ability to explain, demonstrate, and clarify to others within well-established 
policies, procedures, and standards, as well as the ability to follow specific 
instructions and respond to complex requests. 


 
• Ability to comprehend, interpret, approve, and utilize a variety of advisory and 


design data and information such as billing invoices, vehicle maintenance 
reports, applications for service, correspondence, capital plans, regulations 
and legal statutes, job authorization forms, purchase orders, ordinances, 
material sheets, staking sheets, computer software operating manuals, and 
safety rules and manuals. Ability to utilize and interpret environmental, 
electrical engineering, water and wastewater engineering, computer software 
systems, geographical information systems, and accounting terminology. 
 


• Ability to communicate in writing and orally effectively with customers, 
department and all levels of City personnel, contractors, developers, 
engineering consultants, legal consultants, regulatory agency personnel, and 
the general public. 
 


• Ability to prepare letters, statements, notices, memos, narrative and 
statistical reports, construction documents, and other correspondence using 
prescribed formats according to accepted rules of punctuation, grammar, and 
style. 


 
Mathematical Ability 


• Ability to perform addition, subtraction, multiplication, and division; calculate 
percentages, fractions, and decimals; interpret and develop basic descriptive 
statistical reports; and may require the ability to perform mathematical 
operations with algebra. 


 
Judgment and Situational Reasoning Ability 


• Ability to carry out directives without direct supervision. Ability to exercise 
independent judgment to apply facts and principles for developing approaches 
and techniques to problem resolution. 







Council Approved ADD DATE 


 
• Ability to apply principles of influence systems, such as leading, teaching, 


directing, planning, coordinating, and controlling. 
 


• Ability to exercise the judgment, decisiveness, and creativity required in 
situations involving the evaluation of information against measurable or 
judgmental criteria, and involving the direction, control, and planning of an 
entire program or multiple programs. 


 
Physical Requirements 


• Ability to operate equipment and machinery requiring monitoring multiple 
conditions and making multiple, complex, and rapid adjustments, such as 
motor vehicles, dump truck, front end loader, forklift, etc. 
 


• Ability to operate office equipment and machinery requiring simple but 
continuous adjustments, such as computer terminal, photocopier, paper 
cutter, hand punch, and telephone. 
 


• Ability to coordinate eyes, hands, feet and limbs in performing skilled 
movements such as typing, repair, and operation. 
 


• Ability to exert heavy physical effort in moderate to heavy work, typically 
involving some combination of climbing, balancing, stooping, kneeling, 
crouching, crawling, lifting, and carrying, pushing or pulling over 100 pounds. 
 


• Ability to recognize and identify degrees of similarities or differences between 
characteristics of color, sound, taste, texture, and odor associated with job-
related objects, materials, and tasks. 
 


Environmental Adaptability 
• Ability to work effectively in an office environment, as well as in the field 


under uncomfortable and potentially unsafe conditions that require exposure 
to environmental factors such as temperature variations, winds, rain and 
snow, odors, toxic agents, noise, vibrations, wetness, dusts, machinery, and 
vehicular traffic. This exposure may cause discomfort and presents a risk of 
injury or death. 
 
 
 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 







Council Approved ADD DATE 


 
EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER 


 
The City of Stoughton is an Equal Opportunity Employer.  In compliance with 


applicable state and federal law, the City will provide reasonable accommodations to 
qualified individuals with disabilities and encourages both prospective and current 


employees to discuss potential accommodations with the City. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
ACKNOWLEDGEMENT: 
 
All requirements of the described position are subject to change over time. The 
employee may be required to perform other duties as requested by the City. 
 
I acknowledge that this job description is neither an employment contract nor a 
legal document. I have received, read, and understand the expectations for the 
successful performance of this job. 
 
 
Printed Name: ____________________________________ 
 
 
Signature: _______________________________________ Date: _____________ 
 
  


  







Council Approved ADD DATE 


 


 


 
 


UTILITIES DEPARTMENT  
Assistant Utilities Director 


REPORTS TO: Utilities Director               PAYGRADE: EX-4              FLSA: E                   
 
 
SUMMARY OF POSITION 
The purpose of this position is to assist the Utilities Director with the coordination 
and administration of Stoughton Utilities, and assume the responsibilities of the 
Director in their absence. This position will also manage information and operational 
technology solutions for Stoughton Utilities, and be responsible for the management 
of the Electric System, Technical Operations, Wastewater System, and Water 
System Divisions. 
 
DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES 
Core Duties and Responsibilities - The following duties are the primary duties of 
this position but do not compose an exclusive or all-encompassing list of duties. 
Other duties may be assigned or required to accomplish the main goals of this 
position. 


 
• Manages the activities of the Electric System Division, Technical Operations 


Division, Wastewater System Division, and Water System Division personnel. 
Establishes and maintains productivity reports, assigns and reviews work, 
coordinates continuing education/training and professional development 
programs, schedules and approves overtime and leave, reviews work 
performed for accuracy and effectiveness, completes performance 
evaluations, etc. 
 


• Manages Stoughton Utilities information and operational technology systems, 
including internal and customer-facing software solutions, automation 
platforms, data networking and communications systems, computing 
hardware and peripheral devices, mobile device management, and user 
account management. 
 


• In the absence of, or in cooperation with the Utilities Director, represents 
Stoughton Utilities in reporting to the Mayor, Common Council, Utilities 
Committee, and the City of Stoughton Leadership Team. Participates in 
required Utilities Committee and Common Council meetings. Prepares 
monthly meeting agendas and notices, status reports, and other scheduled 
and unscheduled presentations and reports.  
 







Council Approved ADD DATE 


• In the absence of, or in cooperation with the Utilities Director, represents 
Stoughton Utilities in participation and communications with industry partners 
including WPPI Energy and Municipal Electric Utilities of Wisconsin (MEUW), 
lobbying organizations, regulatory agencies, legal representation, and elected 
officials. Serves as the Alternate Director on the WPPI Energy Board of 
Directors. 
 


• In conjunction with the Utilities Director and the Director of Human Resources 
& Risk Management, makes recommendations regarding and participates in 
staff hiring and promotions, employee feedback and coaching, disciplinary 
actions, personnel evaluations, staff development, and terminations. 
 


• Receives and responds to high-level customer inquiries and complaints, 
including those from elected officials and the Public Service Commission of 
Wisconsin, and performs resulting corrective action and/or policy revisions. 
 


• Manages utility cybersecurity protection efforts and secures data network 
systems by developing system access, monitoring, control, and evaluation 
procedures; establishing, implementing, and testing disaster recovery policies 
and procedures; monitoring network input and output; and reviewing 
application and performance logs. 
 


• Manages utility physical security protection efforts and secures utility facilities 
by developing facility access, monitoring, control, and evaluation procedures, 
and reviewing physical security protections. 
 


• Manages the utility Geographic Information System (GIS), including asset 
data for the electric, water, and wastewater system divisions, developing 
maps and services for utility employees and engineering consultants, and 
completing advanced maintenance of software, databases, geometric 
networks, and add-on systems. Develops system documentation. Coordinates 
and reports system changes to the GIS team. 
 


• Maintains Manages the Supervisory Control and Data Acquisition (SCADA) 
systems and the Outage Management System (OMS). Manages system 
maintenance projects, including system upgrades and improvements, security 
upgrades, remote facility networking projects, and system integrations. 
Provides training to utility operators. Develops system documentation. 
Coordinates and reports system changes to the SCADA & OMS team. 
 


• Manages Stoughton Utilities billing, metering, collections, and customer 
service, and ensures compliance with all regulatory requirements. 
 


• Manages Stoughton Utilities customer outreach campaigns, long-term 
strategic planning of customer outreach and education efforts, public event 
planning, and other education and outreach efforts. 
 







Council Approved ADD DATE 


• Manages technical planning tasks for maintenance and construction projects, 
construction and development project plans and specifications, and system 
outage and reliability reporting. 
 


• Manages the Stoughton Utilities facilities coordination for the administration 
building, wastewater treatment facility office, wells, and lift station buildings. 
Responds to all operational requirements of the occupants. 
 


• Manages the Stoughton Utilities safety program coordination. Participates on 
the Safety Team. Responds to all safety requirements, requests, and 
concerns of utility employees. 
 


• Designs, develops, and maintains custom programming and database 
solutions for internal and customer-facing applications and websites. 
 


• Collaborates with the Asset & Facilities Coordinator to maintain technology 
inventory and procurement. Provides input and prepares recommendations 
for material quality standards and specifications. Assists in the evaluation of 
proposals and material acquisition. Cooperates in the year-end inventory 
process. 
 


• Assists with the preparation of the Utilities 20-year Capital Improvement 
Program, including conducting reviews of system reliability and determining 
system improvements. Assists with the preparation and ongoing monitoring 
of the Utilities annual budget. 
 


• Complies with all Stoughton Utilities Safety programs, and guidelines and 
regulations set by the Public Service Commission of Wisconsin, Wisconsin 
Department of Natural Resources, and the National Electric Safety Code. 
 


• Responds to planned and unplanned customer engagement opportunities and 
significant event response, including but not limited to large-scale outages, 
severe weather events, and drinking water or sanitary sewer emergencies. 
 


• Acts as Utilities Director in their absence and maintains continuity of day-to-
day and long-term utility vision and goals, and ensures utility operations 
continue without interruption. 


 
Additional Duties and Responsibilities - The following duties are necessary for 
operations, but may be shared with or performed by other employees. The listed 
duties do not compose an exclusive or all-encompassing list of additional duties. 
Other duties may be assigned or required to accomplish the main goals of this 
position. 
 


• Greet and direct visitors. Answer, direct, and route telephone calls and 
messages. 
 







Council Approved ADD DATE 


• Assist other division personnel as required. 
 


• Attends and assists with utility-sponsored public events, prepares public 
educational materials and participates in outreach efforts, and conducts 
system demonstrations and tours. 
 


• Assists all other Stoughton Utilities divisions as required. 
 


QUALIFICATIONS 
The ability to perform the Core Duties and Additional Duties listed above and: 
 
Education/Training/Certifications  


Bachelor’s degree in engineering or business management, or related field. A 
minimum of ten years of utility experience. A track record of successful 
management and supervisory experience.  


• Significant knowledge of computer software used in the utility environment, 
including experience with Supervisory Control and Data Acquisition (SCADA), 
Geographic Information Systems (GIS), Outage Management Systems (OMS), 
and Customer Information Systems (CIS).  
 


• Significant knowledge of Microsoft Office applications (Word, Excel, Access, 
Outlook, and PowerPoint) including scripting and automation. Significant 
knowledge of Microsoft desktop and server operating systems, Exchange and 
SQL Server platforms, and Hyper-V virtualization systems. 
 


• Knowledge of scripting and programming concepts and commonly used coding 
languages. 
 


• Valid motor vehicle operator’s license is required. 
 


Language Ability and Interpersonal Communication Skills 
• Ability to perform complex data analysis, including the ability to audit, 


deduce, assess, conclude, appraise, analyze, and interpret an extensive 
variety of technical information and governmental regulations. Requires 
discretion in determining and referencing such to established criteria to define 
consequences and develop alternatives. 
 


• Ability to provide first line supervision. Ability to create consensus and 
collaboration, and train others. Ability to advise and provide interpretation 
regarding the application of policies, procedures, and standards to specific 
situations. 
 


• Ability to classify, compute, and tabulate data and information, following a 
prescribed plan requiring the exercise of significant individual judgment. 
Ability to compare, count, differentiate, measure, and sort information, as 
well as assemble, copy, record, and transcribe data and information. 
 







Council Approved ADD DATE 


• Ability to utilize a wide variety of advisory data and information such as billing 
reports and statements; financial reports and statements; budgets; 
accounting and billing systems; computer software operating manuals; city 
and utility policies and procedures; guidelines; non-routine correspondence; 
Public Service Commission of Wisconsin rules, regulations, and tariffs; 
Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources rules and regulations; State of 
Wisconsin legal statutes; and safety rules and manuals. 
 


• Ability to explain, demonstrate, and clarify to others within established 
policies, procedures, and standards, as well as the ability to follow specific 
instructions and to respond to complex requests where established policies 
and procedures may not exist. 
 


• Ability to record and deliver information, explain procedures, give and follow 
instructions, use and interpret civil, environmental, and electrical engineering 
and accounting terminology. 
 


• Ability to communicate in writing and orally with customers, department and 
all levels of City personnel, information technology and systems consultants 
and contractors, software engineers, engineering and legal consultants, 
financial auditors, regulatory agencies, elected and appointed government 
officials, and the general public. 
 


• Ability to prepare letters, statements, notices, memos, narrative and 
statistical reports, and other correspondence using prescribed formats 
according to accepted rules of punctuation, grammar, and style. 


 
Supervisory Skills 


• Ability to assign, supervise, review, develop, assess, and implement 
recommendations to improve the work of others. 
 


• Ability to make recommendations regarding the selection, training, discipline, 
advancement, and discharge of employees. 
 


• Ability to assist in the preparation of meaningful performance reviews and 
participate in the delivery of such reviews. 


 
Mathematical Ability 


• Ability to perform addition, subtraction, multiplication, and division; calculate 
percentages, fractions, and decimals; interpret and develop detailed 
descriptive statistical reports; and the ability to perform mathematical 
operations with algebra, geometry, and descriptive statistics. 
 


• Ability to design and produce graphical representations of complex financial 
data. 
 


Judgment and Situational Reasoning Ability 







Council Approved ADD DATE 


• Ability to carry out directives without direct supervision. Ability to exercise 
independent judgment to apply facts and principles for developing approaches 
and techniques to problem resolution. 
 


• Ability to apply principles of influence systems such as managing, supervising, 
leading, teaching, planning, coordinating, disciplining, and controlling. 
 


• Ability to use functional reasoning and apply rational judgment in performing 
diversified work activities. 
 


• Ability to exercise the judgment, decisiveness, and creativity required in 
situations involving the evaluation of information against measurable criteria, 
and involving the direction, control and planning of an entire program or 
multiple programs. 
 


Physical Requirements 
• Ability to operate equipment and machinery requiring monitoring multiple 


conditions and making multiple, complex, and rapid adjustments, such as 
motor vehicles. 
 


• Ability to operate office equipment and machinery requiring simple but 
continuous adjustments, such as computer terminal, calculator/adding 
machine, cash register, postage meter, photocopier, paper cutter, hand 
punch, telephone, and other items used in performing essential functions. 


 
• Ability to coordinate eyes, hands, feet, and limbs in performing skilled 


movements such as typing, electronics repair, and installation of computing 
hardware and cabling. 
 


• Ability to perform coordinated activity around live electricity, potentially in 
tight spaces. 
 


• Ability to exert physical effort in moderate to heavy work, typically involving 
some combination of climbing, balancing, stooping, kneeling, crouching, 
crawling, lifting, and carrying, pushing, or pulling over 50 pounds. 


• Ability to recognize and identify degrees of similarities or differences between 
characteristics of color, sound, taste, texture, and odor associated with job-
related objects, materials, and tasks. 
 


Environmental Adaptability 
• Ability to work effectively in an office environment and in public meetings 


under safe and comfortable conditions, as well as in the field under 
uncomfortable and potentially unsafe conditions that require exposure to 
environmental factors such as temperature variations, odors, noise, 
vibrations, machinery, and high voltage electrical currents. This exposure 
may cause discomfort and presents a risk of injury or death. 
 







Council Approved ADD DATE 


 
 
 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER 
 


The City of Stoughton is an Equal Opportunity Employer.  In compliance with 
applicable state and federal law, the City will provide reasonable accommodations to 







Council Approved ADD DATE 


qualified individuals with disabilities and encourages both prospective and current 
employees to discuss potential accommodations with the City. 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
ACKNOWLEDGEMENT: 
 
All requirements of the described position are subject to change over time. The 
employee may be required to perform other duties as requested by the City. 
 
I acknowledge that this job description is neither an employment contract nor a 
legal document. I have received, read, and understand the expectations for the 
successful performance of this job. 
 
 
Printed Name: ____________________________________ 
 
 
Signature: _______________________________________ Date: _____________ 
 
  


  







Council Approved ADD DATE 


 


 


 
 


UTILITIES DEPARTMENT  
Wastewater System Division 


Basic Certified Wastewater Operator 


REPORTS TO: Wastewater System Supervisor   PAY GRADE: W-3    FLSA: N                   
 
 
SUMMARY OF POSITION 
The purpose of this position is to maintain and operate the water pumping, storage, 
and distribution systems, and the wastewater treatment facilities and sanitary 
sewer collection system for the City of Stoughton, with a focus on wastewater 
collection and treatment operations. This position is identical to other Basic Certified 
Operator positions in terms of job scope and required qualifications and 
certifications, however may differ in day-to-day duties and assignments. 
 
DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES 
Core Duties and Responsibilities - The following duties are the primary duties of 
this position but do not compose an exclusive or all-encompassing list of duties. 
Other duties may be assigned or required to accomplish the main goals of this 
position. 
 


• Provides safe drinking water conditions to protect Stoughton Utilities 
customers, via obtaining and testing routine water samples, monitoring and 
recording well pump operations and storage tank volumes, monitoring and 
testing water and wastewater quality conditions, and monitoring and 
recording data and operations on the water/wastewater SCADA system. 
 


• Ensures environmentally responsible wastewater treatment and discharge via 
obtaining and testing routine wastewater treatment samples throughout the 
treatment process, monitoring and recording plant operations and tank 
volumes, monitoring and testing wastewater influent and effluent quality 
conditions, and monitoring and recording data and operations on the 
water/wastewater SCADA system. 
 


• Repairs and maintains water distribution mains, pumps, valves, curb stops, 
services, and hydrants. Installs and maintains water service connections. 
Performs routine maintenance to other water system infrastructure and 
equipment. Exercises system valves and flushes hydrants. 


 
• Repairs and maintains sanitary sewer collection mains and pumps. Performs 


routine maintenance to sanitary sewer collection system infrastructure and 







Council Approved ADD DATE 


equipment. Flushes, televises, cleans, and repairs the sanitary sewer 
collection system. 


 
• Repairs and maintains pumps, motors, valves, flow meters, screens, and all 


other equipment at the wastewater treatment facility. 
 


• Obtains and prepares samples of drinking water and wastewater treatment, 
and performs laboratory analysis including sample testing and calculations for 
biochemical oxygen demand (BOD), suspended solids, pH levels, volatile 
solids, phosphorous, ammonia, fecal coliform, chlorine residual, fluoride 
content, industrial effluents, glucose glutamic acid, and other analysis as 
directed, and/or delivers samples to outside laboratories. Prepares graphs, 
charts, and reports from sample data, and reports out findings. Makes 
adjustments to drinking water and wastewater treatment operations and 
calculates amount of chemical additives according to test results. 
 


• Prepares, or assists with the preparation of monthly water pumpage and 
wastewater treatment reports, and submits to the Wisconsin Department of 
Natural Resources (DNR). 
 


• Maintains, calibrates, and repairs testing equipment. Maintains knowledge 
regarding testing requirements for wastewater treatment facilities. Cleans 
and maintains lab equipment. Prepares and sends EPA samples as directed. 
 


• Operates the water/wastewater SCADA system to monitor system health, 
record data and equipment readings, operate controls, evaluate system 
performance, and investigate trouble conditions. 
 


• Responds to customer inquiries and complaints and performs corrective 
measures. Communicates with customers as required to resolve inquiries and 
complaints, and to provide notice of planned system outages. 


 
• Performs work tasks at active job sites to plan, direct, and oversee system 


and equipment maintenance and repair tasks. Works onsite to recommend 
operational changes and safety improvements, and to evaluate safety 
compliance. 


•  
Attends and assists with utility-sponsored public events, prepares public 
educational materials and participates in outreach efforts, conducts system 
demonstrations and tours, and gives safety and conservation presentations. 
 


• Completes and maintains work orders, time sheets, preflight checklists, 
tailgate meetings, inventory forms, and all other division paperwork, and 
maintains records and prepares reports as directed. Conducts system 
inspections and records findings. 
 







Council Approved ADD DATE 


• Maintains GIS software applications and databases, including service 
connection details, flushing and exercising maintenance records, televising 
records, equipment maintenance tasks, and other records as directed. 
 


• Maintains an ability to work a flexible schedule to accommodate planned 
activities outside of the typical work schedule, including but not limited to 
planned customer outages or system maintenance work, as well as planned 
seasonal schedule changes and tasks. 
 


• Maintains an ability to serve on standby on-call duty, scheduled on a 
rotational basis within the Water and Wastewater System Divisions. Maintains 
an ability whenever possible to respond to utility emergencies and assist 
those serving on-call. 
 


• Complies with all Stoughton Utilities safety programs, and guidelines and 
regulations set by the Public Service Commission of Wisconsin (PSCW). 
Ensures full Water and Wastewater System Divisions compliance of the same. 


 
Additional Duties and Responsibilities - The following duties are necessary for 
operations, but may be shared with or performed by other employees. The listed 
duties do not compose an exclusive or all-encompassing list of additional duties. 
Other duties may be assigned or required to accomplish the main goals of this 
position. 
 


• Disconnects water service to customers upon receipt of disconnection 
workorders due to delinquency or safety violations, and at customers’ 
request. Conducts periodic reviews of disconnected properties for connection 
evaluation. 
 


• Installs water meters at customer premises, including temporary and 
permanent services. Assists the meter technician with the maintenance and 
repair of water meters. Reconnects water services and transfers water 
meters. 
 


• Maintains grounds and facilities, such as painting surfaces, ice and snow 
removal, custodial tasks, basic carpentry, basic commercial electrical 
maintenance, basic plumbing, and similar tasks as assigned. 
 


• Provides emergency after-hours support to the Electric System Division, 
including basic system repair, traffic control and direction, site preparation 
and cleanup, equipment transport and operation, groundsman duties, and 
other tasks as directed. Provides local and regional emergency disaster 
response. 
 


• Performs routine vehicle maintenance. 
 


• Performs other Stoughton Utilities tasks as directed. 







Council Approved ADD DATE 


 
QUALIFICATIONS 
The ability to perform the Core Duties and Additional Duties listed above and: 
 
Education/Training/Certifications  


• High School diploma or equivalent, and one or more years water and/or 
wastewater operator experience. 
 


• Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources (DNR) Wastewater Treatment 
Plant Operator – Basic certification for the Stoughton Wastewater Treatment 
facilities. 
 


• Wisconsin DNR Grade 1 Waterworks Operator Certification with subclasses G 
and D for the Stoughton Waterworks. 
 


• Ability to maintain the required continuing education credits for the above 
DNR operator certifications. 
 


• Commercial driver’s license with tanker and air brake certification required. 
 


Language Ability and Interpersonal Communication Skills 
• Ability to perform mid-level data analysis, including the ability to audit, 


deduce, assess, conclude and appraise. Requires discretion in determining 
and referencing such to established criteria to define consequences and 
develop alternatives. 
 


• Ability to classify, compute, and tabulate data and information, following a 
prescribed plan requiring the exercise of some individual judgment, with 
reference to established criteria/standards. Ability to compare, count, 
differentiate, measure, and sort information, as well as assemble, copy, 
record, and transcribe data and information. 
 


• Ability to utilize a variety of advisory data and information, such as work 
orders; utility maps and diagrams; construction specifications; blueprints; lab 
records and reports; facilities operation and maintenance manuals; technical 
operating manuals; city and utility policies and procedures; guidelines; non-
routine correspondence; Public Service Commission of Wisconsin rules, 
regulations, and tariffs; Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources rules and 
regulations; and safety rules and manuals. 
 


• Ability to explain, demonstrate, and clarify to others within well-established 
policies, procedures, and standards, as well as the ability to follow specific 
instructions and respond to requests. 
 


• Ability to communicate effectively in writing and orally with customers, 
department and all levels of City personnel, plumbers, contractors, regulatory 
representatives, and the general public. 







Council Approved ADD DATE 


 
Mathematical Ability 


• Ability to perform addition, subtraction, multiplication, and division; calculate 
percentages, fractions, and decimals; interpret and develop basic descriptive 
statistical reports; and may require the ability to perform mathematical 
operations with algebra. 


 
Judgment and Situational Reasoning Ability 


• Ability to carry out directives without direct supervision. Ability to exercise 
independent judgment to apply facts and principles for developing approaches 
and techniques to problem resolution. 
 


• Ability to apply principles of influence systems such as leading and teaching. 
 


• Ability to exercise the judgment, decisiveness and creativity required in 
situations involving the evaluation of information against sensory and 
judgmental criteria. 
 


Physical Requirements 
• Ability to operate equipment and machinery such as impact tools, sewer line 


jet truck, back hoe, roller, loaders, dump truck, forklift, wood chipper, meters, 
hand and power tools, snow plows and blowers, lab instruments, excavation 
hand tools, and other equipment requiring monitoring multiple conditions and 
making multiple, complex, and rapid adjustments. Ability to repair complex 
equipment and machinery. 
 


• Ability to coordinate eyes, hands, feet, and limbs in performing skilled 
movements such as operating heavy excavation and pumping equipment. 
 


• Ability to install and repair meters and perform coordinated activity, 
potentially in tight spaces. 
 


• Ability to exert regular and sustained heavy physical effort in very heavy 
work, typically involving some combination of climbing, balancing, stooping, 
kneeling, crouching, crawling, and lifting, carrying, pushing, shoveling and 
digging, and pulling heavy objects and materials in excess of 100 pounds. 
 


• Ability to recognize and identify degrees of similarities or differences between 
characteristics of color, shape, sound, texture, and odor associated with job-
related objects, materials, and tasks. 
 


Environmental Adaptability 
• Ability to work under uncomfortable and potentially unsafe conditions that 


require exposure to severe environmental factors such as temperature 
variations, high winds, rain and snow, odors, toxic agents, noise, vibrations, 
wetness, dusts, machinery, explosives, gas, vehicular traffic, high voltage 







Council Approved ADD DATE 


electrical currents, and disease. This exposure may cause discomfort and 
presents a high risk of injury or death. 
 
 
 
 
 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


 







Council Approved ADD DATE 


EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER 
 


The City of Stoughton is an Equal Opportunity Employer.  In compliance with 
applicable state and federal law, the City will provide reasonable accommodations to 


qualified individuals with disabilities and encourages both prospective and current 
employees to discuss potential accommodations with the City. 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
ACKNOWLEDGEMENT: 
 
All requirements of the described position are subject to change over time. The 
employee may be required to perform other duties as requested by the City. 
 
I acknowledge that this job description is neither an employment contract nor a 
legal document. I have received, read, and understand the expectations for the 
successful performance of this job. 
 
 
Printed Name: ____________________________________ 
 
 
Signature: _______________________________________ Date: _____________ 
 
  


  







Council Approved ADD DATE 


 


 


 
 


UTILITIES DEPARTMENT  
Water System Division 


Basic Certified Water Operator 


REPORTS TO: Water System Supervisor     PAY GRADE: W-3      FLSA: N                   
 
 
SUMMARY OF POSITION 
The purpose of this position is to maintain and operate the water pumping, storage, 
and distribution systems, and the wastewater treatment facilities and sanitary 
sewer collection system for the City of Stoughton, with a focus on water distribution 
operations. This position is identical to other Basic Certified Operator positions in 
terms of job scope and required qualifications and certifications, however may differ 
in day-to-day duties and assignments. 
 
DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES 
Core Duties and Responsibilities - The following duties are the primary duties of 
this position but do not compose an exclusive or all-encompassing list of duties. 
Other duties may be assigned or required to accomplish the main goals of this 
position. 
 


• Provides safe drinking water conditions to protect Stoughton Utilities 
customers, via obtaining and testing routine water samples, monitoring and 
recording well pump operations and storage tank volumes, monitoring and 
testing water and wastewater quality conditions, and monitoring and 
recording data and operations on the water/wastewater SCADA system. 
 


• Ensures environmentally responsible wastewater treatment and discharge via 
obtaining and testing routine wastewater treatment samples throughout the 
treatment process, monitoring and recording plant operations and tank 
volumes, monitoring and testing wastewater influent and effluent quality 
conditions, and monitoring and recording data and operations on the 
water/wastewater SCADA system. 
 


• Repairs and maintains water distribution mains, pumps, valves, curb stops, 
services, and hydrants. Installs and maintains water service connections. 
Performs routine maintenance to other water system infrastructure and 
equipment. Exercises system valves and flushes hydrants. 
 


• Repairs and maintains sanitary sewer collection mains and pumps. Performs 
routine maintenance to sanitary sewer collection system infrastructure and 







Council Approved ADD DATE 


equipment. Flushes, televises, cleans, and repairs the sanitary sewer 
collection system. 
 


• Repairs and maintains pumps, motors, valves, flow meters, screens, and all 
other equipment at the wastewater treatment facility. 
 


• Obtains and prepares samples of drinking water and wastewater treatment, 
and performs laboratory analysis including sample testing and calculations for 
biochemical oxygen demand (BOD), suspended solids, pH levels, volatile 
solids, phosphorous, ammonia, fecal coliform, chlorine residual, fluoride 
content, industrial effluents, glucose glutamic acid, and other analysis as 
directed, and/or delivers samples to outside laboratories. Prepares graphs, 
charts, and reports from sample data, and reports out findings. Makes 
adjustments to drinking water and wastewater treatment operations and 
calculates amount of chemical additives according to test results. 
 


• Prepares, or assists with the preparation of monthly water pumpage and 
wastewater treatment reports, and submits to the Wisconsin Department of 
Natural Resources (DNR). 
 


• Maintains, calibrates, and repairs testing equipment. Maintains knowledge 
regarding testing requirements for wastewater treatment facilities. Cleans 
and maintains lab equipment. Prepares and sends EPA samples as directed. 
 


• Operates the water/wastewater SCADA system to monitor system health, 
record data and equipment readings, operate controls, evaluate system 
performance, and investigate trouble conditions. 
 


• Responds to customer inquiries and complaints and performs corrective 
measures. Communicates with customers as required to resolve inquiries and 
complaints, and to provide notice of planned system outages.  
 


• Performs work tasks at active job sites to plan, direct, and oversee system 
and equipment maintenance and repair tasks. Works onsite to recommend 
operational changes and safety improvements, and to evaluate safety 
compliance. 
 


• Attends and assists with utility-sponsored public events, prepares public 
educational materials and participates in outreach efforts, conducts system 
demonstrations and tours, and gives safety and conservation presentations. 
 


• Completes and maintains work orders, time sheets, preflight checklists, 
tailgate meetings, inventory forms, and all other division paperwork, and 
maintains records and prepares reports as directed. Conducts system 
inspections and records findings. 







Council Approved ADD DATE 


• Maintains GIS software applications and databases, including service 
connection details, flushing and exercising maintenance records, televising 
records, equipment maintenance tasks, and other records as directed. 
 


• Maintains an ability to work a flexible schedule to accommodate planned 
activities outside of the typical work schedule, including but not limited to 
planned customer outages or system maintenance work, as well as planned 
seasonal schedule changes and tasks. 
 


• Maintains an ability to serve on standby on-call duty, scheduled on a 
rotational basis within the Water and Wastewater System Divisions. Maintains 
an ability whenever possible to respond to utility emergencies and assist 
those serving on-call. 
 


• Complies with all Stoughton Utilities safety programs, and guidelines and 
regulations set by the Public Service Commission of Wisconsin (PSCW). 
Ensures full Water and Wastewater System Divisions compliance of the same. 


 
Additional Duties and Responsibilities - The following duties are necessary for 
operations, but may be shared with or performed by other employees. The listed 
duties do not compose an exclusive or all-encompassing list of additional duties. 
Other duties may be assigned or required to accomplish the main goals of this 
position. 
 


• Disconnects water service to customers upon receipt of disconnection 
workorders due to delinquency or safety violations, and at customers’ 
request. Conducts periodic reviews of disconnected properties for connection 
evaluation. 


•  
Installs water meters at customer premises, including temporary and 
permanent services. Assists the meter technician with the maintenance and 
repair of water meters. Reconnects water services and transfers water 
meters. 
 


• Maintains grounds and facilities, such as painting surfaces, ice and snow 
removal, custodial tasks, basic carpentry, basic commercial electrical 
maintenance, basic plumbing, and similar tasks as assigned. 
 


• Provides emergency after-hours support to the Electric System Division, 
including basic system repair, traffic control and direction, site preparation 
and cleanup, equipment transport and operation, groundsman duties, and 
other tasks as directed. Provides local and regional emergency disaster 
response. 
 


• Performs routine vehicle maintenance. 
 


• Performs other Stoughton Utilities tasks as directed. 







Council Approved ADD DATE 


 
QUALIFICATIONS 
The ability to perform the Core Duties and Additional Duties listed above and: 
 
Education/Training/Certifications  


• High School diploma or equivalent and one or more years water and/or 
wastewater operator experience. 
 


• Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources (DNR) Wastewater Treatment 
Plant Operator – Basic certification for the Stoughton Wastewater Treatment 
facilities. 
 


• Wisconsin DNR Grade 1 Waterworks Operator Certification with subclasses G 
and D for the Stoughton Waterworks. 
 


• Ability to maintain the required continuing education credits for the above 
DNR operator certifications. 
 


• Commercial driver’s license with tanker and air brake certification required. 
 


Language Ability and Interpersonal Communication Skills 
• Ability to perform mid-level data analysis, including the ability to audit, 


deduce, assess, conclude and appraise. Requires discretion in determining 
and referencing such to established criteria to define consequences and 
develop alternatives. 
 


• Ability to classify, compute, and tabulate data and information, following a 
prescribed plan requiring the exercise of some individual judgment, with 
reference to established criteria/standards. Ability to compare, count, 
differentiate, measure, and sort information, as well as assemble, copy, 
record, and transcribe data and information. 
 


• Ability to utilize a variety of advisory data and information, such as work 
orders; utility maps and diagrams; construction specifications; blueprints; lab 
records and reports; facilities operation and maintenance manuals; technical 
operating manuals; city and utility policies and procedures; guidelines; non-
routine correspondence; Public Service Commission of Wisconsin rules, 
regulations, and tariffs; Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources rules and 
regulations; and safety rules and manuals. 


• Ability to explain, demonstrate, and clarify to others within well-established 
policies, procedures, and standards, as well as the ability to follow specific 
instructions and respond to requests. 
 


• Ability to communicate effectively in writing and orally with customers, 
department and all levels of City personnel, plumbers, contractors, regulatory 
representatives, and the general public. 


 







Council Approved ADD DATE 


Mathematical Ability 
• Ability to perform addition, subtraction, multiplication, and division; calculate 


percentages, fractions, and decimals; interpret and develop basic descriptive 
statistical reports; and may require the ability to perform mathematical 
operations with algebra. 


 
Judgment and Situational Reasoning Ability 


• Ability to carry out directives without direct supervision. Ability to exercise 
independent judgment to apply facts and principles for developing approaches 
and techniques to problem resolution. 
 


• Ability to apply principles of influence systems such as leading and teaching. 
 


• Ability to exercise the judgment, decisiveness and creativity required in 
situations involving the evaluation of information against sensory and 
judgmental criteria. 
 


Physical Requirements 
• Ability to operate equipment and machinery such as impact tools, sewer line 


jet truck, back hoe, roller, loaders, dump truck, forklift, wood chipper, meters, 
hand and power tools, snow plows and blowers, lab instruments, excavation 
hand tools, and other equipment requiring monitoring multiple conditions and 
making multiple, complex, and rapid adjustments. Ability to repair complex 
equipment and machinery. 
 


• Ability to coordinate eyes, hands, feet, and limbs in performing skilled 
movements such as operating heavy excavation and pumping equipment. 
 


• Ability to install and repair meters and perform coordinated activity, 
potentially in tight spaces. 
 


• Ability to exert regular and sustained heavy physical effort in very heavy 
work, typically involving some combination of climbing, balancing, stooping, 
kneeling, crouching, crawling, and lifting, carrying, pushing, shoveling and 
digging, and pulling heavy objects and materials in excess of 100 pounds. 
 


• Ability to recognize and identify degrees of similarities or differences between 
characteristics of color, shape, sound, texture, and odor associated with job-
related objects, materials, and tasks. 
 


Environmental Adaptability 
• Ability to work under uncomfortable and potentially unsafe conditions that 


require exposure to severe environmental factors such as temperature 
variations, high winds, rain and snow, odors, toxic agents, noise, vibrations, 
wetness, dusts, machinery, explosives, gas, vehicular traffic, high voltage 
electrical currents, and disease. This exposure may cause discomfort and 
presents a high risk of injury or death. 







Council Approved ADD DATE 


 
EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER 


 
The City of Stoughton is an Equal Opportunity Employer.  In compliance with 


applicable state and federal law, the City will provide reasonable accommodations to 
qualified individuals with disabilities and encourages both prospective and current 


employees to discuss potential accommodations with the City. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
ACKNOWLEDGEMENT: 
 
All requirements of the described position are subject to change over time. The 
employee may be required to perform other duties as requested by the City. 
 
I acknowledge that this job description is neither an employment contract nor a 
legal document. I have received, read, and understand the expectations for the 
successful performance of this job. 
 
 
Printed Name: ____________________________________ 
 
 
Signature: _______________________________________ Date: _____________ 
 
  


  







Council Approved ADD DATE 


 


 


 
 


UTILITIES DEPARTMENT  
Technical Operations Division 


Billing & Metering Supervisor 


REPORTS TO: Assistant Utilities Director        PAY GRADE: EX-2       FLSA: E                   
 
 
SUMMARY OF POSITION 
The purpose of this is to supervise and perform billing, metering, collections, and 
customer service tasks for Stoughton Utilities, including but not limited to 
preparation and distribution of daily and monthly utility billing statements, 
maintenance of customer billing and metering records, review of electric and water 
meter data, specialized customer service as it relates to municipal utility billing and 
collections, and general customer service as it relates to municipal utility operations 
and activities. 
 
This position is responsible for the supervision of Stoughton Utilities billing, 
metering, and collections personnel and daily operations, projects and development, 
and strategic planning, under the direction of the Assistant Utilities Director. 
 
 
DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES 
Core Duties and Responsibilities - The following duties are the primary duties of 
this position but do not compose an exclusive or all-encompassing list of duties. 
Other duties may be assigned or required to accomplish the main goals of this 
position. 
 


• Supervises the billing, metering, and collections activities and personnel 
within the Technical Operations Division. Establishes and maintains 
productivity reports, assigns and reviews work, recommends continuing 
education/training and professional development programs, schedules and 
approves overtime and leave, reviews work performed for accuracy and 
effectiveness, assists in the completion of performance evaluations, etc. 
 


• Supervises the completion of all tasks necessary to prepare and distribute 
accurate and timely billing statements for electric, water and wastewater 
service, and all other billed charges, including stormwater utility charges for 
the City of Stoughton. Supervises and/or performs all tasks necessary to 
ensure proper accounting and reporting of billed charges. 
 


• Supervises the maintenance of accurate customer billing and metering 
information in the customer information system (CIS). Supervises and/or 







Council Approved ADD DATE 


performs periodic account reviews for proper rate classifications and 
application of utility rate and rule tariffs, responsible parties, meter 
installation details, tax exempt status, and all other reviews necessary to 
ensure accuracy. 
 


• Supervises the processing of all electric and water meter installations, 
removals, and replacements, and completes the records of such actions in the 
CIS and on customer accounts. Verifies all metering setups to ensure 
accuracy, including field verification as directed. Creates new accounts in the 
CIS upon completion of newly constructed metered services. 
 


• Supervises the utility’s water Cross-Connection Control Program, in 
accordance with Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources (DNR) 
requirements. Assists meter technician with maintaining program records, 
producing reports and statistics, and issuing customer notifications. 
 


• Supervises the utility water and electric meter inventory, including the 
oversight of metering standardization programs, meter procurement and 
disposal, and inventory reporting. 
 


• Supervises the delinquent account collection methods and policies, including 
customer outreach and notification, service disconnections, small claims 
court, and outside collection agencies. Reviews and implements 
recommendations for new collection methods and policies. 
 


• Supervises the annual fall disconnection reporting in accordance with Public 
Service Commission of Wisconsin (PSCW) requirements. 
 


• Leads in-house training and support of CIS to other division personnel; 
creates/modifies customer reporting templates upon request. Creates new 
and maintains existing CIS and metering procedures and instructional 
documentation. Maintains CIS and metering policies and procedures manuals. 
 


• Prepares all systems used to obtain scheduled electric and water meter 
readings. Once obtained, reviews all meter readings for accuracy and 
processes readings for customer billings. 
 


• Calculates the monthly Power Cost Adjustment Clause (PCAC), updates the 
CIS for billing purposes, and prepares monthly reports for power supply and 
regulatory purposes. 
 


• Calculates account billing corrections, including back-billings and customer 
credits, and submits the calculations for approval and processing. Prepares 
explanatory letters and spreadsheets for customer and regulatory review. 
Maintains records of all corrections and supporting documentation, and 
submits annual report to the PSCW. 


 







Council Approved ADD DATE 


• Reviews and approves customer account corrections not related to billed 
charges, including payment adjustments, deposit refunds, late penalty 
reversals, balance transfers, and submits the corrections for processing. 
 


• Maintains utility rate and rules tariffs. Updates rate information in the CIS 
and on the Stoughton Utilities website, and maintains physical copies of all 
tariffs for customer review. 
 


• Prepares and processes customer applications for residential and commercial 
utility service, contractor applications for new and temporary service, work 
orders, complaint forms, meter change out forms and reports, letters and 
other communications to and from customers and property owners, and 
more. 
 


• Prepares and issues reports, including but not limited to customer data, 
meter data, consumption statistics, financial statistics, trends and behavioral 
analysis, and inspection records, and reports findings to division supervisors, 
financial employees, third-party auditors, and regulatory agencies as 
directed. 
 


• Receives written and verbal requests, inquiries, and complaints, coordinates 
actions required, and responds to inquirer. Maintain files of customer 
complaints and inquiries. 
 


• Attends and assists with utility-sponsored public events, prepares public 
educational materials and participates in outreach efforts, conducts system 
demonstrations and tours, and gives electrical safety presentations. 
 


• Complies with all Stoughton Utilities safety programs. 
 
Additional Duties and Responsibilities - The following duties are necessary for 
operations, but may be shared with or performed by other employees. The listed 
duties do not compose an exclusive or all-encompassing list of additional duties. 
Other duties may be assigned or required to accomplish the main goals of this 
position. 
 


• Greet and direct visitors. Answer, direct, and route telephone calls and 
messages. Provide information and/or reports from customer account data as 
requested. 
 


• Perform related office tasks such as filing, faxing, photocopying, computer 
operation, maintenance of mailing equipment, and procurement of general 
office supplies. 
 


• Process customer payments received through various physical and electronic 
methods, including but not limited to, banking lockbox, online My Account 







Council Approved ADD DATE 


payments, Autopay (ACH and credit card), night deposit box, in-person, 
energy assistance, etc. 
 


• Ensures performance of and may performs visits to City Hall, local post office, 
and local bank branch to receive and process incoming and outgoing postal 
and interdepartmental mail and deliver the daily banking deposit. Sorts and 
distributes received postal and interdepartmental mail to their intended 
recipients. 
 


• Ensures completion and may complete various front-office tasks, including 
but not limited to processing customer payments, distribution of committee 
meeting packets, preparation of daily bank deposits, organizational filing, 
negotiating deferred payment agreements, reviewing and completing 
customer corrections and adjustments, issuing customer refunds, processing 
utility accounts receivable, balancing utility billing general ledger, etc. 
 


• Provide emergency after-hours phone support as needed during widespread 
outages and other emergencies. 
 


• Assist other division personnel as required. 
 


• Provide assistance during monthly disconnection processes, annual financial 
audit, and public events. 
 


• Assist electric, wastewater and water divisions as required. 
 


• Performs other Stoughton Utilities tasks as directed. 
 
QUALIFICATIONS 
The ability to perform the Core Duties and Additional Duties listed above and: 
 
Education/Training/Certifications  


• High School diploma, associate degree in accounting or related, with 5 or 
more years utility billing, collections, metering, and customer service 
experience required, or any combination of education and experience that 
provides equivalent knowledge, skills, and abilities. 
 


• One or more years electric metering experience and basic water metering 
experience required. 
 


• Vocational or industry training in supervision and/or leadership, with 
demonstrated experience in leading others in a professional environment. 
 


• Valid motor vehicle operator’s license is required. 
 


 







Council Approved ADD DATE 


 
Language Ability and Interpersonal Communication Skills 


• Ability to perform mid-level data analysis, including the ability to audit, 
deduce, assess, conclude, and appraise. Requires discretion in determining 
and referencing such to established criteria to define consequences and 
develop alternatives. 
 


• Ability to provide first line supervision. Ability to create consensus and 
collaboration, and train others. Ability to advise and provide interpretation 
regarding the application of policies, procedures, and standards to specific 
situations. 
 


• Ability to classify, compute, and tabulate data and information, following a 
prescribed plan requiring the exercise of significant individual judgment. 
Ability to compare, count, differentiate, measure, and sort information, as 
well as assemble, copy, record, and transcribe data and information. 
 


• Ability to utilize a wide variety of advisory data and information, such as work 
orders; customer billing information; billing statements; meter data output 
and reports; computer billing journals; computer software operating manuals; 
city and utility policies and procedures; guidelines; non-routine 
correspondence; Public Service Commission of Wisconsin rules, regulations, 
and tariffs; Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources rules and regulations; 
State of Wisconsin legal statutes; and safety rules and manuals. 
 


• Ability to explain, demonstrate, and clarify to others within well-established 
policies, procedures, and standards, as well as the ability to follow specific 
instructions and respond to complex requests. Ability to communicate in 
writing and orally with customers, department and all levels of City personnel, 
financial auditors, regulatory agencies, and the general public. 
 


• Ability to prepare letters, statements, notices, memos, narrative and 
statistical reports, and other correspondence using prescribed formats 
according to accepted rules of punctuation, grammar, and style. 
 


Mathematical Ability 
• Ability to perform addition, subtraction, multiplication, and division; calculate 


percentages, fractions, and decimals; interpret and develop basic descriptive 
statistical reports; and may require the ability to perform mathematical 
operations with algebra. 


 
 


Judgment and Situational Reasoning Ability 
• Ability to carry out directives without direct supervision. Ability to exercise 


independent judgment to apply facts and principles for developing approaches 
and techniques to problem resolution. 
 







Council Approved ADD DATE 


• Ability to apply principles of influence systems such as supervising, leading, 
teaching, planning, coordinating, disciplining, and controlling. 
 


• Ability to use functional reasoning and apply rational judgment in performing 
diversified work activities. 
 


• Ability to exercise the judgment, decisiveness, and creativity required in 
situations involving the evaluation of information against measurable criteria, 
and involving the direction, control, and planning of an entire program or 
multiple programs. 
 


Physical Requirements 
• Ability to operate office equipment and machinery requiring simple but 


continuous adjustments, such as computer terminal, calculator/adding 
machine, cash register, postage meter, photocopier, paper cutter, hand 
punch, telephone, and other items used in performing essential functions. 
 


• Ability to coordinate eyes, hands, feet, and limbs in performing semi-skilled 
movements such as typing. 
 


• Ability to exert very moderate physical effort in sedentary to light work, 
typically involving some combination of stooping, kneeling, crouching and 
crawling, lifting, carrying, pushing and pulling. 
 
 


Environmental Adaptability 
• Ability to work under safe and comfortable conditions where exposure to 


environmental factors is minimal and poses little to no risk of injury. 
 
 
 
 
 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 







Council Approved ADD DATE 


EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER 
 


The City of Stoughton is an Equal Opportunity Employer.  In compliance with 
applicable state and federal law, the City will provide reasonable accommodations to 


qualified individuals with disabilities and encourages both prospective and current 
employees to discuss potential accommodations with the City. 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
ACKNOWLEDGEMENT: 
 
All requirements of the described position are subject to change over time. The 
employee may be required to perform other duties as requested by the City. 
 
I acknowledge that this job description is neither an employment contract nor a 
legal document. I have received, read, and understand the expectations for the 
successful performance of this job. 
 
 
Printed Name: ____________________________________ 
 
 
Signature: _______________________________________ Date: _____________ 
 
  


  







Council Approved ADD DATE 


 


 


 
 


UTILITIES DEPARTMENT  
Technical Operations Division 


Customer Service Technicain 


REPORTS TO: Billing & Metering Supervisor    PAY GRADE:CS-1     FLSA: N                   
 
 
SUMMARY OF POSITION 
The purpose purpose of this position is to perform customer service and collections 
tasks for Stoughton Utilities including, but not limited to maintenance of customer 
records, assisting phone and walk-in customers, collection of delinquent accounts 
through existing methods and policies, recommending new collection methods and 
policies, processing customer deposits and deferred payment agreements, and 
handling a variety of customer payments. In addition, this position will also perform 
general administrative tasks. 
 
DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES 
Core Duties and Responsibilities - The following duties are the primary duties of 
this position but do not compose an exclusive or all-encompassing list of duties. 
Other duties may be assigned or required to accomplish the main goals of this 
position. 
 


• Greets and directs visitors. Answers, directs, and routes telephone calls and 
messages, and email inquiries received through the general customer service 
address. 
 


• Assists customers with verbal and written customer service inquiries, 
including general account inquiries, high-bill complaints, and questions about 
utility policies. Documents all inquiries and complaints. Prepares work orders, 
customer inquiry/complaint forms, and service applications. 
 


• Processes payments received in-person at the front counter and issues 
receipts. Processes and posts payments received via mail and curbside 
deposit box. Processes returned payments due to insufficient funds or other 
causes. 
 


• Coordinates payment of delinquent accounts through existing methods and 
policies, including proactive customer outreach, printed delinquency 
notifications, service disconnections, small claims court, and outside collection 
agencies. Researches and recommends new collection methods and policies. 
 







Council Approved ADD DATE 


• Negotiates and maintains deferred payment agreements for eligible 
customers pursuant to applicable Stoughton Utilities rule tariffs, including 
regular reviews for agreement default and issuance of follow-up 
notification/disconnection as necessary. Follows Public Service Commission of 
Wisconsin (PSCW) requirements for customer notification following rejection 
of customer-proposed agreements. Calculates and collects customer deposits, 
including proactive customer outreach, regular reviews of account eligibility, 
printed notices, account status updates, and negotiation of deferred payment 
agreements. 
 


• Facilitates the electric and water service disconnection process. Reviews all 
accounts for eligibility, creates printed and automated telephone warning 
notices, processes disconnect and reconnect workorders, and negotiates 
payments for reconnection. 
 


• Processes bankruptcies, updates and maintains bankruptcy files and 
customer’s accounts, and processes and files court documents as necessary 
to file creditor claims. 
 


• Completes daily visits to City Hall, local post office, and local bank branch to 
receive and process incoming and outgoing postal and interdepartmental mail 
and deliver the daily banking deposit. Sorts and distributes received postal 
and interdepartmental mail to their intended recipients. 
 


• Processes new customer applications. Verifies identities, researches prior 
account status as applicable, and calculates industrial, commercial and 
residential deposits as applicable. Verifies and maintains property owner data 
for all new and existing accounts. 
 


• Conducts periodic reviews for balance corrections and transfers. Conducts 
periodic review for uncollectable debt write- offs. Conducts periodic reviews of 
unclaimed funds and assists with submission of account information. 
 


• Maintains medical/protective services list. Issues annual renewal notices and 
processes customer response. 
 


• Complies with all Stoughton Utilities Safety Programs. 
 
Additional Duties and Responsibilities - The following duties are necessary for 
operations, but may be shared with or performed by other employees. The listed 
duties do not compose an exclusive or all-encompassing list of additional duties. 
Other duties may be assigned or required to accomplish the main goals of this 
position. 
 


• Attends and assists with utility-sponsored public events, prepares public 
educational materials, and participates in outreach efforts. 
 







Council Approved ADD DATE 


• Performs related office tasks such as filing, faxing, photocopying, typing, and 
computer operation. 
 


• Receives and processes incoming and outgoing postal and interdepartmental 
mail. 
 


• Assists electric, wastewater and water divisions as required. 
 


• Provide emergency after-hours phone support as needed during widespread 
outages and other emergencies. 
 


• Perform other Stoughton Utilities tasks as directed. 
 


• Performs other Stoughton Utilities tasks as directed. 
 
QUALIFICATIONS 
The ability to perform the Core Duties and Additional Duties listed above and: 
 
Education/Training/Certifications  


• High School diploma, vocational training in bookkeeping, accounting or 
related, with 2 years of utility customer service or account collections 
experience required, or any combination of education and experience that 
provides equivalent knowledge, skills, and abilities. 
 


• Valid motor vehicle operator’s license is required. 
 


Language Ability and Interpersonal Communication Skills 
• Ability to classify, compute and tabulate data and information, following a 


prescribed plan requiring the exercise of some judgment. Ability to compare, 
count, differentiate, measure and sort information. Ability to assemble, copy, 
record and transcribe data and information. 
 


• Ability to explain, inform, demonstrate and clarify to others within well-
established policies, procedures and standards, as well as the ability to follow 
specific instructions and respond to simple requests from others. 
 


• Ability to utilize a wide variety of advisory data and information, such as work 
orders, customer billing information, billing statements, computer billing 
journals, computer software operating manuals, city and utility policies and 
procedures, guidelines, non-routine correspondence, Public Service 
Commission of Wisconsin rules and regulations, State of Wisconsin legal 
statutes, Stoughton municipal code of ordinances, bankruptcy laws, and 
safety manuals. 
 


• Ability to communicate in writing and orally with customers, department and 
all levels of City personnel, bank personnel, title company representatives, 
bankruptcy and small claims court personnel, and the general public. 







Council Approved ADD DATE 


 
• Ability to prepare letters, statements, notices, memos, narrative and 


statistical reports, and other correspondence using prescribed formats 
according to accepted rules of punctuation, grammar, and style. 


 
Mathematical Ability 


• Ability to perform addition, subtraction, multiplication, and division; calculate 
percentages, fractions, and decimals; interpret and develop basic descriptive 
statistical reports. 
 


Judgment and Situational Reasoning Ability 
• Ability to apply facts and principles for developing approaches and techniques 


to problem resolution. 
 


• Ability to use functional reasoning and apply rational judgment in performing 
diversified work activities. 
 


• Ability to exercise the judgment, decisiveness and creativity required in 
situations involving the evaluation of information against measurable criteria. 


 
Physical Requirements 


• Ability to operate office equipment and machinery requiring simple but 
continuous adjustments, such as computer terminal, calculator/adding 
machine, cash register, postage meter, photocopier, paper cutter, hand 
punch, telephone, and other items used in performing essential functions. 
 


• Ability to coordinate eyes, hands, feet and limbs in performing semi-skilled 
movements such as typing. 
 


• Ability to exert very moderate physical effort in sedentary to light work, 
typically involving some combination of stooping, kneeling, crouching and 
crawling, lifting, carrying, pushing and pulling. 
 


Environmental Adaptability 
• Ability to work under safe and comfortable conditions where exposure to 


environmental factors is minimal and poses little to no risk of injury. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 







Council Approved ADD DATE 


 
EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER 


 
The City of Stoughton is an Equal Opportunity Employer.  In compliance with 


applicable state and federal law, the City will provide reasonable accommodations to 
qualified individuals with disabilities and encourages both prospective and current 


employees to discuss potential accommodations with the City. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
ACKNOWLEDGEMENT: 
 
All requirements of the described position are subject to change over time. The 
employee may be required to perform other duties as requested by the City. 
 
I acknowledge that this job description is neither an employment contract nor a 
legal document. I have received, read, and understand the expectations for the 
successful performance of this job. 
 
 
Printed Name: ____________________________________ 
 
 
Signature: _______________________________________ Date: _____________ 
 
 
  


  







Council Approved ADD DATE 


 


 


 
 


UTILITIES DEPARTMENT  
Technical Operations Division 
Distribution System Coordinator 


REPORTS TO: Assistant Utilities Director      PAY GRADE: NEX-2       FLSA: N                   
 
 
SUMMARY OF POSITION 
The purpose of this position is to coordinate the strategic planning and design of 
developments, projects, and system improvements. This position is also responsible 
for the coordination of a variety of technical planning tasks from project preparation 
through completion. 
 
This position also participates in the maintenance of the utility Geographic 
Information System (GIS), participates in the operation and maintenance of the 
utilities Outage Management System (OMS), and participates in the operation and 
maintenance of the utilities Supervisory Control and Data Acquisition (SCADA) 
systems. This position serves as the primary system outage coordinator for planned 
routine system interruptions as well as during major system events. 
 
DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES 
Core Duties and Responsibilities - The following duties are the primary duties of 
this position but do not compose an exclusive or all-encompassing list of duties. 
Other duties may be assigned or required to accomplish the main goals of this 
position. 
 


• Coorrdiates a variety of technical planning tasks for maintenance and 
construction projects, such as the preparation of customer construction 
estimating, new development design review processes, preparation and 
distribution of materials and equipment specifications, and preparation of 
work orders and staking sheets. Assigns, schedules, and performs 
construction management tasks in the office and the field. 
 


• Coordinates the planning of electric, water, and wastewater projects from 
conception through completion, in collaboration with the Asset & Facilities 
Coordinator. Solicits comments and recommendations for new development 
design and system expansion from utilities division supervisors. Prepares 
construction cost estimates for proposed projects and developments, and 
coordinates project scheduling with developers and contractors. 
 


• Collaborates with the Asset & Facilities Coordinator to review construction 
project plans and specifications to ensure compliance with utility 







Council Approved ADD DATE 


specifications. Upon project completion, reviews and approves as-built plans, 
quantities, and acceptance certifications for public utility infrastructure 
projects and land developments. Maintains construction project files and 
manages their long-term storage to ensure regulatory compliance.  
 


• Conducts construction project plan and specification reviews, including utility 
easement review. Obtains, reviews, and approves as-built plans, quantities, 
and acceptance certifications for public utility infrastructure projects and land 
developments. Obtains and reviews private building construction projects, 
including reviewing compliance with existing utility easements and assisting 
in the acquisition of new utility easements as necessary. Files records of 
easement updates with the County Register of Deeds. 
 


• Collaborates with the Asset & Facilities Coordinator to maintain Stoughton 
Utilities Electric, Water, and Wastewater construction specifications. 
Participates in the periodic review of the specification documents to ensure 
they remain accurate and up to date. Shares construction specifications with 
project developers, engineering consultants, construction contractors, and 
others. 
 


• Coordinates system outages, planned and unplanned, and service 
disconnections during routine work hours, acting as the primary outage 
coordinator and point of contact. Receives outage reports from customer 
service staff and outage management system. Monitors locations of active 
outages and dispatches field crews as needed to address simultaneous outage 
locations. Reports outage status updates to utility management and customer 
service. Obtains outage report forms from field employees and logs outage 
duration and extent. Compiles reliability reporting and statistics in accordance 
with regulatory and industry standards. 
 


• Processes customer inquiries and requests for maintenance related to the 
electric utility; investigates complaints and performs corrective measures, or 
schedules and assigns workorders to resolve customer issues. Receives 
customer inquiries, writes and distributes work orders, provides information, 
and/or refers to appropriate person or agency for resolution. Communicates 
with customers as required to resolve inquiries and complaints, and to 
provide notice of planned service interruptions. 
 


• Collaborates within the Technical Operations Division to maintain and improve 
the utility Geographic Information System (GIS), including updating asset 
data and locations for the electric, water, and wastewater divisions, 
developing maps and mobile services for utility employees and engineering 
consultants, and completing basic maintenance of GIS software, databases, 
geometric networks, and add-on systems. Collaborates with utility division 
supervisors to obtain, process, and verify data updates. Develops system 
documentation. Participates on and reports system changes to the GIS team. 
 







Council Approved ADD DATE 


• Collaborates within the Technical Operations Division to operate and maintain 
the Supervisory Control and Data Acquisition (SCADA) systems for the 
electric system and the water/wastewater system. Participates in SCADA 
system maintenance projects, including system upgrades and improvements, 
security upgrades, remote facility networking projects, and OMS system 
integration. Provides training to utility operators. Develops system 
documentation. Participates on and reports system changes to the SCADA & 
OMS team. 
 


• Collaborates within the Technical Operations Division to operate and maintain 
the Outage Management System (OMS). Participates in OMS system 
maintenance projects, including system upgrades and improvements, security 
upgrades, and SCADA system integration. Provides training to field 
employees on mobile system use, office employees on data collection and 
entry, and all other software operators. Develops system documentation. 
Participates on and reports system changes to the SCADA & OMS team. 
 


• Maintains an ability to work a flexible schedule to accommodate planned 
activities outside of the typical work schedule, including but not limited to 
planned customer outages or system maintenance work, as well as planned 
seasonal schedule changes and tasks. 
 


• Complies with all Stoughton Utilities Safety programs, and guidelines and 
regulations set by the Public Service Commission of Wisconsin (PSCW), 
Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources (DNR), and the National Electric 
Safety Code (NESC). 


 
Additional Duties and Responsibilities - The following duties are necessary for 
operations, but may be shared with or performed by other employees. The listed 
duties do not compose an exclusive or all-encompassing list of additional duties. 
Other duties may be assigned or required to accomplish the main goals of this 
position. 
 


• Supports the Stoughton Utilities safety program coordinator. Participates 
in periodic meetings of the Safety Team. Responds to all safety requirements, 
requests, and concerns of utility employees. 
 


• Serves as a backup for the monthly collection of electric and water meter 
readings for cycle billing purposes. Maintains ability to work a flexible 
schedule in order to complete the monthly meter reading collection outside of 
standard working hours one day per month, typically on the first day of the 
month. 
 


• Serves as a backup to collect the daily meter readings for newly opened or 
closed customer accounts. Processes all daily meter workorders. 
 







Council Approved ADD DATE 


• Provides emergency after-hours support to the Electric, Wastewater, and 
Water System Divisions, including basic system repair, traffic control and 
direction, site preparation and cleanup, equipment transport and operation, 
and other tasks as directed. Provides local and regional emergency disaster 
response. 
 


• Maintains active certificate of appointment as a State of Wisconsin Notary 
Public. 
 


• Performs other Stoughton Utilities tasks as directed. 
 
QUALIFICATIONS 
The ability to perform the Core Duties and Additional Duties listed above and: 
 
Education/Training/Certifications  


• High School diploma or equivalent, vocational/technical training in electrical 
distribution, civil engineering, information technology, or another field that 
provides relevant experience, three to five years electric utility experience, or 
any combination of education and experience that provides equivalent 
knowledge, skills, and abilities.  
 


• Vocational or utility industry training in one or more of the following is 
preferred: electric distribution system design, cost accounting, project 
management, Supervisory Control and Data Acquisition (SCADA), Geographic 
Information Systems (GIS), Outage Management Systems (OMS), basic 
networking and information technology. 
 


• Valid motor vehicle operator’s license is required. 
 


Language Ability and Interpersonal Communication Skills 
• Ability to perform mid-level data analysis including the ability to audit, 


deduce, assess, conclude, and appraise. Requires discretion in determining 
and referencing such to established criteria to define consequences and 
develop alternatives. 
 


• Ability to classify, compute, and tabulate data and information, following a 
prescribed plan requiring the exercise of significant individual judgment. 
Ability to compare, count, differentiate, measure, and sort information, as 
well as assemble, copy, record, and transcribe data and information. 
 


• Ability to explain, demonstrate, and clarify to others within well-established 
policies, procedures, and standards, as well as the ability to follow specific 
instructions and respond to complex requests. 
 


• Ability to comprehend, interpret, approve, and utilize a variety of advisory and 
design data and information such as billing invoices, vehicle maintenance 
reports, applications for service, correspondence, capital plans, regulations 







Council Approved ADD DATE 


and legal statutes, job authorization forms, purchase orders, ordinances, 
material sheets, staking sheets, computer software operating manuals, and 
safety rules and manuals. Ability to utilize and interpret environmental, 
electrical engineering, water and wastewater engineering, computer software 
systems, geographical information systems, and accounting terminology. 
 


• Ability to communicate in writing and orally effectively with customers, 
department and all levels of City personnel, contractors, developers, 
engineering consultants, legal consultants, regulatory agency personnel, and 
the general public. 
 


• Ability to prepare letters, statements, notices, memos, narrative and 
statistical reports, construction documents, and other correspondence using 
prescribed formats according to the rules of punctuation, grammar and style. 


 
Mathematical Ability 


• Ability to perform addition, subtraction, multiplication, and division; calculate 
percentages, fractions, and decimals; interpret and develop basic descriptive 
statistical reports; and may require the ability to perform mathematical 
operations with algebra. 


 
 


Judgment and Situational Reasoning Ability 
• Ability to carry out directives without direct supervision. Ability to exercise 


independent judgment to apply facts and principles for developing approaches 
and techniques to problem resolution. 
 


• Ability to apply principles of influence systems, such as leading, teaching, 
directing, planning, coordinating, and controlling. 
 


• Ability to exercise the judgment, decisiveness and creativity required in 
situations involving the evaluation of information against measurable or 
judgmental criteria, and involving the direction, control, and planning of an 
entire program or multiple programs. 
 


Physical Requirements 
• Ability to operate equipment and machinery requiring monitoring multiple 


conditions and making multiple, complex, and rapid adjustments, such as 
motor vehicles, dump truck, front end loader, forklift, etc. 
 


• Ability to operate office equipment and machinery requiring simple but 
continuous adjustments, such as computer terminal, photocopier, paper 
cutter, hand punch, and telephone. 
 


• Ability to coordinate eyes, hands, feet and limbs in performing skilled 
movements involved in typing, repair, and operation.  
 







Council Approved ADD DATE 


• Ability to exert heavy physical effort in moderate to heavy work, typically 
involving some combination of climbing, balancing, stooping, kneeling, 
crouching, crawling, lifting, and carrying, pushing or pulling over 100 pounds. 
 


• Ability to recognize and identify degrees of similarities or differences between 
characteristics of colors, sound, taste, texture, and odor associated with job-
related objects, materials, and tasks. 
 


Environmental Adaptability 
• Ability to work effectively in an office environment, as well as in the field 


under uncomfortable and potentially unsafe conditions that require exposure 
to environmental factors such as temperature variations, winds, rain and 
snow, odors, toxic agents, noise, vibrations, wetness, dusts, machinery, and 
vehicular traffic. This exposure may cause discomfort and presents a risk of 
injury or death. 
 
 
 
 
 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 







Council Approved ADD DATE 


 
EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER 


 
The City of Stoughton is an Equal Opportunity Employer.  In compliance with 


applicable state and federal law, the City will provide reasonable accommodations to 
qualified individuals with disabilities and encourages both prospective and current 


employees to discuss potential accommodations with the City. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
ACKNOWLEDGEMENT: 
 
All requirements of the described position are subject to change over time. The 
employee may be required to perform other duties as requested by the City. 
 
I acknowledge that this job description is neither an employment contract nor a 
legal document. I have received, read, and understand the expectations for the 
successful performance of this job. 
 
 
Printed Name: ____________________________________ 
 
 
Signature: _______________________________________ Date: _____________ 
 
  


  







Council Approved ADD DATE 


 


 


 
 


UTILITIES DEPARTMENT  
Technical Operations Division 
Education & Outreach Coordinator 


REPORTS TO: Assistant Utilities Director     PAY GRADE: EX-1           FLSA: N                  
 
 
SUMMARY OF POSITION 
The purpose of this position is to design and create utility customer outreach 
campaigns, utilizing traditional and digital platforms, design and create utility 
educational materials and programs, and design and create utility public information 
campaigns. This position is responsible for the short and long-term strategic 
planning of customer outreach and education efforts, including maintaining current 
efforts as well as continuing to evolve them to match customer expectations and 
market trends. 
 
DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES 
Core Duties and Responsibilities - The following duties are the primary duties of 
this position but do not compose an exclusive or all-encompassing list of duties. 
Other duties may be assigned or required to accomplish the main goals of this 
position. 
 


• Coordinates and creates customer outreach campaigns, utilizing traditional 
and digital platforms such as direct mailings, inserts, social media, email, and 
newspapers, with topics to include electric, water, and wastewater customer 
outreach, conservation tips and education, energy safety education, customer 
feedback requests, customer engagement, and other topics that arise. 
 


• Coordinates brand consistency in informational, educational, promotional, and 
social media publications and messages by maintaining and implementing 
design standards. Reviews and updates materials created by other utility staff 
to ensure consistent design standards and branding. 
 


• Provides training and guidance to utility employees on acceptable social 
media use and platform operation, and keeps Stoughton Utilities social media 
team members up to date on current social media best practices and 
strategies. 
 


• Collects and analyzes customer data, including visits, interactions, 
consumption and billing, and payment patterns, and uses this information to 
create comprehensive reports to improve future educational and outreach 
strategies and campaigns. Analyzes customer demographics and tailors 







Council Approved ADD DATE 


outreach efforts to ensure they are reaching the most customers and 
stakeholders possible. Report out findings to Stoughton Utilities social media 
team members.  
 


• Grows and expands utility social media presence into new social media 
platforms according to customer interest and current platform trends, plus 
increases presence on existing social media platforms, including but not 
limited to Facebook, Instagram, Twitter, LinkedIn, and YouTube. Researches 
emerging social media platforms and trends. 
 


• Researches and monitors activities of utility peers, partners, and other 
regional utilities. Customizes Stoughton Utilities educational and outreach 
efforts to provide similar campaigns and strategies as offered by other 
regional electric, water, and wastewater utilities. 
 


• Creates and distributes engaging written and/or graphic content in the form 
of bill statement inserts, direct mailings, consumer and/or regulatory reports, 
e-newsletters, web page and blog content, infographics, presentations, and 
social media messages. Updates materials regularly to follow current design 
trends and brand consistency. 
 


• Maintains partnerships with commercial printers, content creators, and 
marketing partners to assist in outreach material design. Obtains stock 
photography and illustrations, and solicits content use permission from 
authors and trademark holders. Maintains records of licensing and use 
agreements. 
 


• Coordinates event planning leading up to and during utility-sponsored events, 
including but not limited to Public Power Week, Drinking Water Week, 
Lineworker Appreciation Day, peer organization visits, Utilities Committee 
meetings, presentations and open houses for utility customers, public tours 
and educational training, staff meetings and events, etc.  
 


• Acts as public relations coordinator during sustained education efforts, such 
as utility construction projects, regulatory rate reviews and adjustments, 
conservation efforts, drinking water quality advisories, customer engagement 
programs, and more. Creates and distributes press releases to regional media 
providers. 
 


• Coordinates school appearances, utility tours, and other educational 
partnerships with area educational entities, including but not limited to 
Stoughton Area School District, technical colleges, and private organizations. 
 


• Researches and provides customer education on new utility industry trends, 
including renewable energy, increased electrification efforts, safe water 
distribution and treatment, responsible and efficient energy use and 
expansion, etc. 







Council Approved ADD DATE 


 
• Assists in economic development efforts for Stoughton Utilities, with a focus 


on informing potential new utility customers of the benefits of locating in the 
utility’s service territory, including rate competitiveness, reliability, and 
programs. 
 


• Prepares application materials for employee and utility recognition, such as 
APPA Reliable Public Power Provider (RP3) and Smart Energy Provider 
designations, MEUW and APPA safety awards, MEUW and WPPI Energy 
employee and elected official recognitions of service, etc. 
 


• Maintains ability to work a flexible schedule in order to respond to planned 
and unplanned customer engagement opportunities and significant event 
response, including but not limited to large-scale outages, severe weather 
events, and drinking water or sanitary sewer emergencies. 
 


• Complies with all Stoughton Utilities safety programs. 
 


• Performs other Stoughton Utilities tasks as directed. 
 
Additional Duties and Responsibilities - The following duties are necessary for 
operations, but may be shared with or performed by other employees. The listed 
duties do not compose an exclusive or all-encompassing list of additional duties. 
Other duties may be assigned or required to accomplish the main goals of this 
position. 
 


• Greet and direct visitors. Answer, direct, and route telephone calls and 
messages. 
 


• Provide back up for various front-office tasks, including but not limited to: 
processing customer payments, preparation of committee meeting packets, 
preparation of daily bank deposits, organizational filing, negotiating deferred 
payment agreements, etc. 
 


• Provide back up for daily visits to City Hall, local post office, and local bank 
branch to receive and process incoming and outgoing postal and 
interdepartmental mail and deliver the daily banking deposit. Sorts and 
distributes received postal and interdepartmental mail to their intended 
recipients. 
 


• Provide back up for processing customer payments received through various 
physical and electronic methods, including but not limited to, banking 
lockbox, online My Account payments, Autopay (ACH and credit card), night 
deposit box, in-person, energy assistance, etc. 
 







Council Approved ADD DATE 


• Perform related office tasks such as filing, faxing, photocopying, computer 
operation, maintenance of mailing equipment, and procurement of general 
office supplies. 
 


• Assist other division personnel as required. Provides assistance during 
monthly billing and disconnection processes, annual financial audit, etc. 
 


• Assist electric, wastewater and water divisions as required. 
 


• Provide emergency after-hours phone support as needed during widespread 
outages and other emergencies. 
 


QUALIFICATIONS 
The ability to perform the Core Duties and Additional Duties listed above and: 
 
Education/Training/Certifications  


• High School diploma, bachelor’s degree in communications or marketing with 
training in customer outreach and education or related, with 3-years utility 
experience and 1-2 years social media management and content creation with 
experience of major social media platforms, or any combination of education 
and experience that provides equivalent knowledge, skills, and abilities. 
 


• Working knowledge of Microsoft Windows and other software in a business 
environment, including but not limited to Microsoft Word, Excel, and Outlook. 
 


• Working knowledge of computer graphic design and publication layout/design 
software, including but not limited to Adobe Creative Cloud, including 
InDesign and Photoshop. 
 


• Working knowledge of internet content design and layout, including HTML and 
CSS. 
 


• Valid motor vehicle operator’s license is required. 
 


Language Ability and Interpersonal Communication Skills 
• Strong verbal and written communication skills, and ability to issue public-


facing communications without secondary review. Ability to communicate 
verbally and in writing with customers, department and all levels of City 
personnel, and the general public. 
 


• Ability to create consensus and collaboration, and train others. Ability to 
advise and provide interpretation regarding the application of policies, 
procedures, and standards to specific situations. 
 


• Ability to perform mid-level data analysis including the ability to audit, 
deduce, assess, conclude, and appraise. Requires discretion in determining 







Council Approved ADD DATE 


and referencing such to established criteria to define consequences and 
develop alternatives. 
 


• Ability to classify, compute, and tabulate data and information, following a 
prescribed plan requiring the exercise of significant individual judgment. 
Ability to compare, count, differentiate, measure, and sort information, as 
well as assemble, copy, record, and transcribe data and information. 
 


• Ability to utilize a wide variety of advisory data and information, such as work 
orders, customer billing information, meter reading slips, billing statements, 
complaint forms, billing journals, maps, computer software operating 
manuals, PSC rules and regulations, municipal code, procedures, guidelines, 
and non-routine correspondence. 
 


• Ability to explain, demonstrate, inform, and clarify to others within well-
established policies, procedures, and standards, as well as the ability to follow 
specific instructions and respond to simple requests from others. 
 


• Ability to prepare posts, publications, color graphics, narrative and statistical 
reports, speeches, scripts, videos, letters, memos, and other correspondence 
using prescribed formats according to accepted rules of punctuation, 
grammar, and style. 


 
Mathematical Ability 


• Ability to perform addition, subtraction, multiplication, and division; calculate 
percentages, fractions, and decimals; interpret detailed descriptive statistical 
reports; and the ability to perform mathematical operations with fractions and 
algebra. 


 
Judgment and Situational Reasoning Ability 


• Ability to carry out directives without direct supervision. Ability to exercise 
independent judgment to apply facts and principles for developing approaches 
and techniques to problem resolution. 
 


• Requires the ability to apply principles of influence systems such as 
persuading, leading, teaching, and planning. Ability to exercise independent 
judgment to apply facts and principles for developing approaches and 
techniques to problem resolution. 
 


• Ability to use functional reasoning and apply rational judgment in performing 
diversified work activities. 
 


• Ability to exercise the judgment, decisiveness and creativity in situations 
involving the evaluation of information against measurable criteria, and 
involving the direction, control and planning of an entire program or multiple 
programs. 
 







Council Approved ADD DATE 


Physical Requirements 
• Ability to operate office equipment and machinery requiring simple but 


continuous adjustments, such as computer workstation, calculator/adding 
machine, cash register, photocopier, paper cutter, hand punch, telephone, 
camera, cellular communication devices including touchscreen phones and 
tablets, and two-way radio. 
 


• Ability to coordinate eyes, hands, feet and limbs in performing semi-skilled 
movements such as typing and photography. 
 


• Ability to exert very moderate physical effort in sedentary to light work, 
typically involving some combination of stooping, kneeling, crouching and 
crawling, lifting, carrying, pushing and pulling. 
 


Environmental Adaptability 
• Ability to work under safe and comfortable conditions where exposure to 


environmental factors is minimal and poses little to no risk of injury. 
 
 
 
 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 







Council Approved ADD DATE 


EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER 
 


The City of Stoughton is an Equal Opportunity Employer.  In compliance with 
applicable state and federal law, the City will provide reasonable accommodations to 


qualified individuals with disabilities and encourages both prospective and current 
employees to discuss potential accommodations with the City. 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
ACKNOWLEDGEMENT: 
 
All requirements of the described position are subject to change over time. The 
employee may be required to perform other duties as requested by the City. 
 
I acknowledge that this job description is neither an employment contract nor a 
legal document. I have received, read, and understand the expectations for the 
successful performance of this job. 
 
 
Printed Name: ____________________________________ 
 
 
Signature: _______________________________________ Date: _____________ 
 
  


  







Council Approved ADD DATE 


 


 


 
 


UTILITIES DEPARTMENT  
Electric System Division 


Electric Supervisor 


REPORTS TO: Assistant Utilities Director     PAY GRADE: EL-6          FLSA: N                   
 
 
SUMMARY OF POSITION 
The purpose purpose of this position is to provide field supervision to the Electric 
System Division, including personnel and daily operations, projects and 
development, and strategic planning, under the direction of the Utilities Assistant 
Director. 
 
This position also efficiently and safely performs electrical distribution line 
construction, maintenance, and repair tasks, in accordance with Stoughton Utilities 
construction specifications and standards. 
 
 
DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES 
Core Duties and Responsibilities - The following duties are the primary duties of 
this position but do not compose an exclusive or all-encompassing list of duties. 
Other duties may be assigned or required to accomplish the main goals of this 
position. 
 


• Supervises and directs the operation and maintenance of the electric utility 
and distribution system. Ensures compliance with regulatory agency 
requirements and utility policies. Provides recommendations and assists with 
the coordination and implementation of electric distribution system 
improvements. 
 


• Supervises the activities of Electric System Division personnel. Conducts 
regular division staff meetings, establishes and maintains productivity 
reports, prepares and assigns work orders, coordinates introductory and 
continuing training programs, reviews and approves timesheets, establishes 
and maintains staff work and leave schedules, and assists in the completion 
of performance evaluations. Plans short and long-term division work plans 
and projects and guides the division’s goals and vision. 
 


• Supervises, organizes, and leads routine safety meetings and safety manual 
review. Conducts routine safety compliance checks on active job sites. 
Oversees division operations to ensure safety policy compliance. Report out 
findings to Stoughton Utilities management and safety compliance teams. 







Council Approved ADD DATE 


• Supervises the division tool and equipment inventory and evaluates and 
approves or denies requests from division staff for the procurement of new 
tools and equipment. 
 


• Supervises the substation maintenance program, maintains all substation 
equipment, conducts routine substation inspections, and records weekly 
system readings and data. Evaluates and recommends long-term planning for 
substation maintenance and system expansion requirements. 
 


• Supervises the electric line clearance program. Monitors system tree 
trimming and removal needs, and maintains the annual schedule to ensure 
clearance program compliance. Works with division employees to trim and 
remove trees and brush. Communicates with customers to provide notice of 
upcoming line clearance projects and resolves line clearance complaints and 
inquiries. 
 


• Supervises the utility’s apprentice lineworker program, including providing 
education and mentorship, evaluating apprentice performance and 
competence, maintaining apprenticeship registrations and program 
compliance, conducting routine reviews and assessments, and recommending 
advancement through the program. 
 


• Supervises and maintains overhead and underground electric construction 
specifications and drawings. 
 


• Routinely performs lineworker work tasks at active job sites to plan, direct, 
and supervise system and equipment maintenance and repair tasks. Works 
onsite to recommend operational changes and safety improvements, and to 
evaluate staff knowledge, competence, and safety compliance. 
 


• Operates diggers, bucket trucks, and hand tools near and around electrical 
distribution lines. Operates live-line tools to connect and disconnect 
distribution lines and components. Installs primary and secondary overhead 
and underground electrical systems. Locates underground electric cable faults 
for repair. Performs all other industry-standard duties expected of a 
journeyman lineworker. 


 
• Prepares and secures safe work sites, including truck and equipment setup, 


placement of warning signs and cones, traffic control and direction, and more. 
Conducts tailboard meetings to review projects and safety. 
 


• Completes field staking using staking sheets provided by the Utilities 
Distribution System Coordinator, or supervises staking completed by other 
lineworkers as appropriate. 
 







Council Approved ADD DATE 


• Operates the electric SCADA system to monitor system health, record data 
and equipment readings, operate controls, evaluate circuit performance and 
load, and investigate outage conditions. 
 


• Manages electric distribution system switching procedures and 
documentation. Collaborates with the Distribution System Coordinator to 
ensure mapping and outage management system accuracy, and to maintain 
up to date switching workflows. Provides updates and training on switching 
procedures to division staff, and ensures policies are followed. 
 


• Collaborates with the Asset & Facilities Coordinator to maintain material 
inventory and procurement. Provides input and prepares recommendations 
for material quality standards and specifications. Assists in the evaluation of 
proposals and material acquisition. Cooperates in the year-end inventory 
process. 
 


• Assists with the preparation of the Utilities 20-year Capital Improvement 
Program, including conducting reviews of system reliability and making 
recommendations for system improvements. Assists with the preparation and 
ongoing monitoring of the Utilities annual budget. 
 


• Makes recommendations for electric division vehicle replacements, additions, 
and retirements. Provides input on vehicle standards and specifications. 
Supervises routine maintenance schedules and requirements, monitors 
vehicle safety and regulatory compliance requirements, and schedules vehicle 
maintenance work. 
 


• Collaborates with the Distribution System Coordinator to develop estimates 
for new, replacement, and upgraded electric services, and makes 
recommendations for new development design and system expansion. 
 


• Responds to customer inquiries and complaints and performs corrective 
measures, or schedules and assigns workorders to resolve customer issues. 
Communicates with customers as required to resolve inquiries and 
complaints, and to provide notice of planned system outages. 
 


• Coordinates and schedules the work of subcontractors working on the electric 
distribution system. Reviews the quality of work completed by subcontractors 
to ensure compliance with utility construction specifications and contract 
requirements and expectations. Communicates with subcontractors to discuss 
complaints and issues. 
 


• Attends and assists with utility-sponsored public events, prepares public 
educational materials and participates in outreach efforts, conducts system 
demonstrations and tours, and gives electrical safety presentations. 







Council Approved ADD DATE 


• Maintains GIS software applications and databases, including electric service 
connection details, circuit identifications, overhead and underground system 
inspections, equipment maintenance tasks, and other records as directed. 
 


• Maintains an ability to work a flexible schedule to accommodate planned 
activities outside of the typical work schedule, including but not limited to 
planned customer outages or system maintenance work, as well as planned 
seasonal schedule changes and tasks. 
 


• Maintains an ability to serve on standby on-call duty, scheduled on a 
rotational basis within the Electric System Division. Maintains an ability 
whenever possible to respond to utility emergencies and assist those serving 
on-call. 
 


• Complies with all Stoughton Utilities Safety programs, and guidelines and 
regulations set by the Public Service Commission of Wisconsin (PSCW) and 
the National Electric Safety Code (NESC). Ensures full Electric System 
Division compliance of the same. 


 
Additional Duties and Responsibilities - The following duties are necessary for 
operations, but may be shared with or performed by other employees. The listed 
duties do not compose an exclusive or all-encompassing list of additional duties. 
Other duties may be assigned or required to accomplish the main goals of this 
position. 
 


• Disconnects electrical service to customers upon receipt of disconnection 
workorders due to delinquency or safety violations, and at customers’ 
request. Conducts periodic reviews of disconnected properties for connection 
evaluation. 
 


• Installs electric meters, including current transformers (CTs) and voltage 
transformers (VTs) as necessary, at customer premises, including temporary 
and permanent services. Assists the meter technician with the maintenance 
and repair of electric meters, CTs, and VTs. Reconnects and transfers electric 
meters. 
 


• Maintains grounds and facilities, such as painting surfaces, ice and snow 
removal, custodial tasks, basic carpentry, basic commercial electrical 
maintenance, basic plumbing, and similar tasks as assigned. 
 


• Provides emergency after-hours support to the Wastewater and Water 
System Divisions, including basic system repair, traffic control and direction, 
site preparation and cleanup, equipment transport and operation, and other 
tasks as directed. Provides local and regional emergency disaster response. 
 


• Repairs and maintains streetlights. 
 







Council Approved ADD DATE 


• Performs routine vehicle maintenance. 
 


• Performs other Stoughton Utilities tasks as directed. 
 


QUALIFICATIONS 
The ability to perform the Core Duties and Additional Duties listed above and: 
 
Education/Training/Certifications  


• High School diploma or equivalent and vocational/technical training in 
electrical systems, with a minimum of five years electrical system 
maintenance experience, or any combination of education and experience that 
provides equivalent knowledge, skills, and abilities. 
 


• Documented completion of a four-year Electrical Lineworker apprenticeship is 
required, or verifiable regional equivalent. 
 


• Journeyman Lineworker Certification, or verifiable regional equivalent, forklift 
Certification, and CPR/First Aid Certification is required. 
 


• Vocational or industry training in supervision and/or leadership, with 
demonstrated experience in leading others in a professional environment. 
 


• Commercial driver’s license with tanker and air brake certification is required. 
 


Language Ability and Interpersonal Communication Skills 
• Ability to perform mid-level data analysis, including the ability to audit, 


deduce, assess, conclude, and appraise. Requires discretion in determining 
and referencing such to established criteria to define consequences and 
develop alternatives. 
 


• Ability to provide first line supervision. Ability to create consensus and 
collaboration, and train others. Ability to advise and provide interpretation 
regarding the application of policies, procedures, and standards to specific 
situations. 
 


• Ability to classify, compute, and tabulate data and information, following a 
prescribed plan requiring the exercise of significant individual judgment. 
Ability to compare, count, differentiate, measure, and sort information, as 
well as assemble, copy, record, and transcribe data and information. 
 


• Ability to utilize a wide variety of advisory data and information, such as work 
orders; staking sheets; utility maps and diagrams; construction specifications; 
technical operating manuals; city and utility policies and procedures; 
guidelines; non-routine correspondence; Public Service Commission of 
Wisconsin rules, regulations, and tariffs; Wisconsin Department of 
Transportation rules and regulations; State of Wisconsin legal statutes; and 
safety rules and manuals. 







Council Approved ADD DATE 


 
• Ability to explain, demonstrate, and clarify to others within well-established 


policies, procedures, and standards, as well as the ability to follow specific 
instructions and respond to complex requests. 
 


• Ability to communicate in writing and orally with customers, department and 
all levels of City personnel, electricians, contractors, regulatory agencies, and 
the general public. 
 


• Ability to prepare letters, statements, notices, memos, narrative and 
statistical reports, and other correspondence using prescribed formats 
according to accepted rules of punctuation, grammar, and style. 
 


Supervisory Skills 
• Ability to assign, supervise, review, develop, assess, and implement 


recommendations to improve the work of others. 
 


• Ability to make recommendations regarding the selection, training, discipline, 
advancement, and discharge of employees. 
 


• Ability to assist in the preparation of meaningful performance reviews, and 
participate in the delivery of such reviews. 
 


 
Mathematical Ability 


• Ability to perform addition, subtraction, multiplication, and division; calculate 
percentages, fractions, and decimals; interpret and develop basic descriptive 
statistical reports; and may require the ability to perform mathematical 
operations with algebra. 


 
 


Judgment and Situational Reasoning Ability 
• Ability to carry out directives without direct supervision. Ability to exercise 


independent judgment to apply facts and principles for developing approaches 
and techniques to problem resolution. 
 


• Ability to apply principles of influence systems, such as supervising, leading, 
teaching, planning, coordinating, disciplining, and controlling. 
 


• Ability to use functional reasoning and apply rational judgment in performing 
diversified work activities. 
 


• Ability to exercise the judgment, decisiveness, and creativity required in 
situations involving the evaluation of information against measurable criteria, 
and involving the direction, control, and planning of an entire program or 
multiple programs. 
 







Council Approved ADD DATE 


Physical Requirements 
• Ability to carry out directives without direct supervision. Ability to exercise 


independent judgment to apply facts and principles for developing approaches 
and techniques to problem resolution. 
 


• Ability to apply principles of influence systems, such as supervising, leading, 
teaching, planning, coordinating, disciplining, and controlling. 
 


• Ability to use functional reasoning and apply rational judgment in performing 
diversified work activities. 
 


• Ability to exercise the judgment, decisiveness, and creativity required in 
situations involving the evaluation of information against measurable criteria, 
and involving the direction, control, and planning of an entire program or 
multiple programs. 
 


Environmental Adaptability 
• Ability to work under uncomfortable and potentially unsafe conditions that 


require exposure to severe environmental factors, such as temperature 
variations, high winds, rain and snow, odors, toxic agents, noise, vibrations, 
wetness, dusts, machinery, explosives, gas, vehicular traffic, and high voltage 
electrical currents. This exposure may cause discomfort and presents a high 
risk of injury or death. 
 
 
 
 
 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 







Council Approved ADD DATE 


EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER 
 


The City of Stoughton is an Equal Opportunity Employer.  In compliance with 
applicable state and federal law, the City will provide reasonable accommodations to 


qualified individuals with disabilities and encourages both prospective and current 
employees to discuss potential accommodations with the City. 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
ACKNOWLEDGEMENT: 
 
All requirements of the described position are subject to change over time. The 
employee may be required to perform other duties as requested by the City. 
 
I acknowledge that this job description is neither an employment contract nor a 
legal document. I have received, read, and understand the expectations for the 
successful performance of this job. 
 
 
Printed Name: ____________________________________ 
 
 
Signature: _______________________________________ Date: _____________ 
 
  


  







Council Approved ADD DATE 


 


 


 
 


UTILITIES DEPARTMENT  
Finanace Manager 


REPORTS TO: Utilities Director                PAY GRADE: EX-4           FLSA: E                   
 
 
SUMMARY OF POSITION 
The purpose of this position is to be accountable for the overall planning, 
organizing, controlling, and directing of the financial activities of the Utility, 
including coordination of all customer accounting with the Assistant Utilities Director 
and general accounting functions and information processing, and performing 
critical accounting and fiscal management functions in accordance with Stoughton 
Utilities goals and objectives. 
 
DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES 
Core Duties and Responsibilities - The following duties are the primary duties of 
this position but do not compose an exclusive or all-encompassing list of duties. 
Other duties may be assigned or required to accomplish the main goals of this 
position. 
 


• Direct the operation of a central accounting system in a manner consistent 
with generally accepted accounting principles and practices, and in sufficient 
detail to produce accurate cost, financial and statistical data for both 
management and statutory requirements. 
 


• Implement and maintain a proper set of internal controls. Makes 
recommendations for organizational changes including staffing and structure 
to maintain proper internal controls. 
 


• Develop and maintain financial systems, policies, and procedures to ensure 
effective fiscal management. 
 


• Develop and maintain optimal investment, borrowing, and other funding 
strategies. 
 


• Research and share grant funding opportunities for utility divisions and 
customers, prepare grant applications, and maintain post-compliance 
monitoring and reporting, including opportunities for principal loan 
forgiveness programs. 
 







Council Approved ADD DATE 


• Administers state and federal funding program requirements, submits 
program applications, and submits all reports required for program 
compliance and disbursement. 
 


• Prepare and maintain short, mid, and long-term cash flow forecasts. 
Collaborates with utility leadership to ensure fiscally responsible operations in 
line with current forecasts. 
 


• Direct the preparation of the Utilities budget and capital improvement 
program, including advising utility leadership in the review of estimates and 
the preparation of individual budget requests 
 


• Manage relationships with financial consultants. Collaborates with the Utilities 
Asset & Facilities Coordinator to review service fees, negotiate and develop 
contracts with service providers. 
 


• Oversee third-party audits, including the annual financial audit and all other 
audits required by project funding agencies, including completing internal 
auditing in preparation, and submit all required regulatory reports. 
 


• Prepares and submits Public Service Commission of Wisconsin Annual 
Reports, and all other periodic reporting required by PSCW. 
 


• Administer the purchase card program. 
 


• Direct treasury management operations, online banking, and fraud protection 
programs. 
 


• Perform electric, water, and wastewater retail rate analyses, develop rate 
structures that ensure sufficient revenue recovery, and obtain necessary local 
and regulatory approvals. 
 


• Process and close work orders including time, material, and equipment 
allocations, and asset retirements. Manages prepayment reconciliation and 
customer invoicing.  
 


• Prepare and interpret financial statements, cost reports, and statements of 
receipts and expenditures at regular intervals for use by the Utilities Director 
and utilities leadership, Utilities Committee, and Common Council. 
 


• Direct preparation of employee payroll, tax and benefit withholding, and 
periodic reporting. 
 


• Participate in Utilities Committee meetings, and other city committee and 
Common Council meetings as required. Prepare monthly status reports as 
well as other scheduled and unscheduled presentations and reports. 
 







Council Approved ADD DATE 


• Leads in-house training and support of financial and workorder management 
software; creates/modifies reporting templates upon request. Creates new 
and maintains existing procedures and instructional documentation. Maintains 
financial and workorder processing policies and procedures manuals. 
 


• Maintain and review utility rate benchmarking; analyze and report on 
findings. 
 


• Attends and assists with utility-sponsored public events, prepares public 
educational materials and participates in outreach efforts, conducts system 
demonstrations and tours, and gives electrical safety presentations. 
 


• Responds to planned and unplanned customer engagement opportunities and 
significant event response, including but not limited to large-scale outages, 
severe weather events, and drinking water or sanitary sewer emergencies. 


• Complies with all Stoughton Utilities safety programs. 
 
Additional Duties and Responsibilities - The following duties are necessary for 
operations, but may be shared with or performed by other employees. The listed 
duties do not compose an exclusive or all-encompassing list of additional duties. 
Other duties may be assigned or required to accomplish the main goals of this 
position. 
 


• Greet and direct visitors. Answer, direct, and route telephone calls and 
messages. 
 


• Assist other division personnel as required. 
 


• Attends and assists with utility-sponsored public events, prepares public 
educational materials, and participates in outreach efforts. 
 


• Assists all other Stoughton Utilities divisions as required. 
 


QUALIFICATIONS 
The ability to perform the Core Duties and Additional Duties listed above and: 
 
Education/Training/Certifications  


• Bachelor's degree in Business Administration, Accounting, or Financial 
Management, with preference for a Certified Public Accountant. 
 


• Minimum seven years of experience related to financial/accounting 
operations, preferably in the utility environment. 
 


• Significant knowledge of generally accepted financial management and 
accounting principles and practices, including the ability to independently 
initiate analysis and solve a variety of accounting and fiscal issues from both 
long-term and daily operational perspectives. 







Council Approved ADD DATE 


 
• Significant knowledge of Governmental Accounting Standards preferred. 


 
• Significant knowledge of computer software used in the utility environment, 


including experience with automated accounting, financial, and billing 
systems. Advanced user of Microsoft Office applications (Word, Excel, and 
PowerPoint). 
 


• Valid motor vehicle operator’s license is required, or the ability to obtain 
independent transport for required training and events. 
 


Language Ability and Interpersonal Communication Skills 
• Ability to perform complex data analysis, including the ability to audit, 


deduce, assess, conclude, appraise, analyze, and interpret an extensive 
variety of technical information and governmental regulations.. Requires 
discretion in determining and referencing such to established criteria to define 
consequences and develop alternatives. 
 


• Ability to provide first line supervision. Ability to create consensus and 
collaboration, and train others. Ability to advise and provide interpretation 
regarding the application of policies, procedures, and standards to specific 
situations. 
 


• Ability to classify, compute, and tabulate data and information, following a 
prescribed plan requiring the exercise of significant individual judgment. 
Ability to compare, count, differentiate, measure, and sort information, as 
well as assemble, copy, record, and transcribe data and information. 
 


• Ability to utilize a wide variety of advisory data and information such as work 
orders, financial statements; billing reports and statements; financial reports 
and ledgers; regulatory rate review applications; budgets; accounting 
systems; computer software operating manuals; city and utility policies and 
procedures; guidelines; non-routine correspondence; Public Service 
Commission of Wisconsin (PSCW) rules, regulations, and tariffs; Wisconsin 
Department of Natural Resources (DNR) rules and regulations; State of 
Wisconsin legal statutes; and safety rules and manuals. 
 


• Ability to explain, demonstrate, and clarify to others within well-established 
policies, procedures, and standards, as well as the ability to follow specific 
instructions and respond to complex requests. 


• Ability to communicate in writing and orally with customers, department and 
all levels of City personnel, financial auditors, regulatory agencies, elected and 
appointed government officials, and the general public. 
 


• Ability to prepare letters, statements, notices, memos, narrative and 
statistical reports, and other correspondence using prescribed formats 
according to accepted rules of punctuation, grammar, and style. 







Council Approved ADD DATE 


 
Supervisory Skills 


• Ability to assign, supervise, review, develop, assess, and implement 
recommendations to improve the work of others. 
 


• Ability to make recommendations regarding the selection, training, discipline, 
advancement, and discharge of employees. 
 


• Ability to assist in the preparation of meaningful performance reviews and 
participate in the delivery of such reviews. 


 
Mathematical Ability 


• Ability to perform addition, subtraction, multiplication, and division; calculate 
percentages, fractions, and decimals; interpret and develop detailed 
descriptive statistical reports; and the ability to perform mathematical 
operations with algebra. 
 


• Ability to design and produce graphical representations of complex financial 
data. 
 


Judgment and Situational Reasoning Ability 
• Ability to carry out directives without direct supervision. Ability to exercise 


independent judgment to apply facts and principles for developing approaches 
and techniques to problem resolution. 
 


• Ability to apply principles of influence systems such as managing, supervising, 
leading, teaching, planning, coordinating, disciplining, and controlling. 
 


• Ability to use functional reasoning and apply rational judgment in performing 
diversified work activities. 
 


• Ability to exercise the judgment, decisiveness, and creativity required in 
situations involving the evaluation of information against measurable criteria, 
and involving the direction, control, and planning of an entire program or 
multiple programs. 
 


Physical Requirements 
• Ability to operate office equipment and machinery requiring simple but 


continuous adjustments, such as computer terminal, calculator/adding 
machine, cash register, postage meter, photocopier, paper cutter, hand 
punch, telephone, and other items used in performing essential functions. 
 


• Ability to coordinate eyes, hands, feet, and limbs in performing semi-skilled 
movements such as typing.  
 







Council Approved ADD DATE 


• Ability to exert very moderate physical effort in sedentary to light work, 
typically involving some combination of stooping, kneeling, crouching and 
crawling, lifting, carrying, pushing and pulling. 
 


Environmental Adaptability 
• Ability to work under safe and comfortable conditions where exposure to 


environmental factors is minimal and poses little to no risk of injury. 
 
 
 
 
 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 







Council Approved ADD DATE 


EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER 
 


The City of Stoughton is an Equal Opportunity Employer.  In compliance with 
applicable state and federal law, the City will provide reasonable accommodations to 


qualified individuals with disabilities and encourages both prospective and current 
employees to discuss potential accommodations with the City. 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
ACKNOWLEDGEMENT: 
 
All requirements of the described position are subject to change over time. The 
employee may be required to perform other duties as requested by the City. 
 
I acknowledge that this job description is neither an employment contract nor a 
legal document. I have received, read, and understand the expectations for the 
successful performance of this job. 
 
 
Printed Name: ____________________________________ 
 
 
Signature: _______________________________________ Date: _____________ 
 
  


  







Council Approved ADD DATE 


 


 


 
 


UTILITIES DEPARTMENT  
Electric System Division 


Journeyman Lineworker 


REPORTS TO: Electric System Supervisor    PAY GRADE: EL-4      FLSA: N                   
 
 
SUMMARY OF POSITION 
The purpose of positions in this classification is to efficiently and safely perform 
electrical distribution line construction, maintenance, and repair tasks, in 
accordance with Stoughton Utilities construction specifications and standards. 
 
DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES 
Core Duties and Responsibilities - The following duties are the primary duties of 
this position but do not compose an exclusive or all-encompassing list of duties. 
Other duties may be assigned or required to accomplish the main goals of this 
position. 
 


• Operates diggers, bucket trucks, and hand tools near and around electrical 
distribution lines. Operates live-line tools to connect and disconnect 
distribution lines and components. Installs primary and secondary overhead 
and underground electrical systems. Locates underground electric cable faults 
for repair. Performs all other industry-standard duties expected of a journey-
level lineworker. 
 


• Prepares and secures safe work sites, including truck and equipment setup, 
placement of warning signs and cones, traffic control and direction, and more. 
Conducts tailboard meetings to review projects and safety. 
 


• Completes field staking using staking sheets provided by the Utilities 
Distribution System Coordinator. 
 


• Operates the electric SCADA system to monitor system health, record data 
and equipment readings, operate controls, evaluate circuit performance and 
load, and investigate outage conditions. 
 


• Responds to customer inquiries and complaints and performs corrective 
measures. Communicates with customers as required to resolve inquiries and 
complaints, and to provide notice of planned system outages. 
 


• Performs work tasks at active job sites to plan, direct, and oversee system 
and equipment maintenance and repair tasks. Works onsite to recommend 







Council Approved ADD DATE 


operational changes and safety improvements, and to evaluate safety 
compliance. 
 


• Installs, repairs, and maintains municipal street lighting. 
 


• Monitors system tree trimming and removal needs, and ensures clearance 
program compliance. Works with division employees to trim and remove trees 
and brush. Communicates with customers to provide notice of upcoming line 
clearance projects and resolves line clearance complaints and inquiries. 
 


• Assists in the oversight of the utility’s apprentice lineworker program, 
including providing education and mentorship, and recommending 
advancement through the program. 
 


• Attends and assists with utility-sponsored public events, prepares public 
educational materials and participates in outreach efforts, conducts system 
demonstrations and tours, and gives electrical safety presentations. 
 


• Completes and maintains work orders, staking sheets, outage reports, time 
sheets, preflight checklists, tailgate meetings, inventory forms, and all other 
division paperwork, and maintains records and prepares reports as directed. 
Conducts system inspections and records findings. 
 


• Maintains GIS software applications and databases, including electric service 
connection details, circuit identifications, overhead and underground system 
inspections, equipment maintenance tasks, and other records as directed. 
 


• Maintains an ability to work a flexible schedule to accommodate planned 
activities outside of the typical work schedule, including but not limited to 
planned customer outages or system maintenance work, as well as planned 
seasonal schedule changes and tasks. 
 


• Maintains an ability to serve on standby on-call duty, scheduled on a 
rotational basis within the Electric System Division. Maintains an ability 
whenever possible to respond to utility emergencies and assist those serving 
on-call.  
 


• Complies with all Stoughton Utilities safety programs, and guidelines and 
regulations set by the Public Service Commission of Wisconsin (PSCW) and 
the National Electric Safety Code (NESC). Ensures full Electric System 
Division compliance of the same. 


 
Additional Duties and Responsibilities - The following duties are necessary for 
operations, but may be shared with or performed by other employees. The listed 
duties do not compose an exclusive or all-encompassing list of additional duties. 
Other duties may be assigned or required to accomplish the main goals of this 
position. 







Council Approved ADD DATE 


 
• Disconnects electrical service to customers upon receipt of disconnection 


workorders due to delinquency or safety violations, and at customers’ 
request. Conducts periodic reviews of disconnected properties for connection 
evaluation. 
 


• Installs electric meters, including current transformers (CTs) and voltage 
transformers (VTs) as necessary, at customer premises, including temporary 
and permanent services. Assists the meter technician with the maintenance 
and repair of electric meters, CTs, and VTs. Reconnects and transfers electric 
meters. 
 


• Maintains grounds and facilities, such as painting surfaces, ice and snow 
removal, custodial tasks, basic carpentry, basic commercial electrical 
maintenance, basic plumbing, and similar tasks as assigned. 
 


• Provides emergency after-hours support to the Wastewater and Water 
System Divisions, including basic system repair, traffic control and direction, 
site preparation and cleanup, equipment transport and operation, and other 
tasks as directed. Provides local and regional emergency disaster response. 
 


• Performs routine vehicle maintenance. 
 


• Performs other Stoughton Utilities tasks as directed. 
 


QUALIFICATIONS 
The ability to perform the Core Duties and Additional Duties listed above and: 
 
Education/Training/Certifications  


• High School diploma or equivalent and vocational/technical training in 
electrical systems, with a minimum of four years electrical system 
maintenance experience, or any combination of education and experience that 
provides equivalent knowledge, skills, and abilities. 
 


• Documented completion of a four-year Electrical Lineworker apprenticeship is 
required, or verifiable regional equivalent. 
 


• Journeyman Lineworker Certification, or verifiable regional equivalent, forklift 
certification, and CPR/First Aid certification is required. 
 


• Commercial driver’s license with tanker and airbrake certification is required. 
 


Language Ability and Interpersonal Communication Skills 
• Ability to perform mid-level data analysis, including the ability to audit, 


deduce, assess, conclude, and appraise. Requires discretion in determining 
and referencing such to established criteria to define consequences and 
develop alternatives. 







Council Approved ADD DATE 


 
• Ability to utilize a wide variety of advisory data and information, such as work 


orders; staking sheets; utility maps and diagrams; construction specifications; 
technical operating manuals; city and utility policies and procedures; 
guidelines; non-routine correspondence; Wisconsin Department of 
Transportation rules and regulations; and safety rules and manuals. 
 


• Ability to classify, compute, and tabulate data and information, following a 
prescribed plan requiring the exercise of some individual judgment, with 
reference to established criteria/standards. Ability to compare, count, 
differentiate, measure, and sort information, as well as assemble, copy, 
record, and transcribe data and information. 
 


• Ability to explain, demonstrate, and clarify to others within well-established 
policies, procedures, and standards, as well as the ability to follow specific 
instructions and respond to requests. 
 


• Ability to communicate effectively in writing and orally with customers, 
department and all levels of City personnel, electricians, contractors, and the 
general public. 


 
Mathematical Ability 


• Ability to perform addition, subtraction, multiplication, and division; calculate 
percentages, fractions, and decimals; interpret and develop basic descriptive 
statistical reports; and may require the ability to perform mathematical 
operations with algebra. 
 


Judgment and Situational Reasoning Ability 
• Ability to carry out directives without direct supervision. Ability to exercise 


independent judgment to apply facts and principles for developing approaches 
and techniques to problem resolution. 
 


• Ability to apply principles of influence systems such as leading and teaching. 
 


• Ability to exercise the judgment, decisiveness and creativity required in 
situations involving the evaluation of information against sensory and 
judgmental criteria. 
 


Physical Requirements 
• Ability to operate equipment and machinery such as impact tools, aerial 


bucket truck, digger/derrick, forklift, wood chipper, chain saw, back hoe, 
roller, compression tools, cable cutters, nail gun, meters, hand and power 
tools, snow plows and blowers, and other equipment requiring monitoring 
multiple conditions and making multiple, complex, and rapid adjustments. 
Ability to repair complex equipment and machinery. 
 







Council Approved ADD DATE 


• Ability to coordinate eyes, hands, feet, and limbs in performing skilled 
movements such as high voltage electrical work. 
 


• Ability to install and repair meters and perform coordinated activity around 
live electricity, potentially in tight spaces. 
 


• Ability to exert regular and sustained heavy physical effort in very heavy 
work, typically involving some combination of climbing, balancing, stooping, 
kneeling, crouching, crawling, and lifting, carrying, pushing, shoveling and 
digging, and pulling heavy objects and materials in excess of 100 pounds. 
 


• Ability to recognize and identify degrees of similarities or differences between 
characteristics of color, shape, sound, texture, and odor associated with job-
related objects, materials, and tasks. 
 


Environmental Adaptability 
• Ability to work under uncomfortable and potentially unsafe conditions that 


require exposure to severe environmental factors such as temperature 
variations, high winds, rain and snow, odors, toxic agents, noise, vibrations, 
wetness, dusts, machinery, explosives, gas, vehicular traffic, high voltage 
electrical currents, and disease. This exposure may cause discomfort and 
presents a high risk of injury or death. 
 
 
 
 
 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 







Council Approved ADD DATE 


EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER 
 


The City of Stoughton is an Equal Opportunity Employer.  In compliance with 
applicable state and federal law, the City will provide reasonable accommodations to 


qualified individuals with disabilities and encourages both prospective and current 
employees to discuss potential accommodations with the City. 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
ACKNOWLEDGEMENT: 
 
All requirements of the described position are subject to change over time. The 
employee may be required to perform other duties as requested by the City. 
 
I acknowledge that this job description is neither an employment contract nor a 
legal document. I have received, read, and understand the expectations for the 
successful performance of this job. 
 
 
Printed Name: ____________________________________ 
 
 
Signature: _______________________________________ Date: _____________ 
 
  


  







Council Approved ADD DATE 


 


 


 
 


UTILITIES DEPARTMENT  
Technical Operations Division 
 Journeyman Meter Technician 


REPORTS TO: Billing & Metering Supervisor    PAY GRADE: EL-3     FLSA: N                   
 
 
SUMMARY OF POSITION 
The purpose of this position is to maintain, repair, test, install, and read electric and 
water meters, and to complete water cross connection inspections for the City of 
Stoughton. This position shall be responsible for evaluating electric and water 
services and determining the appropriate metering design, procurement and 
maintenance of electric and water meters and test equipment, maintenance of 
electric and water meter records, and installation of electric and water meters and 
equipment. 
 
DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES 
Core Duties and Responsibilities - The following duties are the primary duties of 
this position but do not compose an exclusive or all-encompassing list of duties. 
Other duties may be assigned or required to accomplish the main goals of this 
position. 
 


• Maintains the utility’s electric and water meter testing programs to ensure 
compliance with Public Service Commission of Wisconsin (PSCW) regulations 
and periodic test schedules. 
 


• Tests single and three-phase electric meters both in the field and in the shop 
in accordance with PSC rules. Maintains, and repairs meters, current 
transformers (CTs), and voltage transformers (VTs). Prepares and issues 
reports on electric meter test quantities and results to division supervisors, 
customer service staff, and regulatory agencies as directed. 
 


• Tests water meters both in the field and in the shop in accordance with PSC 
rules. Installs, maintains, and repairs water meters. Prepares and issues 
reports on water meter test quantities and results to division supervisors, 
customer service staff, and regulatory agencies as directed. 
 


• Manages the utility water and electric meter inventory. Establishes and 
maintains metering standardization programs, and collaborates with the Asset 
& Facilities Coordinator to maintain meter inventory, including the 
procurement of new meters and the discarding of damaged and retired 
meters. Prepares and issues reports on meter inventory and annual activity to 







Council Approved ADD DATE 


division supervisors, financial staff, and regulatory agencies as directed. 
Completes the year-end inventory process for electric and water meters, CTs, 
and VTs. 
 


• Reviews applications for new and upgraded electric service connections, and 
determines proper meter type, cabinet size and type, and need for CTs and 
VTs, and wires customer meter sockets at commercial properties. Conveys 
cabinet and socket requirements to customers and electrical contractors. 
Collaborates with the Electric System Supervisor to coordinate electric meter 
sizing, installation, and repair. 
 


• Installs electric and water meters – including CTs and VTs as necessary – at 
customer premises, including temporary and permanent services. 
 


• Reviews applications for new water service connections, and determines the 
proper meter sizing and type. Conveys plumbing requirements to customers 
and plumbing contractors. Collaborates with the Water System Supervisor to 
coordinate water meter sizing, installation, and repair. 
 


• Maintains GIS software applications and databases, including electric and 
water meter inventory, electric and water meter testing history, electric and 
water service connection details and meter history, and other records as 
directed. 
 


• Manages the Utility’s water Cross-Connection Control Program to eliminate 
existing and prevent future cross- connections, in accordance with Wisconsin 
Department of Natural Resources (DNR) rules. Performs household and 
business inspections, issues corrective orders, and performs follow-up 
inspections as necessary.  
 


• Completes the monthly collection of electric and water meter readings for 
cycle billing purposes. Maintains ability to work a flexible schedule in order to 
complete the monthly meter reading collection outside of standard working 
hours one day per month, typically on the first day of the month. 
 


• Completes the daily meter readings for newly opened or closed customer 
accounts. Processes all daily meter workorders. 
 


• Assists with utility billing operations by investigating zero/low meter readings 
for both electric and water, and reports findings. Reviews customer history 
and consumption trends to detect potential meter issues. Performs meter 
rereads upon receipt of workorders. 
 


• Coordinates field delinquent collections operations, including disconnecting 
utility service to customers upon receipt of disconnection workorders. 
 







Council Approved ADD DATE 


• Receives and responds to customer inquiries and complaints and recommends 
and performs corrective action in response. 
 


• Mentors, educates, and trains Apprentice Meter Technician employees when 
employed by the utility. 
 


• Attends and assists with utility-sponsored public events, prepares public 
educational materials, and participates in outreach efforts. 
 


• Maintains an ability to work a flexible schedule to accommodate planned 
activities outside of the typical work schedule, including but not limited to 
planned customer outages or system maintenance work, as well as planned 
seasonal schedule changes and tasks. 
 


• Maintains an ability whenever possible to respond to utility emergencies and 
assist those serving on-call. 
 


• Complies with all Stoughton Utilities Safety programs, and guidelines and 
regulations set by the Public Service Commission of Wisconsin (PSCW), 
Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources (DNR), and the National Electric 
Safety Code (NESC). 


 
Additional Duties and Responsibilities - The following duties are necessary for 
operations, but may be shared with or performed by other employees. The listed 
duties do not compose an exclusive or all-encompassing list of additional duties. 
Other duties may be assigned or required to accomplish the main goals of this 
position. 
 


• Greet and direct visitors. Answer, direct, and route telephone calls and 
messages. 
 


• Provide back up for various front-office tasks, including but not limited to: 
processing customer payments, preparation of committee meeting packets, 
preparation of daily bank deposits, organizational filing, negotiating deferred 
payment agreements, etc. 
 


• Provide back up for processing customer payments received through various 
physical and electronic methods, including but not limited to, banking 
lockbox, online My Account payments, Autopay (ACH and credit card), night 
deposit box, in-person, energy assistance, etc. 
 


• Provide back up for daily visits to City Hall, local post office, and local bank 
branch to receive and process incoming and outgoing postal and 
interdepartmental mail and deliver the daily banking deposit. Sorts and 
distributes received postal and interdepartmental mail to their intended 
recipients. 







Council Approved ADD DATE 


 
• Maintains grounds and facilities, such as painting surfaces, snow and ice 


removal, custodial tasks, basic carpentry, basic commercial electrical 
maintenance, basic plumbing, and similar tasks as assigned. 
 


• Provides emergency after-hours support to the Electric, Wastewater, and 
Water System Divisions, including basic system repair, traffic control and 
direction, site preparation and cleanup, equipment transport and operation, 
and other tasks as directed. Provides local and regional emergency disaster 
response. 
 


• Performs routine vehicle maintenance. 
 


• Performs other Stoughton Utilities tasks for all other divisions as directed. 
 


QUALIFICATIONS 
The ability to perform the Core Duties and Additional Duties listed above and: 
 
Education/Training/Certifications  


• High School diploma or equivalent, with three or more years electric metering 
experience and basic water metering experience required, or any combination 
of education and experience that provides equivalent knowledge, skills, and 
abilities. 
 


• Successful completion of the State of Wisconsin three-year Electric Meter 
Technician apprenticeship required. 
 


• Basic knowledge of drinking water distribution systems required; Wisconsin 
Department of Natural Resources (WDNR) Grade T or Grade 1 Waterworks 
Operator Certification, with subclasses G and D, preferred. Ability to obtain 
and maintain such certification required. 
 


• Valid motor vehicle operator’s license required; commercial driver’s license 
with tanker and air brake certification preferred. 
 


Language Ability and Interpersonal Communication Skills 
• Ability to analyze and categorize data and information in order to determine 


the relationship of the data with reference to established criteria/standards. 
Ability to compare, count, differentiate, measure and/or sort data, as well as 
assemble, copy, records and transcribe data. Ability to classify, compute and 
tabulate data. 
 


• Ability to explain, demonstrate and clarify to others within established 
policies, procedures and standards, as well as the ability to follow specific 
instructions and respond to requests. 
 







Council Approved ADD DATE 


• Ability to utilize a variety of advisory data and information such as meter 
records, city ordinances, PSC and DNR reports and bulletins, charts, policy 
manuals, maintenance records, PSC and DNR rules and regulations, vehicle 
manuals, equipment manuals, meter and CT wiring diagrams, construction 
specifications and plans, service applications, electric service rules, safety 
manuals and codes, and maps. 
 


• Ability to communicate effectively orally and in writing with department 
personnel, customers, contractors, engineers, City employees, law 
enforcement, and PSC and DNR statistical reports. 
 


• Ability to prepare narrative and statistical reports, construction documents, 
and correspondence using prescribed formats according to accepted rules of 
punctuation, grammar, and style. 


 
Mathematical Ability 


• Ability to perform addition, subtraction, multiplication, and division; calculate 
percentages, fractions, and decimals; interpret and develop basic descriptive 
statistical reports; and may require the ability to perform mathematical 
operations with algebra. 
 


Judgment and Situational Reasoning Ability 
• Ability to carry out directives without direct supervision. Ability to exercise 


independent judgment to apply facts and principles for developing approaches 
and techniques to problem resolution. 
 


• Ability to use functional reasoning in performing diversified work activities. 
 


• Ability to exercise judgment, decisiveness, and creativity required in situations 
involving the evaluation of information against sensory and/or judgmental 
criteria, and involving the direction, control and planning of an entire program 
or multiple programs. 
 


Physical Requirements 
• Ability to operate equipment and machinery requiring monitoring multiple 


conditions and making multiple, complex and rapid adjustments, such as 
motor vehicles, meter test bench, hand tools, generators, voltmeter, etc. 
 


• Ability to operate office equipment and machinery requiring simple but 
continuous adjustments, such as computer terminal, photocopier, paper 
cutter, hand punch, and telephone. 
 


• Ability to install and repair meters and perform coordinated activity around 
live electricity, potentially in tight spaces.  
 


• Ability to coordinate eyes, hands, feet, and limbs in performing skilled 
movements such as electrical work. 







Council Approved ADD DATE 


 
• Ability to exert heavy physical effort in moderate to heavy work, typically 


involving some combination of climbing, balancing, stooping, kneeling, 
crouching, crawling, lifting, and carrying, pushing and pulling over 100 
pounds. 
 


• Ability to recognize and identify degrees of similarities and differences 
between characteristics of color, sound, taste, texture, and odor associated 
with job-related objects, materials, and ingredients. 
 


Environmental Adaptability 
• Ability to work under uncomfortable and potentially unsafe conditions that 


require exposure to severe environmental factors such as temperature 
variations, high winds, rain and snow, odors, toxic agents, noise, vibrations, 
wetness, dusts, machinery, explosives, gas, and high voltage electrical 
currents. This exposure may cause discomfort and presents a high risk of 
injury or death. 
 
 
 
 
 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 







Council Approved ADD DATE 


EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER 
 


The City of Stoughton is an Equal Opportunity Employer.  In compliance with 
applicable state and federal law, the City will provide reasonable accommodations to 


qualified individuals with disabilities and encourages both prospective and current 
employees to discuss potential accommodations with the City. 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
ACKNOWLEDGEMENT: 
 
All requirements of the described position are subject to change over time. The 
employee may be required to perform other duties as requested by the City. 
 
I acknowledge that this job description is neither an employment contract nor a 
legal document. I have received, read, and understand the expectations for the 
successful performance of this job. 
 
 
Printed Name: ____________________________________ 
 
 
Signature: _______________________________________ Date: _____________ 
 
  


  







Council Approved ADD DATE 


 


 


 
 


UTILITIES DEPARTMENT  
Electric System Division 


Lead Journeyman Lineworker 


REPORTS TO: Electric System Supervisor    PAY GRADE: EL-5      FLSA: N                   
 
 
SUMMARY OF POSITION 
The purpose of this position is to assist in the day-to-day coordination of the Electric 
System Division, including scheduling of daily operations and project oversight, 
acting under the direction of the Utilities Electric System Supervisor. This position 
also efficiently and safely performs electrical distribution line construction, 
maintenance, and repair tasks, in accordance with Stoughton Utilities construction 
specifications and standards. 
 
DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES 
Core Duties and Responsibilities - The following duties are the primary duties of 
this position but do not compose an exclusive or all-encompassing list of duties. 
Other duties may be assigned or required to accomplish the main goals of this 
position. 
 


• Assists the Utilities Electric System Supervisor with the coordination of the 
operation and maintenance of the electric utility and distribution system. 
Ensures compliance with regulatory agency requirements and utility policies. 
Provides recommendations and assists with the coordination and 
implementation of electric distribution system improvements. 
 


• Assists in the supervision of the activities of Electric System Division 
personnel. Actively participates in regular division staff meetings and 
conducts such meetings in the absence of the Utilities Electric System 
Supervisor. Assists in the maintenance of productivity reports, the review of 
timesheets, and the maintenance of staff work and leave schedules. Assists in 
providing instruction and training; planning, coordinating, assigning, and 
reviewing of work; and the maintenance of division standards and policies. 
 


• Assists in the coordination and organization of, and actively participates in, 
routine safety meetings and safety manual review. Conducts routine safety 
compliance checks on active job sites. Assists in the oversight of division 
operations to ensure safety policy compliance. Report out findings to the 
Utilities Electric System Supervisor and the Stoughton Utilities management 
and safety compliance teams. 
 







Council Approved ADD DATE 


• Monitors the substation maintenance program, maintains all substation 
equipment, conducts routine substation inspections, and records weekly 
system readings and data. 
 


• Monitors system tree trimming and removal needs, and maintains the annual 
schedule to ensure clearance program compliance. Works with division 
employees to trim and remove trees and brush. Communicates with 
customers to provide notice of upcoming line clearance projects and resolves 
line clearance complaints and inquiries. 
 


• Assists in the oversight of the utility’s apprentice lineworker program, 
including providing education and mentorship, evaluating apprentice 
performance and competence, maintaining apprenticeship registrations and 
program compliance, conducting routine reviews and assessments, and 
recommending advancement through the program. 
 


• Maintains overhead and underground electric construction specifications and 
drawings. 
 


• Routinely performs lineworker work tasks at active job sites to plan, direct, 
and oversee system and equipment maintenance and repair tasks. Works 
onsite to recommend operational changes and safety improvements, and to 
evaluate staff knowledge, competence, and safety compliance. 
 


• Operates diggers, bucket trucks, and hand tools near and around electrical 
distribution lines. Operates live-line tools to connect and disconnect 
distribution lines and components. Installs primary and secondary overhead 
and underground electrical systems. Locates underground electric cable faults 
for repair. Performs all other industry-standard duties expected of a 
journeyman lineworker. 
 


• Prepares and secures safe work sites, including truck and equipment setup, 
placement of warning signs and cones, traffic control and direction, and more. 
Conducts tailboard meetings to review projects and safety.  
 


• Completes field staking using staking sheets provided by the Utilities 
Distribution System Coordinator. 
 


• Operates the electric SCADA system to monitor system health, record data 
and equipment readings, operate controls, evaluate circuit performance and 
load, and investigate outage conditions. 
 


• Responds to customer inquiries and complaints and performs corrective 
measures, or schedules and assigns workorders to resolve customer issues. 
Communicates with customers as required to resolve inquiries and 
complaints, and to provide notice of planned system outages. 
 







Council Approved ADD DATE 


• Makes recommendations for electric division vehicle replacements, additions, 
and retirements. Provides input on vehicle standards and specifications. 
Oversees routine maintenance schedules and requirements, monitors vehicle 
safety and regulatory compliance requirements, and schedules vehicle 
maintenance work. 
 


• Attends and assists with utility-sponsored public events, prepares public 
educational materials and participates in outreach efforts, conducts system 
demonstrations and tours, and gives electrical safety presentations. 
 


• Completes and maintains work orders, staking sheets, outage reports, time 
sheets, preflight checklists, tailgate meetings, inventory forms, and all other 
division paperwork, and maintains records and prepares reports as directed. 
Conducts system inspections and records findings. 
 


• Maintains GIS software applications and databases, including electric service 
connection details, circuit identifications, overhead and underground system 
inspections, equipment maintenance tasks, and other records as directed. 
 


• Maintains an ability to work a flexible schedule to accommodate planned 
activities outside of the typical work schedule, including but not limited to 
planned customer outages or system maintenance work, as well as planned 
seasonal schedule changes and tasks. 
 


• Maintains an ability to serve on standby on-call duty, scheduled on a 
rotational basis within the Electric System Division. Maintains an ability 
whenever possible to respond to utility emergencies and assist those serving 
on-call. 
 


• Complies with all Stoughton Utilities safety programs, and guidelines and 
regulations set by the Public Service Commission of Wisconsin (PSCW) and 
the National Electric Safety Code (NESC). Ensures full Electric System 
Division compliance of the same. 


 
Additional Duties and Responsibilities - The following duties are necessary for 
operations, but may be shared with or performed by other employees. The listed 
duties do not compose an exclusive or all-encompassing list of additional duties. 
Other duties may be assigned or required to accomplish the main goals of this 
position. 
 


• Disconnects electrical service to customers upon receipt of disconnection 
workorders due to delinquency or safety violations, and at customers’ 
request. Conducts periodic reviews of disconnected properties for connection 
evaluation. 
 


• Installs electric meters, including current transformers (CTs) and voltage 
transformers (VTs) as necessary, at customer premises, including temporary 







Council Approved ADD DATE 


and permanent services. Assists the meter technician with the maintenance 
and repair of electric meters, CTs, and VTs. Reconnects and transfers electric 
meters. 
 


• Maintains grounds and facilities, such as painting surfaces, ice and snow 
removal, custodial tasks, basic carpentry, basic commercial electrical 
maintenance, basic plumbing, and similar tasks as assigned. 
 


• Provides emergency after-hours support to the Wastewater and Water 
System Divisions, including basic system repair, traffic control and direction, 
site preparation and cleanup, equipment transport and operation, and other 
tasks as directed. Provides local and regional emergency disaster response. 
 


• Repairs and maintains streetlights. 
 


• Performs routine vehicle maintenance. 
 


• Performs other Stoughton Utilities tasks as directed. 
 


QUALIFICATIONS 
The ability to perform the Core Duties and Additional Duties listed above and: 
 
Education/Training/Certifications  


• High School diploma or equivalent and vocational/technical training in 
electrical systems, with a minimum of four years electrical system 
maintenance experience, or any combination of education and experience that 
provides equivalent knowledge, skills, and abilities. 
 


• Documented completion of a four-year Electrical Lineworker apprenticeship is 
required, or verifiable regional equivalent. 
 


• Journeyman Lineworker Certification, or verifiable regional equivalent, forklift 
certification, and CPR/First Aid certification is required. 
 


• Vocational or industry training in supervision and/or leadership, with 
demonstrated experience in leading others in a professional environment. 
 


• Commercial driver’s license with tanker and air brake certification is required. 
 
 


Language Ability and Interpersonal Communication Skills 
• Ability to perform mid-level data analysis, including the ability to audit, 


deduce, assess, conclude, and appraise. Requires discretion in determining 
and referencing such to established criteria to define consequences and 
develop alternatives. 
 







Council Approved ADD DATE 


• Ability to provide oversight and backup supervision. Ability to create 
consensus and collaboration, and train others. Ability to advise and provide 
interpretation regarding the application of policies, procedures, and standards 
to specific situations. 
 


• Ability to utilize a wide variety of advisory data and information, such as work 
orders; staking sheets; utility maps and diagrams; construction specifications; 
technical operating manuals; city and utility policies and procedures; 
guidelines; non-routine correspondence; Public Service Commission of 
Wisconsin rules, regulations, and tariffs; Wisconsin Department of 
Transportation rules and regulations; State of Wisconsin legal statutes; and 
safety rules and manuals. 
 


• Ability to classify, compute, and tabulate data and information, following a 
prescribed plan requiring the exercise of some individual judgment, with 
reference to established criteria/standards. Ability to compare, count, 
differentiate, measure, and sort information, as well as assemble, copy, 
record, and transcribe data and information. 
 


• Ability to explain, demonstrate, and clarify to others within well-established 
policies, procedures, and standards, as well as the ability to follow specific 
instructions and respond to requests. 
 


• Ability to communicate in writing and orally with customers, department and 
all levels of City personnel, electricians, contractors, and the general public. 
 


• Ability to prepare letters, statements, notices, memos, narrative and 
statistical reports, and other correspondence using prescribed formats 
according to accepted rules of punctuation, grammar, and style. 
 


Supervisory Skills 
• Ability to assign, review, develop, assess, and implement recommendations to 


improve the work of others. 
 


• Ability to make recommendations regarding the selection, training, discipline, 
advancement, and discharge of employees. 
 


• Ability to assist in the preparation of meaningful performance reviews, and 
participate in the delivery of such review. 


 
Mathematical Ability 


• Ability to perform addition, subtraction, multiplication, and division; calculate 
percentages, fractions, and decimals; interpret and develop basic descriptive 
statistical reports; and may require the ability to perform mathematical 
operations with algebra. 
 
 







Council Approved ADD DATE 


Judgment and Situational Reasoning Ability 
• Ability to carry out directives without direct supervision. Ability to exercise 


independent judgment to apply facts and principles for developing approaches 
and techniques to problem resolution. 
 


• Ability to apply principles of influence systems such as supervising, managing, 
leading, teaching, directing, planning, coordinating, and controlling. 
 


• Ability to use functional reasoning and apply rational judgment in performing 
diversified work activities. 
 


• Ability to exercise the judgment, decisiveness, and creativity required in 
situations involving the direction, control and planning of an entire program or 
multiple programs. 
 


Physical Requirements 
• Ability to operate equipment and machinery such as impact tools, aerial 


bucket truck, digger/derrick, forklift, wood chipper, chain saw, back hoe, 
roller, compression tools, cable cutters, nail gun, meters, hand and power 
tools, snow plows and blowers, and other equipment requiring monitoring 
multiple conditions and making multiple, complex, and rapid adjustments. 
Ability to repair complex equipment and machinery. 
 


• Ability to coordinate eyes, hands, feet, and limbs in performing skilled 
movements such as high voltage electrical work. 
 


• Ability to install and repair meters and perform coordinated activity around 
live electricity, potentially in tight spaces. 
 


• Ability to exert regular and sustained extremely heavy physical effort in very 
heavy work, typically involving some combination of climbing, balancing, 
stooping, kneeling, crouching, crawling, or lifting, as well as carrying, 
pushing, shoveling and digging, and pulling heavy objects and materials in 
excess of 100 pounds. 
 


• Ability to recognize and identify degrees of similarities or differences between 
characteristics of color, shape, sound, texture, and odor associated with job-
related objects, materials and tasks. 
 


• Ability to meet all physical requirements of the Stoughton Utilities 
Journeyman Lineworker position description. 
 


Environmental Adaptability 
• Ability to work under uncomfortable and potentially unsafe conditions that 


require exposure to severe environmental factors such as temperature 
variations, high winds, rain and snow, odors, toxic agents, noise, vibrations, 
wetness, dusts, machinery, explosives, gas, vehicular traffic, and high voltage 







Council Approved ADD DATE 


electrical currents. This exposure may cause discomfort and presents a high 
risk of injury or death. 
 
 
 
 
 
 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 







Council Approved ADD DATE 


EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER 
 


The City of Stoughton is an Equal Opportunity Employer.  In compliance with 
applicable state and federal law, the City will provide reasonable accommodations to 


qualified individuals with disabilities and encourages both prospective and current 
employees to discuss potential accommodations with the City. 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
ACKNOWLEDGEMENT: 
 
All requirements of the described position are subject to change over time. The 
employee may be required to perform other duties as requested by the City. 
 
I acknowledge that this job description is neither an employment contract nor a 
legal document. I have received, read, and understand the expectations for the 
successful performance of this job. 
 
 
Printed Name: ____________________________________ 
 
 
Signature: _______________________________________ Date: _____________ 
 
  


  







Council Approved ADD DATE 


 


 


 
 


UTILITIES DEPARTMENT  
Wastewater System Division 


Operator 


REPORTS TO: Wastewater System Supervisor   PAY GRADE: W-1     FLSA: N                   
 
 
SUMMARY OF POSITION 
The purpose of this position is to maintain and operate the water pumping, storage, 
and distribution systems, and the wastewater treatment facilities and sanitary 
sewer collection system for the City of Stoughton, with a focus on wastewater 
collection and treatment operations. This position is identical to other non-certified 
Operator positions in terms of job scope, however may differ in day-to-day duties 
and assignments, required qualifications, and certifications. 
 
DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES 
Core Duties and Responsibilities - The following duties are the primary duties of 
this position but do not compose an exclusive or all-encompassing list of duties. 
Other duties may be assigned or required to accomplish the main goals of this 
position. 
 


• Provides safe drinking water conditions to protect Stoughton Utilities 
customers, via obtaining and testing routine water samples, monitoring and 
recording well pump operations and storage tank volumes, monitoring and 
testing water and wastewater quality conditions, and monitoring and 
recording data and operations on the water/wastewater SCADA system. 
 


• Ensures environmentally responsible wastewater treatment and discharge via 
obtaining and testing routine wastewater treatment samples throughout the 
treatment process, monitoring and recording plant operations and tank 
volumes, monitoring and testing wastewater influent and effluent quality 
conditions, and monitoring and recording data and operations on the 
water/wastewater SCADA system. 
 


• Repairs and maintains water distribution mains, pumps, valves, curb stops, 
services, and hydrants. Installs and maintains water service connections. 
Performs routine maintenance to other water system infrastructure and 
equipment. Exercises system valves and flushes hydrants. 
 


• Repairs and maintains sanitary sewer collection mains and pumps. Performs 
routine maintenance to sanitary sewer collection system infrastructure and 







Council Approved ADD DATE 


equipment. Flushes, televises, cleans, and repairs the sanitary sewer 
collection system. 
 


• Repairs and maintains pumps, motors, valves, flow meters, screens, and all 
other equipment at the wastewater treatment facility. 
 


• Obtains and prepares samples of drinking water and wastewater treatment, 
and performs laboratory analysis including sample testing and calculations for 
biochemical oxygen demand (BOD), suspended solids, pH levels, volatile 
solids, phosphorous, ammonia, fecal coliform, chlorine residual, fluoride 
content, industrial effluents, glucose glutamic acid, and other analysis as 
directed. Prepares graphs, charts, and reports from sample data, and reports 
out findings. Makes adjustments to drinking water and wastewater treatment 
operations and calculates amount of chemical additives according to test 
results. 
 


• Prepares, or assists with the preparation of monthly water pumpage and 
wastewater treatment reports, and submits to the Wisconsin Department of 
Natural Resources (DNR). 
 


• Maintains, calibrates, and repairs testing equipment. Maintains knowledge 
regarding testing requirements for wastewater treatment facilities. Cleans 
and maintains lab equipment. Prepares and sends EPA samples as directed. 
 


• Operates the water/wastewater SCADA system to monitor system health, 
record data and equipment readings, operate controls, evaluate system 
performance, and investigate trouble conditions. 
 


• Responds to customer inquiries and complaints and performs corrective 
measures. Communicates with customers as required to resolve inquiries and 
complaints, and to provide notice of planned system outages.  
 


• Performs work tasks at active job sites to plan, direct, and oversee system 
and equipment maintenance and repair tasks. Works onsite to recommend 
operational changes and safety improvements, and to evaluate safety 
compliance. 
 


• Attends and assists with utility-sponsored public events, prepares public 
educational materials and participates in outreach efforts, conducts system 
demonstrations and tours, and gives safety and conservation presentations. 
 


• Completes and maintains work orders, time sheets, preflight checklists, 
tailgate meetings, inventory forms, and all other division paperwork, and 
maintains records and prepares reports as directed. Conducts system 
inspections and records findings. 
 







Council Approved ADD DATE 


• Maintains GIS software applications and databases, including service 
connection details, flushing and exercising maintenance records, televising 
records, equipment maintenance tasks, and other records as directed. 
 


• Maintains an ability to work a flexible schedule to accommodate planned 
activities outside of the typical work schedule, including but not limited to 
planned customer outages or system maintenance work, as well as planned 
seasonal schedule changes and tasks. 
 


• Maintains an ability to serve on standby on-call duty, scheduled on a 
rotational basis within the Water and Wastewater System Divisions. Maintains 
an ability whenever possible to respond to utility emergencies and assist 
those serving on-call. 
 


• Complies with all Stoughton Utilities safety programs, and guidelines and 
regulations set by the Public Service Commission of Wisconsin (PSCW). 
Ensures full Water and Wastewater System Divisions compliance of the same. 


 
Additional Duties and Responsibilities - The following duties are necessary for 
operations, but may be shared with or performed by other employees. The listed 
duties do not compose an exclusive or all-encompassing list of additional duties. 
Other duties may be assigned or required to accomplish the main goals of this 
position. 
 


• Disconnects water service to customers upon receipt of disconnection 
workorders due to delinquency or safety violations, and at customers’ 
request. Conducts periodic reviews of disconnected properties for connection 
evaluation. 
 


• Installs water meters at customer premises, including temporary and 
permanent services. Assists the meter technician with the maintenance and 
repair of water meters. Reconnects water services and transfers water 
meters. 
 


• Maintains grounds and facilities, such as painting surfaces, ice and snow 
removal, custodial tasks, basic carpentry, basic commercial electrical 
maintenance, basic plumbing, and similar tasks as assigned. 
 


• Provides emergency after-hours support to the Electric System Division, 
including basic system repair, traffic control and direction, site preparation 
and cleanup, equipment transport and operation, groundsman duties, and 
other tasks as directed. Provides local and regional emergency disaster 
response. 
 


• Performs routine vehicle maintenance. 
 


• Performs other Stoughton Utilities tasks as directed. 







Council Approved ADD DATE 


 
QUALIFICATIONS 
The ability to perform the Core Duties and Additional Duties listed above and: 
 
Education/Training/Certifications  


• High School diploma or equivalent, and one or more years water and/or 
wastewater operator experience. 
 


• Demonstrated mechanical and/or plumbing aptitude. 
 


• Commercial driver’s license with tanker and air brake certification required. 
 


Language Ability and Interpersonal Communication Skills 
• Ability to perform mid-level data analysis, including the ability to audit, 


deduce, assess, conclude and appraise. Requires discretion in determining 
and referencing such to established criteria to define consequences and 
develop alternatives. 


 
• Ability to classify, compute, and tabulate data and information, following a 


prescribed plan requiring the exercise of some individual judgment, with 
reference to established criteria/standards. Ability to compare, count, 
differentiate, measure, and sort information, as well as assemble, copy, 
record, and transcribe data and information. 
 


• Ability to utilize a variety of advisory data and information, such as work 
orders; utility maps and diagrams; construction specifications; blueprints; lab 
records and reports; facilities operation and maintenance manuals; technical 
operating manuals; city and utility policies and procedures; guidelines; non-
routine correspondence; and safety rules and manuals. 
 


• Ability to explain, demonstrate, and clarify to others within well-established 
policies, procedures, and standards, as well as the ability to follow specific 
instructions and respond to requests. 
 


• Ability to communicate effectively in writing and orally with customers, 
department and all levels of City personnel, plumbers, contractors, regulatory 
representatives, and the general public. 


 
Mathematical Ability 


• Ability to perform addition, subtraction, multiplication, and division; calculate 
percentages, fractions, and decimals; interpret and develop basic descriptive 
statistical reports; and may require the ability to perform mathematical 
operations with algebra. 


 
Judgment and Situational Reasoning Ability 







Council Approved ADD DATE 


• Ability to carry out directives without direct supervision. Ability to exercise 
independent judgment to apply facts and principles for developing approaches 
and techniques to problem resolution. 
 


• Ability to apply principles of influence systems such as leading and teaching. 
 


• Ability to exercise the judgment, decisiveness and creativity required in 
situations involving the evaluation of information against sensory and 
judgmental criteria. 
 


Physical Requirements 
• Ability to operate equipment and machinery such as impact tools, sewer line 


jet truck, back hoe, roller, loaders, dump truck, forklift, wood chipper, meters, 
hand and power tools, snow plows and blowers, lab instruments, excavation 
hand tools, and other equipment requiring monitoring multiple conditions and 
making multiple, complex, and rapid adjustments. Ability to repair complex 
equipment and machinery. 
 


• Ability to coordinate eyes, hands, feet, and limbs in performing skilled 
movements such as operating heavy excavation and pumping equipment. 
 


• Ability to install and repair meters and perform coordinated activity, 
potentially in tight spaces. 
 


• Ability to exert regular and sustained heavy physical effort in very heavy 
work, typically involving some combination of climbing, balancing, stooping, 
kneeling, crouching, crawling, and lifting, carrying, pushing, shoveling and 
digging, and pulling heavy objects and materials in excess of 100 pounds. 
 


• Ability to recognize and identify degrees of similarities or differences between 
characteristics of color, shape, sound, texture, and odor associated with job-
related objects, materials, and tasks. 


 
Environmental Adaptability 


• Ability to work under uncomfortable and potentially unsafe conditions that 
require exposure to severe environmental factors such as temperature 
variations, high winds, rain and snow, odors, toxic agents, noise, vibrations, 
wetness, dusts, machinery, explosives, gas, vehicular traffic, high voltage 
electrical currents, and disease. This exposure may cause discomfort and 
presents a high risk of injury or death. 
 
 
 
 


 
 
 







Council Approved ADD DATE 


 
 


EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER 
 


The City of Stoughton is an Equal Opportunity Employer.  In compliance with 
applicable state and federal law, the City will provide reasonable accommodations to 


qualified individuals with disabilities and encourages both prospective and current 
employees to discuss potential accommodations with the City. 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
ACKNOWLEDGEMENT: 
 
All requirements of the described position are subject to change over time. The 
employee may be required to perform other duties as requested by the City. 
 
I acknowledge that this job description is neither an employment contract nor a 
legal document. I have received, read, and understand the expectations for the 
successful performance of this job. 
 
 
Printed Name: ____________________________________ 
 
 
Signature: _______________________________________ Date: _____________ 
 
  


  







Council Approved ADD DATE 


 


 


 
 


UTILITIES DEPARTMENT  
Water System Division 


Operator 


REPORTS TO: Water System Supervisor      PAY GRADE: W-1        FLSA: N                   
 
 
SUMMARY OF POSITION 
The purpose of this position is to maintain and operate the water pumping, storage, 
and distribution systems, and the wastewater treatment facilities and sanitary 
sewer collection system for the City of Stoughton, with a focus on wastewater 
collection and treatment operations. This position is identical to other non-certified 
Operator positions in terms of job scope, however may differ in day-to-day duties 
and assignments, required qualifications, and certifications. 
 
DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES 
Core Duties and Responsibilities - The following duties are the primary duties of 
this position but do not compose an exclusive or all-encompassing list of duties. 
Other duties may be assigned or required to accomplish the main goals of this 
position. 
 


• Provides safe drinking water conditions to protect Stoughton Utilities 
customers, via obtaining and testing routine water samples, monitoring and 
recording well pump operations and storage tank volumes, monitoring and 
testing water and wastewater quality conditions, and monitoring and 
recording data and operations on the water/wastewater SCADA system. 
 


• Ensures environmentally responsible wastewater treatment and discharge via 
obtaining and testing routine wastewater treatment samples throughout the 
treatment process, monitoring and recording plant operations and tank 
volumes, monitoring and testing wastewater influent and effluent quality 
conditions, and monitoring and recording data and operations on the 
water/wastewater SCADA system. 
 


• Repairs and maintains water distribution mains, pumps, valves, curb stops, 
services, and hydrants. Installs and maintains water service connections. 
Performs routine maintenance to other water system infrastructure and 
equipment. Exercises system valves and flushes hydrants. 
 


• Repairs and maintains sanitary sewer collection mains and pumps. Performs 
routine maintenance to sanitary sewer collection system infrastructure and 







Council Approved ADD DATE 


equipment. Flushes, televises, cleans, and repairs the sanitary sewer 
collection system. 
 


• Repairs and maintains pumps, motors, valves, flow meters, screens, and all 
other equipment at the wastewater treatment facility. 
 


• Obtains and prepares samples of drinking water and wastewater treatment, 
and performs laboratory analysis including sample testing and calculations for 
biochemical oxygen demand (BOD), suspended solids, pH levels, volatile 
solids, phosphorous, ammonia, fecal coliform, chlorine residual, fluoride 
content, industrial effluents, glucose glutamic acid, and other analysis as 
directed. Prepares graphs, charts, and reports from sample data, and reports 
out findings. Makes adjustments to drinking water and wastewater treatment 
operations and calculates amount of chemical additives according to test 
results. 
 


• Prepares, or assists with the preparation of monthly water pumpage and 
wastewater treatment reports, and submits to the Wisconsin Department of 
Natural Resources (DNR). 
 


• Maintains, calibrates, and repairs testing equipment. Maintains knowledge 
regarding testing requirements for wastewater treatment facilities. Cleans 
and maintains lab equipment. Prepares and sends EPA samples as directed. 
 


• Operates the water/wastewater SCADA system to monitor system health, 
record data and equipment readings, operate controls, evaluate system 
performance, and investigate trouble conditions. 
 


• Responds to customer inquiries and complaints and performs corrective 
measures. Communicates with customers as required to resolve inquiries and 
complaints, and to provide notice of planned system outages.  
 


• Performs work tasks at active job sites to plan, direct, and oversee system 
and equipment maintenance and repair tasks. Works onsite to recommend 
operational changes and safety improvements, and to evaluate safety 
compliance. 
 


• Attends and assists with utility-sponsored public events, prepares public 
educational materials and participates in outreach efforts, conducts system 
demonstrations and tours, and gives safety and conservation presentations. 
 


• Completes and maintains work orders, time sheets, preflight checklists, 
tailgate meetings, inventory forms, and all other division paperwork, and 
maintains records and prepares reports as directed. Conducts system 
inspections and records findings. 
 







Council Approved ADD DATE 


• Maintains GIS software applications and databases, including service 
connection details, flushing and exercising maintenance records, televising 
records, equipment maintenance tasks, and other records as directed. 
 


• Maintains an ability to work a flexible schedule to accommodate planned 
activities outside of the typical work schedule, including but not limited to 
planned customer outages or system maintenance work, as well as planned 
seasonal schedule changes and tasks. 
 


• Maintains an ability to serve on standby on-call duty, scheduled on a 
rotational basis within the Water and Wastewater System Divisions. Maintains 
an ability whenever possible to respond to utility emergencies and assist 
those serving on-call. 
 


• Complies with all Stoughton Utilities safety programs, and guidelines and 
regulations set by the Public Service Commission of Wisconsin (PSCW). 
Ensures full Water and Wastewater System Divisions compliance of the same. 
 


Additional Duties and Responsibilities - The following duties are necessary for 
operations, but may be shared with or performed by other employees. The listed 
duties do not compose an exclusive or all-encompassing list of additional duties. 
Other duties may be assigned or required to accomplish the main goals of this 
position. 
 


• Disconnects water service to customers upon receipt of disconnection 
workorders due to delinquency or safety violations, and at customers’ 
request. Conducts periodic reviews of disconnected properties for connection 
evaluation. 
 


• Installs water meters at customer premises, including temporary and 
permanent services. Assists the meter technician with the maintenance and 
repair of water meters. Reconnects water services and transfers water 
meters. 
 


• Maintains grounds and facilities, such as painting surfaces, ice and snow 
removal, custodial tasks, basic carpentry, basic commercial electrical 
maintenance, basic plumbing, and similar tasks as assigned. 
 


• Provides emergency after-hours support to the Electric System Division, 
including basic system repair, traffic control and direction, site preparation 
and cleanup, equipment transport and operation, groundsman duties, and 
other tasks as directed. Provides local and regional emergency disaster 
response. 
 


• Performs routine vehicle maintenance. 
 


• Performs other Stoughton Utilities tasks as directed. 







Council Approved ADD DATE 


 
QUALIFICATIONS 
The ability to perform the Core Duties and Additional Duties listed above and: 
 
Education/Training/Certifications  


• High School diploma or equivalent, and one or more years water and/or 
wastewater operator experience. 
 


• Demonstrated mechanical and/or plumbing aptitude. 
 


• Commercial driver’s license with tanker and air brake certification required. 
 


Language Ability and Interpersonal Communication Skills 
• Ability to perform mid-level data analysis, including the ability to audit, 


deduce, assess, conclude and appraise. Requires discretion in determining 
and referencing such to established criteria to define consequences and 
develop alternatives.  
 


• Ability to classify, compute, and tabulate data and information, following a 
prescribed plan requiring the exercise of some individual judgment, with 
reference to established criteria/standards. Ability to compare, count, 
differentiate, measure, and sort information, as well as assemble, copy, 
record, and transcribe data and information. 
 


• Ability to utilize a variety of advisory data and information, such as work 
orders; utility maps and diagrams; construction specifications; blueprints; lab 
records and reports; facilities operation and maintenance manuals; technical 
operating manuals; city and utility policies and procedures; guidelines; non-
routine correspondence; and safety rules and manuals. 
 


• Ability to explain, demonstrate, and clarify to others within well-established 
policies, procedures, and standards, as well as the ability to follow specific 
instructions and respond to requests. 
 


• Ability to communicate effectively in writing and orally with customers, 
department and all levels of City personnel, plumbers, contractors, regulatory 
representatives, and the general public. 
 


Mathematical Ability 
• Ability to perform addition, subtraction, multiplication, and division; calculate 


percentages, fractions, and decimals; interpret and develop basic descriptive 
statistical reports; and may require the ability to perform mathematical 
operations with algebra. 


 
Judgment and Situational Reasoning Ability 







Council Approved ADD DATE 


• Ability to carry out directives without direct supervision. Ability to exercise 
independent judgment to apply facts and principles for developing approaches 
and techniques to problem resolution. 
 


• Ability to apply principles of influence systems such as leading and teaching. 
 


• Ability to exercise the judgment, decisiveness and creativity required in 
situations involving the evaluation of information against sensory and 
judgmental criteria. 
 


Physical Requirements 
• Ability to operate equipment and machinery such as impact tools, sewer line 


jet truck, back hoe, roller, loaders, dump truck, forklift, wood chipper, meters, 
hand and power tools, snow plows and blowers, lab instruments, excavation 
hand tools, and other equipment requiring monitoring multiple conditions and 
making multiple, complex, and rapid adjustments. Ability to repair complex 
equipment and machinery. 
 


• Ability to coordinate eyes, hands, feet, and limbs in performing skilled 
movements such as operating heavy excavation and pumping equipment. 
 


• Ability to install and repair meters and perform coordinated activity, 
potentially in tight spaces. 
 


• Ability to exert regular and sustained heavy physical effort in very heavy 
work, typically involving some combination of climbing, balancing, stooping, 
kneeling, crouching, crawling, and lifting, carrying, pushing, shoveling and 
digging, and pulling heavy objects and materials in excess of 100 pounds. 
 


• Ability to recognize and identify degrees of similarities or differences between 
characteristics of color, shape, sound, texture, and odor associated with job-
related objects, materials, and tasks. 
 


Environmental Adaptability 
• Ability to work under uncomfortable and potentially unsafe conditions that 


require exposure to severe environmental factors such as temperature 
variations, high winds, rain and snow, odors, toxic agents, noise, vibrations, 
wetness, dusts, machinery, explosives, gas, vehicular traffic, high voltage 
electrical currents, and disease. This exposure may cause discomfort and 
presents a high risk of injury or death. 
 
 
 
 
 
 


 







Council Approved ADD DATE 


 
 


EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER 
 


The City of Stoughton is an Equal Opportunity Employer.  In compliance with 
applicable state and federal law, the City will provide reasonable accommodations to 


qualified individuals with disabilities and encourages both prospective and current 
employees to discuss potential accommodations with the City. 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
ACKNOWLEDGEMENT: 
 
All requirements of the described position are subject to change over time. The 
employee may be required to perform other duties as requested by the City. 
 
I acknowledge that this job description is neither an employment contract nor a 
legal document. I have received, read, and understand the expectations for the 
successful performance of this job. 
 
 
Printed Name: ____________________________________ 
 
 
Signature: _______________________________________ Date: _____________ 
 
  


  







Council Approved ADD DATE 


 


 


 
 


UTILITIES DEPARTMENT  
Director 


REPORTS TO: Mayor                     PAY GRADE: EX-5                      FLSA: E                   
 
 
SUMMARY OF POSITION 
The purpose of this position is to direct and supervise the overall operations of 
Stoughton Utilities which includes: electric distribution, water distribution, and 
wastewater collection and treatment, including system design and development, 
system maintenance and construction, utility coordination, financial management, 
billing and customer service, regulatory compliance, and utility administration. 
 
DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES 
Core Duties and Responsibilities - The following duties are the primary duties of 
this position but do not compose an exclusive or all-encompassing list of duties. 
Other duties may be assigned or required to accomplish the main goals of this 
position. 
 


• Directs all Stoughton Utilities operations; prepares and monitors budgets, 
plans, and goals; develops policies and procedures; implements operations 
study recommendations; maintains utility service quality standards; 
coordinates various construction and development programs; ensures 
compliance with all local, State, and Federal mandates. 
 


• Directs Stoughton Utilities personnel, processes, and technology, including 
engineering studies, technology and automation systems implementation, 
and other programs. Provides information and assistance to, and coordinates 
activities with, other City of Stoughton departments, consultants, auditors, 
regulatory agencies, customers, developers, and elected officials. 
 


• Directs Stoughton Utilities annual budget and capital improvement program, 
and long-range strategic vision. Directs all electric, water, and wastewater 
infrastructure maintenance and construction projects. 
 


• Directs and supervises the activities of Stoughton Utilities personnel. In 
conjunction with the Director of Human Resources & Risk Management, 
participates in staff hiring and promotions, employee feedback and coaching, 
disciplinary actions, personnel evaluations, staff development, and 
terminations. 
 







Council Approved ADD DATE 


• Directs Stoughton Utilities public education and outreach programs. Serves as 
the utility public information officer and represents Stoughton Utilities in 
press releases, media interviews, public statements and presentations, and 
community events. 
 


• Directs the Stoughton Utilities safety program coordination. Participates on 
the Safety Team. Responds to all safety requirements, requests, and 
concerns of utility employees. Conducts safety investigations. 
 


• Represent Stoughton Utilities in reporting to the Mayor, Common Council, 
Utilities Committee, and the City of Stoughton Leadership Team. Participates 
in required Utilities Committee and Common Council meetings. Prepares 
monthly meeting agendas and notices, status reports, and other scheduled 
and unscheduled presentations and reports. 
 


• Represents Stoughton Utilities in participation and communications with 
industry partners including WPPI Energy and Municipal Electric Utilities of 
Wisconsin (MEUW), lobbying organizations, regulatory agencies, legal 
representation, and elected officials. Serves as Director on the WPPI Energy 
Board of Directors. 
 


• Receives and resolves high-level inquiries and complaints, including those 
from elected officials and the Public Service Commission of Wisconsin, and 
implements resulting corrective action and/or policy revisions. 
 


• Complies with all Stoughton Utilities Safety Programs, and guidelines and 
regulations set by the Public Service Commission of Wisconsin, Wisconsin 
Department of Natural Resources, and the National Electric Safety Code. 
 


• Responds to planned and unplanned customer engagement opportunities and 
significant event response, including but not limited to large-scale outages, 
severe weather events, and drinking water or sanitary sewer emergencies. 
 


Additional Duties and Responsibilities - The following duties are necessary for 
operations, but may be shared with or performed by other employees. The listed 
duties do not compose an exclusive or all-encompassing list of additional duties. 
Other duties may be assigned or required to accomplish the main goals of this 
position. 
 


• Greet and direct visitors. Answer, direct, and route telephone calls and 
messages. 
 


• Attends and assists with utility-sponsored public events, prepares public 
educational materials and participates in outreach efforts, and conducts 
system demonstrations and tours. 
 


• Assists all other Stoughton Utilities divisions as required. 







Council Approved ADD DATE 


 
QUALIFICATIONS 
The ability to perform the Core Duties and Additional Duties listed above and: 
 
Education/Training/Certifications  


• Bachelor’s degree in engineering or business administration, or related field, 
with preference for State of Wisconsin licensure for Professional Engineer. A 
track record of successful management and supervisory experience required. 
A minimum of 15 years of utility leadership experience preferred. 
 


• Must have or obtain, within one year, Wisconsin Department of Natural 
Resources (DNR) Grade 1 Waterworks Operator Certification with subclasses 
G and D, or such certification designated as Operator in Training. 
 


• Must have or obtain, within one year, Wisconsin DNR Wastewater Treatment 
Plant Operator Certification – Basic, or such certification designated as 
Operator in Training. 
 


• Previous economic development experience preferred but not required. 
 


• Knowledge of computer software used in the utility environment, including 
experience with utility system automation, asset management, and mapping 
platforms. Advanced user of Microsoft Office applications (Word, Excel, and 
PowerPoint). 
 


• Valid motor vehicle operator’s license is required. 
 
Language Ability and Interpersonal Communication Skills 


• Ability to perform complex data analysis, including the ability to audit, 
deduce, assess, conclude, appraise, analyze, and interpret an extensive 
variety of technical information and governmental regulations. Requires 
discretion in determining and referencing such to established criteria to define 
consequences and develop alternatives. 
 


• Ability to provide first line supervision. Ability to create consensus and 
collaboration, and train others. Ability to advise and provide interpretation 
regarding the application of policies, procedures, and standards to specific 
situations. 
 


• Ability to classify, compute, and tabulate data and information, following a 
prescribed plan requiring the exercise of significant individual judgment. 
Ability to compare, count, differentiate, measure, and sort information, as 
well as assemble, copy, record, and transcribe data and information. 
 


• Ability to utilize a wide variety of advisory data and information such as civil 
engineering plans; engineering studies and reports; construction 
specifications; bid documents and tabulations; utility statistical reports, 







Council Approved ADD DATE 


demand and consumption reports, and wholesale billing statements; financial 
reports and statements; budgets; city and utility policies and procedures; 
guidelines; non-routine correspondence; Public Service Commission of 
Wisconsin rules, regulations, and tariffs; Wisconsin Department of Natural 
Resources rules and regulations; State of Wisconsin legal statutes; and safety 
rules and manuals. 
 


• Ability to explain, demonstrate, and clarify to others within established 
policies, procedures, and standards, as well as the ability to respond to 
complex requests where established policies and procedures may not exist. 
 


• Ability to record and deliver information, explain procedures, give and follow 
instructions, use and interpret civil, environmental, and electrical engineering 
and accounting terminology. 
 


• Ability to communicate in writing and orally with customers, department and 
all levels of City personnel, construction consultants and contractors, 
engineering and legal consultants, financial auditors, regulatory agencies, 
elected and appointed government officials, and the general public. Ability to 
prepare letters, statements, notices, memos, narrative and statistical reports, 
and other correspondence using prescribed formats according to accepted 
rules of punctuation, grammar, and style. 
 


Supervisory Skills 
• Ability to assign, supervise, review, develop, assess, and implement 


recommendations to improve the work of others. 
 


• Ability to make recommendations regarding the selection, training, discipline, 
advancement, and discharge of employees. 
 


• Ability to prepare meaningful performance reviews and participate in the 
delivery of such reviews. 
 


Mathematical Ability 
• Ability to perform addition, subtraction, multiplication, and division; calculate 


percentages, fractions, and decimals; interpret and develop detailed 
descriptive statistical reports; and the ability to perform mathematical 
operations with algebra, geometry, and descriptive statistics. 
 


• Ability to design and produce graphical representations of complex financial 
data. 


 
Judgment and Situational Reasoning Ability 


• Ability to carry out directives with direct supervision. Ability to exercise 
independent judgment to apply facts and principles for developing approaches 
and techniques to problem resolution. 
 







Council Approved ADD DATE 


• Ability to apply principles of influence systems such as managing, supervising, 
leading, teaching, directing, planning, coordinating, disciplining, coaching, and 
controlling. 
 


• Ability to use functional reasoning and apply rational judgment in performing 
diversified work activities. 
 


• Ability to exercise the judgment, decisiveness, and creativity required in 
situations involving the evaluation of information against measurable or 
judgmental criteria, and involving the direction, control and planning of an 
entire program or multiple programs. 
 


Physical Requirements 
• Ability to operate equipment and machinery requiring monitoring multiple 


conditions and making multiple, complex, and rapid adjustments, such as 
motor vehicles. 
 


• Ability to operate office equipment and machinery requiring simple but 
continuous adjustments, such as computer terminal, calculator, photocopier, 
telephone, and other items used in performing essential functions. 
 


• Ability to coordinate eyes, hands, feet, and limbs in performing semi-skilled 
movements such as typing. 
 


• Ability to exert very moderate physical effort in sedentary to light work, 
typically involving some combination of stooping, kneeling, crouching and 
crawling, lifting, carrying, pushing and pulling. 
 


Environmental Adaptability 
• Ability to work effectively in an office environment and in public meetings 


under safe and comfortable conditions, as well as in the field under 
uncomfortable and potentially unsafe conditions that require exposure to 
environmental factors such as temperature variations, high winds, rain and 
snow, odors, noise, vibrations, wetness, machinery, and vehicular traffic. This 
exposure may cause discomfort and presents a risk of injury or death. 
 
 
 
 
 
 


 
 
 
 
 
 







Council Approved ADD DATE 


 
EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER 


 
The City of Stoughton is an Equal Opportunity Employer.  In compliance with 


applicable state and federal law, the City will provide reasonable accommodations to 
qualified individuals with disabilities and encourages both prospective and current 


employees to discuss potential accommodations with the City. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
ACKNOWLEDGEMENT: 
 
All requirements of the described position are subject to change over time. The 
employee may be required to perform other duties as requested by the City. 
 
I acknowledge that this job description is neither an employment contract nor a 
legal document. I have received, read, and understand the expectations for the 
successful performance of this job. 
 
 
Printed Name: ____________________________________ 
 
 
Signature: _______________________________________ Date: _____________ 
 
  


 







Council Approved ADD DATE 


 


 


 
 


UTILITIES DEPARTMENT  
Wastewater System Division 
Wastewater System Supervisor 


REPORTS TO: Assistant Utilities Director      PAY GRADE: W-6          FLSA: N                   
 
 
SUMMARY OF POSITION 
The purpose of this position is to provide supervision to the Wastewater System 
Division, including personnel and daily operations, projects and development, and 
strategic planning, under the direction of the Utilities Director, including supervision 
of the Stoughton Utilities wastewater treatment facilities and the sanitary sewer 
collection system. This position serves as the designated Operator in Charge of the 
Stoughton Wastewater Treatment Facility and assumes all obligations and 
responsibility for regulatory compliance. 
 
This position also efficiently and safely performs wastewater treatment system 
operations, maintenance, and repair tasks, and participates in construction projects, 
in accordance with Stoughton Utilities construction specifications and standards. 
 
DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES 
Core Duties and Responsibilities - The following duties are the primary duties of 
this position but do not compose an exclusive or all-encompassing list of duties. 
Other duties may be assigned or required to accomplish the main goals of this 
position. 
 


• Supervises and directs the daily operations and maintenance of the 
wastewater treatment plant and collection system, and oversees and 
monitors the wastewater treatment process. Ensures compliance with 
regulatory agency requirements and utility policies, including compliance with 
all requirements of the Wisconsin Pollutant Discharge Elimination System 
(WPDES) permit issued to the Stoughton Wastewater Treatment Facility. 
Ensures environmentally-responsible wastewater treatment and discharge via 
obtaining and testing wastewater treatment samples throughout the 
treatment process and monitoring and recording plant operations and tank 
volumes. 
 


• Supervises the activities of Wastewater System Division personnel. Conducts 
regular division staff meetings, establishes and maintains productivity 
reports, prepares and assigns work orders, coordinates introductory and 
continuing training programs, reviews and approves timesheets, establishes 
and maintains staff work and leave schedules, and assists in the completion 







Council Approved ADD DATE 


of performance evaluations. Plans short and long-term division work plans 
and projects, and guides the division’s goals and vision. 
 


• Supervises, organizes, and leads routine safety meetings. Conducts routine 
safety compliance checks on active job sites. Oversees division operations to 
ensure safety policy compliance. Report out findings to Stoughton Utilities 
management and safety compliance teams. 
 


• Supervises the division tool and equipment inventory and evaluates and 
approves or denies requests from division staff for the procurement of new 
tools and equipment. 
 


• Supervises the installation of new sanitary sewer service connections. 
Coordinates activities associated with sanitary sewer lateral connections with 
contractors, residents, and engineers. 
 


• Supervises and coordinates the distribution of field notifications for 
construction. 
 


• Supervises sludge storage and removal programs. Maintains appropriate 
sludge storage capacity, nutrient management field records including 
ownership and contact information, regulatory soil sampling requirements, 
and all data necessary for regulatory compliance. 
 


• Routinely performs operator work tasks at active job sites to plan, direct, and 
supervise system and equipment maintenance and repair tasks. Works onsite 
to recommend operational changes and safety improvements, and to 
evaluate staff knowledge, competence, and safety compliance. 
 


• Repairs and maintains sanitary sewer collection mains and pumps. Performs 
routine maintenance to sanitary sewer collection system infrastructure and 
equipment. Flushes, televises, cleans, and repairs the sanitary sewer 
collection system.  
 


• Prepares and secures safe work sites, including truck and equipment setup, 
placement of warning signs and cones, traffic control and direction, and more. 
Conducts worksite meetings to review projects and safety. 
 


• Operates the wastewater SCADA system to monitor system health, record 
data and equipment readings, operate controls, evaluate influent and effluent 
flow, monitor lift station pumpage and plant treatment, and investigate 
system concerns. 
 


• Obtains and prepares samples of wastewater influent and effluent quality 
conditions, wastewater treatment processes, and drinking water, and 
performs laboratory analysis including sample testing and calculations for 
biochemical oxygen demand (BOD), suspended solids, pH levels, volatile 







Council Approved ADD DATE 


solids, phosphorous, ammonia, fecal coliform, chlorine residual, fluoride 
content, industrial effluents, glucose glutamic acid, and other analysis as 
directed. Prepares graphs, charts, and reports from sample data, and reports 
out findings. Adjusts wastewater treatment and drinking water distribution 
operations and calculates amounts of chemical additives according to test 
results. 
 


• Maintains, calibrates, and repairs testing equipment. Maintains knowledge 
regarding testing requirements for wastewater treatment facilities. Cleans 
and maintains lab equipment. Prepares and sends EPA samples as directed. 
 


• Prepares reports in accordance with DNR, EPA, and other regulatory agency 
requirements, including compliance maintenance annual reports, land 
application of biosolids annual reports, monthly discharge report, annual 
mercury reports, and annual air emissions reports. 
 


• Develops and maintains emergency response and maintenance programs for 
the sanitary sewer collection system as part of the Stoughton Utilities 
Capacity, Management, Operation and Maintenance (CMOM) program. 
Performs self- assessments on CMOM compliance. 
 


• Monitors industry loadings and compliance with routine sampling 
requirements. Maintains listing of industrial facility contacts, and forms and 
maintains relationships with facility operations and maintenance managers. 
Reviews laboratory results of industrial sampling and ensures facility 
compliance with discharge requirements. Provides laboratory results to the 
Billing & Metering Supervisor and assists in the billing of industrial surcharges 
 


• Collaborates with the Asset & Facilities Coordinator to maintain material 
inventory and procurement. Provides input and prepares recommendations 
for material quality standards and specifications. Assists in the evaluation of 
proposals and material acquisition. Cooperates in the year-end inventory 
process. 
 


• Assists in the preparation of the Utilities 20-year Capital Improvement 
Program, including conducting reviews of system reliability and making 
recommendations for system improvements. Assists with the preparation and 
ongoing monitoring of the Utilities annual budget. 
 


• Makes recommendations for wastewater division vehicle replacements, 
additions, and retirements. Provides input on vehicle standards and 
specifications. Supervises routine maintenance schedules and requirements, 
monitors vehicle safety and regulatory compliance requirements, and 
schedules vehicle maintenance work. 
 


• Collaborates with the Distribution System Coordinator to make 
recommendations for new development design and system expansion. 







Council Approved ADD DATE 


 
• Responds to customer inquiries and complaints and performs corrective 


measures, or schedules and assigns workorders to resolve customer issues. 
Communicates with customers as required to resolve inquiries and 
complaints, and to provide notice of planned construction. 
 


• Coordinates and schedules the work of subcontractors working at the 
wastewater treatment facility and on the wastewater collection system. 
Reviews the quality of work completed by subcontractors to ensure 
compliance with utility construction specifications and contract requirements 
and expectations. Communicates with subcontractors to discuss complaints 
and issues. 
 


• Attends and assists with utility-sponsored public events, prepares public 
educational materials and participates in outreach efforts, conducts treatment 
facility and collection system demonstrations and tours. 
 


• Maintains GIS software applications and databases, including wastewater 
collection system details, service connections, manhole inspections, main 
flushing and televising, and other records as directed.  
 


• Maintains an ability to work a flexible schedule to accommodate planned 
activities outside of the typical work schedule, including but not limited to 
planned plant and collection system maintenance work, as well as planned 
seasonal schedule changes and tasks. 
 


• Maintains an ability to serve on standby on-call duty, scheduled on a 
rotational basis within the Water and Wastewater System Division. Maintains 
an ability whenever possible to respond to utility emergencies and assist 
those serving on- call. 
 


• Complies with all Stoughton Utilities safety programs, and guidelines and 
regulations set by the Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources (DNR). 
Ensures full Wastewater System Division compliance of the same. 
 


Additional Duties and Responsibilities - The following duties are necessary for 
operations, but may be shared with or performed by other employees. The listed 
duties do not compose an exclusive or all-encompassing list of additional duties. 
Other duties may be assigned or required to accomplish the main goals of this 
position. 
 


• Maintains grounds and facilities, such as painting surfaces, ice and snow 
removal, custodial tasks, basic carpentry, basic plumbing maintenance, and 
similar tasks as assigned. 
 


• Provides emergency after-hours support to the Electric and Water System 
Divisions, including basic system repair, traffic control and direction, site 







Council Approved ADD DATE 


preparation and cleanup, equipment transport and operations, electric line 
groundsman duties, and other tasks as directed. 
 


• Performs routine vehicle maintenance. 
 


• Performs other Stoughton Utilities tasks as directed. 
 


QUALIFICATIONS 
The ability to perform the Core Duties and Additional Duties listed above and: 
 
Education/Training/Certifications  


• High School diploma or equivalent, technical training in wastewater 
treatment, and seven or more years wastewater operator experience, or any 
combination of education and experience that provides equivalent knowledge, 
skills, and abilities. 
 


• Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources (DNR) Wastewater Treatment 
Plant Operator - Advanced certification for the Stoughton Wastewater 
Treatment facilities. 
 


• Wisconsin DNR Grade 1 Waterworks Operator Certification with subclasses G 
and D for the Stoughton Waterworks. 
 


• Successful completion of Wisconsin DNR Advanced Laboratory exam. 
 


• Ability to maintain the required continuing education credits for the DNR 
Operator – Advanced certification. 
 


• Vocational or industry training in supervision and/or leadership, with 
demonstrated experience in leading others in a professional environment. 
 


• Commercial driver’s license with tanker and air brake certification required. 
 


Language Ability and Interpersonal Communication Skills 
• Ability to perform mid-level data analysis, including the ability to audit, 


deduce, assess, conclude, and appraise. Requires discretion in determining 
and referencing such to established criteria to define consequences and 
develop alternatives. 
 


• Ability to provide first line supervision. Ability to create consensus and 
collaboration, and train others. Ability to advise and provide interpretation 
regarding the application of policies, procedures, and standards to specific 
situations. 
 


• Ability to classify, compute, and tabulate data and information, following a 
prescribed plan requiring the exercise of significant individual judgment. 







Council Approved ADD DATE 


• Ability to compare, count, differentiate, measure, and sort information, as 
well as assemble, copy, record, and transcribe data and information. 
 


• Ability to utilize a variety of advisory data and information, such as work 
orders; utility maps and diagrams; construction specifications; blueprints; lab 
records and reports; plant operation and maintenance manuals; engineering 
reports; technical operating manuals; city and utility policies and procedures; 
guidelines; non-routine correspondence; Wisconsin Department of Natural 
Resources rules and regulations; State of Wisconsin legal statutes; and safety 
rules and manuals. 
 


• Ability to explain, demonstrate, and clarify to others within well-established 
policies, procedures, and standards, as well as the ability to follow specific 
instructions and respond to complex requests. 
 


• Ability to communicate in writing and orally with customers, department and 
all levels of City personnel, plumbers, developers, engineers, contractors, 
regulatory agencies, and the general public. 
 


• Ability to prepare letters, statements, notices, memos, narrative and 
statistical reports, and other correspondence using prescribed formats 
according to accepted rules of punctuation, grammar, and style.  
 


Supervisory Skills 
• Ability to assign, supervise, review, develop, assess, and implement 


recommendations to improve the work of others. 
 


• Ability to make recommendations regarding the selection, training, discipline, 
advancement, and discharge of employees. 
 


• Ability to assist in the preparation of meaningful performance reviews, and 
participate in the delivery of such reviews. 


 
Mathematical Ability 


• Ability to perform addition, subtraction, multiplication, and division; calculate 
percentages, fractions, and decimals; interpret and develop basic descriptive 
statistical reports; and may require the ability to perform mathematical 
operations with algebra. 


 
Judgment and Situational Reasoning Ability 


• Ability to carry out directives without direct supervision. Ability to exercise 
independent judgment to apply facts and principles for developing approaches 
and techniques to problem resolution. 
 


• Ability to apply principles of influence systems, such as supervising, leading, 
teaching, planning, coordinating, disciplining, and controlling. 
 







Council Approved ADD DATE 


• Ability to use functional reasoning and apply rational judgment in performing 
diversified work activities. 
 


• Ability to exercise the judgment, decisiveness, and creativity required in 
situations involving the evaluation of information against measurable criteria, 
and involving the direction, control, and planning of an entire program or 
multiple programs. 
 


Physical Requirements 
• Ability to operate equipment and machinery such as forklift, backhoe, roller, 


compression tools, meters, dump truck, end loaders, sewer jet machine, air 
hammers, compactors, concrete saws, hand and power tools, generators, 
portable pumps, chemical pumps, freezing and thawing machines, locators, 
snow plows and blowers, sanitary sewer televising equipment, and other 
equipment requiring monitoring multiple conditions and making multiple, 
complex, and rapid adjustments. Ability to repair complex equipment and 
machinery. 
 


• Ability to coordinate eyes, hands, feet, and limbs in performing skilled 
movements involved in the operation and repair of wastewater treatment 
facility and sewer collection system equipment. 
 


• Ability to exert regular and sustained heavy physical effort in very heavy 
work, typically involving some combination of climbing, balancing, stooping, 
kneeling, crouching, or crawling, as well as lifting, carrying, pushing, 
shoveling and digging, and pulling heavy objects and materials in excess of 
100 pounds. 
 


• Ability to recognize and identify degrees of similarities or differences between 
characteristics of color, shape, sound, texture, and odor associated with job-
related objects, materials, and tasks. 
 


• Ability to meet all physical requirements of the Stoughton Utilities Advanced 
Certified Operator position description. 
 


Environmental Adaptability 
• Ability to work effectively in an office environment, as well as in the field 


under uncomfortable and potentially unsafe conditions that require exposure 
to severe environmental factors, such as temperature variations, high winds, 
rain and snow, odors, toxic agents, noise, vibrations, wetness, dusts, 
machinery, explosives, gas, vehicular traffic, and high voltage electrical 
currents. This exposure may cause discomfort and presents a risk of injury or 
death. 
 
 
 
 







Council Approved ADD DATE 


 
 


EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER 
 


The City of Stoughton is an Equal Opportunity Employer.  In compliance with 
applicable state and federal law, the City will provide reasonable accommodations to 


qualified individuals with disabilities and encourages both prospective and current 
employees to discuss potential accommodations with the City. 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
ACKNOWLEDGEMENT: 
 
All requirements of the described position are subject to change over time. The 
employee may be required to perform other duties as requested by the City. 
 
I acknowledge that this job description is neither an employment contract nor a 
legal document. I have received, read, and understand the expectations for the 
successful performance of this job. 
 
 
Printed Name: ____________________________________ 
 
 
Signature: _______________________________________ Date: _____________ 
 
  







Council Approved ADD DATE 


  








City of Stoughton 


Position Description 
 


Name:  Department: Utilities – Wastewater System Division 


Title: Advanced Certified Wastewater Operator Pay Grade:  FLSA: N 


Date:  JanuaryMarch, 202217 Reports To: Utilities Wastewater System Supervisor 


 


Purpose of Position 


The purpose of this position is to maintain and operate the water pumping, storage, and distribution systems, and the 


wastewater treatment facilities and sanitary sewer collection system for the City of Stoughton, with a focus on wastewater 


collection and treatment operations.  This position is identical to other Advanced Certified Operator positions in terms of 


job scope and required qualifications and certifications, however may differ in day-to-day duties and assignments.   


Essential Duties and Responsibilities  


The following duties are normal for this position.  These are not to be construed as exclusive or all-inclusive.  Other duties may 


be required and assigned. 


• Provides safe drinking water conditions to protect Stoughton Utilities customers, via obtaining and testing routine water 


samples, monitoring and recording well pump operations and storage tank volumes, monitoring and testing water and 


wastewater quality conditions, and monitoring and recording data and operations on the water/wastewater SCADA 


system. 


• Ensures environmentally-responsibleenvironmentally responsible wastewater treatment and discharge via obtaining and 


testing routine wastewater treatment samples throughout the treatment process, monitoring and recording plant 


operations and tank volumes, monitoring and testing wastewater influent and effluent quality conditions, and monitoring 


and recording data and operations on the water/wastewater SCADA system. 


• Repairs and maintains water distribution mains, pumps, valves, curb stops, services, and hydrants.  Installs and 


maintains water service connections. Performs routine maintenance to other water system infrastructure and equipment.  


Exercises system valves and flushes hydrants.   


• Repairs and maintains sanitary sewer collection mains and pumps.  Performs routine maintenance to sanitary sewer 


collection system infrastructure and equipment.  Flushes, televises, cleans, and repairs the sanitary sewer collection 


system. 


• Repairs and maintains Performs routine maintenance to pumps, motors, valves, flow meters, screens, and all other 


equipment at the wastewater treatment facility.and completes other work orders as assigned. 


• Monitors and records pump operations, chemical treatment, and flow levels. 


• Performs operational tasks at the wastewater treatment facilities.  Operates all equipment necessary for complete and 


effective wastewater treatment and system operations. 


• Performs routine maintenance to pumps, motors, valves, flow meters, and completes other work orders as assigned. 


• Obtains and prepares samples of drinking water and wastewater treatment, and performs laboratory activities analysis 


including sample testing and calculations for biochemical oxygen demand (BOD), suspended solids, pH levels, volatile 


solids, phosphorous, ammonia, fecal coliform, chlorine residual, fluoride content, industrial effluents, glucose glutamic 


acid, and other analysis as directed, and/or delivers samples to outside laboratories.  Prepares graphs, charts, and reports 


from sample data, and reports out findings.  Makes adjustments to drinking water and wastewater treatment operations 


and calculates amount of chemical additives according to test results.etc. 


• Televises, cleans, and repairs sanitary sewer collection system. 


• Prepares, or assists with the preparation of monthly water pumpage and wastewater treatment reports, and submits to 


the Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources (DNR). 


• Performs plumbing tasks throughout treatment plant.  Replaces pipes and valves.   







Advanced Certified Wastewater Operator 


 


• Monitors and records data, and makes adjustments to the wastewater/water SCADA System. 


• Maintains, calibrates, and repairs testing equipment.  Maintains knowledge regarding testing requirements for 


wastewater treatment facilities.  Cleans and maintains lab equipment.  Prepares and sends EPA samples as directed. 


• Operates and maintains the water/wastewater SCADA system to monitor system health, record data and equipment 


readings, operate controls, evaluate system performance, and investigate trouble conditions. 


• Responds to customer inquiries and complaints and performs corrective measures.  Communicates with customers as 


required to resolve inquiries and complaints, and to provide notice of planned system outages. 


• Performs work tasks at active job sites to plan, direct, and oversee system and equipment maintenance and repair tasks.  


Works onsite to recommend operational changes and safety improvements, and to evaluate safety compliance. 


• Attends and assists with utility-sponsored public events, prepares public educational materials and participates in 


outreach efforts, conducts system demonstrations and tours, and gives safety and conservation presentations. 


• Completes and maintains work orders, time sheets, preflight checklists, tailgate meetings, inventory forms, and all other 


division paperwork, and maintains records and prepares reports as directed.  Conducts system inspections and records 


findings. 


• Maintains GIS software applications and databases, including service connection details, flushing and exercising 


maintenance records, televising records, equipment maintenance tasks, and other records as directed. 


• Maintains an ability to work a flexible schedule to accommodate planned activities outside of the typical work schedule, 


including but not limited to planned customer outages or system maintenance work, as well as planned seasonal schedule 


changes and tasks. 


• Maintains an ability to serve on standby on-call duty, scheduled on a rotational basis within the Water and Wastewater 


System Divisions.  Maintains an ability whenever possible to respond to utility emergencies and assist those serving 


on-call.   


• Complies with all Stoughton Utilities safety programs, and guidelines and regulations set by the Wisconsin Public 


Service Commission of Wisconsin (PSCW).  Ensures full Water and Wastewater System Divisions compliance of the 


same. 


Receives and responds to customer inquiries and complaints; makes recommendations and performs corrective action in 


response. 


Serves on-call status for wastewater/water operations. 


Complies with all Stoughton Utilities Safety Programs. 


Additional Tasks and Responsibilities 


While the following tasks are necessary for the work of the unit, they are not an essential part of the purpose of this position and 


may also be performed by other unit members. 


• Disconnects water service to customers upon receipt of disconnection workorders due to delinquency or safety 


violations, and at customers’ request.  Conducts periodic reviews of disconnected properties for connection evaluation. 


• Installs water meters at customer premises, including temporary and permanent services.  Assists the meter technician 


with the maintenance and repair of water meters.  Reconnects water services and transfers water meters. 


• Maintains grounds and facilities, such as painting surfaces, ice and snow removal, custodial tasks, basic carpentry, basic 


commercial electrical maintenance, basic plumbing, and similar tasks as assigned. 


• Provides emergency after-hours support to the Electric System Division, including basic system repair, traffic control 


and direction, site preparation and cleanup, equipment transport and operation, groundsman duties, and other tasks as 


directed.  Provides local and regional emergency disaster response. 


• Performs routine vehicle maintenance. 


Performs other Stoughton Utilities tasks as directed.Performs custodial tasks. 







Advanced Certified Wastewater Operator 


 


Paints surfaces. 


•  


• At the discretion of the Utilities Director, this position may temporarily be assigned as the designated Operator in Charge 


of the Stoughton Wastewater Treatment Facility and assume all obligations and responsibility for regulatory 


compliance. 


• Removes Ice and snow from walkways and drives. 


• Performs carpentry tasks as needed. 


• Assist with water and electric operations as required. 


Minimum Training and Experience Required to Perform Essential Job Functions 


• High School diploma or equivalent, and four three or moreto six years water and/or wastewater operator experience.   


• Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources (DNR) Wastewater Treatment Plant Operator – Advanced certification for 


the Stoughton Wastewater Treatment facilities. 


• Wisconsin DNR Grade 1 Waterworks Operator Certification with subclasses G and D for the Stoughton Waterworks. 


• Successful completion of the DNR Advanced Laboratory exam. 


• Ability to maintain the required continuing education credits for the above DNR Operator operator and laboratory 


certifications- Advanced certification. 


• Commercial driver’s license with tanker and air brake certification required. 


  







Advanced Certified Wastewater Operator 


 


Physical and Mental Abilities Required to Perform Essential Job Functions  


Language Ability and Interpersonal Communication 


• Ability to perform mid-level data analysis, including the ability to audit, deduce, assess, conclude, and appraise.  


Requires discretion in determining and referencing such to established criteria to define consequences and develop 


alternatives. 


• Ability to classify, compute, and tabulate data and information, following a prescribed plan requiring the exercise of 


some individual judgementjudgment, with reference to established criteria/standards.  Ability to compare, count, 


differentiate, measure, and sort information, as well as assemble, copy, record, and transcribe data and information. 


• Ability to utilize a variety of advisory data and information, such as work orders; utility maps and diagrams; construction 


specifications; blueprints; lab records and reports; facilities operation and maintenance manuals; engineering reports; 


technical operating manuals; city and utility policies and procedures; guidelines; non-routine correspondence; Public 


Service Commission of Wisconsin rules, regulations, and tariffs; Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources rules and 


regulations; and safety rules and manuals. 


• Ability to explain, demonstrate, and clarify to others within well-established policies, procedures, and standards, as well 


as the ability to follow specific instructions and respond to requests. 


• Ability to communicate effectively in writing and orally with customers, department and all levels of City personnel, 


plumbers, contractors, regulatory representatives, and the general public.Ability to analyze and categorize data and 


information in order to determine the relationship of the data with reference to established criteria/standards.  Ability to 


compare, count, differentiate, measure and/or sort data, as well as assemble, copy, record and transcribe data and 


information.  Ability to classify, compute and tabulate data. 


• Ability to explain, demonstrate and clarify to others within well established policies, procedures and standards, as well 


as the ability to follow specific instructions and respond to simple requests from others. 


• Ability to utilize a variety of advisory data and information such as lab reports, flow charts, electrical diagrams, 


architectural drawings, manhole reports, soil sample reports, wastewater treatment plant operation and maintenance 


manuals, maps, vehicle maintenance reports, DNR rules and regulations, procedures and guidelines. 


• Ability to communicate effectively with customers, Department personnel, construction workers, engineers, DNR 


personnel, and vendor representatives. 


Mathematical Ability 


• Ability to perform addition, subtraction, multiplication, and division; calculate percentages, fractions, and decimals; 


interpret and develop basic descriptive statistical reports; and may require the ability to perform mathematical operations 


with fractions and algebra.Ability to calculate percentages, fractions, decimals, volumes, ratios, present values, and 


spatial relationships.  


• Ability to interpret basic descriptive statistical reports. 


Judgment and Situational Reasoning Ability 


• Ability to carry out directives without direct supervision.  Ability to exercise independent judgementjudgment to apply 


facts and principles for developing approaches and techniques to problem resolution. 


• Ability to apply principles of influence systems such as leading and teaching.   


• Ability to exercise the judgment, decisiveness and creativity required in situations involving the evaluation of 


information against sensory and judgmental criteriaAbility to use functional reasoning and apply rational judgment in 


performing diversified work activities. 


• Ability to exercise the judgment, decisiveness, and creativity required in situations involving the evaluation of 


information against sensory and/or judgmental criteria. 


Physical Requirements 







Advanced Certified Wastewater Operator 


 


• Ability to operate equipment and machinery requiring monitoring multiple conditions and making multiple complex 


and rapid adjustments, such as impact tools, sewer line jet truck, back hoe, roller, loaders, dump truck, forklift, wood 


chipper, meters, hand and power tools, snow plows and blowers, cement mixer, lab instruments, mechanic’s hand tools, 


voltmeter, welder, and excavation hand tools, and other equipment requiring monitoring multiple conditions and making 


multiple, complex, and rapid adjustments.  Ability to repair complex equipment and machinery..   


• Ability to repair complex equipment and machinery.  


• Ability to coordinate eyes, hands, feet, and limbs in performing skilled movements such as operating heavy excavation 


and pumping  equipment. 


• Ability to install and repair meters and perform coordinated activity, potentially in tight spaces. 


• Ability to exert regular and sustained heavy physical effort in moderate veryto heavy work, typically involving some 


combination of climbing, and balancing, stooping, kneeling, crouching, crawling, and lifting, carrying, pushing, 


shoveling and digging, and pulling heavy objects and materials in excess ofover 100 pounds. 


• Ability to operate SCBA equipment as required in the Stoughton Utilities Facilities. 


• Ability to recognize and identify degrees of similarities or differences between characteristics of colors, forms shape, 


sounds, texture, and odors, and textures associated with job-related objects, materials, and ingredientstasks. 


  







Advanced Certified Wastewater Operator 


 


Environmental Adaptability 


• Ability to work under moderately unsafe and uncomfortable and potentially unsafe  conditions where that require 


exposure to severe environmental factors such as temperature variations, odors, high winds, rain and snow, odors, toxic 


agents, noise, vibrations, wetness,  machinerydusts, machinery, explosives, gas, vehicular traffic, high voltage electrical 


currents, and disease.   and/or dustThis exposure  may cause or causing discomfort and presents a high and where there 


is a risk of injury requiring extended recoveryor death. 


  







Advanced Certified Wastewater Operator 


 


The City of Stoughton is an Equal Opportunity Employer.  In compliance with the American with Disabilities Act, the City 


will provide reasonable accommodations to qualified individuals with disabilities and encourages both prospective and 


current employees to discuss potential accommodations with the employer. 


   


Employee’s Signature  Supervisor’s Signature 


   


Date  Date 


 







City of Stoughton 


Position Description 


 
Name:  Department: Utilities – Water System Division 


Title: Advanced Certified Water Operator Pay Grade:  FLSA: N 


Date: MayMarch, 202218 Reports To: Utilities Water System Supervisor 


 


Purpose of Position 


The purpose of this position is to maintain and operate the water pumping, storage, and distribution systems, and the 


wastewater treatment facilities and sanitary sewer collection system for the City of Stoughton, with a focus on water 


distribution operations.  This position is identical to other Advanced Certified Operator positions in terms of job scope and 


required qualifications and certifications, however may differ in day-to-day duties and assignments.  This position requires 


a Grade 1 Waterworks Operator Certification with subclasses G and D from the Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources 


(WDNR).   


Essential Duties and Responsibilities  


The following duties are normal for this position.  These are not to be construed as exclusive or all-inclusive.  Other duties may 


be required and assigned. 


• Provide safe drinking water conditions to protect Stoughton Utilities customers, via obtaining and testing routine water 


samples, monitoring and recording well pump operations and storage tank volumes, monitoring and testing water and 


wastewater quality conditions, and monitoring and recording data and operations on the water/wastewater SCADA 


system. 


• Ensures environmentally-responsibleenvironmentally responsible wastewater treatment and discharge via obtaining and 


testing routine wastewater treatment samples throughout the treatment process, monitoring and recording plant 


operations and tank volumes, monitoring and testing wastewater influent and effluent quality conditions, and monitoring 


and recording data and operations on the water/wastewater SCADA system. 


• Repairs and maintains water distribution mains, pumps, valves, curb stops, services, and hydrants.  Installs and 


maintains water service connections. Performs routine maintenance to other water system infrastructure and equipment 


as directed.  Exercises system valves and flushes hydrants. 


• Repairs and maintains sanitary sewer collection mains and pumps.  Performs routine maintenance to sanitary sewer 


collection system infrastructure and equipment.  Flushes, televises, cleans, and repairs the sanitary sewer collection 


system. 


• Repairs and maintains pumps, motors, valves, flow meters, screens, and all other equipment at the wastewater treatment 


facility. 


• Obtains and prepares samples of drinking water and wastewater treatment, and performs laboratory analysis including 


sample testing and calculations for biochemical oxygen demand (BOD), suspended solids, pH levels, volatile solids, 


phosphorous, ammonia, fecal coliform, chlorine residual, fluoride content, industrial effluents, glucose glutamic acid, 


and other analysis as directed, and/or delivers samples to outside laboratories.  Prepares graphs, charts, and reports from 


sample data, and reports out findings.  Makes adjustments to drinking water and wastewater treatment operations and 


calculates amount of chemical additives according to test results. 


• Tests water meters both in the field and in the shop according to Public Service Commission rules.  Investigates zero/low 


meter readings and reports findings.  Installs new, and replaces existing water meters. 


• Prepares, or assists with the preparation of monthly water pumpage report and wastewater treatment reports, and submits 


to the Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources (DNR).  Prepares, or assists with the preparation of water meter 


change program reports. 


• Maintains, calibrates, and repairs testing equipment.  Maintains knowledge regarding testing requirements for 


wastewater treatment facilities.  Cleans and maintains lab equipment.  Prepares and sends EPA samples as directed. 


Formatted: Bottom:  0.44"







Advanced Certified Water Operator 


 
• Operates the water/wastewater SCADA system to monitor system health, record data and equipment readings, operate 


controls, evaluate system performance, and investigate trouble conditions. 


• Responds to customer inquiries and complaints and performs corrective measures.  Communicates with customers as 


required to resolve inquiries and complaints, and to provide notice of planned system outages. 


• Performs work tasks at active job sites to plan, direct, and oversee system and equipment maintenance and repair tasks.  


Works onsite to recommend operational changes and safety improvements, and to evaluate safety compliance. 


• Attends and assists with utility-sponsored public events, prepares public educational materials and participates in 


outreach efforts, conducts system demonstrations and tours, and gives safety and conservation presentations. 


• Completes and maintains work orders, time sheets, preflight checklists, tailgate meetings, inventory forms, and all other 


division paperwork, and maintains records and prepares reports as directed.  Conducts system inspections and records 


findings. 


• Maintains GIS software applications and databases, including service connection details, flushing and exercising 


maintenance records, televising records, equipment maintenance tasks, and other records as directed. 


• Maintains an ability to work a flexible schedule to accommodate planned activities outside of the typical work schedule, 


including but not limited to planned customer outages or system maintenance work, as well as planned seasonal schedule 


changes and tasks. 


• Maintains an ability to serve on standby on-call duty, scheduled on a rotational basis within the Water and Wastewater 


System Divisions.  Maintains an ability whenever possible to respond to utility emergencies and assist those serving 


on-call.   


• Complies with all Stoughton Utilities safety programs, and guidelines and regulations set by the Wisconsin Public 


Service Commission of Wisconsin (PSCW).  Ensures full Water and Wastewater System Divisions compliance of the 


same.Operates Utilities Geographic Information Systems (GIS) software; updates asset and property records via 


computerized systems as required. 


• Field notifies customers regarding construction and disconnection of service. 


• Disconnects water service to customers with delinquent accounts, or upon customer request. 


• Receives and responds to customer inquiries and complaints; recommends and performs corrective action as needed. 


• Maintains material inventories; recommends material purchases. 


• Serves on call status for the wastewater/water operations. 


• Monitors and records data and operations on the water/wastewater SCADA system. 


• Assists with wastewater and electric operations as required. 


• Complies with all Stoughton Utilities Safety programs and Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources (DNR) 


guidelines and regulations. 


Additional Tasks and Responsibilities 


While the following tasks are necessary for the work of the unit, they are not an essential part of the purpose of this position and 


may also be performed by other unit members. 


• Disconnects water service to customers upon receipt of disconnection workorders due to delinquency or safety 


violations, and at customers’ request.  Conducts periodic reviews of disconnected properties for connection evaluation. 


• Installs water meters at customer premises, including temporary and permanent services.  Assists the meter technician 


with the maintenance and repair of water meters.  Reconnects water services and transfers water meters. 


• Maintains grounds and facilities, such as painting surfaces, ice and snow removal, custodial tasks, basic carpentry, basic 


commercial electrical maintenance, basic plumbing, and similar tasks as assigned. 







Advanced Certified Water Operator 


 
• Provides emergency after-hours support to the Electric System Division, including basic system repair, traffic control 


and direction, site preparation and cleanup, equipment transport and operation, groundsman duties, and other tasks as 


directed.  Provides local and regional emergency disaster response. 


• Performs routine vehicle maintenance. 


• Performs other Stoughton Utilities tasks as directed.Maintains grounds and facilities, such as painting surfaces, ice and 


snow removal, custodial tasks, basic carpentry, or similar tasks as assigned. 


•  


• At the discretion of the Utilities Director, this position may temporarily be assigned as the designated Operator in Charge 


of the Stoughton Wastewater Treatment Facility and assume all obligations and responsibility for regulatory 


compliance. Performs other Stoughton Utilities tasks as directed. 


Minimum Training and Experience Required to Perform Essential Job Functions 


• High School diploma or equivalent with and three to fiveor more years water and/or wastewater operator plumbing or 


water utility experience.,  


• Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources (DNR) Wastewater Treatment Plant Operator – Advanced certification for 


the Stoughton Wastewater Treatment facilities. 


• Wisconsin DNR or any combination of education and experience that provides equivalent knowledge, skills, and 


abilities.  A Grade 1 Waterworks Operator Certification with subclasses G and D from the Wisconsin Department of 


Natural Resources (WDNR) for the Stoughton Waterworks, and a commercial driver’s license with tanker and airbrake 


certification are required.   


• Successful completion of the Wisconsin DNR Advanced Laboratory exam. 


• Ability to maintain the required continuing education credits for the above DNR operator and laboratory certifications. 


 Commercial driver’s license with tanker and air brake certification required. 


  







Advanced Certified Water Operator 


 
Physical and Mental Abilities Required to Perform Essential Job Functions 


Language Ability and Interpersonal Communication 


• Ability to perform mid-level data analysis, including the ability to audit, deduce, assess, conclude, and appraise.  


Requires discretion in determining and referencing such to established criteria to define consequences and develop 


alternatives. 


• Ability to classify, compute, and tabulate data and information, following a prescribed plan requiring the exercise of 


some individual judgementjudgment, with reference to established criteria/standards.  Ability to compare, count, 


differentiate, measure, and sort information, as well as assemble, copy, record, and transcribe data and information. 


• Ability to utilize a variety of advisory data and information, such as work orders; utility maps and diagrams; construction 


specifications; blueprints; lab records and reports; facilities operation and maintenance manuals; engineering reports; 


technical operating manuals; city and utility policies and procedures; guidelines; non-routine correspondence; Public 


Service Commission of Wisconsin rules, regulations, and tariffs; Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources rules and 


regulations; and safety rules and manuals. 


• Ability to explain, demonstrate, and clarify to others within well-established policies, procedures, and standards, as well 


as the ability to follow specific instructions and respond to requests. 


• Ability to communicate effectively in writing and orally with customers, department and all levels of City personnel, 


plumbers, contractors, regulatory representatives, and the general public.Ability to analyze and categorize data and 


information in order to determine the relationship of the data with reference to established criteria/standards.  Ability to 


compare, count, differentiate, measure and/or sort data, as well as assemble, copy, records and transcribe data.  Ability 


to classify, compute and tabulate data. 


• Ability to explain, demonstrate and clarify to others within well established policies, procedures and standards, as well 


as the ability to follow specific instructions and respond to simple requests. 


• Ability to utilize a variety of advisory data and information such as well readings, meter records, DNR reports and 


bulletins, water samples, distribution equipment reports, charts, policy manuals, maintenance records, WDNR rules and 


regulations, vehicle manuals, equipment manuals, water main diagrams and maps. 


• Ability to communicate effectively with Department personnel, customers, contractors, engineers, City employees, law 


enforcement, and WDNR personnel. 


Mathematical Ability 


• Ability to perform addition, subtraction, multiplication, and division; calculate percentages, fractions, and decimals; 


interpret and develop basic descriptive statistical reports; and may require the ability to perform mathematical operations 


with fractions and algebra.Ability to add, subtract, multiply and divide; calculate percentages, fractions and decimals.  


Ability to interpret basic descriptive statistical reports. 


Judgment and Situational Reasoning Ability 


• Ability to carry out directives without direct supervision.  Ability to exercise independent judgementjudgment to apply 


facts and principles for developing approaches and techniques to problem resolution. 


• Ability to apply principles of influence systems such as leading and teaching.   


• Ability to exercise the judgment, decisiveness and creativity required in situations involving the evaluation of 


information against sensory and judgmental criteriaAbility to use functional reasoning in performing diversified work 


activities. 


• Ability to exercise judgment, decisiveness, and creativity required in situations involving the evaluation of information 


against sensory and/or judgmental criteria. 


Physical Requirements 


• Ability to operate equipment and machinery such as impact tools, sewer line jet truck, back hoe, roller, loaders, dump 


truck, forklift, wood chipper, meters, hand and power tools, snow plows and blowers, lab instruments, excavation hand 







Advanced Certified Water Operator 


 
tools, and other equipment requiring monitoring multiple conditions and making multiple, complex, and rapid 


adjustments.  Ability to repair complex equipment and machinery.   


• Ability to coordinate eyes, hands, feet, and limbs in performing skilled movements such as operating heavy excavation 


and pumping equipment. 


• Ability to install and repair meters and perform coordinated activity, potentially in tight spaces. 


• Ability to exert regular and sustained heavy physical effort in very heavy work, typically involving some combination 


of climbing, balancing, stooping, kneeling, crouching, crawling, and lifting, carrying, pushing, shoveling and digging, 


and pulling heavy objects and materials in excess of 100 pounds. 


• Ability to recognize and identify degrees of similarities or differences between characteristics of color, shape, sound, 


texture, and odor associated with job-related objects, materials, and tasks.Ability to carry out directives without direct 


supervision. 


• Ability to operate equipment and machinery requiring monitoring multiple conditions and making multiple, complex 


and rapid adjustments, such as backhoe, dump truck, end loaders, sewer jet machine, meter test bench, air hammers, 


blacktop rollers, compactors, saws, hand tools, generators, portable pumps, chemical pumps, mowers, freezing/thawing 


machines, voltmeter, locators, jacks, shovels, picks, axes, etc.  Ability to repair complex equipment and machinery. 


• Ability to coordinate eyes, hands, feet, and limbs in performing skilled movements involved in repair of water 


distribution equipment. 


• Ability to exert heavy physical effort in moderate to heavy work, typically involving some combination of climbing, 


balancing, stooping, kneeling, crouching, crawling, lifting, and carrying, pushing and pulling over 100 pounds. 


• Ability to recognize and identify degrees of similarities and differences between characteristics of color, sound, taste, 


texture and odor associated with job-related objects, materials and ingredients. 


  







Advanced Certified Water Operator 


 
Environmental Adaptability 


• Ability to work under uncomfortable and potentially moderately unsafe and uncomfortable conditions where that require 


exposure to severe environmental factors such as temperature variations, odorshigh winds, rain and snow, odors, toxic 


agents, noise, vibrations, wetness, dusts, disease, machinery, explosives, gas, vehicular traffic, high voltage and 


electrical currents, and disease.  This exposure may cause discomfort where there isand presents a high a risk of injury 


or death. 


•  


  







Advanced Certified Water Operator 


 
The City of Stoughton is an Equal Opportunity Employer.  In compliance with the American with Disabilities Act, the 


City will provide reasonable accommodations to qualified individuals with disabilities and encourages both prospective 


and current employees to discuss potential accommodations with the employer. 


 


   


Employee’s Signature  Supervisor’s Signature 


   


Date  Date 


 


 


 







City of Stoughton 


Position Description 


 


Name:  Department: Utilities – Electric System Division 


Title: Apprentice Lineworkerman Pay Grade:  FLSA: N 


Date: AprilMarch, 202204 Reports To: Utilities Electric System Supervisor 


 


Purpose of Position 


The purpose of this positions in this classification is to efficiently and safely assist in performing electrical distribution line 


construction, maintenance, and repair tasks for the City of Stoughton, in accordance with Stoughton Utilities construction 


specifications and standards.   


Responsibilities for this position will increase in complexity and level of individual responsibility as the employee 


progresses through the utility’s apprentice lineworker program.   


This position is intended to provide education and on-the-job training leading to jJourneyman lLineworkerman status and 


requires continual progression, and is not considered a permanent employment status.  Advancement to Journeyman 


Lineworker status occurs upon completion of required classroom instruction, on-the-job training hours, and demonstration 


of job knowledge and competency. 


Essential Duties and Responsibilities  


The following duties are normal for this position.  These are not to be construed as exclusive or all-inclusive.  Other duties may 


be required and assigned. 


• Assists Operatesin operating diggers, bucket trucks, and hand tools near and around electrical distribution lines.  Assists 


in oOperatinges live-line tools to connect and disconnect distribution lines and components.  AssistsInstalls in installing 


primary and secondary overhead and underground electrical systems.  Performs all other industry-standard duties 


expected of an apprentice lineworker. 


•  


• Assists in operating and maintaining the electric SCADA system. 


• Prepares and secures safe work sites, including truck and equipment setup, placement of .  Erects warning signs and 


cones, traffic control and direction, and secures areasmore.  Conducts tailboard meetings to review projects and 


Maintains knowledge of and implements safety procedures. 


• Completes field staking using staking sheets provided by the Utilities Distribution System Coordinator. 


• Assists in operatingOperates and maintaining the electric SCADA system to monitor system health, record data and 


equipment readings, operate controls, evaluate circuit performance and load, and investigate outage conditions. 


• Receives and rResponds to customer inquiries and complaints and performs corrective actionmeasures.  Communicates 


with customers as required to resolve  in response to customer inquiries and complaints, and to provide notice of planned 


system outages. 


• Performs work tasks at active job sites to plan, direct, and oversee system and equipment maintenance and repair tasks.  


Works onsite to recommend operational changes and safety improvements, and to evaluate safety compliance. 


• Installs, Rrepairs, and maintains municipal street lightsing. 


• Monitors system tree trimming and removal needs, and ensures clearance program compliance.  Works with division 


employees to trim and remove trees and brush.  Communicates with customers to provide notice of upcoming line 


clearance projects, and resolves line clearance complaints and inquiries. 


• Participates in the utility’s apprentice lineworker program, including soliciting and receiving education and mentorship, 


and working towards advancement through the program. 







Apprentice Lineworkerman   


 
• Attends and assists with utility-sponsored public events, prepares public educational materials and participates in 


outreach efforts, conducts system demonstrations and tours, and gives electrical safety presentations. 


• Completes and maintains work orders, staking sheets, outage reports, time sheets, preflight checklists, tailgate meetings, 


inventory forms, and all other division paperwork, and maintains records and prepares reports as directed.  Conducts 


system inspections and records findings. 


• Maintains GIS software applications and databases, including electric service connection details, circuit identifications, 


overhead and underground system inspections, equipment maintenance tasks, and other records as directed. 


• Maintains an ability to work a flexible schedule to accommodate planned activities outside of the typical work schedule, 


including but not limited to planned customer outages or system maintenance work, as well as planned seasonal schedule 


changes and tasks. 


• Locates underground electric faults for repair. 


• Assists in installing primary and secondary overhead and underground electrical systems. 


• Participates in on-call status for emergencies. 


• Assists in planning and directs on-site maintenance/repair tasks.  Assists in recommending on-site operation changes. 


• Contacts customers regarding temporary power outages and tree trimming operations and possible damage. 


• Assists with public education and assists with performing Wires and Fires demonstrations. 


• Repairs and maintains street lights. 


• Performs routine vehicle maintenance. 


• Trims trees and removes and chips brush. 


• Operates loaders, backhoes, dump trucks, jack hammers, wood chipper, chain saws, cutting torch and welders. 


• Reconnects meters and transfers meters. 


• Receives and responds to customer inquiries and complaints and performs corrective action in response to 


customer inquiries and complaints. 


• Completes and maintains work orders, staking sheets, outage reports, times sheets, etc. 


• Maintains records and prepares reports as required. 


• Completes weekly/monthly substation readings and inspection reports. 


• Recommends material purchases. 


• Maintains material inventories. 


• Maintains an ability to travel within Wisconsin to locations requiring overnight stays up to a week in length to complete 


the required apprenticeship classroom and hands-on training. 


• Maintains an ability whenever possible to respond to utility emergencies and assist those serving on-call.  As progression 


through the apprenticeship program occurs, maintains an ability to serve on standby on-call duty, scheduled on a 


rotational basis within the Electric System Division.     


• Complies with all Stoughton Municipal Utilities sSafety programs, and guidelines and regulations set by the Wisconsin 


Public Service Commission of Wisconsin (PSCW) and the National Electric Safety Code (NESC). 


Additional Tasks and Responsibilities 


While the following tasks are necessary for the work of the unit, they are not an essential part of the purpose of this position and 


may also be performed by other unit members. 







Apprentice Lineworkerman   


 
• Disconnects electrical service to customers upon receipt of disconnection workorders due to delinquency or safety 


violations, and at customers’ request.  Conducts periodic reviews of disconnected properties for connection evaluation. 


• Installs electric meters, including current transformers (CTs) and voltage transformers (VTs) as necessary, at customer 


premises, including temporary and permanent services.  Assists the meter technician with the maintenance and repair 


of electric meters, CTs, and VTs.  Reconnects and transfers electric meters. 


• Maintains grounds and facilities, such as painting surfaces, ice and snow removal, custodial tasks, basic carpentry, basic 


commercial electrical maintenance, basic plumbing, and similar tasks as assigned. 


• Provides emergency after-hours support to the Wastewater and Water System Divisions, including basic system repair, 


traffic control and direction, site preparation and cleanup, equipment transport and operation, and other tasks as directed.  


Provides local and regional emergency disaster response. 


• Performs routine vehicle maintenance. 


• Performs other Stoughton Utilities tasks as directed.Maintains Stoughton Municipal Utilities facilities. 


• Assists electric, wastewater and water Division as required. 


• Paints surfaces. 


• Removes ice and snow from walkways and drives. 


Minimum Training and Experience Required to Perform Essential Job Functions 


• High school diploma or equivalent and vocational/technical training in electrical systems, or any combination of 


education and experience that provides equivalent knowledge, skills, and abilities. 


• Successful completion of a nine-month electric power distribution technical course, or e, with preference given to 


candidates who possess one or more of the following:  enrollment in the State of Wisconsin a local four-year llineworker 


technician apprenticeship program preferred, vocational/technical training in electrical systems, two to three years 


electrical system maintenance experience, or any combination of education and experience that provides equivalent 


knowledge, skills, and abilities leading to journeyman lineman status.   


• Ability to maintain enrollment in the State of Wisconsin lineworker apprenticeship program is required.   


• Ability to obtain and maintain fCertification in CPR, first aid, Hilti gun, forklift certification and CPR/First Aid 


certification is required. 


• Ability to obtain and maintain a , and ccommercial driver’s license with tanker and airbrake certification is required.  


also preferred or will be required to be obtained after hire.  A valid motor vehicle operator’s license is required at hire. 


Physical and Mental Abilities Required to Perform Essential Job Functions 


Language Ability and Interpersonal Communication 


• Ability to perform mid-level data analysis, including the ability to audit, deduce, assess, conclude, and appraise.  


Requires discretion in determining and referencing such to established criteria to define consequences and develop 


alternatives. 


• Ability to utilize a wide variety of advisory data and information, such as work orders; staking sheets; utility maps and 


diagrams; construction specifications; technical operating manuals; city and utility policies and procedures; guidelines; 


non-routine correspondence; Wisconsin Department of Transportation rules and regulations; and safety rules and 


manuals. 


• Ability to classify, compute, and tabulate data and information, following a prescribed plan requiring the exercise of 


some individual judgementjudgment, with reference to established criteria/standards.  Ability to compare, count, 


differentiate, measure, and sort information, as well as assemble, copy, record, and transcribe data and information. 


• Ability to explain, demonstrate, and clarify to others within well-established policies, procedures, and standards, as well 


as the ability to follow specific instructions and respond to requests. 







Apprentice Lineworkerman   


 
• Ability to communicate effectively in writing and orally with customers, department and all levels of City personnel, 


electricians, contractors, and the general public.Ability to analyze and categorize data and information in order to 


determine the relationship of the data with reference to established criteria/standards.  Ability to compare, count, 


differentiate, measure and/or sort data; assemble, copy, record and transcribe data and information.  Ability to classify, 


compute, and tabulate data. 


• Ability to explain, demonstrate and clarify to others within well established policies, procedures and standards, as well 


as the ability to follow specific instructions and respond to simple requests from others. 


• Ability to utilize a variety of advisory data and information such as work orders, staking sheets, maps, outage reports, 


hazardous materials lists, safety manuals and procedures, construction specifications, transformer manuals, PCB 


manual, time sheets, vehicle logs, accident reports, technical operating manuals, procedures and guidelines. 


• Ability to communicate effectively with customers, co-workers, law enforcement personnel, electricians, contractors, 


tree trimmers and other city employees. 


• Ability to graduate from a State of Wisconsin Four-Year Lineman Apprenticeship program. 


Mathematical Ability 


• Ability to perform addition, subtraction, multiplicationy,, and division;de, calculate percentages, fractions, and 


decimals;, interpret and develop basic descriptive statistical reports; and may require the ability to perform mathematical 


operations with fractions and decimalsalgebra. 


Judgment and Situational Reasoning Ability 


• Ability to carry out directives both with and without direct supervision.  Ability to exercise independent 


judgementjudgment to apply facts and principles for developing approaches and techniques to problem resolution. 


• Ability to apply principles of influence systems such as leading and teaching.   


• Ability to use functional reasoning and apply rational judgementjudgment in performing diversified work activities. 


• Ability to exercise the judgment, decisiveness, and creativity required in situations involving the evaluation of 


information against sensory and/or judgmental criteria. 


Physical Requirements 


• Ability to operate equipment and machinery requiring multiple conditions and making multiple, complex and rapid 


adjustments, such as Hilti gun, Ampactimpact tools,  tool, aerial bucket truck, digger /derrick, forklift, wood chipper, 


chain saw, back hoe, roller, compression tools, cable cutters, nail gun, meters, hand and power tools, snow plows and 


blowers, and other equipment requiring monitoring multiple conditions and making multiple, complex, and rapid 


adjustmentshooks and belts, air hammers, census, dump truck, wood chipper, forklift, loaders, backhoes, cutting torch, 


welder, volt meter, hot sticks, extension sticks, hoists and blocks, phasing tool, cable locator, bolt cutters, winches, 


mechanic’s hand tools, carpenter hand tools, slings, hand lines, impact tools, grinders, etc.  Ability to repair complex 


equipment and machinery. 


• Ability to coordinate eyes, hands, feet, and limbs in performing skilled movements involved in repairsuch as high 


voltage electrical work. 


• Ability to install and repair meters and perform coordinated activity around live electricity, potentially in tight spaces. 


• Ability to exert regular and sustained heavy physical effort in moderate tovery heavy work, typically involving some 


combination of climbing, and balancing, stooping, kneeling, crouching, and crawling, and lifting, carrying, pushing, 


shoveling and digging, and pulling heavy objects and materials in excess of up to 100 pounds. 


• Ability to recognize and identify harmonious degrees of similarities or differences between or contrasting combinations, 


as well as recognize individual characteristics of colors, formsshape, sounds, odors and textures, and odor  associated 


with job-related objects, materials, and ingredientstasks. 


Environmental Adaptability 







Apprentice Lineworkerman   


 
• Ability to work under uncomfortable and potentially unsafe and uncomfortable conditions where that require exposure 


to severe environmental factors such as temperature variations, high winds, rain and snow, odors, toxic agents, noise, 


vibrations, wetness, dusts, machinery, disease, explosives, gas, vehicular traffic, and high voltage electrical currents.  


This exposure may , vehicular traffic and/or dust can cause discomfort and presents a high where there is risk of serious 


injury or death. 


•  


The City of Stoughton is an Equal Opportunity Employer.  In compliance with the American with Disabilities Act, the City 


will provide reasonable accommodations to qualified individuals with disabilities and encourages both prospective and 


current employees to discuss potential accommodations with the employer. 


   


Employee’s Signature  Supervisor’s Signature 


   


Date  Date 


 







 
City of Stoughton 


Position Description 


 


 
Name:  Department: Utilities – Water SystemTechnical 


Operations Division 


Title: Operations SpecialistApprentice Meter 


Technician 


Pay Grade:  FLSA: N 


Date: MayMarch, 202218 Reports To: Utilities Billing & Metering 


SupervisorWater System Supervisor 


 


 


Purpose of Position  


The purpose of this position is to assist in the maintainmaintenance, repairs, testing, installation, and reading of electric and 


water meters; maintain and operate the wastewater treatment facilities and sanitary sewer collection system; and maintain 


and operate the water pumping, storage, and distribution systems, and to complete water cross connection inspections for 


the City of Stoughton.  This position shall be responsible for assisting in the evaluation of electric and water services and 


determination of the appropriate metering design, procurement and maintenance of electric and water meters and test 


equipment, maintenance of electric and water meter records, and installation of electric and water meters and equipment.  


Responsibilities for this position will increase in complexity and level of individual responsibility as the employee 


progresses through the utility’s apprentice meter technician program.   


This position is intended to provide education and on-the-job training leading to Journeyman Meter Technician status and 


requires continual progression, and is not considered a permanent employment status.  Advancement to Journeyman Meter 


Technician status occurs upon completion of required classroom instruction, on-the-job training hours, and demonstration 


of job knowledge and competency. 


Essential Duties and Responsibilities 


The following duties are normal for this position.  These are not to be construed as exclusive or all-inclusive.  Other duties may 


be required and assigned. 


• Provide safe drinking water conditions, safe wastewater conveyance and discharge, and safe electric enclosures to 


protect Stoughton Utilities customers. 


• Maintains the utility’s electric and water meter testing programs to ensure compliance with Wisconsin Public Service 


Commission of Wisconsin (PSCW) regulations and periodic test schedules.   


• Tests single and three-phase electric meters both in the field and in the shop in accordance with PSC rules.  Maintains, 


and repairs meters, current transformers (CTs), and voltage transformers (VTs).  Prepares and issues reports on electric 


meter test quantities and results to division supervisors, customer service staff, and regulatory agencies as directed. 


• Tests water meters both in the field and in the shop in accordance with PSC rules.  Installs, maintains, and repairs water 


meters.  Prepares and issues reports on water meter test quantities and results to division supervisors, customer service 


staff, and regulatory agencies as directed. 


• Manages the utility water and electric meter inventory.  Establishes and maintains metering standardization programs, 


and collaborates with the Asset & Facilities Coordinator to maintain meter inventory, including the procurement of new 


meters and the discarding of damaged and retired meters.  Prepares and issues reports on meter inventory and annual 


activity to division supervisors, financial staff, and regulatory agencies as directed.  Completes the year-end inventory 


process for electric and water meters, CTs, and VTs.    


• Reviews applications for new and upgraded electric service connections, and determines proper meter type, cabinet size 


and type, and need for CTs and VTs, and wires customer meter sockets at commercial properties.  Conveys cabinet and 







Operations SpecialistApprentice Meter Technician 


 
socket requirements to customers and electrical contractors.  Collaborates with the Electric System Supervisor to 


coordinate electric meter sizing, installation, and repair. 


• Installs electric and water meters – including CTs and VTs as necessary – at customer premises, including temporary 


and permanent services.   


• Reviews applications for new water service connections, and determines the proper meter sizing and type.  Conveys 


plumbing requirements to customers and plumbing contractors. Collaborates with the Water System Supervisor to 


coordinate water meter sizing, installation, and repair. 


• Tests single and three-phase electric meters both in the field and in the shop in accordance with Wisconsin Public 


Service Commission (WPSC) rules.  Installs, maintains, and repairs meters, CTs and VTs. 


• Tests water meters both in the field and in the shop in accordance with WPSC rules.  Installs, maintains, and repairs 


water meters.   


• Maintains GIS software applications and databases, including electric and water meter inventory, electric and water 


meter testing history, electric and water service connection details and meter history, and other records as directed. 


• Assists in the management of Manages the utility’s water Cross-Connection Control Program to eliminate existing and 


prevent future cross-connections, in accordance with Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources (DNR) rules.  


Performs household and business inspections, issues corrective orders, and performs follow-up inspections as necessary. 


• Assists with utility billing operations by investigating zero/low meter readings for both electric and water, and reports 


findings.  Reviews customer history and consumption trends to detect potential meter issues.  Performs meter rereads 


upon receipt of workorders. 


• Completes the monthly collection of electric and water meter readings for cycle billing purposes.  Maintains ability to 


work a flexible schedule in order to complete the monthly meter reading collection outside of standard working hours 


one day per month, typically on the first day of the month. 


• Completes the daily meter readings for newly opened or closed customer accounts.  Processes all daily meter 


workorders.   


• Monitors and records data and operations on the water/wastewater SCADA system. 


• Monitors and tests water and wastewater quality conditions. 


• Coordinates field delinquent collections operations, including disconnecting utility service to customers as upon receipt 


of disconnection workorders.directed. 


• Receives and responds to customer inquiries and complaints and recommends and performs corrective action in 


response to customer inquiries and complaints.   


• Attends and assists with utility-sponsored public events, prepares public educational materials, and participates in 


outreach efforts. 


• Maintains an ability to work a flexible schedule to accommodate planned activities outside of the typical work schedule, 


including but not limited to planned customer outages or system maintenance work, as well as planned seasonal schedule 


changes and tasks. 


• Maintains an ability to travel within Wisconsin to locations requiring overnight stays up to a week in length to complete 


the required apprenticeship classroom and hands-on training. 


• Maintains an ability whenever possible to respond to utility emergencies and assist those serving on-call. 


•  


• Repairs and maintains water mains, pumps, valves, curb stops, services, and hydrants.  Installs and maintains water and 


wastewater service connections.  


• Performs routine maintenance to pumps, motors, valves, flow meter and other work orders. 







Operations SpecialistApprentice Meter Technician 


 


• Televises, cleans, and repairs sanitary sewer system. 


• Operates Utilities Geographic Information Systems (GIS) software; updates asset and property records via computerized 


systems as required. 


• Participates in emergency on-call status for the wastewater/water operations. 


• Complies with all Stoughton Utilities sSafety programs, and Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources (DNR) 


guidelines and regulations set by the Wisconsin Public Service Commission of Wisconsin (PSCW), Wisconsin 


Department of Natural Resources (DNR), and the National Electric Safety Code (NESC). 


•  


 


Additional Tasks and Responsibilities 


While the following tasks are necessary for the work of the unit, they are not an essential part of the purpose of this position and 


may also be performed by other unit members. 


• Greet and direct visitors.  Answer, direct, and route telephone calls and messages. 


• Provide back up for various front-office tasks, including but not limited to: processing customer payments, preparation 


of committee meeting packets, preparation of daily bank deposits, organizational filing, negotiating deferred payment 


agreements, etc. 


• Provide back up for processing customer payments received through various physical and electronic methods, including 


but not limited to, banking lockbox, online My Account payments, Autopay (ACH and credit card), night deposit box, 


in-person, energy assistance, etc. 


• Provide back up for daily visits to City Hall, local post office, and local bank branch to receive and process incoming 


and outgoing postal and interdepartmental mail and deliver the daily banking deposit.  Sorts and distributes received 


postal and interdepartmental mail to their intended recipients. 


• Maintains Stoughton Utilitiesgrounds and facilities, including such as painting surfaces, snow and ice removal, custodial 


tasks, basic carpentry, basic commercial electrical maintenance, basic plumbing, and similar tasks as assigned. of ice 


and snow from walkways and drives, and general maintenance tasks. 


• Provides emergency after-hours support to the Electric, Wastewater, and Water System Divisions, including basic 


system repair, traffic control and direction, site preparation and cleanup, equipment transport and operation, and other 


tasks as directed.  Provides local and regional emergency disaster response.Performs other Stoughton Utilities tasks for 


electric, water, and wastewater operations as directed. 


• Performs routine vehicle maintenance. 


• Performs other Stoughton Utilities tasks for all other divisions as directedelectric, water, and wastewater operations as 


directed. 


•  


Minimum Training and Experience Required to Perform Essential Job Functions 


•  High School diploma or equivalent, with one or more years electric metering experience and basic water metering 


experience required, or any combination of education and experience that provides equivalent knowledge, skills, and 


abilities.. 


•  


• Four to six years wastewater operator experience, three to five years water operator experience, and three to five years 


electric metering experience.   


• Successful completion ofEnrollment in the State of Wisconsin three-year Electric Meter Technician apprenticeship 


required, or the ability to begin enrollment immediately upon employment. 







Operations SpecialistApprentice Meter Technician 


 


• Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources (WDNR) Wastewater Treatment Plant Operator – Advanced certification 


for the Stoughton Wastewater Treatment facilities. 


• Basic knowledge of drinking water distribution systems required; Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources 


(WDNR) Grade T or Grade 1 Waterworks Operator Certification for the Stoughton Waterworks, with subclasses G and 


D, preferred.  Ability to obtain and maintain such certification required. 


• Ability to maintain the required continuing education credits for the WDNR Wastewater Operator - Advanced and 


Grade 1 Waterworks certifications. 


• Valid motor vehicle operator’s license required; Ccommercial driver’s license with tanker and air brake certification 


requiredpreferred.   


Physical and Mental Abilities Required to Perform Essential Job Functions 


Language Ability and Interpersonal Communication 


• Ability to analyze and categorize data and information in order to determine the relationship of the data with reference 


to established criteria/standards.  Ability to compare, count, differentiate, measure and/or sort data, as well as assemble, 


copy, records and transcribe data.  Ability to classify, compute and tabulate data. 


• Ability to explain, demonstrate and clarify to others within well established policies, procedures and standards, as well 


as the ability to follow specific instructions and respond to simple requests. 


• Ability to utilize a variety of advisory data and information such as well readings, meter records, city ordinances, WDNR 


PSC and DNR reports and bulletins, water samples, distribution equipment reports, charts, policy manuals, maintenance 


records, WDNR PSC and DNR rules and regulations, vehicle manuals, equipment manuals, water main meter and CT 


wiring diagrams, construction specifications and plans, service applications, electric service rules, safety manuals and 


codes, and maps. 


• Ability to communicate effectively orally and in writing with Ddepartment personnel, customers, contractors, engineers, 


City employees, law enforcement, and WDNR PSC and DNR statistical reports. 


• Ability to prepare narrative and statistical reports, construction documents, and correspondence using prescribed 


formats according to accepted rules of punctuation, grammar, and style. 


Mathematical Ability 


• Ability to perform addition, subtractsubtraction, multiplicationy, and divisionde; calculate percentages, fractions,, 


fractions and decimals; interpret and develop basic descriptive statistical reports; and the ability to perform 


mathematical operations with fractions and algebra.  Ability to interpret basic descriptive statistical reports. 


Judgment and Situational Reasoning Ability 


• Ability to carry out directives without direct supervision.  Ability to exercise independent judgementjudgment to apply 


facts and principles for developing approaches and techniques to problem resolution. 


• Ability to use functional reasoning in performing diversified work activities. 


• Ability to exercise judgment, decisiveness, and creativity required in situations involving the evaluation of information 


against sensory and/or judgmental criteria. 


Physical Requirements 


• Ability to operate equipment and machinery requiring monitoring multiple conditions and making multiple, complex 


and rapid adjustments, such as motor vehicles, backhoe, dump truck, end loaders, sewer jet machine, meter test bench, 


air hammers, blacktop rollers, compactors, saws, hand tools, generators, portable pumps, chemical pumps, mowers, 


freezing/thawing machines, voltmeter, locators, jacks, shovels, picks, axes, etc.   


• Ability to operate office equipment and machinery requiring simple but continuous adjustments, such as computer 


terminal, photocopier, paper cutter, hand punch, and telephone. 







Operations SpecialistApprentice Meter Technician 


 


• Ability to repair complex equipment and machinerymeters and perform coordinated activity around live electricity, 


potentially in tight spaces. 


• Ability to coordinate eyes, hands, feet, and limbs in performing skilled movements involved in repair of water 


distribution equipmentsuch as electrical work. 


• Ability to exert heavy physical effort in moderate to heavy work, typically involving some combination of climbing, 


balancing, stooping, kneeling, crouching, crawling, lifting, and carrying, pushing and pulling over 100 pounds. 


• Ability to recognize and identify degrees of similarities and differences between characteristics of color, sound, taste, 


texture, and odor associated with job-related objects, materials, and ingredients. 


Environmental Adaptability 


• Ability to work under uncomfortable and moderately potentially unsafe and uncomfortable conditions that requirewhere 


exposure to severe environmental factors such as temperature variations, high winds, rain and snow, odors, toxic agents, 


noise, vibrations, wetness, dusts, disease, machinery, explosives, gas, and high voltage electrical currents.  This 


exposure may cause discomfort and presents a highwhere there is a risk of injury or death. 


The City of Stoughton is an Equal Opportunity Employer. In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, the City 


will provide reasonable accommodations to qualified individuals with disabilities and encourages both prospective and 


current employees to discuss potential accommodations with the employer. 


   


Employee’s Signature  Supervisor’s Signature 


   


Date  Date 


 







City of Stoughton 


Position Description 
 


Name:  Department: Utilities – Wastewater System Division 


Title: Apprentice Operator Pay Grade:  FLSA: N 


Date: March, 2022 Reports To: Utilities Wastewater System Supervisor 


 


Purpose of Position 


The purpose of this position is to maintain and operate the water pumping, storage, and distribution systems, and the 


wastewater treatment facilities and sanitary sewer collection system for the City of Stoughton, with a focus on wastewater 


collection and treatment operations.   


Responsibilities for this position will increase in complexity and level of individual responsibility as the employee 


progresses through the utility’s Advanced Certified Operator Apprenticeship program.   


This position is intended to provide education and on-the-job training leading to Advanced Certified Operator status and 


requires continual progression, and is not considered a permanent employment status.  Advancement to Advanced Certified 


Operator status occurs upon completion of required classroom instruction, on-the-job training hours, and demonstration of 


job knowledge and competency.   


Essential Duties and Responsibilities  


The following duties are normal for this position.  These are not to be construed as exclusive or all-inclusive.  Other duties may 


be required and assigned. 


• Ensures environmentally responsible wastewater treatment and discharge via obtaining and testing routine wastewater 


treatment samples throughout the treatment process, monitoring and recording plant operations and tank volumes, 


monitoring and testing wastewater influent and effluent quality conditions, and monitoring and recording data and 


operations on the water/wastewater SCADA system. 


• Repairs and maintains sanitary sewer collection mains and pumps.  Performs routine maintenance to sanitary sewer 


collection system infrastructure and equipment.  Flushes, televises, cleans, and repairs the sanitary sewer collection 


system. 


• Repairs and maintains pumps, motors, valves, flow meters, screens, and all other equipment at the wastewater treatment 


facility. 


• Obtains and prepares samples of drinking water and wastewater treatment, and performs laboratory analysis including 


sample testing and calculations for biochemical oxygen demand (BOD), suspended solids, pH levels, volatile solids, 


phosphorous, ammonia, fecal coliform, chlorine residual, fluoride content, industrial effluents, glucose glutamic acid, 


and other analysis as directed.  Prepares graphs, charts, and reports from sample data, and reports out findings.  Makes 


adjustments to drinking water and wastewater treatment operations and calculates amount of chemical additives 


according to test results. 


• Provides safe drinking water conditions to protect Stoughton Utilities customers, via obtaining and testing routine water 


samples, monitoring and recording well pump operations and storage tank volumes, monitoring and testing water and 


wastewater quality conditions, and monitoring and recording data and operations on the water/wastewater SCADA 


system. 


• Repairs and maintains water distribution mains, pumps, valves, curb stops, services, and hydrants.  Installs and 


maintains water service connections. Performs routine maintenance to other water system infrastructure and equipment.  


Exercises system valves and flushes hydrants. 


• Prepares, or assists with the preparation of monthly water pumpage and wastewater treatment reports, and submits to 


the Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources (DNR). 


• Maintains, calibrates, and repairs testing equipment.  Maintains knowledge regarding testing requirements for 


wastewater treatment facilities.  Cleans and maintains lab equipment.  Prepares and sends EPA samples as directed. 







Apprentice Operator 


 


• Operates the water/wastewater SCADA system to monitor system health, record data and equipment readings, operate 


controls, evaluate system performance, and investigate trouble conditions. 


• Responds to customer inquiries and complaints and performs corrective measures.  Communicates with customers as 


required to resolve inquiries and complaints, and to provide notice of planned system outages. 


• Performs work tasks at active job sites to plan, direct, and oversee system and equipment maintenance and repair tasks.  


Works onsite to recommend operational changes and safety improvements, and to evaluate safety compliance. 


• Attends and assists with utility-sponsored public events, prepares public educational materials and participates in 


outreach efforts, conducts system demonstrations and tours, and gives safety and conservation presentations. 


• Completes and maintains work orders, time sheets, preflight checklists, tailgate meetings, inventory forms, and all other 


division paperwork, and maintains records and prepares reports as directed.  Conducts system inspections and records 


findings. 


• Maintains GIS software applications and databases, including service connection details, flushing and exercising 


maintenance records, televising records, equipment maintenance tasks, and other records as directed. 


• Maintains an ability to work a flexible schedule to accommodate planned activities outside of the typical work schedule, 


including but not limited to planned customer outages or system maintenance work, as well as planned seasonal schedule 


changes and tasks. 


• Maintains an ability to travel within Wisconsin to locations requiring overnight stays up to a week in length to complete 


the required apprenticeship classroom and hands-on training. 


• Maintains an ability whenever possible to respond to utility emergencies and assist those serving on-call.  As progression 


through the apprenticeship program occurs, maintains an ability to serve on standby on-call duty, scheduled on a 


rotational basis within the Water and Wastewater System Divisions.   


• Complies with all Stoughton Utilities safety programs, and guidelines and regulations set by the Public Service 


Commission of Wisconsin (PSCW).  Ensures full Water and Wastewater System Divisions compliance of the same. 


Additional Tasks and Responsibilities 


While the following tasks are necessary for the work of the unit, they are not an essential part of the purpose of this position and 


may also be performed by other unit members. 


• Disconnects water service to customers upon receipt of disconnection workorders due to delinquency or safety 


violations, and at customers’ request.  Conducts periodic reviews of disconnected properties for connection evaluation. 


• Installs water meters at customer premises, including temporary and permanent services.  Assists the meter technician 


with the maintenance and repair of water meters.  Reconnects water services and transfers water meters. 


• Maintains grounds and facilities, such as painting surfaces, ice and snow removal, custodial tasks, basic carpentry, basic 


commercial electrical maintenance, basic plumbing, and similar tasks as assigned. 


• Provides emergency after-hours support to the Electric System Division, including basic system repair, traffic control 


and direction, site preparation and cleanup, equipment transport and operation, groundsman duties, and other tasks as 


directed.  Provides local and regional emergency disaster response. 


• Performs routine vehicle maintenance. 


• Performs other Stoughton Utilities tasks as directed. 


Minimum Training and Experience Required to Perform Essential Job Functions 


• High School diploma or equivalent with demonstrated mechanical and/or plumbing aptitude. 


• Successful completion of wastewater treatment technical courses, or enrollment in the State of Wisconsin wastewater 


treatment plant operator apprenticeship program preferred.   







Apprentice Operator 


 


• Ability to maintain enrollment in the State of Wisconsin wastewater treatment plant operator apprenticeship program is 


required.   


• Ability to obtain and maintain CPR/First Aid certification is required. 


• Ability to obtain and maintain a commercial driver’s license with tanker and airbrake certification is required.  A valid 


motor vehicle operator’s license is required at hire. 


Physical and Mental Abilities Required to Perform Essential Job Functions  


Language Ability and Interpersonal Communication 


• Ability to perform mid-level data analysis, including the ability to audit, deduce, assess, conclude and appraise.  


Requires discretion in determining and referencing such to established criteria to define consequences and develop 


alternatives. 


• Ability to classify, compute, and tabulate data and information, following a prescribed plan requiring the exercise of 


some individual judgment, with reference to established criteria/standards.  Ability to compare, count, differentiate, 


measure, and sort information, as well as assemble, copy, record, and transcribe data and information. 


• Ability to utilize a variety of advisory data and information, such as work orders; utility maps and diagrams; construction 


specifications; blueprints; lab records and reports; facilities operation and maintenance manuals; technical operating 


manuals; city and utility policies and procedures; guidelines; non-routine correspondence; and safety rules and manuals. 


• Ability to explain, demonstrate, and clarify to others within well-established policies, procedures, and standards, as well 


as the ability to follow specific instructions and respond to requests. 


• Ability to communicate effectively in writing and orally with customers, department and all levels of City personnel, 


plumbers, contractors, regulatory representatives, and the general public. 


Mathematical Ability 


• Ability to perform addition, subtraction, multiplication, and division; calculate percentages, fractions, and decimals; 


interpret and develop basic descriptive statistical reports; and may require the ability to perform mathematical operations 


with algebra. 


Judgment and Situational Reasoning Ability 


• Ability to carry out directives without direct supervision.  Ability to exercise independent judgment to apply facts and 


principles for developing approaches and techniques to problem resolution. 


• Ability to apply principles of influence systems such as leading and teaching.   


• Ability to exercise the judgment, decisiveness and creativity required in situations involving the evaluation of 


information against sensory and judgmental criteria. 


Physical Requirements 


• Ability to operate equipment and machinery such as impact tools, sewer line jet truck, back hoe, roller, loaders, dump 


truck, forklift, wood chipper, meters, hand and power tools, snow plows and blowers, lab instruments, excavation hand 


tools, and other equipment requiring monitoring multiple conditions and making multiple, complex, and rapid 


adjustments.  Ability to repair complex equipment and machinery.   


• Ability to coordinate eyes, hands, feet, and limbs in performing skilled movements such as operating heavy excavation 


and pumping equipment. 


• Ability to install and repair meters and perform coordinated activity, potentially in tight spaces. 


• Ability to exert regular and sustained heavy physical effort in very heavy work, typically involving some combination 


of climbing, balancing, stooping, kneeling, crouching, crawling, and lifting, carrying, pushing, shoveling and digging, 


and pulling heavy objects and materials in excess of 100 pounds. 







Apprentice Operator 


 


• Ability to recognize and identify degrees of similarities or differences between characteristics of color, shape, sound, 


texture, and odor associated with job-related objects, materials, and tasks. 


Environmental Adaptability 


• Ability to work under uncomfortable and potentially unsafe conditions that require exposure to severe environmental 


factors such as temperature variations, high winds, rain and snow, odors, toxic agents, noise, vibrations, wetness, dusts, 


machinery, explosives, gas, vehicular traffic, high voltage electrical currents, and disease.  This exposure may cause 


discomfort and presents a high risk of injury or death. 


The City of Stoughton is an Equal Opportunity Employer.  In compliance with the American with Disabilities Act, the City 


will provide reasonable accommodations to qualified individuals with disabilities and encourages both prospective and 


current employees to discuss potential accommodations with the employer. 


   


Employee’s Signature  Supervisor’s Signature 


   


Date  Date 


 







City of Stoughton 


Position Description 
 


Name:  Department: Utilities – Planning DivisionTechnical 


Operations Division 


Title: Utilities Engineering TechnicianAsset & 


Facilities Coordinator 


Pay Grade:  FLSA: N 


Date: JuneMarch, 202215 Reports To: Assistant Utilities DirectorOperations 


Superintendent 


 


Purpose of Position 


The purpose of this position is to coordinate inventory and construction management tasks for Stoughton Utilities, including 


contract maintenance, public bidding and requests for quotations, purchasing, warehousing, asset installation and retirement 


records, and inventory maintenance.  This position is also responsible for the coordination of the construction workorder 


process from start to finish, including participating in the development of initial estimates, project closeout, and billing. 


This position also coordinates Stoughton Utilities vehicle procurement and maintenance programs, participates in the 


maintenance of the utility Geographic Information System (GIS), participates in the operation and maintenance of the 


utilities Outage Management System (OMS), and participates in the operation and maintenance of the utilities Supervisory 


Control and Data Acquisition (SCADA) systems.  perform technical planning, development tasks, and coordinate utility 


construction and maintenance projects; to perform field duties including field engineering, electrical and water system 


construction and maintenance; and to serve as the Stoughton Utilities This position serves as the designated facilities 


coordinator manager.and the safety program coordinator.   


Essential Duties and Responsibilities  


The following duties are normal for this position.  These are not to be construed as exclusive or all-inclusive.  Other duties may 


be required and assigned. 


• Performs Coordinates a variety of technical planning tasks for maintenance and construction projects, such as preparing 


the preparation and distributing distribution of materials and equipment specifications, the preparation of work orders, 


and staking sheets, and the solicitation of ; soliciting materials and equipment proposals.  ; pCoordinates the purchasing 


and retiring retirement of materials.  ; and Assigns, schedules, and performsing basic engineering construction 


management tasks in the office and the field. 


 Coordinates electric, water, and wastewater projects from conception through construction, including design, materials 


issuance and retirement, inventory, pay request disbursement recommendations, and project close out.  Assigns costs 


and monitors job orders for material sheets and places data into the continuing property records systems.  Opens and 


closes construction and maintenance workorders, and allocates inventory.  Prepares forms, records, and written 


correspondence necessary to complete project file information.  Conducts yearend storeroom inventory of electric and 


water utility materials. 


• Coordinates and maintains contracts with vendors, including assisting with the evaluation of proposals, solicitation of 


bids and/or quotations, review and negotiation of contract terms, follow up action to address contract deficiencies or 


violations, and all other contract management requirements.  Participates in third-party service selection.  Coordinates 


contract execution. 


• Manages Stoughton Utilities Electric, Water, and Wastewater standard construction specifications.  Conducts periodic 


reviews of the specification documents to ensure they remain accurate and up to date, collaborating with utilities division 


supervisors to obtain input.  Shares construction specifications with project developers, engineering consultants, 


construction contractors, and others.   


• Participates in the planning of electric, water, and wastewater projects from conception through completion, in 


collaboration with the Distribution System Coordinator.  Makes recommendations for new development design and 


system expansion.  Coordinates customer construction estimating and new development design review process in the 


absence of the Distribution System Coordinator. 







Utilities Engineering TechnicianAsset & Facilities Coordinator 


 


• Assigns costs and monitors job orders for material sheets and places data into the GIS and financial continuing property 


records systems.  Opens and closes construction and maintenance workorders, and allocates inventory.  Prepares forms, 


records, and written correspondence necessary to complete project file information.  Follows all accounting procedures 


to track materials, supplies, and equipment.   


• Collaborates with utilities division supervisors to maintain material inventory and procurement, including general 


construction, maintenance, safety, and vehicle items.  Receives input and recommendations for material quality 


standards and specifications.  Coordinates the evaluation of proposals and material acquisition.    Coordinates the year-


end inventory process for electric, water, and wastewater utility materials, collaborating with utilities division 


supervisors through completion of the assignment. 


• Conducts construction project plan and specification reviews, including utility easement review.  Obtains, reviews, and 


approves as-built plans, quantities, and acceptance certifications for public utility infrastructure projects and land 


developments.  Obtains and reviews private building construction projects, including reviewing compliance with 


existing utility easements and assisting in the acquisition of new utility easements as necessary. 


• Processes customer inquiries and requests for maintenance related to the electric utility; investigates complaints and 


performs corrective measures, or schedules and assigns workorders to resolve customer issues.  Receives customer 


inquiries, writes and distributes work orders, provides information, and/or refers to appropriate person or agency for 


resolution.  Communicates with customers as required to resolve inquiries and complaints, and to provide notice of 


planned service interruptions. 


• Conducts plan and specification reviews.Obtains, reviews and approves as-built plans, quantities, and acceptance 


certifications.  Conducts plan and specification reviews.  Coordinates Stoughton Utilities operations with engineering 


consultants and contractors, and participates in third-party service selection 


• Collaborates within the Technical Operations Division to maintain and improve the utility Geographic Information 


System (GIS), including updating asset data and locations for the electric, water, and wastewater divisions, developing 


maps and mobile services for utility employees and engineering consultants, and completing basic maintenance of GIS 


software, databases, geometric networks, and add-on systems.  Collaborates with utility division supervisors to obtain, 


process, and verify data updates.  Develops system documentation. Participates on and reports system changes to the 


GIS team. 


• Collaborates within the Technical Operations Division to operate and maintain the Supervisory Control and Data 


Acquisition (SCADA) systems for the electric system and the water/wastewater system.  Participates in SCADA system 


maintenance projects, including system upgrades and improvements, security upgrades, remote facility networking 


projects, and OMS system integration.  Provides training to utility operators.  Develops system documentation.  


Participates on and reports system changes to the SCADA & OMS team. 


• Collaborates within the Technical Operations Division to operate and maintain the Outage Management System (OMS).  


Participates in OMS system maintenance projects, including system upgrades and improvements, security upgrades, 


and SCADA system integration.  Provides training to field employees on mobile system use, office employees on data 


collection and entry, and all other software operators.  Develops system documentation.  Participates on and reports 


system changes to the SCADA & OMS team.  


Process customer requests for maintenance and construction projects related to the electric utility.  Receives customer 


inquiries, writes and distributes work orders, provides information, and/or refers to appropriate person or agency for 


resolution. 


Assigns costs and monitors job orders for material sheets and places data into the continuing property records systems.  


Opens and closes construction and maintenance workorders, and allocates inventory.  Prepares forms, records, and 


written correspondence necessary to complete project file information.  Conducts yearend storeroom inventory of 


electric and water utility materials. 


Follows all accounting procedures to track materials, supplies, and equipment.  Maintains inventory and product cost 


information in GIS.  Works with the Utilities GIS Analyst to update utility facilities and equipment in the GIS database, 


as well as modify existing data to incorporate new infrastructure and developments. 







Utilities Engineering TechnicianAsset & Facilities Coordinator 


 


Purchase construction and maintenance materials for the electric and water divisions.  Purchases safety equipment for all 


Stoughton Utilities divisions; initiates and monitors their use.   


Directs water system engineering studies.  Prepares the annual drinking water Consumer Confidence Report. 


Assists in budget planning.  Participates in capital projects program development and implementation. 


Represents the Department on the Technical Advisory Committee.  Participates in public hearings and informational 


meetings regarding utility projects. 


• Serves as the Stoughton Utilities facilities coordinator for the administration building, wastewater treatment facility 


office, wells, and lift station buildings; schedules maintenance and repair efforts, mowing and landscaping services, 


snow removal, and janitorial services.  Responds to all operational requirements of the occupants. 


• Serves as the Stoughton Utilities facilities safety program coordinator.   Coordinates employee safety training programs 


to ensure regulatory compliance and maintains documentation of employee training history.  Conducts periodic job site 


inspections upon request and documents observations.  Manages written safety programs and conducts periodic reviews 


to ensure they remain up to date.  Serves as the Safety Team Leader and schedules and participates in periodic meetings.  


manager; schedules Rand responds to all operational safety requirements, requests, and concerns of the occupantsutility 


employees. 


• Maintains an ability to work a flexible schedule to accommodate planned activities outside of the typical work schedule, 


including but not limited to planned customer outages or system maintenance work, as well as planned seasonal schedule 


changes and tasks. 


• Complies with all Stoughton Utilities Safety programs, and guidelines and regulations set by the Public Service 


Commission of Wisconsin (PSCW), Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources (DNR), and the National Electric 


Safety Code (NESC). 


Additional Tasks and Responsibilities 


While the following tasks are necessary for the work of the unit, they are not an essential part of the purpose of this position 


and may also be performed by other unit members. 


• Serves as a backup for the monthly collection of electric and water meter readings for cycle billing purposes.  Maintains 


ability to work a flexible schedule in order to complete the monthly meter reading collection outside of standard working 


hours one day per month, typically on the first day of the month. 


• Serves as a backup to collect the daily meter readings for newly opened or closed customer accounts.  Processes all 


daily meter workorders.   


• Serves as the backup outage coordinator during routine work hours, including scheduled outages and service 


disconnections.   


• Provides emergency after-hours support to the Electric, Wastewater, and Water System Divisions, including basic 


system repair, traffic control and direction, site preparation and cleanup, equipment transport and operation, and other 


tasks as directed.  Provides local and regional emergency disaster response. 


• Maintains active certificate of appointment as a State of Wisconsin Notary Public.  


• Performs electrical system maintenance and construction tasks such as connecting new services and service upgrades, 


chipping brush, substation inspections, electric and/or water service disconnection and reconnection, etc. 


• Ensures that all safety standards are met, and complies with all Stoughton Utilities Safety Programs. 


• AssistsPerforms other all Sttoughton Utilities divisions as required, and performs other tasks as directed. 


•  


Minimum Training and Experience Required to Perform Essential Job Functions 


• High School diploma or equivalent, vocational/technical training in Civil Engineeringelectrical distribution, civil 


engineering, information technology, or related another field that provides relevant experience, three to five years utility 







Utilities Engineering TechnicianAsset & Facilities Coordinator 


 


engineering technician experience, or any combination of education and experience that provides equivalent knowledge, 


skills, and abilities.   


• Vocational or utility industry training in one or more of the following is preferred: facilities management, cost 


accounting, project management, Supervisory Control and Data Acquisition (SCADA), Geographic Information 


Systems (GIS), Outage Management Systems (OMS), basic networking and information technology. 


• Department of Natural Resources (DNR) Grade I-GD Waterworks Operator License. 


• A vValid motor vehicle operator’s license and commercial driver’s license is required.   


Physical and Mental Abilities Required to Perform Essential Job Functions 


Language Ability and Interpersonal Communication 


• Ability to perform mid-level data analysis including the ability to audit, deduce, assess, conclude, and appraise.  


Requires discretion in determining and referencing such to established criteria to define consequences and develop 


alternatives. 


• Ability to classify, compute, and tabulate and categorize data. and information, following a prescribed plan requiring 


the exercise of significant individual judgment.  analyze and categorize data and information to determine the 


relationship of the date with reference to established criteria.  Ability to compare, count, differentiate, measure, and/or 


sort information, as well as data, assemble, copy, record, and transcribe data and information.  Ability to classify, 


compute, tabulate and categorize data. 


• Ability to explain, demonstrate, and clarify to others within well-established policies, procedures, and standards, as well 


as the ability to follow specific instructions and respond to complex requests. 


• Ability to comprehend, interpret, approve, and utilize a variety of advisory and design data and information such as 


billing invoices, vehicle maintenance reports, applications for service, correspondence, capital plans, regulations and 


legal statutes, job authorization forms, purchase orders, ordinances, material sheets, staking sheets, computer software 


operating manuals, and safety rules and manuals.  Ability to utilize and interpret environmental, electrical engineering, 


water and wastewater engineering, computer software systems, geographical information systems, and accounting 


terminology. 


• Ability to advise, apply, and explain policies, procedures, and standards to specific situations. 


• Ability to utilize a variety of advisory data and information such as contractor pay requests, construction specifications, 


construction plans, service applications, sanitary sewer extension submittals, inspection reports, safety training reports, 


transformer test reports, inventory lists, construction standards, capital project plans, maps, ordinances, vehicle 


maintenance reports, technical hand books, electric service rules, and Wisconsin Statutes and Administrative Codes. 


• Ability to communicate orally and in writing and orally effectively with Department personnel, customers, department 


and all levels of City personnel, contractors, developers, engineering consultants, legal consultants, regulatory agency 


personnel, City employees, and law enforcementthe general public. 


• Ability to prepare letters, statements, notices, memos, narrative and statistical reports, construction documents, and 


other correspondence using prescribed formats according to accepted rules of punctuation, grammar, and style. 


Mathematical Ability 


• Requires the Aability to perform addition, subtraction, multiplymultiplication, and dividedivision; and to calculate 


percentages, fractions, and decimals, volumes, ratios and spatial relationships; .   


• Ability to interpret and develop basic detailed descriptive statistical reports; and the ability to perform mathematical 


operations with algebra.. 


Judgment and Situational Reasoning Ability 


• Ability to carry out directions without direct supervision.  Ability to exercise independent judgementjudgment to apply 


facts and principles for developing approaches and techniques to problem resolution. 







Utilities Engineering TechnicianAsset & Facilities Coordinator 


 


• Ability to apply principles of influence systems, such as leading, teaching, directing, planning, coordinating, and 


controlling. 


• Ability to use functional reasoning in performing diversified work activities. 


• Ability to exercise the judgment, decisiveness, and creativity required required in situations involving the evaluation of 


information against measurable or judgmental criteria, and involving the direction, control, and planning of an entire 


program or multiple programs.evaluation of information against sensory and/or judgmental criteria. 


•  


Physical Requirements 


• Ability to operate equipment and machinery requiring monitoring multiple conditions and making multiple, 


complexcomplex, and rapid adjustments, such as motor vehicles,  dump truck, front end loader, fork liftforklift, bucket 


truck, digger derrick, etc. 


• Ability to operate office equipment and machinery requiring simple but continuous adjustments, such as computer 


terminal, photocopier, paper cutter, hand punch, and telephone. 


• Ability to coordinate eyes, hands, feet and limbs in performing semi-skilled movements such as computer terminal 


usetyping, repair, and operation. 


• Ability to exert moderate heavy physical effort in moderate to heavy work, typically involving some combination of 


climbing, balancing, stooping, kneeling, crouching, and crawling, lifting, and carrying, pushing orand pulling over 100 


pounds. 


• Ability to recognize and identify degrees of similarities or differences between characteristics of colors color, and sound, 


taste, texture, and odors associated with job-related objects, materials, and tasks. 


Supervisory Skills 


• Ability to review the work of others and provide recommendations. 


Environmental Adaptability 


• Ability to work effectively in an office environment, as well as in the field under uncomfortable and potentially unsafe 


conditions that require exposure to under typically safe and comfortable conditions where exposure to construction site 


environmental factors such as temperature variations, winds, rain and snow, odors, toxic agents, noise, vibrations, 


wetness, dusts, machinery, and vehicular traffic hazards and electrical currents.  This exposure may  can cause 


discomfort and pose presents a risk of injury or death. 


The City of Stoughton is an Equal Opportunity Employer.  In compliance with the American with Disabilities Act, the City 


will provide reasonable accommodations to qualified individuals with disabilities and encourages both prospective and 


current employees to discuss potential accommodations with the employer. 


   


Employee’s Signature  Supervisor’s Signature 


   


Date  Date 


 


 


 







Utilities Engineering TechnicianAsset & Facilities Coordinator 


 


 







   


City of Stoughton 


Position Description 
 


Name:  Department: Stoughton Utilities 


Title: Assistant Utilities Director Pay Grade:  FLSA: Exempt 


Date: MayMarch, 20162022 Reports To: Stoughton Utilities Director 


 


Purpose of Position 


The purpose of this position is to assist the Utilities Director with the coordination and administration of Stoughton Utilities, 


and assume the responsibilities of the Director in his/hertheir absence.  This position will also implement, administer, and 


monitormanage information and operational technology solutions for all Stoughton Utilities divisions, and be responsible 


for the management of the Electric System, Technical Operations, Wastewater System, and Water System Divisions. 


Essential Duties and Responsibilities 


The following duties are normal for this position.  These are not to be construed as exclusive or all-inclusive.  Other duties may 


be required and assigned. 


• Acts as Utilities Director in their absence and maintains continuity of day-to-day and long-term utility vision and goals, 


and ensures utility operations continue without interruption.  


• In the absence of, or in cooperation with the Utilities Director, represents Stoughton Utilities in reporting to the Mayor, 


Common Council, Utilities Committee, and the City of Stoughton Leadership Team.  Participate in required Utilities 


Committee and Common Council meetings.  Prepares monthly status reports as requested, in addition to other scheduled 


and unscheduled presentations and reports.Supervises and directsManages the activities of the Electric System Division, 


Technical Operations Division, Wastewater System Division, and Water System Division personnel.  Establishes and 


maintains productivity reports, assigns and reviews work, coordinates continuing education/training and professional 


development programs, schedules and approves overtime and leave, reviews work performed for accuracy and 


effectiveness, completes performance evaluations, etc. 


• Manages Stoughton Utilities information and operational technology systems, including internal and customer-facing 


software solutions, automation platforms, data networking and communications systems, computing hardware and 


peripheral devices, mobile device management, and user account management. 


• In the absence of, or in cooperation with the Utilities Director, represents Stoughton Utilities in reporting to the Mayor, 


Common Council, Utilities Committee, and the City of Stoughton Leadership Team.  Participates in required Utilities 


Committee and Common Council meetings.  Prepares monthly meeting agendas and notices, status reports, and other 


scheduled and unscheduled presentations and reports. 


• In the absence of, or in cooperation with the Utilities Director, represents Stoughton Utilities in participation and 


communications with industry partners including WPPI Energy and Municipal Electric Utilities of Wisconsin (MEUW), 


lobbying organizations, regulatory agencies, legal representation, and elected officials.  Serves as the Alternate Director 


on the WPPI Energy Board of Directors. 


• Provides input regarding the activities of all divisions of Stoughton Utilities.  Establishes and maintains productivity 


reports, coordinates continuing education/training, provides assistance regarding professional development programs, 


assists with the preparation of performance evaluations, etc.   


• WorksIn conjunction with the Utilities Director and the Director of Human Resources & Risk Management , makes 


recommendations regarding and participates in staff hiring and promotions, employee feedback and coaching, 


disciplinary actions, personnel evaluations, staff development, and terminations.  


• In the absence of, or in cooperation with the Utilities Director, represents Stoughton Utilities in reporting to the Mayor, 


Common Council, Utilities Committee, and the City of Stoughton Leadership Team.  Participate in required Utilities 


Committee and Common Council meetings.  Prepares monthly status reports as requested, in addition to other scheduled 


and unscheduled presentations and reports. 







Assistant Utilities Director 


 


• Manage the institutional knowledge of Stoughton Utilities.  Coordinates team meetings, peer discussions, and on-the-


job training, and promotes multigenerational communications. 


• Receives and responds to high-level customer inquiries and complaints, including those from elected officials and the 


Wisconsin Public Service Commission of Wisconsin, and performs resulting corrective action and/or policy revisions. 


• Manages technology inventory to include procurement and disposal.  Assists with preparation and monitors annual 


budget, 10-year capital projects program, and 20-year capital operations program.  Maintains contacts with vendors, 


prepares proposal requests, receives and evaluates proposals, prepares purchase orders, and acquires material as 


required. 


• Ensures technology documents/certificates such as product registrations, software licensing and contracts, SSL 


certificates, maintenance agreements, service contracts, etc. related to technology operations and/or technology services 


are evaluated, processed, and maintained. 


• Manages phone and data network system operations.  Installs & maintains hardware; adds and maintains user accounts 


for SU staff and external contractors; assigns rights and access; assesses and reports upon operational status; performs 


system monitoring and performance analysis and tuning; troubleshoots system hardware, software, networks, and 


operating and system management systems, etc. 


• Establishes and maintains a well-run phone and data network system by planning and executing the selection, 


installation, configuration, and testing of PC and server hardware, software, wired and wireless LAN and WAN 


networks, telephone system hardware, internal and external telephone lines and circuits, and operating and system 


management systems; and defining system and operational policies and procedures. 


• Manages utility cybersecurity protection efforts and Ssecures phone and data network systems by developing system 


access, monitoring, control, and evaluation procedures; establishing, implementing, and testing disaster recovery 


policies and procedures; monitoring network input and output; and reviewing application and performance logs. 


• Configures and maintains workstations, software, printers, desktop and mobile devices, and other peripherals. Provides 


written and verbal instruction and education to end users on computer/device use, and problem solving.Manages utility 


physical security protection efforts and secures utility facilities by developing facility access, monitoring, control, and 


evaluation procedures, and reviewing physical security protections. 


• Manages the utility Geographic Information System (GIS), including asset data for the electric, water, and wastewater 


system divisions, developing maps and services for utility employees and engineering consultants, and completing 


advanced maintenance of software, databases, geometric networks, and add-on systems.  Develops system 


documentation. Coordinates and reports system changes to the GIS team. 


• Manages the Supervisory Control and Data Acquisition (SCADA) systems and the Outage Management System (OMS).  


Manages system maintenance projects, including system upgrades and improvements, security upgrades, remote facility 


networking projects, and system integrations.  Provides training to utility operators.  Develops system documentation.  


Coordinates and reports system changes to the SCADA & OMS team. 


• Manages Stoughton Utilities billing, metering, collections, and customer service, and ensures compliance with all 


regulatory requirements. 


• Manages Stoughton Utilities customer outreach campaigns, long-term strategic planning of customer outreach and 


education efforts, public event planning, and other education and outreach efforts. 


• Manages technical planning tasks for maintenance and construction projects, construction and development project 


plans and specifications, and system outage and reliability reporting. 


• Manages the Stoughton Utilities facilities coordination for the administration building, wastewater treatment facility 


office, wells, and lift station buildings.  Responds to all operational requirements of the occupants. 


• Manages the Stoughton Utilities safety program coordination.   Participates on the Safety Team.  Responds to all safety 


requirements, requests, and concerns of utility employees.Designs, develops, and maintains web-based applications 







Assistant Utilities Director 


 


including public websites and internal applications, including graphic design and programming.  Supports existing web-


based applications programmed in ASP.NET, VB.NET, HTML/XHTML, CSS, and JavaScript. 


•  


• Designs, develops, and maintains database solutions for internal applications.  Supports existing databases in Microsoft 


Access, Microsoft SQL, ESRI ArcSDE geodatabase, MySQL, and XML formats. 


• Designs, develops, and maintains custom programming and database solutions for internal and customer-facing 


applications and websites.  Supports existing custom programming in VB, VB.NET, and C#.NET. 


• Collaborates with the Asset & Facilities Coordinator to maintain technology inventory and procurement.  Provides input 


and prepares recommendations for material quality standards and specifications.  Assists in the evaluation of proposals 


and material acquisition.  Cooperates in the year-end inventory process. 


• Assists with the preparation of the Utilities 20-year Capital Improvement Program, including conducting reviews of 


system reliability and determining system improvements.  Assists with the preparation and ongoing monitoring of the 


Utilities annual budget. 


• Complies with all Stoughton Utilities Safety programs, and guidelines and regulations set by the Public Service 


Commission of Wisconsin, Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources, and the National Electric Safety Code. 


• Responds to planned and unplanned customer engagement opportunities and significant event response, including but 


not limited to large-scale outages, severe weather events, and drinking water or sanitary sewer emergencies.Oversees 


Geographic Information System (GIS) systems, data, and projects.  Provides recommendations and assists in the 


coordination of system improvements. 


Additional Tasks and Responsibilities 


While the following tasks are necessary for the work of the unit, they are not an essential part of the purpose of this position and 


may also be performed by other unit members. 


• Greet and direct visitors.  Answer, direct, and route telephone calls and messages. 


• Assist other division personnel as required. 


• Attends and assists with utility-sponsored public events, prepares public educational materials and participates in 


outreach efforts, and conducts system demonstrations and tours. 


• Assists all other Stoughton Utilities divisions as required.Develop and implement effective customer service operations 


and positive customer relations, as well as assist with public education. 


• Develop and implement a public information program to promote a positive Utility environment in the City and service 


territory. 


• Works with MEUW to ensure that all safety standards are met, and complies with all Stoughton Utilities Safety 


Programs. 


•  


• Works collectively with staff to maintain Stoughton Utilities facilities, assists all Stoughton Utilities divisions as 


required, and performs other tasks as directed. 


Minimum Training and Experience Required to Perform Essential Job Functions  


• Associate’s or VocationalBachelor’s degree in Computer Science or Network Administrationengineering or business 


management, or a related field.   with aA minimum of ten to fifteen years of responsible electric, water, and wastewater 


utilityies experience.  A track record of successful management, including a minimum of five years of and supervisory 


experience.  , oOr any combination of education and experience that provides equivalent knowledge, skills, and abilities. 







Assistant Utilities Director 


 


• Significant knowledge of computer software used in the utility environment, including experience with Supervisory 


Control and Data Acquisition (SCADA), Geographic Information Systems (GIS), Outage Management Systems (OMS), 


and Customer Information Systems (CIS).   


• Significant knowledge of Microsoft Office applications (Word, Excel, Access, Outlook, and PowerPoint) including 


scripting and automation.  Significant knowledge of Microsoft desktop and server operating systems, Exchange and 


SQL Server platforms, and Hyper-V virtualization systems. 


• Knowledge of scripting and programming concepts and commonly used coding languages.   


• Valid motor vehicle operator’s license is required. 


Physical and Mental Abilities Required to Perform Essential Job Functions 


Language Ability and Interpersonal Communication 


• Requires the aAbility to perform mid-levelcomplex data analysis, including the ability to audit, deduce, assess, 


conclude, and appraise, analyze, and interpret an extensive variety of technical information and governmental 


regulations.  Requires discretion in determining and referencing such to established criteria to define consequences and 


develop alternatives. 


• Requires the aAbility to provide first line supervision.  Ability to persuade, convincecreate consensus and collaboration, 


and train others.  Ability to advise and provide interpretation regarding the application of policies, procedures, and 


standards to specific situations. 


• Ability to classify, compute, and tabulate data and information, following a prescribed plan requiring the exercise of 


significant individual judgment.  Ability to compare, count, differentiate, measure, and sort information, as well as 


assemble, copy, record, and transcribe data and information. 


• Requires the aAbility to utilize a wide variety of reference, descriptive and/or advisory data and information such as 


billing reports and statements; financial reports and statements; budgets; accounting and billing systems; computer 


software operating manuals; city and utility policies and procedures; guidelines; non-routine correspondence; Public 


Service Commission of Wisconsin rules, regulations, and tariffs; Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources rules and 


regulations; State of Wisconsin  legal statutes; and safety rules and manuals. 


• reports and records, studies, logs, timesheets, service rules, manuals, handbooks, procedures, guidelines, payments due 


lists, engineering studies, capital projects plans, Administrative Codes, State Statutes, Federal Register, and non-routine 


correspondence. 


• Ability to explain, demonstrate, and clarify to others within established policies, procedures, and standards, as well as 


the ability to follow specific instructions and to respond to complex requests where established policies and procedures 


may not exist. 


• Ability to record and deliver information, explain procedures, give and follow instructions, use and interpret civil, 


environmental, and electrical engineering and accounting terminology. 


• Ability to communicate effectively in writing and orally with Utilities division supervisors and other staff, customers, 


department and all levels of  City personnel, the Mayor, City Alderpersons, other City officialsinformation technology 


and systems consultants and contractors, software engineers, engineering and legal consultants, financial auditors, 


regulatory agenciess, congressional delegateselected and appointed government officials, and the general public, 


vendors and contractors, and others verbally and in writing. 


• Ability to prepare letters, statements, notices, memos, narrative and statistical reports, and other correspondence using 


prescribed formats according to accepted rules of punctuation, grammar, and style. 


Supervisory Skills 


• Ability to assign, supervise, review, develop, assessconduct performance reviews, and implement procedures 


recommendations to improve the work of others. 







Assistant Utilities Director 


 


• Ability to make decisions recommendations regarding the selection, training, discipline, advancement, and discharge 


of employees. 


• Ability to assist in the preparation of meaningful performance reviews and participate in the delivery of such reviews. 


Mathematical Ability 


• ARequires the ability to perform addition, subtraction, multiplication, and division; calculate percentages, fractions, and 


decimals; interpret and develop detailed descriptive statistical reports; and the ability to perform mathematical 


operations make use of the principles ofwith algebra, trigonometrygeometry, and descriptive statistics. 


• Ability to design and produce graphical representations of complex financial data. 


  







Assistant Utilities Director 


 


Judgment and Situational Reasoning Ability 


• Ability to carry out directives without direct supervision.  Ability to exercise independent judgment to apply facts and 


principles for developing approaches and techniques to problem resolution. 


• Requires the aAbility to apply principles of influence systems such as supervision, managing, supervising, leading, 


teaching, directing, planning, coordinating, disciplining, and controlling.  Ability to exercise independent judgment to 


apply facts and principles for developing approaches and techniques to problem resolution. 


• Ability to use functional reasoning and apply rational judgment in performing diversified work activities. 


  


• Requires the aAbility to exercise the judgment, decisiveness, and creativity required in situations involving the 


evaluation of information against measurable criteria, and involving the direction, control and planning of an entire 


program or multiple programs. 


Physical Requirements 


• Ability to operate equipment and machinery requiring monitoring multiple conditions and making multiple, complex, 


and rapid adjustments, such as motor vehicles. 


• Ability to operate a motor vehicle. 


• Ability to maintain and operate all Stoughton Utilities technologies. 


• Ability to operate office equipment and machinery requiring simple but continuous adjustments, such as computer 


terminal, calculator/adding machine, remittance processing system, cash register, postage meter, photocopier, paper 


cutter, hand punch, and telephone, and other items used in performing essential functions. 


• Ability to coordinate eyes, hands, feet, and limbs in performing skilled movements such as typing, electronics repair, 


and installation of computing hardware and cabling. 


• Ability to perform coordinated activity around live electricity, potentially in tight spaces. 


• Ability to exert very moderate physical effort in sedentary moderate to light heavy work, typically involving some 


combination of climbing, balancing, stooping, kneeling, crouching,  and crawling, lifting, and carrying, pushing, and or 


pulling over 50 pounds. 


• Ability to recognize and identify degrees of similarities or differences between characteristics of color, sound, taste, 


texture, and odor associated with job-related objects, materials, and tasks. 


Judgment and Situational Reasoning Ability 


• Requires the ability to apply principles of influence systems such as supervision, managing, leading, teaching, directing, 


planning, disciplining, and controlling.  Ability to exercise independent judgment to apply facts and principles for 


developing approaches and techniques to problem resolution. 


• Requires the ability to exercise the judgment, decisiveness, and creativity required in situations involving the direction, 


control and planning of an entire program or multiple programs. 


Environmental Adaptability 


• Ability to work effectively in an office environment and in public meetings under safe and comfortable conditions, as 


well as in the field under under safe and uncomfortable and potentially unsafe conditions where that require exposure 


to environmental factors such as temperature variations, odors, noise, vibrations, machinery, and high voltage electrical 


currents.  This exposure may cause discomfortis minimal and poses little topresents no a risk of injury or death. 


•  


• Ability to work effectively in an office environment, at construction job sites, and in public meetings. 







Assistant Utilities Director 


 


The City of Stoughton is an Equal Opportunity Employer.  In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, the City 


will provide reasonable accommodations to qualified individuals with disabilities and encourages both prospective and 


current employees to discuss potential accommodations with the employer. 


___________________________________ ___________________________________ 


Employee’s Signature Supervisor’s Signature 


___________________________________ ___________________________________ 


Date Date 


 







City of Stoughton 


Position Description 
 


Name:  Department: Utilities – Wastewater System Division 


Title: Advanced Basic Certified Wastewater Operator Pay Grade:  FLSA: N 


Date:  JanuaryMarch, 202217 Reports To: Utilities Wastewater System Supervisor 


 


Purpose of Position 


The purpose of this position is to maintain and operate the water pumping, storage, and distribution systems, and the 


wastewater treatment facilities and sanitary sewer collection system for the City of Stoughton, with a focus on wastewater 


collection and treatment operations.  This position is identical to other Basic Certified Operator positions in terms of job 


scope and required qualifications and certifications, however may differ in day-to-day duties and assignments.   


Essential Duties and Responsibilities  


The following duties are normal for this position.  These are not to be construed as exclusive or all-inclusive.  Other duties may 


be required and assigned. 


• Provides safe drinking water conditions to protect Stoughton Utilities customers, via obtaining and testing routine water 


samples, monitoring and recording well pump operations and storage tank volumes, monitoring and testing water and 


wastewater quality conditions, and monitoring and recording data and operations on the water/wastewater SCADA 


system. 


• Ensures environmentally -responsible wastewater treatment and discharge via obtaining and testing routine wastewater 


treatment samples throughout the treatment process, monitoring and recording plant operations and tank volumes, 


monitoring and testing wastewater influent and effluent quality conditions, and monitoring and recording data and 


operations on the water/wastewater SCADA system. 


• Repairs and maintains water distribution mains, pumps, valves, curb stops, services, and hydrants.  Installs and 


maintains water service connections. Performs routine maintenance to other water system infrastructure and equipment.  


Exercises system valves and flushes hydrants.   


• Repairs and maintains sanitary sewer collection mains and pumps.  Performs routine maintenance to sanitary sewer 


collection system infrastructure and equipment.  Flushes, televises, cleans, and repairs the sanitary sewer collection 


system. 


• Repairs and maintains Performs routine maintenance to pumps, motors, valves, flow meters, screens, and all other 


equipment at the wastewater treatment facility.and completes other work orders as assigned. 


• Monitors and records pump operations, chemical treatment, and flow levels. 


• Performs operational tasks at the wastewater treatment facilities.  Operates all equipment necessary for complete and 


effective wastewater treatment and system operations. 


• Performs routine maintenance to pumps, motors, valves, flow meters, and completes other work orders as assigned. 


• Obtains and prepares samples of drinking water and wastewater treatment, and performs laboratory activities analysis 


including sample testing and calculations for biochemical oxygen demand (BOD), suspended solids, pH levels, volatile 


solids, phosphorous, ammonia, fecal coliform, chlorine residual, fluoride content, industrial effluents, glucose glutamic 


acid, and other analysis as directed, and/or delivers samples to outside laboratories.  Prepares graphs, charts, and reports 


from sample data, and reports out findings.  Makes adjustments to drinking water and wastewater treatment operations 


and calculates amount of chemical additives according to test results.etc. 


• Televises, cleans, and repairs sanitary sewer collection system. 


• Prepares, or assists with the preparation of monthly water pumpage and wastewater treatment reports, and submits to 


the Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources (DNR). 


• Performs plumbing tasks throughout treatment plant.  Replaces pipes and valves.   







Advanced Basic Certified Wastewater Operator 


 


• Monitors and records data, and makes adjustments to the wastewater/water SCADA System. 


• Maintains, calibrates, and repairs testing equipment.  Maintains knowledge regarding testing requirements for 


wastewater treatment facilities.  Cleans and maintains lab equipment.  Prepares and sends EPA samples as directed. 


• Operates and maintains the water/wastewater SCADA system to monitor system health, record data and equipment 


readings, operate controls, evaluate system performance, and investigate trouble conditions. 


• Responds to customer inquiries and complaints and performs corrective measures.  Communicates with customers as 


required to resolve inquiries and complaints, and to provide notice of planned system outages. 


• Performs work tasks at active job sites to plan, direct, and oversee system and equipment maintenance and repair tasks.  


Works onsite to recommend operational changes and safety improvements, and to evaluate safety compliance. 


• Attends and assists with utility-sponsored public events, prepares public educational materials and participates in 


outreach efforts, conducts system demonstrations and tours, and gives safety and conservation presentations. 


• Completes and maintains work orders, time sheets, preflight checklists, tailgate meetings, inventory forms, and all other 


division paperwork, and maintains records and prepares reports as directed.  Conducts system inspections and records 


findings. 


• Maintains GIS software applications and databases, including service connection details, flushing and exercising 


maintenance records, televising records, equipment maintenance tasks, and other records as directed. 


• Maintains an ability to work a flexible schedule to accommodate planned activities outside of the typical work schedule, 


including but not limited to planned customer outages or system maintenance work, as well as planned seasonal schedule 


changes and tasks. 


• Maintains an ability to serve on standby on-call duty, scheduled on a rotational basis within the Water and Wastewater 


System Divisions.  Maintains an ability whenever possible to respond to utility emergencies and assist those serving 


on-call.   


• Complies with all Stoughton Utilities safety programs, and guidelines and regulations set by the Wisconsin Public 


Service Commission of Wisconsin (PSCW).  Ensures full Water and Wastewater System Divisions compliance of the 


same. 


Receives and responds to customer inquiries and complaints; makes recommendations and performs corrective action in 


response. 


Serves on-call status for wastewater/water operations. 


Complies with all Stoughton Utilities Safety Programs. 


Additional Tasks and Responsibilities 


While the following tasks are necessary for the work of the unit, they are not an essential part of the purpose of this position and 


may also be performed by other unit members. 


• Disconnects water service to customers upon receipt of disconnection workorders due to delinquency or safety 


violations, and at customers’ request.  Conducts periodic reviews of disconnected properties for connection evaluation. 


• Installs water meters at customer premises, including temporary and permanent services.  Assists the meter technician 


with the maintenance and repair of water meters.  Reconnects water services and transfers water meters. 


• Maintains grounds and facilities, such as painting surfaces, ice and snow removal, custodial tasks, basic carpentry, basic 


commercial electrical maintenance, basic plumbing, and similar tasks as assigned. 


• Provides emergency after-hours support to the Electric System Division, including basic system repair, traffic control 


and direction, site preparation and cleanup, equipment transport and operation, groundsman duties, and other tasks as 


directed.  Provides local and regional emergency disaster response. 


• Performs routine vehicle maintenance. 







Advanced Basic Certified Wastewater Operator 


 


• Performs other Stoughton Utilities tasks as directed.Performs custodial tasks. 


• Paints surfaces. 


• Removes Ice and snow from walkways and drives. 


• Performs carpentry tasks as needed. 


• Assist with water and electric operations as required. 


Minimum Training and Experience Required to Perform Essential Job Functions 


• High School diploma or equivalent, and four one or moreto six years water and/or wastewater operator experience.   


• Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources (DNR) Wastewater Treatment Plant Operator – Advanced Basic 


certification for the Stoughton Wastewater Treatment facilities. 


• Wisconsin DNR Grade 1 Waterworks Operator Certification with subclasses G and D for the Stoughton Waterworks. 


• Ability to maintain the required continuing education credits for the above DNR Operator operator certifications- 


Advanced certification. 


• Commercial driver’s license with tanker and air brake certification required. 


  







Advanced Basic Certified Wastewater Operator 


 


Physical and Mental Abilities Required to Perform Essential Job Functions  


Language Ability and Interpersonal Communication 


• Ability to perform mid-level data analysis, including the ability to audit, deduce, assess, conclude and appraise.  


Requires discretion in determining and referencing such to established criteria to define consequences and develop 


alternatives. 


• Ability to classify, compute, and tabulate data and information, following a prescribed plan requiring the exercise of 


some individual judgementjudgment, with reference to established criteria/standards.  Ability to compare, count, 


differentiate, measure, and sort information, as well as assemble, copy, record, and transcribe data and information. 


• Ability to utilize a variety of advisory data and information, such as work orders; utility maps and diagrams; construction 


specifications; blueprints; lab records and reports; facilities operation and maintenance manuals; technical operating 


manuals; city and utility policies and procedures; guidelines; non-routine correspondence; Public Service Commission 


of Wisconsin rules, regulations, and tariffs; Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources rules and regulations; and 


safety rules and manuals. 


• Ability to explain, demonstrate, and clarify to others within well-established policies, procedures, and standards, as well 


as the ability to follow specific instructions and respond to requests. 


• Ability to communicate effectively in writing and orally with customers, department and all levels of City personnel, 


plumbers, contractors, regulatory representatives, and the general public.Ability to analyze and categorize data and 


information in order to determine the relationship of the data with reference to established criteria/standards.  Ability to 


compare, count, differentiate, measure and/or sort data, as well as assemble, copy, record and transcribe data and 


information.  Ability to classify, compute and tabulate data. 


• Ability to explain, demonstrate and clarify to others within well established policies, procedures and standards, as well 


as the ability to follow specific instructions and respond to simple requests from others. 


• Ability to utilize a variety of advisory data and information such as lab reports, flow charts, electrical diagrams, 


architectural drawings, manhole reports, soil sample reports, wastewater treatment plant operation and maintenance 


manuals, maps, vehicle maintenance reports, DNR rules and regulations, procedures and guidelines. 


• Ability to communicate effectively with customers, Department personnel, construction workers, engineers, DNR 


personnel, and vendor representatives. 


Mathematical Ability 


• Ability to perform addition, subtraction, multiplication, and division; calculate percentages, fractions, and decimals; 


interpret and develop basic descriptive statistical reports; and may require the ability to perform mathematical operations 


with fractions and algebra.Ability to calculate percentages, fractions, decimals, volumes, ratios, present values, and 


spatial relationships.  


• Ability to interpret basic descriptive statistical reports. 


Judgment and Situational Reasoning Ability 


• Ability to carry out directives without direct supervision.  Ability to exercise independent judgementjudgment to apply 


facts and principles for developing approaches and techniques to problem resolution. 


• Ability to apply principles of influence systems such as leading and teaching.   


• Ability to exercise the judgment, decisiveness and creativity required in situations involving the evaluation of 


information against sensory and judgmental criteriaAbility to use functional reasoning and apply rational judgment in 


performing diversified work activities. 


• Ability to exercise the judgment, decisiveness, and creativity required in situations involving the evaluation of 


information against sensory and/or judgmental criteria. 


Physical Requirements 







Advanced Basic Certified Wastewater Operator 


 


• Ability to operate equipment and machinery requiring monitoring multiple conditions and making multiple complex 


and rapid adjustments, such as impact tools, sewer line jet truck, back hoe, roller, loaders, dump truck, forklift, wood 


chipper, meters, hand and power tools, snow plows and blowers, cement mixer, lab instruments, mechanic’s hand tools, 


voltmeter, welder, and excavation hand tools, and other equipment requiring monitoring multiple conditions and making 


multiple, complex, and rapid adjustments.  Ability to repair complex equipment and machinery..   


• Ability to repair complex equipment and machinery.  


• Ability to coordinate eyes, hands, feet, and limbs in performing skilled movements such as operating heavy excavation 


and pumping  equipment. 


• Ability to install and repair meters and perform coordinated activity, potentially in tight spaces. 


• Ability to exert regular and sustained heavy physical effort in moderate veryto heavy work, typically involving some 


combination of climbing, and balancing, stooping, kneeling, crouching, crawling, and lifting, carrying, pushing, 


shoveling and digging, and pulling heavy objects and materials in excess ofover 100 pounds. 


• Ability to operate SCBA equipment as required in the Stoughton Utilities Facilities. 


• Ability to recognize and identify degrees of similarities or differences between characteristics of colors, forms shape, 


sounds, texture, and odors, and textures associated with job-related objects, materials, and ingredientstasks. 


  







Advanced Basic Certified Wastewater Operator 


 


Environmental Adaptability 


• Ability to work under moderately unsafe and uncomfortable and potentially unsafe  conditions where that require 


exposure to severe environmental factors such as temperature variations, odors, high winds, rain and snow, odors, toxic 


agents, noise, vibrations, wetness,  machinerydusts, machinery, explosives, gas, vehicular traffic, high voltage electrical 


currents, and disease.   and/or dustThis exposure  may cause or causing discomfort and presents a high and where there 


is a risk of injury requiring extended recoveryor death. 


  







Advanced Basic Certified Wastewater Operator 


 


The City of Stoughton is an Equal Opportunity Employer.  In compliance with the American with Disabilities Act, the City 


will provide reasonable accommodations to qualified individuals with disabilities and encourages both prospective and 


current employees to discuss potential accommodations with the employer. 


   


Employee’s Signature  Supervisor’s Signature 


   


Date  Date 


 







City of Stoughton 


Position Description 


 
Name:  Department: Utilities – Water System Division 


Title: Basic Certified Water Operator Pay Grade:  FLSA: N 


Date: MayMarch, 202218 Reports To: Utilities Water System Supervisor 


 


Purpose of Position 


The purpose of this position is to maintain and operate the water pumping, storage, and distribution systems, and the 


wastewater treatment facilities and sanitary sewer collection system for the City of Stoughton, with a focus on water 


distribution operations.  This position is identical to other Basic Certified Operator positions in terms of job scope and 


required qualifications and certifications, however may differ in day-to-day duties and assignments.  This position requires 


a Grade 1 Waterworks Operator Certification with subclasses G and D from the Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources 


(WDNR).   


Essential Duties and Responsibilities  


The following duties are normal for this position.  These are not to be construed as exclusive or all-inclusive.  Other duties may 


be required and assigned. 


• Provide safe drinking water conditions to protect Stoughton Utilities customers, via obtaining and testing routine water 


samples, monitoring and recording well pump operations and storage tank volumes, monitoring and testing water and 


wastewater quality conditions, and monitoring and recording data and operations on the water/wastewater SCADA 


system. 


• Ensures environmentally -responsible wastewater treatment and discharge via obtaining and testing routine wastewater 


treatment samples throughout the treatment process, monitoring and recording plant operations and tank volumes, 


monitoring and testing wastewater influent and effluent quality conditions, and monitoring and recording data and 


operations on the water/wastewater SCADA system. 


• Repairs and maintains water distribution mains, pumps, valves, curb stops, services, and hydrants.  Installs and 


maintains water service connections. Performs routine maintenance to other water system infrastructure and equipment 


as directed.  Exercises system valves and flushes hydrants. 


• Repairs and maintains sanitary sewer collection mains and pumps.  Performs routine maintenance to sanitary sewer 


collection system infrastructure and equipment.  Flushes, televises, cleans, and repairs the sanitary sewer collection 


system. 


• Repairs and maintains pumps, motors, valves, flow meters, screens, and all other equipment at the wastewater treatment 


facility. 


• Obtains and prepares samples of drinking water and wastewater treatment, and performs laboratory analysis including 


sample testing and calculations for biochemical oxygen demand (BOD), suspended solids, pH levels, volatile solids, 


phosphorous, ammonia, fecal coliform, chlorine residual, fluoride content, industrial effluents, glucose glutamic acid, 


and other analysis as directed, and/or delivers samples to outside laboratories.  Prepares graphs, charts, and reports from 


sample data, and reports out findings.  Makes adjustments to drinking water and wastewater treatment operations and 


calculates amount of chemical additives according to test results. 


• Tests water meters both in the field and in the shop according to Public Service Commission rules.  Investigates zero/low 


meter readings and reports findings.  Installs new, and replaces existing water meters. 


• Prepares, or assists with the preparation of monthly water pumpage report and wastewater treatment reports, and submits 


to the Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources (DNR).  Prepares, or assists with the preparation of water meter 


change program reports. 


• Maintains, calibrates, and repairs testing equipment.  Maintains knowledge regarding testing requirements for 


wastewater treatment facilities.  Cleans and maintains lab equipment.  Prepares and sends EPA samples as directed. 







Basic Certified Water Operator 


 
• Operates the water/wastewater SCADA system to monitor system health, record data and equipment readings, operate 


controls, evaluate system performance, and investigate trouble conditions. 


• Responds to customer inquiries and complaints and performs corrective measures.  Communicates with customers as 


required to resolve inquiries and complaints, and to provide notice of planned system outages. 


• Performs work tasks at active job sites to plan, direct, and oversee system and equipment maintenance and repair tasks.  


Works onsite to recommend operational changes and safety improvements, and to evaluate safety compliance. 


• Attends and assists with utility-sponsored public events, prepares public educational materials and participates in 


outreach efforts, conducts system demonstrations and tours, and gives safety and conservation presentations. 


• Completes and maintains work orders, time sheets, preflight checklists, tailgate meetings, inventory forms, and all other 


division paperwork, and maintains records and prepares reports as directed.  Conducts system inspections and records 


findings. 


• Maintains GIS software applications and databases, including service connection details, flushing and exercising 


maintenance records, televising records, equipment maintenance tasks, and other records as directed. 


• Maintains an ability to work a flexible schedule to accommodate planned activities outside of the typical work schedule, 


including but not limited to planned customer outages or system maintenance work, as well as planned seasonal schedule 


changes and tasks. 


• Maintains an ability to serve on standby on-call duty, scheduled on a rotational basis within the Water and Wastewater 


System Divisions.  Maintains an ability whenever possible to respond to utility emergencies and assist those serving 


on-call.   


• Complies with all Stoughton Utilities safety programs, and guidelines and regulations set by the Wisconsin Public 


Service Commission of Wisconsin (PSCW).  Ensures full Water and Wastewater System Divisions compliance of the 


same.Operates Utilities Geographic Information Systems (GIS) software; updates asset and property records via 


computerized systems as required. 


• Field notifies customers regarding construction and disconnection of service. 


• Disconnects water service to customers with delinquent accounts, or upon customer request. 


• Receives and responds to customer inquiries and complaints; recommends and performs corrective action as needed. 


• Maintains material inventories; recommends material purchases. 


• Serves on call status for the wastewater/water operations. 


• Monitors and records data and operations on the water/wastewater SCADA system. 


• Assists with wastewater and electric operations as required. 


• Complies with all Stoughton Utilities Safety programs and Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources (DNR) 


guidelines and regulations. 


Additional Tasks and Responsibilities 


While the following tasks are necessary for the work of the unit, they are not an essential part of the purpose of this position and 


may also be performed by other unit members. 


• Disconnects water service to customers upon receipt of disconnection workorders due to delinquency or safety 


violations, and at customers’ request.  Conducts periodic reviews of disconnected properties for connection evaluation. 


• Installs water meters at customer premises, including temporary and permanent services.  Assists the meter technician 


with the maintenance and repair of water meters.  Reconnects water services and transfers water meters. 


• Maintains grounds and facilities, such as painting surfaces, ice and snow removal, custodial tasks, basic carpentry, basic 


commercial electrical maintenance, basic plumbing, and similar tasks as assigned. 







Basic Certified Water Operator 


 
• Provides emergency after-hours support to the Electric System Division, including basic system repair, traffic control 


and direction, site preparation and cleanup, equipment transport and operation, groundsman duties, and other tasks as 


directed.  Provides local and regional emergency disaster response. 


• Performs routine vehicle maintenance. 


• Performs other Stoughton Utilities tasks as directed.Maintains grounds and facilities, such as painting surfaces, ice and 


snow removal, custodial tasks, basic carpentry, or similar tasks as assigned. 


• Performs other Stoughton Utilities tasks as directed. 


Minimum Training and Experience Required to Perform Essential Job Functions 


• High School diploma or equivalent with and three one to fiveor more years water and/or wastewater operator plumbing 


or water utility experience.,  


• Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources (DNR) Wastewater Treatment Plant Operator – Basic certification for the 


Stoughton Wastewater Treatment facilities. 


• Wisconsin DNR or any combination of education and experience that provides equivalent knowledge, skills, and 


abilities.  A Grade 1 Waterworks Operator Certification with subclasses G and D from the Wisconsin Department of 


Natural Resources (WDNR) for the Stoughton Waterworks, and a commercial driver’s license with tanker and airbrake 


certification are required.   


• Ability to maintain the required continuing education credits for the above DNR operator certifications. 


• Commercial driver’s license with tanker and air brake certification required. 


  







Basic Certified Water Operator 


 
Physical and Mental Abilities Required to Perform Essential Job Functions 


Language Ability and Interpersonal Communication 


• Ability to perform mid-level data analysis, including the ability to audit, deduce, assess, conclude and appraise.  


Requires discretion in determining and referencing such to established criteria to define consequences and develop 


alternatives. 


• Ability to classify, compute, and tabulate data and information, following a prescribed plan requiring the exercise of 


some individual judgementjudgment, with reference to established criteria/standards.  Ability to compare, count, 


differentiate, measure, and sort information, as well as assemble, copy, record, and transcribe data and information. 


• Ability to utilize a variety of advisory data and information, such as work orders; utility maps and diagrams; construction 


specifications; blueprints; lab records and reports; facilities operation and maintenance manuals; technical operating 


manuals; city and utility policies and procedures; guidelines; non-routine correspondence; Public Service Commission 


of Wisconsin rules, regulations, and tariffs; Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources rules and regulations; and 


safety rules and manuals. 


• Ability to explain, demonstrate, and clarify to others within well-established policies, procedures, and standards, as well 


as the ability to follow specific instructions and respond to requests. 


• Ability to communicate effectively in writing and orally with customers, department and all levels of City personnel, 


plumbers, contractors, regulatory representatives, and the general public.Ability to analyze and categorize data and 


information in order to determine the relationship of the data with reference to established criteria/standards.  Ability to 


compare, count, differentiate, measure and/or sort data, as well as assemble, copy, records and transcribe data.  Ability 


to classify, compute and tabulate data. 


• Ability to explain, demonstrate and clarify to others within well established policies, procedures and standards, as well 


as the ability to follow specific instructions and respond to simple requests. 


• Ability to utilize a variety of advisory data and information such as well readings, meter records, DNR reports and 


bulletins, water samples, distribution equipment reports, charts, policy manuals, maintenance records, WDNR rules and 


regulations, vehicle manuals, equipment manuals, water main diagrams and maps. 


• Ability to communicate effectively with Department personnel, customers, contractors, engineers, City employees, law 


enforcement, and WDNR personnel. 


Mathematical Ability 


• Ability to perform addition, subtraction, multiplication, and division; calculate percentages, fractions, and decimals; 


interpret and develop basic descriptive statistical reports; and may require the ability to perform mathematical operations 


with fractions and algebra.Ability to add, subtract, multiply and divide; calculate percentages, fractions and decimals.  


Ability to interpret basic descriptive statistical reports. 


Judgment and Situational Reasoning Ability 


• Ability to carry out directives without direct supervision.  Ability to exercise independent judgementjudgment to apply 


facts and principles for developing approaches and techniques to problem resolution. 


• Ability to apply principles of influence systems such as leading and teaching.   


• Ability to exercise the judgment, decisiveness and creativity required in situations involving the evaluation of 


information against sensory and judgmental criteriaAbility to use functional reasoning in performing diversified work 


activities. 


• Ability to exercise judgment, decisiveness, and creativity required in situations involving the evaluation of information 


against sensory and/or judgmental criteria. 


Physical Requirements 


• Ability to operate equipment and machinery such as impact tools, sewer line jet truck, back hoe, roller, loaders, dump 


truck, forklift, wood chipper, meters, hand and power tools, snow plows and blowers, lab instruments, excavation hand 







Basic Certified Water Operator 


 
tools, and other equipment requiring monitoring multiple conditions and making multiple, complex, and rapid 


adjustments.  Ability to repair complex equipment and machinery.   


• Ability to coordinate eyes, hands, feet, and limbs in performing skilled movements such as operating heavy excavation 


and pumping equipment. 


• Ability to install and repair meters and perform coordinated activity, potentially in tight spaces. 


• Ability to exert regular and sustained heavy physical effort in very heavy work, typically involving some combination 


of climbing, balancing, stooping, kneeling, crouching, crawling, and lifting, carrying, pushing, shoveling and digging, 


and pulling heavy objects and materials in excess of 100 pounds. 


• Ability to recognize and identify degrees of similarities or differences between characteristics of color, shape, sound, 


texture, and odor associated with job-related objects, materials, and tasks.Ability to carry out directives without direct 


supervision. 


• Ability to operate equipment and machinery requiring monitoring multiple conditions and making multiple, complex 


and rapid adjustments, such as backhoe, dump truck, end loaders, sewer jet machine, meter test bench, air hammers, 


blacktop rollers, compactors, saws, hand tools, generators, portable pumps, chemical pumps, mowers, freezing/thawing 


machines, voltmeter, locators, jacks, shovels, picks, axes, etc.  Ability to repair complex equipment and machinery. 


• Ability to coordinate eyes, hands, feet, and limbs in performing skilled movements involved in repair of water 


distribution equipment. 


• Ability to exert heavy physical effort in moderate to heavy work, typically involving some combination of climbing, 


balancing, stooping, kneeling, crouching, crawling, lifting, and carrying, pushing and pulling over 100 pounds. 


• Ability to recognize and identify degrees of similarities and differences between characteristics of color, sound, taste, 


texture and odor associated with job-related objects, materials and ingredients. 


  







Basic Certified Water Operator 


 
Environmental Adaptability 


• Ability to work under uncomfortable and potentially moderately unsafe and uncomfortable conditions where that require 


exposure to severe environmental factors such as temperature variations, odorshigh winds, rain and snow, odors, toxic 


agents, noise, vibrations, wetness, dusts, disease, machinery, explosives, gas, vehicular traffic, high voltage and 


electrical currents, and disease.  This exposure may cause discomfort where there isand presents a high a risk of injury 


or death. 


•  


  







Basic Certified Water Operator 


 
The City of Stoughton is an Equal Opportunity Employer.  In compliance with the American with Disabilities Act, the City 


will provide reasonable accommodations to qualified individuals with disabilities and encourages both prospective and 


current employees to discuss potential accommodations with the employer. 


 


   


Employee’s Signature  Supervisor’s Signature 


   


Date  Date 


 







   
City of Stoughton 


Position Description 
 


Name:  Department: Utilities –Technical Operations Division 


Title: Utilities  Billing & Metering 
SpecialistSupervisor 


Pay Grade:  FLSA: ExemptN 


Date: FebruaryMarch, 202216 Reports To: Assistant Utilities DirectorTechnical 
Operations Supervisor 


 


Purpose of Classification: 


The purpose of position is to supervise and perform specialized billing, metering, collections, and customer service tasks 
for Stoughton Utilities, including but not limited to: preparation and distribution of daily and monthly utility billing 
statements, maintenance of customer billing and metering records, review of electric and water meter data, and specialized 
customer service as it relates to municipal utility billing and collections, and general customer service as it relates to 
municipal utility operations and activities.   


This position is responsible for the supervision of Stoughton Utilities billing, metering, and collections personnel and daily 
operations, projects and development, and strategic planning, under the direction of the Assistant Utilities Director. 


Essential Duties and Responsibilities: 
The following duties are normal for this position.  These are not to be construed as exclusive or all-inclusive.  Other duties may 
be required and assigned. 


 Supervises the billing, metering, and collections activities and personnel within the Technical Operations Division.  
Establishes and maintains productivity reports, assigns and reviews work, recommends continuing education/training 
and professional development programs, schedules and approves overtime and leave, reviews work performed for 
accuracy and effectiveness, assists in the completion of performance evaluations, etc. 


 Supervises the completion ofPerform all tasks necessary to prepare and distribute accurate and timely billing statements 
for electric, water and wastewater service, and all other billed charges, including sStormwater uUtility charges for the 
City of Stoughton.  Supervises and/or pPerforms all tasks necessary to ensure proper accounting and reporting of billed 
charges. 


 Prepare all systems used to obtain scheduled electric and water meter readings.  Once obtained, review all meter readings 
for accuracy and process for customer billings.   


 Supervises the maintenance Maintain of accurate customer billing and metering information in the customer information 
system (CIS).  Supervises and/or pPerforms periodic account reviews for proper rate classifications and application of 
utility rate and rule tariffs, customer setups, responsible parties, meter installation details, tax exempt status, and all 
other reviews necessary to ensure accuracy. 


 Supervises the pProcessing of all electric and water meter installations, removals, and replacements, and completes the 
records of such actions in the CIS and on customer accounts.  Verifiesy all metering setups to ensure accuracy, including 
.  Perform field verification as necessarydirected.  Creates new accounts in the CIS upon completion of newly 
constructed metered services.  


 Supervises the utility’s water Cross-Connection Control Program, in accordance with Wisconsin Department of Natural 
Resources (DNR) requirements.  Assists meter technician with maintaining program records, producing reports and 
statistics, and issuing customer notifications. 


 Supervises the utility water and electric meter inventory, including the oversight of metering standardization programs, 
meter procurement and disposal, and inventory reporting. 


 Supervises the delinquent account collection methods and policies, including customer outreach and notification, 
service disconnections, small claims court, and outside collection agencies.  Reviews and implements recommendations 
for new collection methods and policies. 







Utilities Billing Specialist& Metering Supervisor 
 
 Supervises the annual fall disconnection reporting in accordance with Wisconsin Public Service Commission of 


Wisconsin (PSCW) requirements. 


 Leads in-house training and support of CIS to other division personnel; creates/modifies customer reporting templates 
upon request.  Creates new and maintains existing CIS and metering procedures and instructional documentation.  
Maintains CIS and metering policies and procedures manuals. 


  


 Prepares all systems used to obtain scheduled electric and water meter readings.  Once obtained, reviews all meter 
readings for accuracy and processes readings for customer billings.   


 Calculates the monthly Power Cost Adjustment Clause (PCAC), updates the CIS for billing purposes, and prepares 
monthly reports for power supply and regulatory purposes. 


 Calculates account billing corrections, including back-billings and customer credits, and submits the calculations for 
approval and processing.  Prepares explanatory letters and spreadsheets for customer and regulatory review.  Maintains 
records of all corrections and supporting documentation, and submits annual report to the Wisconsin Public Service 
CommissionPSCW. 


 Reviews and approves customer account corrections not related to billed charges, including payment adjustments, 
deposit refunds, late penalty reversals, balance transfers, and submits the corrections for processing.  


 Verify and maintain property owner and tenant data for all new and existing accounts.  Review and consolidate customer 
and account numbers as appropriate. 


 Maintains utility rate and rules tariffs.  Updates rate information in the CIS and on the Stoughton Utilities website, and 
maintains physical copies of all tariffs for customer review. 


 Prepares and processes customer applications for residential and commercial utility service, contractor applications for 
new and temporary service, work orders, complaint forms, meter change out forms and reports, letters and other 
communications to and from customers and property owners, and more. 


 Coordinate customer outreach and marketing efforts.  Organize, create, and prepare monthly billing statement inserts 
and messages regarding energy efficiency, optional programs, utility education, etc. 


 Provide in-house training and support of CIS to other division personnel; create/modify reports upon request. 


 Prepares and issues reports, including but not limited to customer data, meter data, consumption statistics, financial 
statistics, trends and behavioral analysis, and inspection records, and reports findings to division supervisors, financial 
employees, third-party auditors, and regulatory agencies as directed. 


 Receives written and verbal requests, inquiries, and complaints;, coordinates actions required;, and responds to inquirer.  
Maintain files of customer complaints and inquiries.   


 Attends and assists with utility-sponsored public events, prepares public educational materials and participates in 
outreach efforts, conducts system demonstrations and tours, and gives electrical safety presentations. 


 Compliesy with all Stoughton Utilities safety programs. 


Additional Tasks and Responsibilities: 
While the following tasks are necessary for the work of the unit, they are not an essential part of the purpose of this position and 
may also be performed by other unit members. 


 Assist with event planning including but not limited to: public power week, vendor/contractor meetings, utilities 
committee meetings , etc. 


 Assist with preparation of application materials for utility recognition, such as Reliable Public Power Provider (RP3), 
safety awards, etc. 


 Greet and direct visitors.  Answer, direct, and route telephone calls and messages.  Provide information and/or reports 
from customer account data as requested. 







Utilities Billing Specialist& Metering Supervisor 
 
 Perform related office tasks such as filing, faxing, photocopying, computer operation, maintenance of mailing 


equipment, and procurement of general office supplies. 


 Process customer payments received through various physical and electronic methods, including but not limited to, 
banking lockbox, online E-PayMy Account payments, Autopay (ACH and recurring credit card), night deposit box, in- 
person, energy assistance, etc. 


 Ensures performance of and may Pperforms visits to City Hall, local post office, and local bank branch to receive and 
process incoming and outgoing postal and interdepartmental mail and deliver the daily banking deposit.  Sorts and 
distributes received postal and interdepartmental mail to their intended recipients.  


 Provide back up forCEnsures completion and may completes various front-office tasks, including but not limited to: 
processing customer payments, preparation distribution of committee meeting packets, preparation of daily bank 
deposits, organizational filing, negotiating Ddeferred Ppayment Aagreements, reviewing and completing customer 
corrections and adjustments, issuing customer refunds, processing utility accounts receivable, balancing utility billing 
general ledger, etc. 


 Receive and process incoming and outgoing postal and interdepartmental mail.  


 Provide emergency after-hours phone support as needed during widespread outages and other emergencies. 


 Assist other division personnel as required.  Provide assistance during monthly disconnection processes, annual 
financial audit, and public events. 


 Assist electric, wastewater and water divisions as required. 


 Perform other Stoughton Utilities tasks as directed. 


 Provide emergency after-hours phone support as needed during widespread outages and other emergencies. 


  







Utilities Billing Specialist& Metering Supervisor 
 
Minimum Training and Experience Required to Perform Essential Job Functions: 


 High school diploma, associate degree in  accounting or related, with 5 or more -years utility billing, collections, 
metering, and customer service  experience required, or any combination of education and experience that provides 
equivalent knowledge, skills, and abilities.  A valid driver’s license is required. 


 One or more years electric metering experience and basic water metering experience required. 


 Vocational or industry training in supervision and/or leadership, with demonstrated experience in leading others in a 
professional environment. 


 A vValid driver’smotor vehicle operator’s license is required. 


Physical and Mental Abilities Required to Perform Essential Job Functions: 


Language Ability and Interpersonal Communication 


 Ability to perform mid-level data analysis, including the ability to audit, deduce, assess, conclude, and appraise.  
Requires discretion in determining and referencing such to established criteria to define consequences and develop 
alternatives. 


 Ability to provide first line supervision.  Ability to create consensus and collaboration, and train others.  Ability to 
advise and provide interpretation regarding the application of policies, procedures, and standards to specific situations. 


 Ability to classify, compute, and tabulate data and information, following a prescribed plan requiring the exercise of 
significant individual judgment.  Ability to compare, count, differentiate, measure, and sort information, as well as . 
Ability to assemble, copy, record, and transcribe data and information. 


 Ability to explain, inform, demonstrate and clarify to others within well established policies, procedures and standards, 
as well as the ability to follow specific instructions and respond to simple requests from others. 


 Ability to utilize a wide variety of advisory data and information, such as work orders; customer billing information; 
billing statements; meter data output and reports; computer billing journals; computer software operating manuals; city 
and utility policies and procedures; guidelines; non-routine correspondence; Wisconsin Public Service Commission of 
Wisconsin rules, regulations, and tariffs; Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources rules and regulations; State of 
Wisconsin legal statutes,; and safety rules and manuals. 


 Ability to explain, demonstrate, and clarify to others within well-established policies, procedures, and standards, as well 
as the ability to follow specific instructions and respond to complex requests. 


 Ability to communicate in writing and orally with customers, department and all levels of City personnel, financial 
auditors, regulatory agencies, and the general public. 


 Ability to prepare letters, statements, notices, memos, narrative and statistical reports, and other correspondence using 
prescribed formats according to accepted rules of punctuation, grammar, and style. 


Supervisory Skills 


 Ability to assign, supervise, review, develop, assess, and implement recommendations to improve the work of others. 


 Ability to make recommendations regarding the selection, training, and discipline, advancement, and discharge of 
employees. 


 Ability to assist in the preparation of meaningful performance reviews, and participate in the delivery of such reviews. 


  







Utilities Billing Specialist& Metering Supervisor 
 
Mathematical Ability: 


 Ability to perform addition, and subtractsubtraction, multiplication,y and divisionde;, and calculate percentages, 
fractions, and decimals; interpret and develop detailed descriptive statistical reports; and the ability to perform 
mathematical operations with fractions and algebra. 


Judgment and Situational Reasoning Ability: 


 Ability to carry out directives without direct supervision.  Ability to exercise independent judgementjudgment to apply 
facts and principles for developing approaches and techniques to problem resolution. 


 Requires the aAbility to apply principles of influence systems such as supervisionsupervising, leading, teaching, 
planning, coordinating, disciplining, and controlling.   


 Ability to use functional reasoning and apply rational judgment in performing diversified work activities. 


 Ability to exercise the judgment, decisiveness, and creativity required in situations involving the evaluation of 
information against measurable criteria, and involving the direction, control, and planning of an entire program or 
multiple programs.. 


Physical Requirements: 


 Ability to operate office equipment and machinery requiring simple but continuous adjustments, such as computer 
terminal, calculator/adding machine, cash register, postage meter, typewriter, photocopier, paper cutter, hand punch, 
telephone, and other items used in performing essential functions.and two-way radio. 


 Ability to coordinate eyes, hands, feet, and limbs in performing semi-skilled movements such as typing. 


 Ability to exert very moderate physical effort in sedentary to light work, typically involving some combination of 
stooping, kneeling, crouching and crawling, lifting, carrying, pushing and pulling. 


Environmental Adaptability: 
 Ability to work under safe and comfortable conditions where exposure to environmental factors is minimal and poses 


little to no risk of injury. 


The City of Stoughton is an Equal Opportunity Employer.  In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, the 
County will provide reasonable accommodations to qualified individuals with disabilities and encourages both prospective 
and current employees to discuss potential accommodations with the employer. 


   


Employee’s Signature  Supervisor’s Signature 


   


Date  Date 


 







   


 


City of Stoughton 


Position Description 


 


Name:  Department: Utilities – Technical Operations Division 


Title: 
Utilities Collections Customer Service 


Technician 
Pay Grade:  FLSA: N 


Date: AprilMarch, 202215 Reports To: 
Utilities Technical OperationsBilling & 


Metering Supervisor 


 


Purpose of Position 


The purpose of this position is to perform collections and customer service and collections tasks for Stoughton Utilities 


including, but not limited to: maintenance of customer records, assisting phone and walk-in customers, collection of 


delinquent accounts through existing methods and policies, researching and recommending new collection methods and 


policies, coordinating processing customer deposits and deferred payment agreements, and handling a variety of customer 


payments.  In addition, this position will also perform general administrative tasks.  specialized customer service as it relates 


to utilities delinquent account collections. 


Essential Duties and Responsibilities 


The following duties are normal for this position. These are not to be construed as exclusive or all-inclusive. Other duties may 


be required and assigned. 


• Greets and directs visitors.  Answers, directs, and routes telephone calls and messages, and email inquiries received 


through the general customer service address.   


• Assists customers with verbal and written customer service inquiries, including general account inquiries, high-bill 


complaints, and questions about utility policies.  Documents all inquiries and complaints. Prepares work orders, 


customer inquiry/complaint forms, and service applications. 


• Processes payments received in-person at the front counter and issues receipts. Processes and posts payments received 


via mail and curbside deposit box.  Processes returned payments due to insufficient funds or other causes. 


• Coordinates payment of delinquent accounts through existing methods and policies, including: proactive customer 


outreach, printed delinquency notifications, service disconnections, small claims court, and outside collection agencies.  


Researches and recommends new collection methods and policies. 


• Coordinates Negotiates and maintains customer deferred payment arrangementsagreements for eligible customers 


pursuant to applicable Stoughton Utilities rule tariffs, including: negotiation, regular reviews for arrangement agreement 


default, and issuance of follow-up notification/disconnection as necessary.  Follows Wisconsin Public Service 


Commission of Wisconsin (PSCW) requirements for customer notification following rejection of customer-proposed 


agreements. 


• Coordinates Calculates and collects customer deposits, including: proactive customer outreach, regular reviews of 


account eligibility, printed notices, account status updates, and negotiation of deferred payment arrangement 


agreementsnegotiation. 


• Coordinates Facilitates the electric and water service disconnection process.  Reviews all accounts for eligibility, 


processes creates printed and automated telephone warning notices, processes disconnect and reconnect workorders, 


and negotiates payments for reconnection. 


• Processes bankruptcies,  updates and maintains bankruptcy files and customer’s accounts, and processes and files court 


documents seeking reimbursementas necessary to file creditor claims. 


• Processes returned payments due to insufficient funds or other causes.  Provides written notices, refers accounts to the 


police department, and participates in court proceedings as necessary. 







Utilities Collection Customer Service Technician 


 


 


• Completes daily visits to City Hall, local post office, and local bank branch to receive and process incoming and 


outgoing postal and interdepartmental mail and deliver the daily banking deposit.  Sorts and distributes received postal 


and interdepartmental mail to their intended recipients. 


• Processes small claims collections through the court system.  Coordinates filings, notifications, and court appearances. 


• Processes new customer applications. Reviews credit history, verifies Verifies identities, researches prior account status 


as applicable, and calculates industrial, commercial and residential deposits as applicable.  Verifies and maintains 


property owner data for all new and existing accounts. 


• Maintains customer accounts.  Conducts periodic reviews for balance corrections and transfers. Conducts periodic 


review for uncollectable debt write-offs.  Conducts periodic reviews of unclaimed funds, and assists with submission 


of account information. 


• Maintains historical collections-related financial data. 


• Maintains medical/protective services list.  Issues annual renewal notices and processes customer response. 


• Reviews and implements regulatory requirements as they relate to customer collections.  Review collection and 


bankruptcy law changes and recommend policy changes as needed. 


• Receives written and verbal requests, inquiries, and complaints; coordinates actions required; and responds to inquirer.  


Maintains files of customer complaints and inquiries.  


• Greets and directs visitors.  Answers, directs, and routes telephone calls and messages.  Provides information and/or 


reports from customer account data as requested. 


• Complies with all Stoughton Municipal Utilities Safety Programs. 


• Perform other Stoughton Utilities tasks as directed. 


Additional Tasks and Responsibilities 


While the following tasks are necessary for the work of the unit, they are not an essential part of the purpose of this position and 


may also be performed by other unit members.  


• Participates in the creation and distribution of informational mailings.  Assists with public education. 


• Attends and assists with utility-sponsored public events, prepares public educational materials, and participates in 


outreach efforts. 


• Performs related office tasks such as filing, faxing, photocopying, typing, and computer operation. 


• Receives and processes incoming and outgoing postal and interdepartmental mail.   


• Assists with event planning including but not limited to: public power week, vendor/contractor meetings, open houses, 


etc.. 


• Provides back-up for various front-office tasks, including but not limited to: processing customer payments, processing 


monthly auto-pay (ACH) and recurring credit card, daily final customer billing, preparation of committee meeting 


packets, etc.. 


• Assists electric, wastewater and water divisions as required. 


• Provide emergency after-hours phone support as needed during widespread outages and other emergencies. 


 Perform other Stoughton Utilities tasks as directed. 


•  


Minimum Training and Experience Required to Perform Essential Job Functions  







Utilities Collection Customer Service Technician 


 


 


• High school diploma, vocational training in bookkeeping, accounting or related, with 24- years of utility customer 


service or account collections experience required, or any combination of education and experience that provides 


equivalent knowledge, skills, and abilities.   


• A vValid drivers motor vehicle operator’s license is required. 


Physical and Mental Abilities Required to Perform Essential Job Functions: 


Language Ability and Interpersonal Communication 


• Ability to classify, compute and tabulate data and information, following a prescribed plan requiring the exercise of 


some judgment. Ability to compare, count, differentiate, measure and sort information. Ability to assemble, copy, record 


and transcribe data and information. 


• Ability to explain, inform, demonstrate and clarify to others within well-established policies, procedures and standards, 


as well as the ability to follow specific instructions and respond to simple requests from others. 


• Ability to utilize a wide variety of advisory data and information, such as work orders, customer billing information, 


billing statements, computer billing journals, computer software operating manuals, city and utility policies and 


procedures, guidelines, non-routine correspondence, Wisconsin Public Service Commission of Wisconsin rules and 


regulations, State of Wisconsin legal statutes, Stoughton municipal code of ordinances, bankruptcy laws, and safety 


manuals. 


• Ability to communicate in writing and orally with customers, department and all levels of City personnel, bank 


personnel, title company representatives, bankruptcy and small claims court personnel, and the general public. 


• Ability to prepare letters, statements, notices, memos, narrative and statistical reports, and other correspondence using 


prescribed formats according to accepted rules of punctuation, grammar, and style. 


Mathematical Ability 


• Ability to perform addition, and subtraction, multiply multiplication, and dividedivision;, and calculate percentages, 


fractions, and decimals; and interpret and develop basic descriptive statistical reports. 


Judgment and Situational Reasoning Ability 


• Ability to apply facts and principles for developing approaches and techniques to problem resolution. 


• Ability to use functional reasoning and apply rational judgment in performing diversified work activities. 


• Ability to exercise the judgment, decisiveness and creativity required in situations involving the evaluation of 


information against measurable criteria. 


  







Utilities Collection Customer Service Technician 


 


 


Physical Requirements  


• Ability to operate office equipment and machinery requiring simple but continuous adjustments, such as computer 


terminal, calculator/adding machine, cash register, postage meter, typewriter, photocopier, paper cutter, hand punch, 


telephone, and two-way radioother items used in performing essential functions. 


• Ability to coordinate eyes, hands, feet and limbs in performing semi-skilled movements such as typing. 


• Ability to exert very moderate physical effort in sedentary to light work, typically involving some combination of 


stooping, kneeling, crouching and crawling, lifting, carrying, pushing and pulling. 


Environmental Adaptability 


• Ability to work under safe and comfortable conditions where exposure to environmental factors is minimal and poses 


little to no risk of injury. 


The City of Stoughton is an Equal Opportunity Employer. In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, the 


County will provide reasonable accommodations to qualified individuals with disabilities and encourages both prospective 


and current employees to discuss potential accommodations with the employer. 


 


   


Employee’s Signature  Supervisor’s Signature 


   


Date  Date 


 







 
City of Stoughton 


Position Description 


Name:  Department: Utilities – Technical Operations 


DivisionStoughton Utilities 


Title: Utilities Distribution System 


CoordinatorOperations Superintendent 


Pay Grade:  FLSA: EN 


Date: JanuaryMarch, 202215 Reports To: Assistant Utilities Director 


___________________________________________________________________________ 


Purpose of Position 


The purpose of this position is to supervise, direct and coordinate Electric System Division, Meter Division, Planning 


Division and Water Division, personnel and operations, assist and coordinate other Stoughton Utilities Divisionsthe strategic 


planning and design of developments, projects, and system improvements, and supervise, direct and coordinate Stoughton 


Utilities in the absence of the Utilities Director.  This position is also responsible for the coordination of a variety of technical 


planning tasks from project preparation through completion. 


This position also participates in the maintenance of the utility Geographic Information System (GIS), participates in the 


operation and maintenance of the utilities Outage Management System (OMS), and participates in the operation and 


maintenance of the utilities Supervisory Control and Data Acquisition (SCADA) systems.  This position serves as the 


primary system outage coordinator for planned routine system interruptions as well as during major system events. 


Essential Duties and Responsibilities  


The following duties are normal for this classification.  These are not to be construed as exclusive or all-inclusive.  Other duties 


may be required and assigned. 


• Supervises, directs and coordinates Electric System, Meter, Planning Division and Water Division operations and assist 


and coordinates other Stoughton Utilities Divisions.  Coordinates a variety of technical planning tasks for maintenance 


and construction projects, such as the preparation of customer construction estimating, new development design review 


processes, preparation and distribution of materials and equipment specifications, and preparation of work orders and 


staking sheets.  Assigns, schedules, and performs construction management tasks in the office and the field.Prepares 


and monitors budgets, plans and goals.  Develops, implements and eEvaluates policies and procedures.  Conducts and 


implementsParticipates in operational studies and assists in the implementation of recommendations.   


• Coordinates the planning of electric, water, and wastewater projects from conception through completion, in 


collaboration with the Asset & Facilities Coordinator.  Solicits comments and recommendations for new development 


design and system expansion from utilities division supervisors.  Prepares construction cost estimates for proposed 


projects and developments, and coordinates project scheduling with developers and contractors.     


• Collaborates with the Asset & Facilities Coordinator to review construction project plans and specifications to ensure 


compliance with utility specifications.  Upon project completion, reviews and approves as-built plans, quantities, and 


acceptance certifications for public utility infrastructure projects and land developments.  Maintains construction project 


files and manages their long-term storage to ensure regulatory compliance. 


• Conducts construction project plan and specification reviews, including utility easement review.  Obtains, reviews, and 


approves as-built plans, quantities, and acceptance certifications for public utility infrastructure projects and land 


developments.  Obtains and reviews private building construction projects, including reviewing compliance with 


existing utility easements and assisting in the acquisition of new utility easements as necessary.  Files records of 


easement updates with the County Register of Deeds. 


• Collaborates with the Asset & Facilities Coordinator to maintain Stoughton Utilities Electric, Water, and Wastewater 


construction specifications.  Participates in the periodic review of the specification documents to ensure they remain 


accurate and up to date.  Shares construction specifications with project developers, engineering consultants, 


construction contractors, and others. 


• Coordinates system outages, planned and unplanned, and service disconnections during routine work hours, acting as 


the primary outage coordinator and point of contact.  Receives outage reports from customer service staff and outage 







Utilities Operations SuperintendentDistribution System Coordinator 


 
management system.  Monitors locations of active outages and dispatches field crews as needed to address simultaneous 


outage locations.  Reports outage status updates to utility management and customer service.  Obtains outage report 


forms from field employees and logs outage duration and extent.  Compiles reliability reporting and statistics in 


accordance with regulatory and industry standards. 


 Maintains and improves utility service quality standards.  Directs all electric and water operations and  


• Processes customer inquiries and requests for maintenance related to the electric utility; investigates complaints and 


performs corrective measures, or schedules and assigns workorders to resolve customer issues.  Receives customer 


inquiries, writes and distributes work orders, provides information, and/or refers to appropriate person or agency for 


resolution.  Communicates with customers as required to resolve inquiries and complaints, and to provide notice of 


planned service interruptions. 


• Aassists with wastewater operations and Stoughton Utilities development programs.  Ensures compliance with local, 


State and Federal mandates. 


• Collaborates within the Technical Operations Division to maintain and improve the utility Geographic Information 


System (GIS), including updating asset data and locations for the electric, water, and wastewater divisions, developing 


maps and mobile services for utility employees and engineering consultants, and completing basic maintenance of GIS 


software, databases, geometric networks, and add-on systems.  Collaborates with utility division supervisors to obtain, 


process, and verify data updates.  Develops system documentation. Participates on and reports system changes to the 


GIS team. 


• Collaborates within the Technical Operations Division to operate and maintain the Supervisory Control and Data 


Acquisition (SCADA) systems for the electric system and the water/wastewater system.  Participates in SCADA system 


maintenance projects, including system upgrades and improvements, security upgrades, remote facility networking 


projects, and OMS system integration.  Provides training to utility operators.  Develops system documentation.  


Participates on and reports system changes to the SCADA & OMS team. 


• Collaborates within the Technical Operations Division to operate and maintain the Outage Management System (OMS).  


Participates in OMS system maintenance projects, including system upgrades and improvements, security upgrades, 


and SCADA system integration.  Provides training to field employees on mobile system use, office employees on data 


collection and entry, and all other software operators.  Develops system documentation.  Participates on and reports 


system changes to the SCADA & OMS team.  


• Maintains an ability to work a flexible schedule to accommodate planned activities outside of the typical work schedule, 


including but not limited to planned customer outages or system maintenance work, as well as planned seasonal schedule 


changes and tasks. 


• Complies with all Stoughton Utilities Safety programs, and guidelines and regulations set by the Public Service 


Commission of Wisconsin (PSCW), Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources (DNR), and the National Electric 


Safety Code (NESC). 


• Serves as purchasing agent for the Electric Utility and Water Utility and other Stoughton Utilities Divisions when 


required.    Supervises all equipment, stock material and vehicle purchases, mandated inspections, and maintenance for 


Stoughton Utilities. 


• Supervising, directing, developing Develops and implementing implements capital project programs, engineering 


studies, utilities safety programs, , and Facilities facilities Management maintenance programs, SCADA, PCB program, 


substation maintenance program, tree trimming program, well abandonment and wellhead protection programs, cross 


connection control program, and other programs.  Provides direction and, assistance , coordinate and assigns activities 


withto other divisions, consultants, auditors, regulatory agencies, customers, etc. 


• Supervises, directs and cCoordinates electric, metering and waterStoughton Utilities capital projects upon request.  


Prepares and implements long-range plans and assists in the oversight of the work completed by contracted oversees 


consultant’s work. 


Additional Tasks and Responsibilities 







Utilities Operations SuperintendentDistribution System Coordinator 


 
While the following tasks are necessary for the work of the unit, they are not an essential part of the purpose of this position 


and may also be performed by other unit members. 


• Supports the Stoughton Utilities safety program coordinator.   Participates in periodic meetings of the Safety Team.  


Responds to all safety requirements, requests, and concerns of utility employees. 


• Serves as a backup for the monthly collection of electric and water meter readings for cycle billing purposes.  Maintains 


ability to work a flexible schedule in order to complete the monthly meter reading collection outside of standard working 


hours one day per month, typically on the first day of the month. 


• Serves as a backup to collect the daily meter readings for newly opened or closed customer accounts.  Processes all 


daily meter workorders.   


• Provides emergency after-hours support to the Electric, Wastewater, and Water System Divisions, including basic 


system repair, traffic control and direction, site preparation and cleanup, equipment transport and operation, and other 


tasks as directed.  Provides local and regional emergency disaster response. 


• Maintains active certificate of appointment as a State of Wisconsin Notary Public.  


• Performs other Stoughton Utilities tasks as directed. 


Minimum Training and Experience Required to Perform Essential Job Functions 


• High School diploma or equivalent, vocational/technical training Associate degree in electrical distribution, Public 


Works, Ccivil Engineeringengineering, information technology, Electrical Engineering or related another field that 


provides relevant experience, a minimum of tenthree to five years electric utility experience,  including supervisory 


experience and data base/spread sheet experience or any combination of education and experience that provides 


equivalent knowledge, skills, and abilities.   


• Vocational or utility industry training in one or more of the following is preferred: electric distribution system design, 


cost accounting, project management, Supervisory Control and Data Acquisition (SCADA), Geographic Information 


Systems (GIS), Outage Management Systems (OMS), basic networking and information technology. 


• A vValid motor vehicle operator’s license is required. 


•  


• A DNR Grade 1 Groundwater/Distribution UGD Waterworks operator license and a DNR Wastewater Operator 


License are required. 


Physical and Mental Abilities Required to Perform Essential Job Functions 


Language Ability and Interpersonal Communication 


• Ability to perform mid-level data analysis including the ability to audit, deduce, assess, conclude, and appraise.  


Requires discretion in determining and referencing such to established criteria to define decide the time, place, and 


sequence of operations, and the ability to oversee their execution.  Ability to analyze and categorize data and information 


using unestablished criteria, to determine consequences and to identify and selectdevelop alternatives. 


• Ability to classify, compute, and tabulate data and information, following a prescribed plan requiring the exercise of 


significant individual judgment.  Ability to compare, count, differentiate, measure, and sort information, as well as 


assemble, copy, record, and transcribe data and information.manage and direct Stoughton Utilities, including the ability 


to provide counseling and mediation.   


• Ability to explain, demonstrate, and clarify to others within well-established policies, procedures, and standards, as well 


as the ability to follow specific instructions and respond to complex requests.Ability to persuade, convince and train 


others.  Ability to develop, advise and interpret policies, procedures and standards to specific situations.  


• Ability to comprehend, interpret, approve, and utilize a variety of advisory and design data and information such as 


activity reports, time sheets, billing invoices, training forms, vehicle maintenance reports, applications for service, non-


routine correspondence, capital plans, State Statutes, regulations and legal statutes, computer network operating 


software manuals, engineering manuals, job authorization forms, purchase orders, Federal Register and Administrative 







Utilities Operations SuperintendentDistribution System Coordinator 


 
Codes, ordinances, performance evaluations, policy/procedure manuals, material sheets, and staking sheets, computer 


software operating manuals, and safety rules and manuals.  Ability to utilize and interpret environmental, electrical 


engineering, water and, wastewater engineering, computer software systems, geographical information systems, and 


accounting terminology. 


• Ability to communicate orally and in writing and orally effectively with customers, Stoughton Utilities Division 


personnel and supervisors, Utilities Director, other City Ddepartment Headsand all levels of City personnel, 


engineering, accounting and computer consultants, Mayor, Common Council members, City Officials, electric 


wholesale supplier representatives, other municipal utilities representatives, Wisconsin Public Power Inc., Municipal 


Electric Utilities of Wisconsin,  Wisconsin Rural Water Association and American Waterworks Association 


representatives, sales representatives, contractors, developers, engineering consultants, legal consultants, regulatory 


agency representativespersonnel, and the general public. 


• Ability to prepare performance evaluations, training forms, time sheets, itineraries, letters, statements, notices, memos, 


narrative and statistical reports, construction documents, and other correspondence and a variety of other documents 


using prescribed and self-developed formats according to the rules of punctuation, grammar and style.  Ability to 


develop written document and computerized-media formats. 


Mathematical Ability 


• Requires the Ability ability to perform addition, subtraction, multiplication, and division; calculate percentages, 


fractions, and decimals, ; volumes, ratios, present values and spatial relationships.   


• Ability to interpret and develop basic detailed descriptive statistical projections and reports; and the ability to perform 


mathematical operations with algebra.. 


Judgment and Situational Reasoning Ability 


• Ability to carry out directions without direct supervision.  Ability to exercise independent judgment to apply facts and 


principles for developing approaches and techniques to problem resolution. 


• Ability to use apply principles offunctional reasoning in performing influence functions systems, such as supervising, 


managing, leading, teaching, directing, planning, coordinatingdisciplining, and controlling. 


• Ability to exercise the judgment, decisiveness and creativity required in situations involving the evaluation of 


information against measurable sensory and/or judgmental criteria; make decisions, and follow through on the 


consequences, and involving the direction, control, and planning of an entire program or multiple programs. 


Physical Requirements 


• Ability to operate, maneuver and/or steer equipment and machinery requiring monitoring adjustments requiring multiple 


conditions and making multiple, complexcomplex, and rapid adjustments, such as bucket truck, digger derrick, motor 


vehicles, dump truck, front end loader, fork lift, etc. 


• Ability to operate office equipment and machinery requiring simple but continuous adjustments, such as meter reading 


equipment, volt meter, electrical equipment,  computer terminal, computer printer, photocopier, Facilities Management 


systems, CAD system, SCADA system, computer network, fax machinepaper cutter, hand punch, and telephone.  


Ability to repair complex equipment and machinery. 


• Ability to coordinate eyes, hands, feet and limbs in performing skilled movements involved in typing, repair, and 


operation. 


• Ability to exert heavy physical effort in moderate to heavy work, typically involving some combination of climbing 


and, balancing, stooping, kneeling, crouching, and crawling, lifting, and carrying, pushing and or pulling up toover 100 


pounds. 


• Ability to recognize and identify degrees of similarities or differences between characteristics of colors, forms, sounds, 


taste, and textures, and odor associated with job-related objects, materials, and tasks. 


•  







Utilities Operations SuperintendentDistribution System Coordinator 


 
Supervisory Skills 


• Ability to assign, supervise, review, develop, improve and implement procedures to improve the work of others.   


• Ability to select, train, monitor, discipline and discharge employees. 


Environmental Adaptability 


• Ability to work effectively in an office environment, as well as in the field under mildly unsafe and uncomfortable and 


potentially unsafe conditions where that require exposure to environmental factors such as temperature variations, 


winds, rain and snow, odors, toxic agents, smoke, noise, vibrations, wetness, dusts, machinery, disease, electrical 


currents, and vehicular traffic.  This exposure may cause discomfort and presents  and where there is a risk of serious 


injury or death. 


  







Utilities Operations SuperintendentDistribution System Coordinator 


 
The City of Stoughton is an Equal Opportunity Employer.  In compliance with the American with Disabilities Act, the City 


will provide reasonable accommodations to qualified individuals with disabilities and encourages both prospective and 


current employees to discuss potential accommodations with the employer. 


   


Employee’s Signature  Supervisor’s Signature 


   


Date  Date 


 







   


City of Stoughton 


Position Description 


 
Name:  Department: Utilities – Technical Operations Division 


Title: Utilities Customer Service 


TechnicianEducation & Outreach Coordinator 


Pay Grade:  FLSA: Exempt 


Date: AprilMarch, 202215 Reports To: Assistant Utilities DirectorTechnical 


Operations Supervisor 


 


Purpose of Position 


___________________________________________________________________________ 


 


Purpose of Position 


The purpose of this position is to design and create utility customer outreach campaigns, utilizing traditional and digital 


platforms, design and create utility educational materials and programs, and design and create utility public information 


campaigns.  This position is responsible for the short and long-term strategic planning of customer outreach and education 


efforts, including maintaining current efforts as well as continuing to evolve them to match customer expectations and 


market trends.  perform customer service tasks for Stoughton Utilities including but not limited to: maintenance of customer 


records, assisting phone and walk-in customers with their account, and handling a variety of customer payments.  In addition, 


this position will also perform general administrative tasks. 


Essential Duties and Responsibilities 


The following duties are normal for this position.  These are not to be construed as exclusive or all-inclusive. Other duties may 


be required and assigned. 


• Coordinates and creates customer outreach campaigns, utilizing traditional and digital platforms such as direct mailings, 


inserts, social media, email, and newspapers, with topics to include electric, water, and wastewater customer outreach, 


conservation tips and education, energy safety education, customer feedback requests, customer engagement, and other 


topics that arise. 


• Coordinates brand consistency in informational, educational, promotional, and social media publications and messages 


by maintaining and implementing design standards.  Reviews and updates materials created by other utility staff to 


ensure consistent design standards and branding. 


• Provides training and guidance to utility employees on acceptable social media use and platform operation, and keeps 


Stoughton Utilities social media team members up to date on current social media best practices and strategies. 


• Collects and analyzes customer data, including visits, interactions, and consumption and billing, and payment patterns, 


and uses this information to create comprehensive reports to improve future educational and outreach strategies and 


campaigns.  Analyzes customer demographics and tailors outreach efforts to ensure they are reaching the most 


customers and stakeholders possible.  Report out findings to Stoughton Utilities social media team members. 


• Grows and expands utility social media presence into new social media platforms according to customer interest and 


current platform trends, plus increases presence on existing social media platforms, including but not limited to 


Facebook, Instagram, Twitter, LinkedIn, and YouTube.  Researches emerging social media platforms and trends. 


• Researches and monitors activities of utility peers, partners, and other regional utilities.  Customizes Stoughton Utilities 


educational and outreach efforts to provide similar campaigns and strategies as offered by other regional electric, water, 


and wastewater utilities. 


• Creates and distributes engaging written and/or graphic content in the form of bill statement inserts, direct mailings, 


consumer and/or regulatory reports, e-newsletters, web page and blog content, infographics, presentations, and social 


media messages.  Updates materials regularly to follow current design trends and brand consistency. 







Customer Service TechnicianUtilities Education & Outreach Coordinator  
 


• Maintains partnerships with commercial printers, content creators, and marketing partners to assist in outreach material 


design.  Obtains stock photography and illustrations, and solicits content use permission from authors and trademark 


holders.  Maintains records of licensing and use agreements. 


• Coordinates event planning leading up to and during utility-sponsored events, including but not limited to Public Power 


Week, Drinking Water Week, Lineworker Appreciation Day, peer organization visits, Utilities Committee meetings, 


presentations and open houses for utility customers, public tours and educational training, staff meetings and events, 


etc. 


• Acts as public relations coordinator during sustained education efforts, such as utility construction projects, regulatory 


rate reviews and adjustments, conservation efforts, drinking water quality advisories, customer engagement programs, 


and more.  Creates and distributes press releases to regional media providers. 


• Coordinates school appearances, utility tours, and other educational partnerships with area educational entities, 


including but not limited to Stoughton Area School District, technical colleges, and private organizations. 


• Researches and provides customer education on new utility industry trends, including renewable energy, increased 


electrification efforts, safe water distribution and treatment, responsible and efficient energy use and expansion, etc. 


• Assists in economic development efforts for Stoughton Utilities, with a focus on informing potential new utility 


customers of the benefits of locating in the utility’s service territory, including rate competitiveness, reliability, and 


programs. 


• Prepares application materials for employee and utility recognition, such as APPA Reliable Public Power Provider 


(RP3) and Smart Energy Provider designations, MEUW and APPA safety awards, MEUW and WPPI Energy employee 


and elected official recognitions of service, etc. 


• Greet and direct visitors.  Answer, direct, and route telephone calls and messages.   


• Provide information to customers regarding their accounts over the telephone, by email, and in-person. 


• Assist customers with general inquiries, including high-bill complaints and questions about utility policies.  Document 


all inquiries and complaints. 


• Prepare work orders, customer inquiries, complaint forms, and service applications. 


• Process payments received in-person at the front counter and issue receipts. Process and post payments received via 


mail and night deposit box. 


• Prepare reports from account data as requested.   


• Perform related administrative tasks such as filing, faxing, typing, and photocopying. 


• Verify and maintain property owner data for all new and existing accounts. 


• Assist billing and collections staff as needed. 


• Assist billing and collections staff as needed. 


• Maintains ability to work a flexible schedule in order to respond to planned and unplanned customer engagement 


opportunities and significant event response, including but not limited to large-scale outages, severe weather events, 


and drinking water or sanitary sewer emergencies.  


• Complies with all Stoughton Utilities safety programs. 


• Performs other Stoughton Utilities tasks as directed. 


Additional Tasks and Responsibilities 


While the following tasks are necessary for the work of the unit, they are not an essential part of the purpose of this position and 


may also be performed by other unit members. 


• Greet and direct visitors.  Answer, direct, and route telephone calls and messages.   







Customer Service TechnicianUtilities Education & Outreach Coordinator  
 


• Provide back up for various front-office tasks, including but not limited to: processing customer payments, preparation 


of committee meeting packets, preparation of daily bank deposits, organizational filing, negotiating deferred payment 


agreements, etc. 


• Provide back up for daily visits to City Hall, local post office, and local bank branch to receive and process incoming 


and outgoing postal and interdepartmental mail and deliver the daily banking deposit.  Sorts and distributes received 


postal and interdepartmental mail to their intended recipients. 


• Provide back up for processing customer payments received through various physical and electronic methods, including 


but not limited to, banking lockbox, online My Account payments, Autopay (ACH and credit card), night deposit box, 


in-person, energy assistance, etc. 


• Perform related office tasks such as filing, faxing, photocopying, computer operation, maintenance of mailing 


equipment, and procurement of general office supplies. 


• Assist other division personnel as required.  Provides assistance during monthly billing and disconnection processes, 


annual financial audit, etc. 


• Assist electric, wastewater and water divisions as required. 


• Assist with public education. 


• Comply with all Stoughton Municipal Utilities Safety Programs. 


• Provide emergency after-hours phone support as needed during widespread outages and other emergencies. 


Minimum Training and Experience Required to Perform Essential Job Functions  


• High school diploma, bachelor’s degree in communications or marketing with vocational training in customer service 


outreach and education or related, with 13-years utility experience and 1-2 years social media management and content 


creation with experience of major social media platforms, or any combination of education and experience that provides 


equivalent knowledge, skills, and abilities. 


• Working knowledge of Microsoft Windows and other software in a business environment, including but not limited to 


Microsoft Word, Excel, and Outlook.   


• Working knowledge of computer graphic design and publication layout/design software, including but not limited to 


Adobe Creative Cloud, including InDesign and Photoshop. 


• Working knowledge of internet content design and layout, including HTML and CSS. 


• Valid motor vehicle operator’s license is required. 


Physical and Mental Abilities Required to Perform Essential Job Functions 


Language Ability and Interpersonal Communication 


• Strong verbal and written communication skills, and ability to issue public-facing communications without secondary 


review.  Ability to communicate orallyverbally and in writing with customers, department and all levels of City 


personnel, bank personnel, title company representatives, law enforcement personnel, and the general public. 


• Ability to create consensus and collaboration, and train others.  Ability to advise and provide interpretation regarding 


the application of policies, procedures, and standards to specific situations. 


• Ability to perform mid-level data analysis including the ability to audit, deduce, assess, conclude, and appraise.  


Requires discretion in determining and referencing such to established criteria to define consequences and develop 


alternatives. 


• Ability to classify, compute, and tabulate data and information, following a prescribed plan requiring the exercise of 


some significant individual judgment.  Ability to compare, count, differentiate, measure, and sort information, as well 


as . Ability to assemble, copy, record, and transcribe data and information. 







Customer Service TechnicianUtilities Education & Outreach Coordinator  
 


• Ability to utilize a wide variety of advisory data and information, such as work orders, customer billing information, 


meter reading slips, billing statements, complaint forms, billing journals, maps, computer software operating manuals, 


PSC rules and regulations, municipal code, procedures, guidelines, and non-routine correspondence. 


• Ability to explain, inform, demonstrate, inform,  and clarify to others within well- established policies, procedures, and 


standards, as well as the ability to follow specific instructions and respond to simple requests from others. 


• Ability to utilize a wide variety of advisory data and information, such as work orders, customer billing information, 


meter reading slips, billing statements, complaint forms, billing journals, maps, computer software operating manuals, 


PSC rules and regulations, municipal code, procedures, guidelines, and non-routine correspondence.Ability to prepare 


posts, publications, color graphics, narrative and statistical reports, speeches, scripts, videos, letters, memos, and other 


correspondence using prescribed formats according to accepted rules of punctuation, grammar, and style. 


• Ability to communicate orally with customers, department personnel, bank personnel, 


title company representatives, law enforcement personnel, and the general public. 


Mathematical Ability 


• Ability to perform addition, and subtraction, multiplication,y and divisionde,; and calculate percentages, fractions, and 


decimals; interpret detailed descriptive statistical reports; and the ability to perform mathematical operations with 


fractions and algebra. 


Judgment and Situational Reasoning Ability 


• Ability to carry out directives without direct supervision.  Ability to exercise independent judgementjudgment to apply 


facts and principles for developing approaches and techniques to problem resolution. 


• Requires the ability to apply principles of influence systems such as persuading, leading, teaching, and planning.  Ability 


to exercise independent judgementjudgment to apply facts and principles for developing approaches and techniques to 


problem resolution. 


• Ability to use functional reasoning and apply rational judgment in performing diversified work activities. 


• Ability to exercise the judgment, decisiveness and creativity in situations involving the evaluation of information against 


measurable criteria, and involving the direction, control and planning of an entire program or multiple programs.. 


  







Customer Service TechnicianUtilities Education & Outreach Coordinator  
 


Physical Requirements 


• Ability to operate office equipment and machinery requiring simple but continuous adjustments, such as computer 


workstation, calculator/adding machine, cash register, postage meter, photocopier, paper cutter, hand punch, telephone, 


camera, cellular communication devices including touchscreen phones and tablets, and two-way radio. 


• Ability to coordinate eyes, hands, feet and limbs in performing semi-skilled movements such as typing and photography. 


• Ability to exert very moderate physical effort in sedentary to light work, typically involving some combination of 


stooping, kneeling, crouching and crawling, lifting, carrying, pushing and pulling. 


Environmental Adaptability 


• Ability to work under safe and comfortable conditions where exposure to environmental factors is minimal and poses 


little to no risk of injury. 


The City of Stoughton is an Equal Opportunity Employer.  In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, the 


County will provide reasonable accommodations to qualified individuals with disabilities and encourages both prospective 


and current employees to discuss potential accommodations with the employer. 


   


Employee’s Signature  Supervisor’s Signature 


   


Date  Date 


 


 







City of Stoughton 
Position Description 


 
Name:  Department: Utilities – Electric System Division 


Title: Electric System Supervisor Pay Grade:  FLSA: N 


Date: MayMarch, 202218 Reports To: Assistant Utilities Operations 
SuperintendentDirector 


 


Purpose of Position 


The purpose of this position is to provide field supervision to the Electric System and Metering Division, including personnel 
and daily operations, projects and development, and strategic plannings, under the direction of the Utilities Operations 
SuperintendentDirector.   


This position also efficiently and safely performs electrical distribution line construction, maintenance, and repair tasks, in 
accordance with Stoughton Utilities construction specifications and standards. 


Essential Duties and Responsibilities  
The following duties are normal for this position.  These are not to be construed as exclusive or all-inclusive.  Other duties may 
be required and assigned. 


 Supervises and directs the operation and maintenance of the electric utility and distribution system.  Ensures compliance 
with regulatory agency requirements and, utility policies, etc.  Provides recommendations and assists with the 
coordination and implementation of electric distribution system improvements. 


 Coordinates Supervises the activities of Electric System Division personnel.  Conducts regular Division division staff 
meetings, establishes and maintains productivity reports, prepares and assigns work orders, conducts performance 
evaluations, coordinates introductory and continuing training programs, reviews and recommends the approval ofes 
timesheets, and establishes and maintains staff work and leave schedules, and assists in the completion of performance 
evaluations.  Plans short and long-term division work plans and projects, and guides the division’s goals and vision. 


 Supervises, organizes, and leads routine safety meetings and safety manual review.  Conducts routine safety compliance 
checks on active job sites.  Oversees division operations to ensure safety policy compliance.  Report out findings to 
Stoughton Utilities management and safety compliance teams. and reports to the Operations Superintendent. 


 Assists with the preparation, and ongoing monitoring, of the Utilities annual budget.  Assists with the preparation of the 
Utilities 20 year Capital Improvement Program.Assists with the preparation, and ongoing monitoring, of the Utilities 
annual budget.   


 Provides input and prepares recommendations for materials purchases and quality standards.  Maintains contacts with 
vendors, assists with the evaluation of proposals, prepares purchase orders, and acquires materials as required. 


 Provides input on vehicle standards and maintenance, and schedules all vehicle maintenance work.Supervises the 
division tool and equipment inventory, and evaluates and approves or denies requests from division staff for the 
procurement of new tools and equipment. 


 Monitors Supervises the Substation substation Maintenance maintenance Program program, and maintains all substation 
equipment, conducts routine substation inspections, ; and takes records weekly system readings and data.  Assists 
withEvaluates and recommends long-term planning for substation maintenance and system expansion requirements. 


 Supervises the electric line clearance program.  Monitors system tree trimming and removal needs, and maintains the 
annual schedule to ensure clearance program compliance.  Works with division employees to trim and remove trees and 
brush.  Communicates with customers to provide notice of upcoming line clearance projects, and resolves line clearance 
complaints and inquiries. 


 Supervises the utility’s apprentice lineworker program, including providing education and mentorship, evaluating 
apprentice performance and competence, maintaining apprenticeship registrations and program compliance, conducting 
routine reviews and assessments, and recommending advancement through the program. 







Electric System Supervisor    
 
 Supervises and maintains overhead and underground electric construction specifications and drawings. 


 Routinely performs lineworker work tasks at active job sites to plan, direct, and supervise system and equipment 
maintenance and repair tasks.  Works onsite to recommend operational changes and safety improvements, and to 
evaluate staff knowledge, competence, and safety compliance. 


 Operates diggers, bucket trucks, and hand tools near and around electrical distribution lines.  Operates live-line tools to 
connect and disconnect distribution lines and components. Installs primary and secondary overhead and underground 
electrical systems.  Locates underground electric cable faults for repair.  Performs all other industry-standard duties 
expected of a journeyman lineworker. 


 Prepares and secures safe work sites, including truck and equipment setup, placement of warning signs and cones, traffic 
control and direction, and more.  Conducts tailboard meetings to review projects and safety. 


 Completes field staking using staking sheets provided by the Utilities Distribution System Coordinator, or supervises 
staking completed by other lineworkers as appropriate. 


 Operates the electric SCADA system to monitor system health, record data and equipment readings, operate controls, 
evaluate circuit performance and load, and investigate outage conditions. 


 Manages electric distribution system switching procedures and documentation.  Collaborates with the Distribution 
System Coordinator to ensure mapping and outage management system accuracy, and to maintain up to date switching 
workflows.  Provides updates and training on switching procedures to division staff, and ensures policies are followed.  


 Collaborates with the Asset & Facilities Coordinator to maintain material inventory and procurement.  Provides input 
and prepares recommendations for material quality standards and specifications.  Assists in the evaluation of proposals 
and material acquisition.  Cooperates in the year-end inventory process. 


 Assists with the preparation of the Utilities 20-year Capital Improvement Program, including conducting reviews of 
system reliability and making recommendations for system improvements.  Assists with the preparation and ongoing 
monitoring of the Utilities annual budget.   


 Makes recommendations for electric division vehicle replacements, additions, and retirements.  Provides input on 
vehicle standards and specifications.  Supervises routine maintenance schedules and requirements, monitors vehicle 
safety and regulatory compliance requirements, and schedules vehicle maintenance work.   


 Maintains material inventory, receives packages, places material in stock, and approves payment. 


 Assists in ensuring compliance with Chapter 113 of the Public Service Commission rules and regulations. 


 Assists Collaborates with the Distribution System Coordinator with to developing estimates for new, replacement, and 
upgraded electric services, and makes recommendations for new development design and system expansion.   


 Responds to customer inquiries and complaints and performs corrective measures, or schedules and assigns workorders 
to resolve customer issues.  Responds to customer inquiries and complaints.  ProvidesCommunicates information towith 
customers as required to resolve inquiries and complaints, and to provide notice of planned system .  Contacts customers 
regarding temporary power outages and tree trimming operations and possible damage. 


 Assist with cCoordinatinges and schedules the work of sub-contractors working on the electric distribution system.  
Reviews the quality of work completed by subcontractors to ensure compliance with utility construction specifications 
and contract requirements and expectations.  Communicates with subcontractors to discuss complaints and issues. 


 Maintains overhead and underground specifications book. 


 Operates and maintains the Electric SCADA system. 


 Maintains Standby status until at least five Journeyman Linemen are available. 


 Monitors district tree trimming needs and provides schedule to the Operations Superintendent.  Trims trees; removes 
and chips brush.   


 Provides input on vehicle standards and maintenance, and schedules all vehicle maintenance work. 







Electric System Supervisor    
 
 Responds to all daily outages and performs corrective work; handles all daily secondary/service needs. 


 Operates diggers, bucket trucks, hand tools near and around electrical distribution lines.  Operates live-line tools to 
connect and disconnect distribution lines and components. 


 Prepares work sites.  Erects warning signs and secures areas.  Maintains knowledge of and implements safety 
procedures.  Plans and directs on-site maintenance/repair tasks.  Recommends on-site operational changes. 


 Installs primary and secondary overhead and underground electrical systems.  Locates underground electric cable faults 
for repair. 


 AssistsAttends and assists with utility-sponsored with public education events, prepares public educational materials 
and participates in outreach efforts, conducts system demonstrations and tours,and performs Wires and Fires 
demonstrations and gives electrical safety presentations. 


 Maintains GIS software applications and databases, including electric service connection details, circuit identifications, 
overhead and underground system inspections, equipment maintenance tasks, and other records as directed. 


 Maintains an ability to work a flexible schedule to accommodate planned activities outside of the typical work schedule, 
including but not limited to planned customer outages or system maintenance work, as well as planned seasonal schedule 
changes and tasks. 


 Maintains an ability to serve on standby on-call duty, scheduled on a rotational basis within the Electric System 
Division.  Maintains an ability whenever possible to respond to utility emergencies and assist those serving on-call. 


 Complies with all Stoughton Utilities Safety programs, and guidelines and regulations set by the Wisconsin Public 
Service Commission of Wisconsin (PSCW) and the National Electric Safety Code (NESC).  Ensures full Electric 
System Division compliance of the same. 


Additional Tasks and Responsibilities 
While the following tasks are necessary for the work of the unit, they are not an essential part of the purpose of this position 
and may also be performed by other unit members. 


 Disconnects electrical service to customers upon receipt of disconnection workorders due to delinquency or safety 
violations, and at customers’ request.  Conducts periodic reviews of disconnected properties for connection evaluation. 


 Installs electric meters, including current transformers (CTs) and voltage transformers (VTs) as necessary, at customer 
premises, including temporary and permanent services.  Assists the meter technician with the maintenance and repair 
of electric meters, CTs, and VTs.  Reconnects and transfers electric metersReconnects meters and transfers meters. 


 Repairs and maintains street lights.  


 Performs routine vehicle maintenance. 


 Maintains grounds and facilities, such as painting surfaces, ice and snow removal, custodial tasks, basic carpentry, basic 
commercial electrical maintenance, basic plumbing, andor similar tasks as assigned. 


 Provides emergency after-hours support to the Wastewater and Water System Divisions, including basic system repair, 
traffic control and direction, site preparation and cleanup, equipment transport and operation, and other tasks as directed.  
Provides local and regional emergency disaster response. 


 Repairs and maintains street lightsstreetlights.  


 Performs routine vehicle maintenance. 


 Performs other Stoughton Utilities tasks as directed. 


Minimum Training and Experience Required to Perform Essential Job Functions 


 High School diploma or equivalent and, completion of a four-year Electrical Lineman apprenticeship, 
vocational/technical training in electrical systems, with a minimum of five five years electrical system maintenance 
experience, or any combination of education and experience that provides equivalent knowledge, skills, and abilities.   







Electric System Supervisor    
 
 Documented completion of a four-year Electrical Lineworker apprenticeship is required, or verifiable regional 


equivalent. 


 Journeyman Lineman Lineworker Certification, or verifiable regional equivalent, forklift Certification, and CPR/First 
Aid Certification is required.  


 Vocational or industry training in supervision and/or leadership, with demonstrated experience in leading others in a 
professional environment. 


 Commercial driver’s license with tanker and air brake certification is required. 


Physical and Mental Abilities Required to Perform Essential Job Functions 


Language Ability and Interpersonal Communication 


 Ability to perform mid-level data analysis, including the ability to audit, deduce, assess, conclude, and appraise.  
Requires discretion in determining and referencing such to established criteria to define consequences and develop 
alternatives. 


 Ability to analyze and categorize data and information in order to determine the relationship of the data with reference 
to established criteria/standards.  Ability to compare, count, differentiate, measure and/or sort data, as well as assemble, 
copy, records and transcribe data.  Ability to classify, compute and tabulate data. 


 Ability to provide first line supervision.  Ability to create consensus and collaborationpersuade, convince, and train 
others.  Ability to advise and provide interpretation regarding the application of policies, procedures, and standards to 
specific situations. 


 Ability to classify, compute, and tabulate analyze and categorize data and information, following a prescribed plan 
requiring the exercise of significant individual judgementjudgment.  in order to determine the relationship of the data 
with reference to established criteria/standards.  Ability to compare, count, differentiate, measure, and/or sort 
datainformation, as well as assemble, copy, records, and transcribe data and information.  Ability to classify, compute 
and tabulate data. 


 Ability to utilize a wide variety of advisory data and information, such as work orders; staking sheets; utility maps and 
diagrams; construction specifications; technical operating manuals; city and utility policies and procedures; guidelines; 
non-routine correspondence; Public Service Commission of Wisconsin rules, regulations, and tariffs; Wisconsin 
Department of Transportation rules and regulations; State of Wisconsin legal statutes; and safety rules and manuals. 


 Ability to explain, demonstrate, and clarify to others within well establishedwell-established policies, procedures, and 
standards, as well as the ability to follow specific instructions and respond to complex requests. 


 Ability to communicate in writing and orally with customers, department and all levels of City personnel, electricians, 
contractors, regulatory agencies, and the general public. 


 Ability to provide first line supervision.  Ability to persuade, convince, and train others.  Ability to advise and provide 
interpretation regarding the application of policies, procedures, and standards to specific situations. 


 Ability to utilize a variety of reference, descriptive and/or advisory data and information such as reports and records, 
studies, logs, maps, timesheets, service rules, manuals, handbooks, procedures, guidelines and non-routine 
correspondence. 


 Ability to prepare letters, statements, notices, memos, narrative and statistical reports, and time sheetsother 
correspondence, using prescribed formats according to accepted rules of punctuation, grammar, and style. 


Supervisory Skills 


 Ability to assign, supervise, and review, develop, assess, and  the work of others and implement 
disciplinerecommendations to improve the work of others. 


 Ability to make recommendations regarding the selection, training, discipline, advancement, and discharge of 
employees. 







Electric System Supervisor    
 
 Ability to assist in the preparation ofconduct meaningful performance reviews, and participate in the delivery of such 


reviews. 


Mathematical Ability 


 Ability to perform addition, subtraction, multiplication, and division; calculate percentages, fractions, and decimals; 
interpret and develop basic descriptive statistical reports; and may require the ability to perform mathematical operations 
with fractions and algebra. 


Judgment and Situational Reasoning Ability 


 Ability to carry out directives without direct supervision. Ability to exercise independent judgment to apply facts and 
principles for developing approaches and techniques to problem resolution. 


 Ability to apply principles of influence systems, such as supervising, managing, leading, teaching, directing, planning, 
coordinating, disciplining, and controlling.  Ability to exercise independent judgment to apply facts and principles for 
developing approaches and techniques to problem resolution. 


 Ability to use functional reasoning and apply rational judgment in performing diversified work activities. 


 Ability to exercise the judgment, decisiveness, and creativity required in situations involving the evaluation of 
information against measurable criteria, and involving the direction, control, and planning of an entire program or 
multiple programs. 


Physical Requirements 


 Ability to operate equipment and machinery such as Hilti gun, impact tools, aerial bucket truck, digger/derrick, forklift, 
wood chipper, chain saw, back hoe, roller, compression tools, cable cutters, nail gun, meters, hand and power tools, 
snow plows and blowers, and other equipment requiring monitoring multiple conditions and making multiple, complex 
and rapid adjustments.  Ability to repair complex equipment and machinery. 


 Ability to coordinate eyes, hands, feet and limbs in performing skilled movements such as high voltage electrical work. 


 Ability to install and repair meters and perform coordinated activity around live electricity, potentially in tight spaces. 


 Tasks involve the aAbility to exert regular and sustained extremely heavy physical effort in very heavy work, typically 
involving some combination of climbing, balancing, stooping, kneeling, crouching, or crawling, and as well as lifting, 
carrying, pushing, shoveling and digging, and pulling heavy objects and materials in excess of 100 pounds. 


 Requires the aAbility to recognize and identify degrees of similarities or differences between characteristics of color, 
shape, sound, texture, and odor associated with job-related objects, materials and tasks. 


 Ability to meet all physical requirements of the Stoughton Utilities Journeyman Lineworker position description. 


Supervisory Skills 


 Ability to assign, supervise and review the work of others and implement discipline. 


 Ability to make recommendations regarding the selection, training, discipline, and discharge of employees. 


 Ability to conduct meaningful performance reviews. 


Environmental Adaptability 


Ability to work under uncomfortable and potentially unsafe conditions that require exposure to severe environmental 
factors, such as temperature variations, high winds, rain and snow, odors, toxic agents, noise, vibrations, wetness, dusts, 
machinery, explosives, gas, vehicular traffic, and high voltage electrical currents.  This exposure may cause some discomfort 
and presents a high risk of injury or death. 







Electric System Supervisor    
 
  


  







Electric System Supervisor    
 
The City of Stoughton is an Equal Opportunity Employer.  In compliance with the American with Disabilities Act, the City 
will provide reasonable accommodations to qualified individuals with disabilities and encourages both prospective and 
current employees to discuss potential accommodations with the employer. 


   


Employee’s Signature  Supervisor’s Signature 


   


Date  Date 


 







   


City of Stoughton 


Position Description 


 


Name:  Department: Stoughton Utilities 


Title: Utilities Finance Manager Pay Grade:  FLSA: Exempt 


Date: OctoberMarch, 20221 Reports To: Stoughton Utilities Director 


 


Purpose of Position 


The purpose of this position is to be accountable for the overall planning, organizing, controlling, and directing of the 


financial activities of the Utility, including coordination of all customer accounting with the Assistant Utilities Director and 


general accounting functions and information processing, and performing critical accounting and fiscal management 


functions in accordance with Stoughton Utilities goals and objectives. 


Essential Duties and Responsibilities 


The following duties are normal for this position.  These are not to be construed as exclusive or all-inclusive.  Other duties may 


be required and assigned. 


• Direct the operation of a central accounting system in a manner consistent with generally accepted accounting principles 


and practices, and in sufficient detail to produce accurate cost, financial and statistical data for both management and 


statutory requirements. 


• Implement and maintain a proper set of internal controls.  Makes recommendations for organizational changes including 


staffing and structure to maintain proper internal controls. 


• Develop and maintain financial systems, policies, and procedures to ensure effective fiscal management. 


• Develop and maintain optimal investment, borrowing, and other funding strategies. 


• Research and share grant funding opportunities for utility divisions and customers, prepare grant applications, and 


maintain post-compliance monitoring and reporting, including opportunities for principal loan forgiveness programs. 


• Administers state and federal funding program requirements, submits program applications, and submits all reports 


required for program compliance and disbursement. 


• Prepare and maintain short, mid, and long-term cash flow forecasts.  Collaborates with utility leadership to ensure 


fiscally responsible operations in line with current forecasts. 


• Directs the preparation of the annual Utilities budget and capital improvement program, including advising utility 


leadership in the review of estimates and the preparation of individual budget requests. 


• Manages relationships with financial consultants.  Collaborates with the Utilities Asset & Facilities Coordinator to 


Review review service fees, negotiate and develop contracts with service providers. 


• Prepare for andO oversee the annual third-party audits, including the annual financial audit and all other audits required 


by project funding agencies, including completing internal auditing in preparation, and submit all required regulatory 


reports.   


• Prepares and submits Public Service Commission of Wisconsin Annual Reports, and all other periodic reporting 


required by PSCW. 


• Administer the purchase card program. 


• Direct treasury management operations, online banking, and fraud protection programs. 


• Perform electric, water, and wastewater retail rate analyses, develop rate structures that ensure all sufficient revenue 


recovery, and obtain necessary local and regulatory approvals. 


• Process and close work orders including time, material, and equipment allocations, and asset retirements.  Manages 


prepayment reconciliation and customer invoicing. 







Utilities Finance Manager 


 


• Prepares and interprets financial statements, cost reports, and statements of receipts and expenditures at regular intervals 


for use by the Utilities Director, Utilities Operations Superintendent and utilities leadership, Utilities Committee, and 


Common Council. 


• Direct preparation of employee payroll, tax and benefit withholding, and periodic reporting. 


• Participate in required Utility Utilities Committee meetings, and other city committee and Common Council meetings 


as required.  Prepare monthly status reports as well as other scheduled and unscheduled presentations and reports.   


• Leads in-house training and support of financial and workorder management software; creates/modifies reporting 


templates upon request.  Creates new and maintains existing procedures and instructional documentation.  Maintains 


financial and workorder processing policies and procedures manuals. 


• Assist in development and implementation of public education programs to promote a positive Utility environment in 


the City and service territory. 


• Maintain and review utility rate benchmarking; analyze and report on findings.  


• Provide support for personnel management functions including recruitment. 


• Provides backup for duties of the Assistant Director of Utilities. 


• Attends and assists with utility-sponsored public events, prepares public educational materials and participates in 


outreach efforts, conducts system demonstrations and tours, and gives electrical safety presentations. 


• Responds to planned and unplanned customer engagement opportunities and significant event response, including but 


not limited to large-scale outages, severe weather events, and drinking water or sanitary sewer emergencies. 


• Complies with all Stoughton Utilities safety programs. 


Additional Tasks and Responsibilities 


While the following tasks are necessary for the work of the unit, they are not an essential part of the purpose of this position and 


may also be performed by other unit members. 


• Greet and direct visitors.  Answer, direct, and route telephone calls and messages.   


• Assist other division personnel as required. 


• Attends and assists with utility-sponsored public events, prepares public educational materials, and participates in 


outreach efforts. 


• Assists electric, wastewater, and waterall other Stoughton Utilities divisions as required. 


• Performs other Stoughton Utilities tasks as required. 


Minimum Training and Experience Required to Perform Essential Job Functions  


• Bachelor's degree in Business Administration, Accounting, or Financial Management, with . 


• Ppreference for a Certified Public Accountant.  


• Minimum of seven years of management or project managementexperience related to financial/accounting operations, 


preferably in the utility environment. 


• Significant knowledge of generally accepted financial management and accounting principles and practices, including 


the ability to independently initiate analysis and solve a variety of accounting and fiscal issues from both long-term and 


daily operational perspectives. 


• Significant knowledge of Governmental Accounting Standards is preferred, but not required. 


• Significant knowledge of computer hardware and software used in the Utility utility environment, including experience 


with automated accounting, financial, and billing systems.  Advanced user of Microsoft Office applications (Word, 


Excel, Access, and PowerPoint) preferred. 







Utilities Finance Manager 


 


• Valid motor vehicle operator’s license is required, or the ability to obtain independent transport for required training 


and events. 


• Familiarity with State and Federal rules and regulations regarding utility systems. 


• Proven success and experience in teambuilding and collaboration, and experience with effective 


supervisory/management and human resource principles and techniques. 


• Understanding of effective customer service principles and techniques. 


• Comprehensive knowledge of electric, wastewater and water systems. 


Physical and Mental Abilities Required to Perform Essential Job Functions 


Language Ability and Interpersonal Communication 


• Requires the aAbility to perform complex data analysis, including the ability to audit, deduce, assess, conclude, appraise, 


analyze, and interpret an extensive variety of technical information and governmental regulations. Audit, deduce, assess, 


conclude and appraise.   


• Requires discretion in determining and referencing such to established criteria to define consequences and develop 


alternatives. 


• Requires the aAbility to provide first line supervision.  Ability to persuade, convincecreate consensus and collaboration, 


and train others.  Ability to advise and provide interpretation regarding the application of policies, procedures, and 


standards to specific situations. 


• Ability to classify, compute, and tabulate data and information, following a prescribed plan requiring the exercise of 


significant individual judgment.  Ability to compare, count, differentiate, measure, and sort information, as well as 


assemble, copy, record, and transcribe data and information. 


• Ability to define problems, collect data, establish facts, and draw conclusions.  Good decision-making and problem 


solving skills. 


• Ability to promote teambuilding and maintain good working relationships within the Utility and other City Departments. 


• Ability to develop and maintain good working relationships with contractors, community members, elected officials, 


and regulatory staff. 


• Requires the ability to provide first line supervision.  Ability to persuade, convince, and train others.  Ability to advise 


and provide interpretation regarding the application of policies, procedures, and standards to specific situations. 


• Requires the aAbility to utilize a wide variety of reference, descriptive, advisory and/or design data and information 


such as work orders, financial statements,; billing reports and statements,; financial reports and, ledgers,; journals, 


summaries, regulatory rate review applications,; budgets,; manuals/texts, codes, accounting systems,; computer 


software operating manuals; city and utility policies and procedures; guidelines; procedures and non-routine 


correspondence.; Public Service Commission of Wisconsin (PSCW) rules, regulations, and tariffs; Wisconsin 


Department of Natural Resources (DNR) rules and regulations; State of Wisconsin  legal statutes; and safety rules and 


manuals. 


• Ability to explain, demonstrate, and clarify to others within well-established policies, procedures, and standards, as well 


as the ability to follow specific instructions and respond to complex requests. 


•  


• Ability to communicate in writing and orally with customers, effectively with the Utilities Director, Utilities Operations 


Superintendent, and all Utilitydepartment and all levels of  personnel, other City departmentspersonnel, Utilities 


Committee,financial auditors, technical support contractorsregulatory agencies, elected and appointed government 


officials, and the general public verbally and in written form. 


• Ability to prepare letters, statements, notices, memos, narrative and statistical reports, and other correspondence using 


prescribed formats according to accepted rules of punctuation, grammar, and style. 







Utilities Finance Manager 


 


Supervisory Skills 


• Ability to assign, supervise, and review, develop, assess, and implement recommendations to improve the work of 


others. 


• Ability to make recommendations regarding the selection, training, discipline, advancement, and discharge of 


employees. 


• Ability to assist in the preparation of meaningful performance reviews and participate in the delivery of such reviews. 


Mathematical Ability 


• Ability to perform addition, subtraction, multiplyication, and dividedivision, ; calculate decimals and percentages, 


fractions, and decimals; interpret and develop detailed descriptive statistical reports;  and make use of the principles of 


descriptive statisticsthe ability to perform mathematical operations with algebra. 


• Ability to design and produce graphical representations of complex financial and performance data. 


JudgementJudgment and Situational Reasoning Ability 


• Ability to carry out directives without direct supervision.  Ability to exercise independent judgment to apply facts and 


principles for developing approaches and techniques to problem resolution. 


• Requires the aAbility to apply principles of influence systems such as managing, supervisionsupervising, managing, 


leading, teaching, directing, planning, coordinating, disciplining, and controlling.   


• Ability to use functional reasoning and apply rational judgment in performing diversified work activities. 


• Ability to exercise independent judgment to apply facts and principles for developing approaches and techniques to 


problem resolution. 


• Requires the aAbility to exercise the judgment, decisiveness, and creativity required in situations involving the 


directionevaluation of information against measurable criteria, and involving the direction, control, and planning of an 


entire program or multiple programs. 


Physical Requirements 


• Requires the aAbility to operate office equipment and machinery requiring , maneuver, and/or provide simple but 


continuous adjustments,  on equipment, machinery, and tools such as a computer terminal, calculator/adding machine, 


cash register, postage meter, photocopier, paper cutter, hand punch, telephone, and other office machines, and/or 


materialsitems used in performing essential functions. 


• Requires the aAbility to coordinate eyes, hands, feet, and limbs in performing coordinated semi-skilled movements such 


as typing. 


• Tasks involve the aAbility to exert light very moderate physical effort in sedentary to light work, typically involving 


some combination of but which may involve somestooping, kneeling, crouching and crawling,  lifting, carrying, 


pushing, and pulling of objects weighing five to ten pounds. 


•  


• Requires the ability to recognize and identify similarities or differences between characteristics of colors, shapes and 


sounds associated with job-related objects, materials and tasks. 


• Supervisory Skills 


Ability to assign, supervise, and review the work of others. 


Ability to make recommendations regarding the selection, training, discipline, and discharge of employees. 


Environmental Adaptability 







Utilities Finance Manager 


 


• Ability to work under generally safe and comfortable conditions where exposure to environmental factors may cause 


discomfortis minimal and poses little to noa limited risk of injury. 


The City of Stoughton is an Equal Opportunity Employer.  In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, the City 


will provide reasonable accommodations to qualified individuals with disabilities and encourages both prospective and 


current employees to discuss potential accommodations with the employer. 


   


Employee’s Signature  Supervisor’s Signature 


   


Date  Date 


 







City of Stoughton 


Position Description 


 


Name:  Department: Utilities – Electric System Division 


Title: Journeyman Lineworkerman Pay Grade:  FLSA: N 


Date: MayMarch, 202218 Reports To: Utilities Electric System Supervisor 
 


 


Purpose of Position 


The purpose of positions in this classification is to efficiently and safely perform electrical distribution line construction, 


maintenance, and repair tasks for the City of Stoughton, in accordance with Stoughton Utilities construction specifications 


and standards. 


Essential Duties and Responsibilities  


The following duties are normal for this position.  These are not to be construed as exclusive or all-inclusive.  Other duties may 


be required and assigned. 


• Operates diggers, bucket trucks, and hand tools near and around electrical distribution lines.  Operates live-line tools to 


connect and disconnect distribution lines and components.  Installs primary and secondary overhead and underground 


electrical systems.  Locates underground electric cable faults for repair.  Performs all other industry-standard duties 


expected of a journey-level lineworker. 


• Operates and maintains the electric SCADA system. 


• Prepares and secures safe work sites, including truck and equipment setup, placement of .  Erects warning signs and 


cones, traffic control and direction, and more.  Conducts tailboard meetings to review projects andsecures areas.  


Maintains knowledge of and implements safety procedures. 


• Completes field staking using staking sheets provided by the Utilities Distribution System Coordinator. 


• Operates and maintains the electric SCADA system to monitor system health, record data and equipment readings, 


operate controls, evaluate circuit performance and load, and investigate outage conditions. 


• Responds to customer inquiries and complaints and performs corrective measures.  Communicates with customers as 


required to resolve inquiries and complaints, and to provide notice of planned system outages.Locates underground 


electric cable faults for repair. 


•  


• Performs work tasks at active job sites to plan, direct, and oversee system and equipment maintenance and repair tasks.  


Works onsite to recommend operational changes and safety improvements, and to evaluate safety compliance. 


• Installs, repairs, and maintains municipal street lighting. 


• Monitors system tree trimming and removal needs, and ensures clearance program compliance.  Works with division 


employees to trim and remove trees and brush.  Communicates with customers to provide notice of upcoming line 


clearance projects, and resolves line clearance complaints and inquiries. 


• Assists in the oversight of the utility’s apprentice lineworker program, including providing education and mentorship, 


and recommending advancement through the program. 


• Attends and assists with utility-sponsored public events, prepares public educational materials and participates in 


outreach efforts, conducts system demonstrations and tours, and gives electrical safety presentations. 


• Completes and maintains work orders, staking sheets, outage reports, time sheets, preflight checklists, tailgate meetings, 


inventory forms, and all other division paperwork, and maintains records and prepares reports as directed.  Conducts 


system inspections and records findings. 


• Maintains GIS software applications and databases, including electric service connection details, circuit identifications, 


overhead and underground system inspections, equipment maintenance tasks, and other records as directed. 







Journeyman Lineworkerman   


 
• Maintains an ability to work a flexible schedule to accommodate planned activities outside of the typical work schedule, 


including but not limited to planned customer outages or system maintenance work, as well as planned seasonal schedule 


changes and tasks. 


• Maintains an ability to serve on standby on-call duty, scheduled on a rotational basis within the Electric System 


Division.  Maintains an ability whenever possible to respond to utility emergencies and assist those serving on-call.   


• Complies with all Stoughton Utilities safety programs, and guidelines and regulations set by the Wisconsin Public 


Service Commission of Wisconsin (PSCW) and the National Electric Safety Code (NESC).  Ensures full Electric 


System Division compliance of the same.Installs primary and secondary overhead and underground electrical systems. 


•  


• Participates in on-call status for emergencies. 


• Plans and directs on-site maintenance/repair tasks.  Recommends on-site operational changes. 


• Contacts customers regarding temporary power outages and tree trimming operations and possible damage. 


• Assists with public education and performs Wires and Fires demonstrations. 


• Repairs and maintains street lights. 


• Performs routine vehicle maintenance. 


• Trims trees and removes and chips brush. 


• Operates loaders, backhoes, dump trucks, jack hammers, wood chippers, chain saws, cutting torch and welders. 


• Reconnects meters and transfers meters. 


• Receives and responds to customer inquiries and complaints and performs corrective action in response to customer 


inquiries and complaints. 


• Completes and maintains work orders, staking sheets, outage reports, time sheets, etc. 


• Maintains records and prepares reports as required. 


• Completes weekly/monthly substation readings and inspection reports. 


• Recommends material purchases and maintains material inventories. 


• Provide leadership/training to the Apprentice Lineman.  


• Complies with all Stoughton Utilities Safety programs. 


Additional Tasks and Responsibilities 


While the following tasks are necessary for the work of the unit, they are not an essential part of the purpose of this position and 


may also be performed by other unit members. 


• Disconnects electrical service to customers upon receipt of disconnection workorders due to delinquency or safety 


violations, and at customers’ request.  Conducts periodic reviews of disconnected properties for connection evaluation. 


• Installs electric meters, including current transformers (CTs) and voltage transformers (VTs) as necessary, at customer 


premises, including temporary and permanent services.  Assists the meter technician with the maintenance and repair 


of electric meters, CTs, and VTs.  Reconnects and transfers electric meters. 


• Maintains grounds and facilities, such as painting surfaces, ice and snow removal, custodial tasks, basic carpentry, basic 


commercial electrical maintenance, basic plumbing, and similar tasks as assigned. 


• Provides emergency after-hours support to the Wastewater and Water System Divisions, including basic system repair, 


traffic control and direction, site preparation and cleanup, equipment transport and operation, and other tasks as directed.  


Provides local and regional emergency disaster response. 







Journeyman Lineworkerman   


 
• Performs routine vehicle maintenance. 


• Performs other Stoughton Utilities tasks as directed.Maintains Stoughton Municipal Utilities facilities. 


• Assists electric, wastewater and water Divisions as required. 


• Paints surfaces. 


• Removes ice and snow from walkways and drives. 


Minimum Training and Experience Required to Perform Essential Job Functions 


• High School diploma or equivalent, and completion of a four-year electrical lineman apprenticeshipvocational/technical 


training in electrical systems, with a minimum of four years electrical system maintenance experience, or any 


combination of education and experience that provides equivalent knowledge, skills, and abilities. 


• Documented completion of a four-year Electrical Lineworker apprenticeship is required, or verifiable regional 


equivalent. 


• Journeyman Lineworker Certification, or verifiable regional equivalent, forklift certification, and CPR/First Aid 


certification is required.  


• Commercial driver’s license with tanker and airbrake certification is required.Certification in CPR, first aid, Hilti gun, 


and forklift certification required.  Commercial driver’s license with tanker and airbrake certification required. 


Physical and Mental Abilities Required to Perform Essential Job Functions 


Language Ability and Interpersonal Communication 


• Ability to perform mid-level data analysis, including the ability to audit, deduce, assess, conclude, and appraise.  


Requires discretion in determining and referencing such to established criteria to define consequences and develop 


alternatives. 


• Ability to utilize a wide variety of advisory data and information, such as work orders; staking sheets; utility maps and 


diagrams; construction specifications; technical operating manuals; city and utility policies and procedures; guidelines; 


non-routine correspondence; Wisconsin Department of Transportation rules and regulations; and safety rules and 


manuals. 


• Ability to classify, compute, and tabulate data and information, following a prescribed plan requiring the exercise of 


some individual judgementjudgment, analyze and categorize data and information in order to determine the relationship 


of the data with reference to established criteria/standards.  Ability to compare, count, differentiate, measure, and/or 


sort datainformation, as well as ; assemble, copy, record, and transcribe data and information.  Ability to classify, 


compute, and tabulate data. 


• Ability to explain, demonstrate, and clarify to others within well establishedwell-established policies, procedures, and 


standards, as well as the ability to follow specific instructions and respond to simple requests from others. 


• Ability to utilize a variety of advisory data and information such as work orders, staking sheets, maps, outage reports, 


hazardous materials lists, safety manuals and procedures, construction specifications, transformer manuals, PCB 


manual, time sheets, vehicle logs, accident reports, technical operating manuals, procedures and guidelines. 


• Ability to communicate effectively in writing and orally with customers, department and all levels of City personnel, 


co-workers, law enforcement personnel, electricians, contractors, tree trimmers and other city employeesthe general 


public. 


Mathematical Ability 


• Ability to perform addition, subtraction, multiplicationy, and dividedivision, ; calculate percentages, fractions,, fractions 


and decimals; interpret and develop basic descriptive statistical reports; and may require the ability to perform 


mathematical operations with fractions and algebra. 


•  







Journeyman Lineworkerman   


 
Judgment and Situational Reasoning Ability 


• Ability to carry out directives without direct supervision.  Ability to exercise independent judgementjudgment to apply 


facts and principles for developing approaches and techniques to problem resolution. 


• Ability to apply principles of influence systems such as leading and teaching.  Ability to use functional reasoning and 


apply rational judgementjudgment in performing diversified work activities. 


• Ability to exercise the judgment, decisiveness and creativity required in situations involving the evaluation of 


information against sensory and/or judgmental criteria. 


Physical Requirements 


• Ability to operate equipment and machinery requiring multiple conditions and making multiple, complex and rapid 


adjustments, such as Hilti gun, Impactimpact tools, aerial bucket truck, digger /derrick, forklift, wood chipper, chain 


saw, back hoe, roller, compression tools, cable hcutters, nail gun, meters, hand and power tools, snow plows and 


blowers, ooks and belts, air hammers, census, dump truck, wood chipper, forklift, loaders, backhoes, cutting torch, 


welder, volt meter, hot sticks, extension sticks, hoists and blocks, phasing tool, cable locator, bolt cutters, winches, 


mechanic’s hand tools, carpenter hand tools, slings, hand lines, impact tools, grinders, etcand other equipment requiring 


monitoring multiple conditions and making multiple, complex, and rapid adjustments.  Ability to repair complex 


equipment and machinery. 


• Ability to coordinate eyes, hands, feet, and limbs in performing skilled movements involved in repairsuch as high 


voltage electrical work. 


• Ability to install and repair meters and perform coordinated activity around live electricity, potentially in tight spaces. 


•  


• Ability to exert regular and sustained heavy physical effort in moderate tovery heavy work, typically involving some 


combination of climbing, and balancing, stooping, kneeling, crouching and, crawling, and lifting, carrying, pushing, 


shoveling and digging,  and pulling heavy objects and materials in excess ofup to 100 pounds. 


• Ability to recognize and identify degrees of similarities or differences between harmonious or contrasting combinations, 


as well as recognize individual characteristics of colors, formsshape, sounds, odors and texture, and odors associated 


with job-related objects, materials, and ingredientstasks. 


Environmental Adaptability 


• Ability to work under unsafe and uncomfortable and potentially unsafe conditions that require where exposure to severe 


environmental factors such as temperature variations, high winds, rain and snow, odors, toxic agents, noise, vibrations, 


wetness, dusts, machinery, explosives, diseasegas, vehicular traffic, and high voltage electrical currents.  This exposure 


may, vehicular traffic and/or dust can cause discomfort and presents where there isa high risk of serious injury or death. 


The City of Stoughton is an Equal Opportunity Employer.  In compliance with the American with Disabilities Act, the City 


will provide reasonable accommodations to qualified individuals with disabilities and encourages both prospective and 


current employees to discuss potential accommodations with the employer. 


   


Employee’s Signature  Supervisor’s Signature 


   


Date  Date 


 







Journeyman Lineworkerman   


 
 







 
City of Stoughton 


Position Description 


 


 
Name:  Department: Utilities – Water SystemTechnical 


Operations Division 


Title: Operations SpecialistJourneyman Meter 


Technician 


Pay Grade:  FLSA: N 


Date: MayMarch, 202218 Reports To: Utilities Billing & Metering 


SupervisorWater System Supervisor 


 


 


Purpose of Position  


The purpose of this position is to maintain, repair, test, install, and read electric and water meters; maintain and operate the 


wastewater treatment facilities and sanitary sewer collection system; and maintain and operate the water pumping, storage, 


and distribution systems, and to complete water cross connection inspections for the City of Stoughton.  This position shall 


be responsible for evaluating electric and water services and determining the appropriate metering design, procurement and 


maintenance of electric and water meters and test equipment, maintenance of electric and water meter records, and 


installation of electric and water meters and equipment.  


Essential Duties and Responsibilities 


The following duties are normal for this position.  These are not to be construed as exclusive or all-inclusive.  Other duties may 


be required and assigned. 


• Provide safe drinking water conditions, safe wastewater conveyance and discharge, and safe electric enclosures to 


protect Stoughton Utilities customers. 


• Maintains the utility’s electric and water meter testing programs to ensure compliance with Wisconsin Public Service 


Commission of Wisconsin (PSCW) regulations and periodic test schedules.   


• Tests single and three-phase electric meters both in the field and in the shop in accordance with PSC rules.  Maintains, 


and repairs meters, current transformers (CTs), and voltage transformers (VTs).  Prepares and issues reports on electric 


meter test quantities and results to division supervisors, customer service staff, and regulatory agencies as directed. 


• Tests water meters both in the field and in the shop in accordance with PSC rules.  Installs, maintains, and repairs water 


meters.  Prepares and issues reports on water meter test quantities and results to division supervisors, customer service 


staff, and regulatory agencies as directed. 


• Manages the utility water and electric meter inventory.  Establishes and maintains metering standardization programs, 


and collaborates with the Asset & Facilities Coordinator to maintain meter inventory, including the procurement of new 


meters and the discarding of damaged and retired meters.  Prepares and issues reports on meter inventory and annual 


activity to division supervisors, financial staff, and regulatory agencies as directed.  Completes the year-end inventory 


process for electric and water meters, CTs, and VTs.    


• Reviews applications for new and upgraded electric service connections, and determines proper meter type, cabinet size 


and type, and need for CTs and VTs, and wires customer meter sockets at commercial properties.  Conveys cabinet and 


socket requirements to customers and electrical contractors.  Collaborates with the Electric System Supervisor to 


coordinate electric meter sizing, installation, and repair. 


• Installs electric and water meters – including CTs and VTs as necessary – at customer premises, including temporary 


and permanent services.   


• Reviews applications for new water service connections, and determines the proper meter sizing and type.  Conveys 


plumbing requirements to customers and plumbing contractors. Collaborates with the Water System Supervisor to 


coordinate water meter sizing, installation, and repair. 







Operations SpecialistJourneyman Meter Technician 


 


• Tests single and three-phase electric meters both in the field and in the shop in accordance with Wisconsin Public 


Service Commission (WPSC) rules.  Installs, maintains, and repairs meters, CTs and VTs. 


• Tests water meters both in the field and in the shop in accordance with WPSC rules.  Installs, maintains, and repairs 


water meters.   


• Maintains GIS software applications and databases, including electric and water meter inventory, electric and water 


meter testing history, electric and water service connection details and meter history, and other records as directed. 


• Manages the utility’s water Cross-Connection Control Program to eliminate existing and prevent future cross-


connections, in accordance with Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources (DNR) rules.  Performs household and 


business inspections, issues corrective orders, and performs follow-up inspections as necessary. 


• Completes the monthly collection of electric and water meter readings for cycle billing purposes.  Maintains ability to 


work a flexible schedule in order to complete the monthly meter reading collection outside of standard working hours 


one day per month, typically on the first day of the month. 


• Completes the daily meter readings for newly opened or closed customer accounts.  Processes all daily meter 


workorders.   


• Assists with utility billing operations by investigating zero/low meter readings for both electric and water, and reports 


findings.  Reviews customer history and consumption trends to detect potential meter issues.  Performs meter rereads 


upon receipt of workorders. 


•  


• Monitors and records data and operations on the water/wastewater SCADA system. 


• Monitors and tests water and wastewater quality conditions. 


• Coordinates field delinquent collections operations, including disconnecting utility service to customers as upon receipt 


of disconnection workorders.directed. 


• Receives and responds to customer inquiries and complaints and recommends and performs corrective action in 


response to customer inquiries and complaints.   


• Mentors, educates, and trains Apprentice Meter Technician employees when employed by the utility. 


• Attends and assists with utility-sponsored public events, prepares public educational materials, and participates in 


outreach efforts.  


• Maintains an ability to work a flexible schedule to accommodate planned activities outside of the typical work schedule, 


including but not limited to planned customer outages or system maintenance work, as well as planned seasonal schedule 


changes and tasks. 


• Maintains an ability whenever possible to respond to utility emergencies and assist those serving on-call. 


• Repairs and maintains water mains, pumps, valves, curb stops, services, and hydrants.  Installs and maintains water and 


wastewater service connections.  


• Performs routine maintenance to pumps, motors, valves, flow meter and other work orders. 


• Televises, cleans, and repairs sanitary sewer system. 


• Operates Utilities Geographic Information Systems (GIS) software; updates asset and property records via computerized 


systems as required. 


• Participates in emergency on-call status for the wastewater/water operations. 


• Complies with all Stoughton Utilities Safety programs, and Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources (DNR) 


guidelines and regulations set by the Wisconsin Public Service Commission of Wisconsin (PSCW), Wisconsin 


Department of Natural Resources (DNR), and the National Electric Safety Code (NESC). 







Operations SpecialistJourneyman Meter Technician 


 


•  


 


Additional Tasks and Responsibilities 


While the following tasks are necessary for the work of the unit, they are not an essential part of the purpose of this position and 


may also be performed by other unit members. 


• Greet and direct visitors.  Answer, direct, and route telephone calls and messages. 


• Provide back up for various front-office tasks, including but not limited to: processing customer payments, preparation 


of committee meeting packets, preparation of daily bank deposits, organizational filing, negotiating deferred payment 


agreements, etc. 


• Provide back up for processing customer payments received through various physical and electronic methods, including 


but not limited to, banking lockbox, online My Account payments, Autopay (ACH and credit card), night deposit box, 


in-person, energy assistance, etc. 


• Provide back up for daily visits to City Hall, local post office, and local bank branch to receive and process incoming 


and outgoing postal and interdepartmental mail and deliver the daily banking deposit.  Sorts and distributes received 


postal and interdepartmental mail to their intended recipients. 


• Maintains Stoughton Utilitiesgrounds and facilities, including such as painting surfaces,removal of ice and snow and 


ice removalfrom walkways and drives, custodial tasks, basic carpentry, basic commercial electrical maintenance, basic 


plumbing, and similar tasks as assigned.and general maintenance tasks. 


• Provides emergency after-hours support to the Electric, Wastewater, and Water System Divisions, including basic 


system repair, traffic control and direction, site preparation and cleanup, equipment transport and operation, and other 


tasks as directed.  Provides local and regional emergency disaster response. 


• Performs other Stoughton Utilities tasks for electric, water, and wastewater operations as directed. 


• Performs routine vehicle maintenance. 


• Performs other Stoughton Utilities tasks for all other divisions as directedelectric, water, and wastewater operations as 


directed. 


  







Operations SpecialistJourneyman Meter Technician 


 


• Performs other Stoughton Utilities tasks for electric, water, and wastewater operations as directed. 


Minimum Training and Experience Required to Perform Essential Job Functions 


•  High School diploma or equivalent, with three or more years electric metering experience and basic water metering 


experience required, or any combination of education and experience that provides equivalent knowledge, skills, and 


abilities.. 


•  


• Four to six years wastewater operator experience, three to five years water operator experience, and three to five years 


electric metering experience.   


• Successful completion of the State of Wisconsin three-year Electric Meter Technician apprenticeship required. 


• Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources (WDNR) Wastewater Treatment Plant Operator – Advanced certification 


for the Stoughton Wastewater Treatment facilities. 


• Basic knowledge of drinking water distribution systems required; Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources 


(WDNR) Grade T or Grade 1 Waterworks Operator Certification for the Stoughton Waterworks, with subclasses G and 


D, preferred.  Ability to obtain and maintain such certification required. 


• Ability to maintain the required continuing education credits for the WDNR Wastewater Operator - Advanced and 


Grade 1 Waterworks certifications. 


• Valid motor vehicle operator’s license required; Ccommercial driver’s license with tanker and air brake certification 


requiredpreferred.   


•  


Physical and Mental Abilities Required to Perform Essential Job Functions 


Language Ability and Interpersonal Communication 


• Ability to analyze and categorize data and information in order to determine the relationship of the data with reference 


to established criteria/standards.  Ability to compare, count, differentiate, measure and/or sort data, as well as assemble, 


copy, records and transcribe data.  Ability to classify, compute and tabulate data. 


• Ability to explain, demonstrate and clarify to others within well established policies, procedures and standards, as well 


as the ability to follow specific instructions and respond to simple requests. 


• Ability to utilize a variety of advisory data and information such as well readings, meter records, city ordinances, WDNR 


PSC and DNR reports and bulletins, water samples, distribution equipment reports, charts, policy manuals, maintenance 


records, WDNR PSC and DNR rules and regulations, vehicle manuals, equipment manuals, water main meter and CT 


wiring diagrams, construction specifications and plans, service applications, electric service rules, safety manuals and 


codes, and maps. 


• Ability to communicate effectively orally and in writing with Ddepartment personnel, customers, contractors, engineers, 


City employees, law enforcement, and WDNR PSC and DNR statistical reports. 


• Ability to prepare narrative and statistical reports, construction documents, and correspondence using prescribed 


formats according to accepted rules of punctuation, grammar, and style. 


Mathematical Ability 


• Ability to perform addition, subtraction, multiplication,y and dividesion; calculate percentages, fractions,, fractions and 


decimals; interpret and develop basic descriptive statistical reports; and the ability to perform mathematical operations 


with fractions and algebra.  Ability to interpret basic descriptive statistical reports. 


Judgment and Situational Reasoning Ability 


• Ability to carry out directives without direct supervision.  Ability to exercise independent judgementjudgment to apply 


facts and principles for developing approaches and techniques to problem resolution. 







Operations SpecialistJourneyman Meter Technician 


 


• Ability to use functional reasoning in performing diversified work activities. 


• Ability to exercise judgment, decisiveness, and creativity required in situations involving the evaluation of information 


against sensory and/or judgmental criteria, and involving the direction, control and planning of an entire program or 


multiple programs.. 


Physical Requirements 


• Ability to operate equipment and machinery requiring monitoring multiple conditions and making multiple, complex 


and rapid adjustments, such as motor vehicles, backhoe, dump truck, end loaders, sewer jet machine, meter test bench, 


air hammers, blacktop rollers, compactors, saws, hand tools, generators, portable pumps, chemical pumps, mowers, 


freezing/thawing machines, voltmeter, locators, jacks, shovels, picks, axes, etc.   


• Ability to operate office equipment and machinery requiring simple but continuous adjustments, such as computer 


terminal, photocopier, paper cutter, hand punch, and telephone. 


• Ability to install and repair complex equipment and machinerymeters and perform coordinated activity around live 


electricity, potentially in tight spaces. 


• Ability to coordinate eyes, hands, feet, and limbs in performing skilled movements involved in repair of water 


distribution equipmentsuch as electrical work. 


• Ability to exert heavy physical effort in moderate to heavy work, typically involving some combination of climbing, 


balancing, stooping, kneeling, crouching, crawling, lifting, and carrying, pushing and pulling over 100 pounds. 


• Ability to recognize and identify degrees of similarities and differences between characteristics of color, sound, taste, 


texture, and odor associated with job-related objects, materials, and ingredients. 


Environmental Adaptability 


• Ability to work under uncomfortable and moderately potentially unsafe and uncomfortable conditions where that require 


exposure to severe environmental factors such as temperature variations, high winds, rain and snow, odors, toxic agents, 


noise, vibrations, wetness, dusts, disease, machinery, explosives, gas, and high voltage electrical currents.  This 


exposure  may cause discomfort and presents a high risk of injury or death.where there is a risk of injury. 


•  


The City of Stoughton is an Equal Opportunity Employer. In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, the City 


will provide reasonable accommodations to qualified individuals with disabilities and encourages both prospective and 


current employees to discuss potential accommodations with the employer. 


   


Employee’s Signature  Supervisor’s Signature 


   


Date  Date 


 







 
City of Stoughton 


Position Description 


Name:  Department: Utilities – Electric System Division 


Title: Lead Journeyman Lineworkerman Pay Grade:  FLSA: N 


Date: MayMarch, 202218 Reports To: Utilities Electric System Supervisor 


_ 


Purpose of Position 


The purpose of this position is to assist in the day-to-day supervision coordination of the Electric System Division, including 


scheduling of daily operations and project oversight, acting under the direction of the Utilities Operations Electric System 


SupervisorSuperintendent.  This position also efficiently and safely performs electrical distribution line construction, 


maintenance, and repair tasks, in accordance with Stoughton Utilities construction specifications and standards. 


Essential Duties and Responsibilities  


The following duties are normal for this classification.  These are not to be construed as exclusive or all-inclusive.  Other duties 


may be required and assigned. 


• Assists the Utilities Electric System Supervisor with the coordination of the operation and maintenance of the electric 


utility and distribution system.  Ensures compliance with regulatory agency requirements and utility policies.  Provides 


recommendations and assists with the coordination and implementation of electric distribution system improvements. 


• Assists in the supervision of the activities of Electric System Division personnelcrews;. Actively participates in regular 


division staff meetings, and conducts such meetings in the absence of the Utilities Electric System Supervisor.   Assists 


in the maintenance of productivity reports, the review of timesheets, and the maintenance of staff work and leave 


schedules. Assists in providesing instruction and training; plannings, coordinatesing, assignsing, and reviewing ofs 


work; and the maintenance of ains sdivision standards and policies. 


• Assists in the coordination and organization of, and actively participates in, routine safety meetings and safety manual 


review.  Conducts routine safety compliance checks on active job sites.  Assists in the oversight of division operations 


to ensure safety policy compliance.  Report out findings to the Utilities Electric System Supervisor and the Stoughton 


Utilities management and safety compliance teams. 


• Monitors the Substation substation Maintenance maintenance Program program, and maintains all substation 


equipment, conducts routine substation inspections, and records; takes weekly system readings and data. 


• Monitors system tree trimming and removal needs, and maintains the annual schedule to ensure clearance program 


compliance.  Works with division employees to trim and remove trees and brush.  Communicates with customers to 


provide notice of upcoming line clearance projects, and resolves line clearance complaints and inquiries. 


• Assists in the oversight of the utility’s apprentice lineworker program, including providing education and mentorship, 


evaluating apprentice performance and competence, maintaining apprenticeship registrations and program compliance, 


conducting routine reviews and assessments, and recommending advancement through the program. 


• Maintains overhead and underground electric construction specifications bookand drawings. 


• Routinely performs lineworker work tasks at active job sites to plan, direct, and oversee system and equipment 


maintenance and repair tasks.  Works onsite to recommend operational changes and safety improvements, and to 


evaluate staff knowledge, competence, and safety compliance. 


• Operates diggers, bucket trucks, and hand tools near and around electrical distribution lines.  Operates live-line tools to 


connect and disconnect distribution lines and components.  Installs primary and secondary overhead and underground 


electrical systems.  Locates underground electric cable faults for repair.  Performs all other industry-standard duties 


expected of a journeyman lineworker. 


• Prepares and secures safe work sites, including truck and equipment setup, placement of warning signs and cones, traffic 


control and direction, and more.  Conducts tailboard meetings to review projects and safety. 







Electric System Lead Journeyman Lineworkerman                 


 


• Completes field staking using staking sheets provided by the Utilities Distribution System Coordinator. 


• Operates the electric SCADA system to monitor system health, record data and equipment readings, operate controls, 


evaluate circuit performance and load, and investigate outage conditions. 


• Responds to customer inquiries and complaints and performs corrective measures, or schedules and assigns workorders 


to resolve customer issues.  Communicates with customers as required to resolve inquiries and complaints, and to 


provide notice of planned system outages. 


• Works in the field daily with crews needing additional assistance. 


• Assists in ensuring compliance with Chapter 113 of the Public Service Commission rules and regulations. 


• Assists with developing estimates for new/replacement electric services and planning for substations. 


• Conducts routine safety compliance checks with staff and reports to the Operations Superintendent. 


• Coordinates the work of sub-contractors working on the distribution system. 


• Monitors district tree trimming needs and provides schedule to the Operations Superintendent. 


• Conducts weekly Division schedule/updates meetings. 


• Oversees the training programs for staff. 


• Provides information to customers as required.  Responds to customer inquiries and complaints. 


• Maintains and reviews Apprentice Training/Training booklet. 


• Maintains overhead and underground specifications book. 


• Maintains switching procedure manual. 


• Reviews Electric Division daily time sheets for accuracy. 


• Reviews all paperwork handed in by lineman. I.E. Job briefings, staking sheets, etc. 


• Maintains Standby status until at least five Journeyman Linemen are available. 


• Writes and administers annual reviews. 


• Makes recommendations for electric division vehicle replacements, additions, and retirements. Provides input on 


vehicle standards and specifications.  Oversees routine maintenance and schedules and requirements, monitors vehicle 


safety and regulatory compliance requirements, and schedulesall vehicle maintenance work. 


• Maintain vehicle maintenance program. 


• Provides input on material standards. 


• Responds to all daily outages and performs corrective work; handles all daily secondary/service needs. 


• Operates diggers, bucket trucks, hand tools near and around electrical distribution lines.  Operates live-line tools to 


connect and disconnect distribution lines and components. 


• Operates and maintains the Electric SCADA system. 


• Prepares work sites.  Erects warning signs and secures areas.  Maintains knowledge of and implements safety 


procedures. 


• Locates underground electric cable faults for repair. 


• Installs primary and secondary overhead and underground electrical systems. 


• Plans and directs on-site maintenance/repair tasks.  Recommends on-site operational changes. 







Electric System Lead Journeyman Lineworkerman                 


 


• Contacts customers regarding temporary power outages and tree trimming operations and possible damage. 


• Assists with public education and performs Wires and Fires demonstrations. 


• Trims trees and removes and chips brush. 


• Maintains records and prepares reports as required. 


• Recommends material purchases. 


• Maintains material inventories. 


• Complies with all Stoughton Utilities Safety programs. 


• Participates in on-call status for emergencies. 


• Receives and responds to customer inquiries and complaints and performs corrective action in response to customer 


inquiries and complaints. 


• Completes and maintains work orders, staking sheets, outage reports, time sheets, etc. 


• Completes weekly/monthly substation readings and inspection reports.Attends and assists with utility-sponsored public 


events, prepares public educational materials and participates in outreach efforts, conducts system demonstrations and 


tours, and gives electrical safety presentations. 


• Completes and maintains work orders, staking sheets, outage reports, time sheets, preflight checklists, tailgate meetings, 


inventory forms, and all other division paperwork, and maintains records and prepares reports as directed.  Conducts 


system inspections and records findings. 


• Maintains GIS software applications and databases, including electric service connection details, circuit identifications, 


overhead and underground system inspections, equipment maintenance tasks, and other records as directed. 


• Maintains an ability to work a flexible schedule to accommodate planned activities outside of the typical work schedule, 


including but not limited to planned customer outages or system maintenance work, as well as planned seasonal schedule 


changes and tasks. 


• Maintains an ability to serve on standby on-call duty, scheduled on a rotational basis within the Electric System 


Division.  Maintains an ability whenever possible to respond to utility emergencies and assist those serving on-call. 


• Complies with all Stoughton Utilities safety programs, and guidelines and regulations set by the Wisconsin Public 


Service Commission of Wisconsin (PSCW) and the National Electric Safety Code (NESC).  Ensures full Electric 


System Division compliance of the same. 


•  


Provide leadership/training to the Apprentice Lineman. 


Additional Tasks and Responsibilities 


While the following tasks are necessary for the work of the unit, they are not an essential part of the purpose of this position and 


may also be performed by other unit members. 


• Disconnects electrical service to customers upon receipt of disconnection workorders due to delinquency or safety 


violations, and at customers’ request.  Conducts periodic reviews of disconnected properties for connection evaluation. 


• Installs electric meters, including current transformers (CTs) and voltage transformers (VTs) as necessary, at customer 


premises, including temporary and permanent services.  Assists the meter technician with the maintenance and repair 


of electric meters, CTs, and VTs.  Reconnects and transfers electric meters. 


• Maintains grounds and facilities, such as painting surfaces, ice and snow removal, custodial tasks, basic carpentry, basic 


commercial electrical maintenance, basic plumbing, and similar tasks as assigned. 







Electric System Lead Journeyman Lineworkerman                 


 


• Provides emergency after-hours support to the Wastewater and Water System Divisions, including basic system repair, 


traffic control and direction, site preparation and cleanup, equipment transport and operation, and other tasks as directed.  


Provides local and regional emergency disaster response. 


• Repairs and maintains street lightsstreetlights.  


• Performs routine vehicle maintenance. 


• Performs other Stoughton Utilities tasks as directed.Operates loaders, backhoes, dump trucks, jack hammers, wood 


chippers, chain saws, cutting torch and welders. 


• Reconnects meters and transfers meters. 


• Repairs and maintains street lights.  


• Performs routine vehicle maintenance. 


• Maintains Stoughton Utilities Facilities. 


• Assists electric, wastewater and water divisions as required. 


• Paints surfaces. 


• Removes ice and snow from walkways and drives. 


• Other duties as defined by management. 


 


 


 


 


Minimum Training and Experience Required to Perform Essential Job Functions 


• High School diploma or equivalent, and completion of a four-year Electrical Lineman apprenticeship and, 


vocational/technical training in electrical systems and Electric System Journeyman Lineman training, with a minimum 


of five four years electrical system maintenance experience, or any combination of education and experience that 


provides equivalent knowledge, skills, and abilities.   


• Documented completion of a four-year Electrical Lineworker apprenticeship is required, or verifiable regional 


equivalent. 


• Journeyman Lineworker Certification, or verifiable regional equivalent, forklift certification, and CPR/First Aid 


certification is required.  


• Vocational or industry training in supervision and/or leadership, with demonstrated experience in leading others in a 


professional environment. 


• Position requires Journeyman Lineman Certification, Forklift Certification, CPR/First Aid Certification, and a 


Commercial driver’s license with tanker and air brake certification is required. 


Physical and Mental Abilities Required to Perform Essential Job Functions 


Language Ability and Interpersonal Communication 


• Ability to perform mid-level data analysis, including the ability to audit, deduce, assess, conclude, and appraise.  


Requires discretion in determining and referencing such to established criteria to define consequences and develop 


alternatives. 







Electric System Lead Journeyman Lineworkerman                 


 


• Ability to provide oversight and backup supervision.  Ability to create consensus and collaboration, and train others.  


Ability to advise and provide interpretation regarding the application of policies, procedures, and standards to specific 


situations. 


• Ability to utilize a wide variety of advisory data and information, such as work orders; staking sheets; utility maps and 


diagrams; construction specifications; technical operating manuals; city and utility policies and procedures; guidelines; 


non-routine correspondence; Public Service Commission of Wisconsin rules, regulations, and tariffs; Wisconsin 


Department of Transportation rules and regulations; State of Wisconsin legal statutes; and safety rules and manuals. 


• Ability to classify, compute, and tabulate data and information, following a prescribed plan requiring the exercise of 


some individual judgementjudgment, with reference to established criteria/standards.  Ability to compare, count, 


differentiate, measure, and sort information, as well as assemble, copy, record, and transcribe data and information. 


• Ability to explain, demonstrate, and clarify to others within well-established policies, procedures, and standards, as well 


as the ability to follow specific instructions and respond to requests. 


• Requires the ability to perform mid-level data analysis including the ability to audit, deduce, assess, conclude, and 


appraise.  Requires discretion in determining and referencing such to established criteria to define consequences and 


develop alternatives. 


• Requires the ability to provide first line supervision.  Ability to persuade, convince, and train others.  Ability to advise 


and provide interpretation regarding the application of policies, procedures, and standards to specific situations. 


• Ability to communicate in writing and orally with customers, department and all levels of City personnel, electricians, 


contractors, and the general public. 


• Ability to prepare letters, statements, notices, memos, narrative and statistical reports, and other correspondence using 


prescribed formats according to accepted rules of punctuation, grammar, and style. 


• Requires the ability to utilize a variety of reference, descriptive and/or advisory data and information such as reports 


and records, studies, logs, maps, timesheets, service rules, manuals, handbooks, procedures, guidelines and non-routine 


correspondence. 


• Ability to prepare reports and time sheets, using prescribed formats. 


Supervisory Skills 


• Ability to assign,, supervise and review, develop, assess, and  the work of others and implement recommendations to 


improve the work of othersdiscipline. 


• Ability to make recommendations regarding the selection, training, discipline, advancement, and discharge of 


employees. 


• Ability to assist in the preparation of meaningful performance reviews, and participate in the delivery of such review. 


Mathematical Ability 


• Requires the aAbility to perform addition, subtraction, multiplication, and division; calculate percentages, fractions, and 


decimals; interpret and develop basic descriptive statistical reports; and may require the ability to perform mathematical 


operations with fractions and algebra. 


  







Electric System Lead Journeyman Lineworkerman                 


 
Judgment and Situational Reasoning Ability 


• Ability to carry out directives without direct supervision.  Ability to exercise independent judgment to apply facts and 


principles for developing approaches and techniques to problem resolution. 


• Requires the aAbility to apply principles of influence systems such as supervisionsupervising, managing, leading, 


teaching, directing, planning, coordinating, and controlling.  Ability to exercise independent judgment to apply facts 


and principles for developing approaches and techniques to problem resolution. 


• Ability to use functional reasoning and apply rational judgment in performing diversified work activities. 


• Requires the aAbility to exercise the judgment, decisiveness, and creativity required in situations involving the direction, 


control and planning of an entire program or multiple programs. 


•  


  







Electric System Lead Journeyman Lineworkerman                 


 
Physical Requirements 


• Requires the aAbility to operate equipment and machinery such as Hilti gun, Ampactimpact tools, an aerial bucket 


truck, digger/derrick, forklift, wood chipper, chain saw, back hoe, roller, compression tools, cable cutters, nail gun, 


meters, hand and power tools, snow plows and blowers, and other equipment requiring monitoring multiple conditions 


and making multiple, complex, and rapid adjustments.  Ability to repair complex equipment and machinery. 


• Ability to coordinate eyes, hands, feet, and limbs in performing skilled movements such as high voltage electrical work. 


• Ability to install and repair meters and perform coordinated activity around live electricity, potentially in tight spaces. 


• Tasks involve the aAbility to exert regular and sustained extremely heavy physical effort in very heavy work, typically 


involving some combination of climbing, balancing, stooping, kneeling, crouching, crawling, and or lifting, as well as 


carrying, pushing, shoveling and digging, and pulling heavy objects and materials in excess of 100 pounds. 


• Requires the aAbility to recognize and identify degrees of similarities or differences between characteristics of colors, 


shapes, sounds, and textures, and odor associateds with job-related objects, materials and tasks. 


• Ability to meet all physical requirements of the Stoughton Utilities Journeyman Lineworker position description. 


  







Electric System Lead Journeyman Lineworkerman                 


 
Supervisory Skills 


• Ability to assign, supervise and review the work of others and implement discipline. 


• Ability to make recommendations regarding the selection, training, discipline, and discharge of employees. 


Environmental Adaptability 


• Ability to work under uncomfortable and potentially unsafe conditions that require exposure to severe environmental 


factors such as temperature variations, high winds, rain and snow, odors, toxic agents, noise, vibrations, wetness, dusts, 


machinery, explosives, gas, vehicular traffic, and high voltage electrical currents.  This exposure may cause some 


discomfort and presents a high risk of injury or death. 


The City of Stoughton is an Equal Opportunity Employer.  In compliance with the American with Disabilities Act, the City 


will provide reasonable accommodations to qualified individuals with disabilities and encourages both prospective and 


current employees to discuss potential accommodations with the employer. 


   


Employee’s Signature  Supervisor’s Signature 


   


Date  Date 


 







City of Stoughton 


Position Description 
 


Name:  Department: Utilities – Wastewater Wastewater 


System Division 


Title: Advanced Certified Wastewater Operator Pay Grade:  FLSA: N 


Date:  JanuaryMarch, 202217 Reports To: Utilities Wastewater Wastewater 


System Supervisor 


 


Purpose of Position 


The purpose of this position is to maintain and operate the water pumping, storage, and distribution systems, and the 


wastewater treatment facilities and sanitary sewer collection system for the City of Stoughton, with a focus on wastewater 


collection and treatment operations.  This position is identical to other non-certified Operator positions in terms of job scope, 


however may differ in day-to-day duties and assignments, required qualifications, and certifications.   


Essential Duties and Responsibilities  


The following duties are normal for this position.  These are not to be construed as exclusive or all-inclusive.  Other duties may 


be required and assigned. 


• Provides safe drinking water conditions to protect Stoughton Utilities customers, via obtaining and testing routine water 


samples, monitoring and recording well pump operations and storage tank volumes, monitoring and testing water and 


wastewater quality conditions, and monitoring and recording data and operations on the water/wastewater SCADA 


system. 


• Ensures environmentally -responsible wastewater treatment and discharge via obtaining and testing routine wastewater 


treatment samples throughout the treatment process, monitoring and recording plant operations and tank volumes, 


monitoring and testing wastewater influent and effluent quality conditions, and monitoring and recording data and 


operations on the water/wastewater SCADA system. 


• Repairs and maintains water distribution mains, pumps, valves, curb stops, services, and hydrants.  Installs and 


maintains water service connections. Performs routine maintenance to other water system infrastructure and equipment.  


Exercises system valves and flushes hydrants.   


• Repairs and maintains sanitary sewer collection mains and pumps.  Performs routine maintenance to sanitary sewer 


collection system infrastructure and equipment.  Flushes, televises, cleans, and repairs the sanitary sewer collection 


system. 


• Repairs and maintains Performs routine maintenance to pumps, motors, valves, flow meters, screens, and all other 


equipment at the wastewater treatment facility.and completes other work orders as assigned. 


• Monitors and records pump operations, chemical treatment, and flow levels. 


• Performs operational tasks at the wastewater treatment facilities.  Operates all equipment necessary for complete and 


effective wastewater treatment and system operations. 


• Performs routine maintenance to pumps, motors, valves, flow meters, and completes other work orders as assigned. 


• Obtains and prepares samples of drinking water and wastewater treatment, and performs laboratory activities analysis 


including sample testing and calculations for biochemical oxygen demand (BOD), suspended solids, pH levels, volatile 


solids, phosphorous, ammonia, fecal coliform, chlorine residual, fluoride content, industrial effluents, glucose glutamic 


acid, and other analysis as directed.  Prepares graphs, charts, and reports from sample data, and reports out findings.  


Makes adjustments to drinking water and wastewater treatment operations and calculates amount of chemical additives 


according to test results.etc. 


• Televises, cleans, and repairs sanitary sewer collection system. 







Advanced Certified Wastewater Operator 


 


• Prepares, or assists with the preparation of monthly water pumpage and wastewater treatment reports, and submits to 


the Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources (DNR). 


• Performs plumbing tasks throughout treatment plant.  Replaces pipes and valves.   


• Monitors and records data, and makes adjustments to the wastewater/water SCADA System. 


• Maintains, calibrates, and repairs testing equipment.  Maintains knowledge regarding testing requirements for 


wastewater treatment facilities.  Cleans and maintains lab equipment.  Prepares and sends EPA samples as directed. 


• Operates and maintains the water/wastewater SCADA system to monitor system health, record data and equipment 


readings, operate controls, evaluate system performance, and investigate trouble conditions. 


• Responds to customer inquiries and complaints and performs corrective measures.  Communicates with customers as 


required to resolve inquiries and complaints, and to provide notice of planned system outages. 


• Performs work tasks at active job sites to plan, direct, and oversee system and equipment maintenance and repair tasks.  


Works onsite to recommend operational changes and safety improvements, and to evaluate safety compliance. 


• Attends and assists with utility-sponsored public events, prepares public educational materials and participates in 


outreach efforts, conducts system demonstrations and tours, and gives safety and conservation presentations. 


• Completes and maintains work orders, time sheets, preflight checklists, tailgate meetings, inventory forms, and all other 


division paperwork, and maintains records and prepares reports as directed.  Conducts system inspections and records 


findings. 


• Maintains GIS software applications and databases, including service connection details, flushing and exercising 


maintenance records, televising records, equipment maintenance tasks, and other records as directed. 


• Maintains an ability to work a flexible schedule to accommodate planned activities outside of the typical work schedule, 


including but not limited to planned customer outages or system maintenance work, as well as planned seasonal schedule 


changes and tasks. 


• Maintains an ability to serve on standby on-call duty, scheduled on a rotational basis within the Water and Wastewater 


System Divisions.  Maintains an ability whenever possible to respond to utility emergencies and assist those serving 


on-call.   


• Complies with all Stoughton Utilities safety programs, and guidelines and regulations set by the Wisconsin Public 


Service Commission of Wisconsin (PSCW).  Ensures full Water and Wastewater System Divisions compliance of the 


same. 


Receives and responds to customer inquiries and complaints; makes recommendations and performs corrective action in 


response. 


Serves on-call status for wastewater/water operations. 


Complies with all Stoughton Utilities Safety Programs. 


Additional Tasks and Responsibilities 


While the following tasks are necessary for the work of the unit, they are not an essential part of the purpose of this position and 


may also be performed by other unit members. 


• Disconnects water service to customers upon receipt of disconnection workorders due to delinquency or safety 


violations, and at customers’ request.  Conducts periodic reviews of disconnected properties for connection evaluation. 


• Installs water meters at customer premises, including temporary and permanent services.  Assists the meter technician 


with the maintenance and repair of water meters.  Reconnects water services and transfers water meters. 


• Maintains grounds and facilities, such as painting surfaces, ice and snow removal, custodial tasks, basic carpentry, basic 


commercial electrical maintenance, basic plumbing, and similar tasks as assigned. 







Advanced Certified Wastewater Operator 


 


• Provides emergency after-hours support to the Electric System Division, including basic system repair, traffic control 


and direction, site preparation and cleanup, equipment transport and operation, groundsman duties, and other tasks as 


directed.  Provides local and regional emergency disaster response. 


• Performs routine vehicle maintenance. 


• Performs other Stoughton Utilities tasks as directed.Performs custodial tasks. 


• Paints surfaces. 


• Removes Ice and snow from walkways and drives. 


• Performs carpentry tasks as needed. 


• Assist with water and electric operations as required. 


Minimum Training and Experience Required to Perform Essential Job Functions 


• High School diploma or equivalent, and four one or moreto six years water and/or wastewater operator experience. 


• Demonstrated mechanical and/or plumbing aptitude.   


• Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources (DNR) Wastewater Treatment Plant Operator – Advanced certification for 


the Stoughton Wastewater Treatment facilities. 


• Ability to maintain the required continuing education credits for the DNR Operator - Advanced certification. 


• Commercial driver’s license with tanker and air brake certification required. 


Physical and Mental Abilities Required to Perform Essential Job Functions  


Language Ability and Interpersonal Communication 


• Ability to perform mid-level data analysis, including the ability to audit, deduce, assess, conclude and appraise.  


Requires discretion in determining and referencing such to established criteria to define consequences and develop 


alternatives. 


• Ability to classify, compute, and tabulate data and information, following a prescribed plan requiring the exercise of 


some individual judgementjudgment, with reference to established criteria/standards.  Ability to compare, count, 


differentiate, measure, and sort information, as well as assemble, copy, record, and transcribe data and information. 


• Ability to utilize a variety of advisory data and information, such as work orders; utility maps and diagrams; construction 


specifications; blueprints; lab records and reports; facilities operation and maintenance manuals; technical operating 


manuals; city and utility policies and procedures; guidelines; non-routine correspondence; and safety rules and manuals. 


• Ability to explain, demonstrate, and clarify to others within well-established policies, procedures, and standards, as well 


as the ability to follow specific instructions and respond to requests. 


• Ability to communicate effectively in writing and orally with customers, department and all levels of City personnel, 


plumbers, contractors, regulatory representatives, and the general public.Ability to analyze and categorize data and 


information in order to determine the relationship of the data with reference to established criteria/standards.  Ability to 


compare, count, differentiate, measure and/or sort data, as well as assemble, copy, record and transcribe data and 


information.  Ability to classify, compute and tabulate data. 


• Ability to explain, demonstrate and clarify to others within well established policies, procedures and standards, as well 


as the ability to follow specific instructions and respond to simple requests from others. 


• Ability to utilize a variety of advisory data and information such as lab reports, flow charts, electrical diagrams, 


architectural drawings, manhole reports, soil sample reports, wastewater treatment plant operation and maintenance 


manuals, maps, vehicle maintenance reports, DNR rules and regulations, procedures and guidelines. 


• Ability to communicate effectively with customers, Department personnel, construction workers, engineers, DNR 


personnel, and vendor representatives. 







Advanced Certified Wastewater Operator 


 


Mathematical Ability 


• Ability to perform addition, subtraction, multiplication, and division; calculate percentages, fractions, and decimals; 


interpret and develop basic descriptive statistical reports; and may require the ability to perform mathematical operations 


with fractions and algebra.Ability to calculate percentages, fractions, decimals, volumes, ratios, present values, and 


spatial relationships.  


• Ability to interpret basic descriptive statistical reports. 


Judgment and Situational Reasoning Ability 


• Ability to carry out directives without direct supervision.  Ability to exercise independent judgementjudgment to apply 


facts and principles for developing approaches and techniques to problem resolution. 


• Ability to apply principles of influence systems such as leading and teaching.   


• Ability to exercise the judgment, decisiveness and creativity required in situations involving the evaluation of 


information against sensory and judgmental criteriaAbility to use functional reasoning and apply rational judgment in 


performing diversified work activities. 


• Ability to exercise the judgment, decisiveness, and creativity required in situations involving the evaluation of 


information against sensory and/or judgmental criteria. 


Physical Requirements 


• Ability to operate equipment and machinery requiring monitoring multiple conditions and making multiple complex 


and rapid adjustments, such as impact tools, sewer line jet truck, back hoe, roller, loaders, dump truck, forklift, wood 


chipper, meters, hand and power tools, snow plows and blowers, cement mixer, lab instruments, mechanic’s hand tools, 


voltmeter, welder, and excavation hand tools, and other equipment requiring monitoring multiple conditions and making 


multiple, complex, and rapid adjustments.  Ability to repair complex equipment and machinery..   


• Ability to repair complex equipment and machinery.  


• Ability to coordinate eyes, hands, feet, and limbs in performing skilled movements such as operating heavy excavation 


and pumping  equipment. 


• Ability to install and repair meters and perform coordinated activity, potentially in tight spaces. 


• Ability to exert regular and sustained heavy physical effort in moderate veryto heavy work, typically involving some 


combination of climbing, and balancing, stooping, kneeling, crouching, crawling, and lifting, carrying, pushing, 


shoveling and digging, and pulling heavy objects and materials in excess ofover 100 pounds. 


• Ability to operate SCBA equipment as required in the Stoughton Utilities Facilities. 


• Ability to recognize and identify degrees of similarities or differences between characteristics of colors, forms shape, 


sounds, texture, and odors, and textures associated with job-related objects, materials, and ingredientstasks. 


Environmental Adaptability 


• Ability to work under moderately unsafe and uncomfortable and potentially unsafe  conditions where that require 


exposure to severe environmental factors such as temperature variations, odors, high winds, rain and snow, odors, toxic 


agents, noise, vibrations, wetness,  machinerydusts, machinery, explosives, gas, vehicular traffic, high voltage electrical 


currents, and disease.   and/or dustThis exposure  may cause or causing discomfort and presents a high and where there 


is a risk of injury requiring extended recoveryor death. 


  







Advanced Certified Wastewater Operator 


 


The City of Stoughton is an Equal Opportunity Employer.  In compliance with the American with Disabilities Act, the City 


will provide reasonable accommodations to qualified individuals with disabilities and encourages both prospective and 


current employees to discuss potential accommodations with the employer. 


   


Employee’s Signature  Supervisor’s Signature 


   


Date  Date 


 







City of Stoughton 


Position Description 
 


Name:  Department: Utilities – Wastewater Water System 


Division 


Title: Advanced Certified Wastewater Operator Pay Grade:  FLSA: N 


Date:  JanuaryMarch, 202217 Reports To: Utilities Wastewater Water System 


Supervisor 


 


Purpose of Position 


The purpose of this position is to maintain and operate the water pumping, storage, and distribution systems, and the 


wastewater treatment facilities and sanitary sewer collection system for the City of Stoughton, with a focus on wastewater 


collection and treatment operations.  This position is identical to other non-certified Operator positions in terms of job scope, 


however may differ in day-to-day duties and assignments, required qualifications, and certifications.   


Essential Duties and Responsibilities  


The following duties are normal for this position.  These are not to be construed as exclusive or all-inclusive.  Other duties may 


be required and assigned. 


• Provides safe drinking water conditions to protect Stoughton Utilities customers, via obtaining and testing routine water 


samples, monitoring and recording well pump operations and storage tank volumes, monitoring and testing water and 


wastewater quality conditions, and monitoring and recording data and operations on the water/wastewater SCADA 


system. 


• Ensures environmentally -responsible wastewater treatment and discharge via obtaining and testing routine wastewater 


treatment samples throughout the treatment process, monitoring and recording plant operations and tank volumes, 


monitoring and testing wastewater influent and effluent quality conditions, and monitoring and recording data and 


operations on the water/wastewater SCADA system. 


• Repairs and maintains water distribution mains, pumps, valves, curb stops, services, and hydrants.  Installs and 


maintains water service connections. Performs routine maintenance to other water system infrastructure and equipment.  


Exercises system valves and flushes hydrants.   


• Repairs and maintains sanitary sewer collection mains and pumps.  Performs routine maintenance to sanitary sewer 


collection system infrastructure and equipment.  Flushes, televises, cleans, and repairs the sanitary sewer collection 


system. 


• Repairs and maintains Performs routine maintenance to pumps, motors, valves, flow meters, screens, and all other 


equipment at the wastewater treatment facility.and completes other work orders as assigned. 


• Monitors and records pump operations, chemical treatment, and flow levels. 


• Performs operational tasks at the wastewater treatment facilities.  Operates all equipment necessary for complete and 


effective wastewater treatment and system operations. 


• Performs routine maintenance to pumps, motors, valves, flow meters, and completes other work orders as assigned. 


• Obtains and prepares samples of drinking water and wastewater treatment, and performs laboratory activities analysis 


including sample testing and calculations for biochemical oxygen demand (BOD), suspended solids, pH levels, volatile 


solids, phosphorous, ammonia, fecal coliform, chlorine residual, fluoride content, industrial effluents, glucose glutamic 


acid, and other analysis as directed.  Prepares graphs, charts, and reports from sample data, and reports out findings.  


Makes adjustments to drinking water and wastewater treatment operations and calculates amount of chemical additives 


according to test results.etc. 


• Televises, cleans, and repairs sanitary sewer collection system. 


• Prepares, or assists with the preparation of monthly water pumpage and wastewater treatment reports, and submits to 


the Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources (DNR). 







Advanced Certified Wastewater Operator 


 


• Performs plumbing tasks throughout treatment plant.  Replaces pipes and valves.   


• Monitors and records data, and makes adjustments to the wastewater/water SCADA System. 


• Maintains, calibrates, and repairs testing equipment.  Maintains knowledge regarding testing requirements for 


wastewater treatment facilities.  Cleans and maintains lab equipment.  Prepares and sends EPA samples as directed. 


• Operates and maintains the water/wastewater SCADA system to monitor system health, record data and equipment 


readings, operate controls, evaluate system performance, and investigate trouble conditions. 


• Responds to customer inquiries and complaints and performs corrective measures.  Communicates with customers as 


required to resolve inquiries and complaints, and to provide notice of planned system outages. 


• Performs work tasks at active job sites to plan, direct, and oversee system and equipment maintenance and repair tasks.  


Works onsite to recommend operational changes and safety improvements, and to evaluate safety compliance. 


• Attends and assists with utility-sponsored public events, prepares public educational materials and participates in 


outreach efforts, conducts system demonstrations and tours, and gives safety and conservation presentations. 


• Completes and maintains work orders, time sheets, preflight checklists, tailgate meetings, inventory forms, and all other 


division paperwork, and maintains records and prepares reports as directed.  Conducts system inspections and records 


findings. 


• Maintains GIS software applications and databases, including service connection details, flushing and exercising 


maintenance records, televising records, equipment maintenance tasks, and other records as directed. 


• Maintains an ability to work a flexible schedule to accommodate planned activities outside of the typical work schedule, 


including but not limited to planned customer outages or system maintenance work, as well as planned seasonal schedule 


changes and tasks. 


• Maintains an ability to serve on standby on-call duty, scheduled on a rotational basis within the Water and Wastewater 


System Divisions.  Maintains an ability whenever possible to respond to utility emergencies and assist those serving 


on-call.   


• Complies with all Stoughton Utilities safety programs, and guidelines and regulations set by the Wisconsin Public 


Service Commission of Wisconsin (PSCW).  Ensures full Water and Wastewater System Divisions compliance of the 


same. 


Receives and responds to customer inquiries and complaints; makes recommendations and performs corrective action in 


response. 


Serves on-call status for wastewater/water operations. 


Complies with all Stoughton Utilities Safety Programs. 


Additional Tasks and Responsibilities 


While the following tasks are necessary for the work of the unit, they are not an essential part of the purpose of this position and 


may also be performed by other unit members. 


• Disconnects water service to customers upon receipt of disconnection workorders due to delinquency or safety 


violations, and at customers’ request.  Conducts periodic reviews of disconnected properties for connection evaluation. 


• Installs water meters at customer premises, including temporary and permanent services.  Assists the meter technician 


with the maintenance and repair of water meters.  Reconnects water services and transfers water meters. 


• Maintains grounds and facilities, such as painting surfaces, ice and snow removal, custodial tasks, basic carpentry, basic 


commercial electrical maintenance, basic plumbing, and similar tasks as assigned. 


• Provides emergency after-hours support to the Electric System Division, including basic system repair, traffic control 


and direction, site preparation and cleanup, equipment transport and operation, groundsman duties, and other tasks as 


directed.  Provides local and regional emergency disaster response. 







Advanced Certified Wastewater Operator 


 


• Performs routine vehicle maintenance. 


• Performs other Stoughton Utilities tasks as directed.Performs custodial tasks. 


• Paints surfaces. 


• Removes Ice and snow from walkways and drives. 


• Performs carpentry tasks as needed. 


• Assist with water and electric operations as required. 


Minimum Training and Experience Required to Perform Essential Job Functions 


• High School diploma or equivalent, and four one or moreto six years water and/or wastewater operator experience. 


• Demonstrated mechanical and/or plumbing aptitude.   


• Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources (DNR) Wastewater Treatment Plant Operator – Advanced certification for 


the Stoughton Wastewater Treatment facilities. 


• Ability to maintain the required continuing education credits for the DNR Operator - Advanced certification. 


• Commercial driver’s license with tanker and air brake certification required. 


Physical and Mental Abilities Required to Perform Essential Job Functions  


Language Ability and Interpersonal Communication 


• Ability to perform mid-level data analysis, including the ability to audit, deduce, assess, conclude and appraise.  


Requires discretion in determining and referencing such to established criteria to define consequences and develop 


alternatives. 


• Ability to classify, compute, and tabulate data and information, following a prescribed plan requiring the exercise of 


some individual judgementjudgment, with reference to established criteria/standards.  Ability to compare, count, 


differentiate, measure, and sort information, as well as assemble, copy, record, and transcribe data and information. 


• Ability to utilize a variety of advisory data and information, such as work orders; utility maps and diagrams; construction 


specifications; blueprints; lab records and reports; facilities operation and maintenance manuals; technical operating 


manuals; city and utility policies and procedures; guidelines; non-routine correspondence; and safety rules and manuals. 


• Ability to explain, demonstrate, and clarify to others within well-established policies, procedures, and standards, as well 


as the ability to follow specific instructions and respond to requests. 


• Ability to communicate effectively in writing and orally with customers, department and all levels of City personnel, 


plumbers, contractors, regulatory representatives, and the general public.Ability to analyze and categorize data and 


information in order to determine the relationship of the data with reference to established criteria/standards.  Ability to 


compare, count, differentiate, measure and/or sort data, as well as assemble, copy, record and transcribe data and 


information.  Ability to classify, compute and tabulate data. 


• Ability to explain, demonstrate and clarify to others within well established policies, procedures and standards, as well 


as the ability to follow specific instructions and respond to simple requests from others. 


• Ability to utilize a variety of advisory data and information such as lab reports, flow charts, electrical diagrams, 


architectural drawings, manhole reports, soil sample reports, wastewater treatment plant operation and maintenance 


manuals, maps, vehicle maintenance reports, DNR rules and regulations, procedures and guidelines. 


• Ability to communicate effectively with customers, Department personnel, construction workers, engineers, DNR 


personnel, and vendor representatives. 


Mathematical Ability 


• Ability to perform addition, subtraction, multiplication, and division; calculate percentages, fractions, and decimals; 


interpret and develop basic descriptive statistical reports; and may require the ability to perform mathematical operations 







Advanced Certified Wastewater Operator 


 


with fractions and algebra.Ability to calculate percentages, fractions, decimals, volumes, ratios, present values, and 


spatial relationships.  


• Ability to interpret basic descriptive statistical reports. 


Judgment and Situational Reasoning Ability 


• Ability to carry out directives without direct supervision.  Ability to exercise independent judgementjudgment to apply 


facts and principles for developing approaches and techniques to problem resolution. 


• Ability to apply principles of influence systems such as leading and teaching.   


• Ability to exercise the judgment, decisiveness and creativity required in situations involving the evaluation of 


information against sensory and judgmental criteriaAbility to use functional reasoning and apply rational judgment in 


performing diversified work activities. 


• Ability to exercise the judgment, decisiveness, and creativity required in situations involving the evaluation of 


information against sensory and/or judgmental criteria. 


Physical Requirements 


• Ability to operate equipment and machinery requiring monitoring multiple conditions and making multiple complex 


and rapid adjustments, such as impact tools, sewer line jet truck, back hoe, roller, loaders, dump truck, forklift, wood 


chipper, meters, hand and power tools, snow plows and blowers, cement mixer, lab instruments, mechanic’s hand tools, 


voltmeter, welder, and excavation hand tools, and other equipment requiring monitoring multiple conditions and making 


multiple, complex, and rapid adjustments.  Ability to repair complex equipment and machinery..   


• Ability to repair complex equipment and machinery.  


• Ability to coordinate eyes, hands, feet, and limbs in performing skilled movements such as operating heavy excavation 


and pumping  equipment. 


• Ability to install and repair meters and perform coordinated activity, potentially in tight spaces. 


• Ability to exert regular and sustained heavy physical effort in moderate veryto heavy work, typically involving some 


combination of climbing, and balancing, stooping, kneeling, crouching, crawling, and lifting, carrying, pushing, 


shoveling and digging, and pulling heavy objects and materials in excess ofover 100 pounds. 


• Ability to operate SCBA equipment as required in the Stoughton Utilities Facilities. 


• Ability to recognize and identify degrees of similarities or differences between characteristics of colors, forms shape, 


sounds, texture, and odors, and textures associated with job-related objects, materials, and ingredientstasks. 


Environmental Adaptability 


• Ability to work under moderately unsafe and uncomfortable and potentially unsafe  conditions where that require 


exposure to severe environmental factors such as temperature variations, odors, high winds, rain and snow, odors, toxic 


agents, noise, vibrations, wetness,  machinerydusts, machinery, explosives, gas, vehicular traffic, high voltage electrical 


currents, and disease.   and/or dustThis exposure  may cause or causing discomfort and presents a high and where there 


is a risk of injury requiring extended recoveryor death. 


  







Advanced Certified Wastewater Operator 


 


The City of Stoughton is an Equal Opportunity Employer.  In compliance with the American with Disabilities Act, the City 


will provide reasonable accommodations to qualified individuals with disabilities and encourages both prospective and 


current employees to discuss potential accommodations with the employer. 


   


Employee’s Signature  Supervisor’s Signature 


   


Date  Date 


 







City of Stoughton 


Position Description 


 


Name:  Department: Utilities – Electric System Division 


Title: Senior Journeyman Lineworkerman Pay Grade:  FLSA: N 


Date: MayMarch, 202218 Reports To: Utilities Electric System Supervisor 
 


 


Purpose of Position 


The purpose of positions in this classification is to efficiently and safely perform electrical distribution line construction, 


maintenance, and repair tasks for the City of Stoughton, in accordance with Stoughton Utilities construction specifications 


and standards. 


Essential Duties and Responsibilities  


The following duties are normal for this position.  These are not to be construed as exclusive or all-inclusive.  Other duties may 


be required and assigned. 


• Operates diggers, bucket trucks, and hand tools near and around electrical distribution lines.  Operates live-line tools to 


connect and disconnect distribution lines and components.  Installs primary and secondary overhead and underground 


electrical systems.  Locates underground electric cable faults for repair.  Performs all other industry-standard duties 


expected of a journey-level lineworker. 


• Operates and maintains the electric SCADA system. 


• Prepares and secures safe work sites, including truck and equipment setup, placement of .  Erects warning signs and 


cones, traffic control and direction, and more.  Conducts tailboard meetings to review projects andsecures areas.  


Maintains knowledge of and implements safety procedures. 


• Completes field staking using staking sheets provided by the Utilities Distribution System Coordinator. 


• Operates and maintains the electric SCADA system to monitor system health, record data and equipment readings, 


operate controls, evaluate circuit performance and load, and investigate outage conditions. 


• Responds to customer inquiries and complaints and performs corrective measures.  Communicates with customers as 


required to resolve inquiries and complaints, and to provide notice of planned system outages.Locates underground 


electric cable faults for repair. 


•  


• Performs work tasks at active job sites to plan, direct, and oversee system and equipment maintenance and repair tasks.  


Works onsite to recommend operational changes and safety improvements, and to evaluate safety compliance. 


• Installs, repairs, and maintains municipal street lighting. 


• Monitors system tree trimming and removal needs, and ensures clearance program compliance.  Works with division 


employees to trim and remove trees and brush.  Communicates with customers to provide notice of upcoming line 


clearance projects, and resolves line clearance complaints and inquiries. 


• Assists in the oversight of the utility’s apprentice lineworker program, including providing education and mentorship, 


and recommending advancement through the program. 


• Attends and assists with utility-sponsored public events, prepares public educational materials and participates in 


outreach efforts, conducts system demonstrations and tours, and gives electrical safety presentations. 


• Completes and maintains work orders, staking sheets, outage reports, time sheets, preflight checklists, tailgate meetings, 


inventory forms, and all other division paperwork, and maintains records and prepares reports as directed.  Conducts 


system inspections and records findings. 


• Maintains GIS software applications and databases, including electric service connection details, circuit identifications, 


overhead and underground system inspections, equipment maintenance tasks, and other records as directed. 







Senior Journeyman Lineworkerman   


 
• Maintains an ability to work a flexible schedule to accommodate planned activities outside of the typical work schedule, 


including but not limited to planned customer outages or system maintenance work, as well as planned seasonal schedule 


changes and tasks. 


• Maintains an ability to serve on standby on-call duty, scheduled on a rotational basis within the Electric System 


Division.  Maintains an ability whenever possible to respond to utility emergencies and assist those serving on-call.   


• Complies with all Stoughton Utilities safety programs, and guidelines and regulations set by the Wisconsin Public 


Service Commission of Wisconsin (PSCW) and the National Electric Safety Code (NESC).  Ensures full Electric 


System Division compliance of the same.Installs primary and secondary overhead and underground electrical systems. 


•  


• Participates in on-call status for emergencies. 


• Plans and directs on-site maintenance/repair tasks.  Recommends on-site operational changes. 


• Contacts customers regarding temporary power outages and tree trimming operations and possible damage. 


• Assists with public education and performs Wires and Fires demonstrations. 


• Repairs and maintains street lights. 


• Performs routine vehicle maintenance. 


• Trims trees and removes and chips brush. 


• Operates loaders, backhoes, dump trucks, jack hammers, wood chippers, chain saws, cutting torch and welders. 


• Reconnects meters and transfers meters. 


• Receives and responds to customer inquiries and complaints and performs corrective action in response to 


customer inquiries and complaints. 


• Completes and maintains work orders, staking sheets, outage reports, time sheets, etc. 


• Maintains records and prepares reports as required. 


• Completes weekly/monthly substation readings and inspection reports. 


• Recommends material purchases and maintains material inventories. 


• Provide leadership/training to the Apprentice Lineman.  


• Complies with all Stoughton Utilities Safety programs. 


Additional Tasks and Responsibilities 


While the following tasks are necessary for the work of the unit, they are not an essential part of the purpose of this position and 


may also be performed by other unit members. 


• Disconnects electrical service to customers upon receipt of disconnection workorders due to delinquency or safety 


violations, and at customers’ request.  Conducts periodic reviews of disconnected properties for connection evaluation. 


• Installs electric meters, including current transformers (CTs) and voltage transformers (VTs) as necessary, at customer 


premises, including temporary and permanent services.  Assists the meter technician with the maintenance and repair 


of electric meters, CTs, and VTs.  Reconnects and transfers electric meters. 


• Maintains grounds and facilities, such as painting surfaces, ice and snow removal, custodial tasks, basic carpentry, basic 


commercial electrical maintenance, basic plumbing, and similar tasks as assigned. 


• Provides emergency after-hours support to the Wastewater and Water System Divisions, including basic system repair, 


traffic control and direction, site preparation and cleanup, equipment transport and operation, and other tasks as directed.  


Provides local and regional emergency disaster response. 







Senior Journeyman Lineworkerman   


 
• Performs routine vehicle maintenance. 


• Performs other Stoughton Utilities tasks as directed.Maintains Stoughton Municipal Utilities facilities. 


• Assists electric, wastewater and water Divisions as required. 


• Paints surfaces. 


• Removes ice and snow from walkways and drives. 


Minimum Training and Experience Required to Perform Essential Job Functions 


• High School diploma or equivalent, and completion of a four-year electrical lineman apprenticeshipvocational/technical 


training in electrical systems, with a minimum of 20 years electrical system maintenance experience, or any combination 


of education and experience that provides equivalent knowledge, skills, and abilities. 


• Documented completion of a four-year Electrical Lineworker apprenticeship is required, or verifiable regional 


equivalent. 


• Journeyman Lineworker Certification, or verifiable regional equivalent, forklift certification, and CPR/First Aid 


certification is required.  


• Commercial driver’s license with tanker and airbrake certification is required.Certification in CPR, first aid, Hilti gun, 


and forklift certification required.  Commercial driver’s license with tanker and airbrake certification required. 


Physical and Mental Abilities Required to Perform Essential Job Functions 


Language Ability and Interpersonal Communication 


• Ability to perform mid-level data analysis, including the ability to audit, deduce, assess, conclude, and appraise.  


Requires discretion in determining and referencing such to established criteria to define consequences and develop 


alternatives. 


• Ability to utilize a wide variety of advisory data and information, such as work orders; staking sheets; utility maps and 


diagrams; construction specifications; technical operating manuals; city and utility policies and procedures; guidelines; 


non-routine correspondence; Wisconsin Department of Transportation rules and regulations; and safety rules and 


manuals. 


• Ability to classify, compute, and tabulate data and information, following a prescribed plan requiring the exercise of 


some individual judgementjudgment, analyze and categorize data and information in order to determine the relationship 


of the data with reference to established criteria/standards.  Ability to compare, count, differentiate, measure, and/or 


sort datainformation, as well as ; assemble, copy, record, and transcribe data and information.  Ability to classify, 


compute, and tabulate data. 


• Ability to explain, demonstrate, and clarify to others within well establishedwell-established policies, procedures, and 


standards, as well as the ability to follow specific instructions and respond to simple requests from others. 


• Ability to utilize a variety of advisory data and information such as work orders, staking sheets, maps, outage reports, 


hazardous materials lists, safety manuals and procedures, construction specifications, transformer manuals, PCB 


manual, time sheets, vehicle logs, accident reports, technical operating manuals, procedures and guidelines. 


• Ability to communicate effectively in writing and orally with customers, department and all levels of City personnel, 


co-workers, law enforcement personnel, electricians, contractors, tree trimmers and other city employeesthe general 


public. 


Mathematical Ability 


• Ability to perform addition, subtraction, multiplicationy, and dividedivision, ; calculate percentages, fractions,, fractions 


and decimals; interpret and develop basic descriptive statistical reports; and may require the ability to perform 


mathematical operations with fractions and algebra. 


Judgment and Situational Reasoning Ability 







Senior Journeyman Lineworkerman   


 
• Ability to carry out directives without direct supervision.  Ability to exercise independent judgementjudgment to apply 


facts and principles for developing approaches and techniques to problem resolution. 


• Ability to apply principles of influence systems such as leading and teaching.  Ability to use functional reasoning and 


apply rational judgementjudgment in performing diversified work activities. 


• Ability to exercise the judgment, decisiveness and creativity required in situations involving the evaluation of 


information against sensory and/or judgmental criteria. 


Physical Requirements 


• Ability to operate equipment and machinery requiring multiple conditions and making multiple, complex and rapid 


adjustments, such as Hilti gun, Impactimpact tools, aerial bucket truck, digger /derrick, forklift, wood chipper, chain 


saw, back hoe, roller, compression tools, cable hcutters, nail gun, meters, hand and power tools, snow plows and 


blowers, ooks and belts, air hammers, census, dump truck, wood chipper, forklift, loaders, backhoes, cutting torch, 


welder, volt meter, hot sticks, extension sticks, hoists and blocks, phasing tool, cable locator, bolt cutters, winches, 


mechanic’s hand tools, carpenter hand tools, slings, hand lines, impact tools, grinders, etcand other equipment requiring 


monitoring multiple conditions and making multiple, complex, and rapid adjustments.  Ability to repair complex 


equipment and machinery. 


• Ability to coordinate eyes, hands, feet, and limbs in performing skilled movements involved in repairsuch as high 


voltage electrical work. 


• Ability to install and repair meters and perform coordinated activity around live electricity, potentially in tight spaces. 


•  


• Ability to exert regular and sustained heavy physical effort in moderate tovery heavy work, typically involving some 


combination of climbing, and balancing, stooping, kneeling, crouching and, crawling, and lifting, carrying, pushing, 


shoveling and digging,  and pulling heavy objects and materials in excess ofup to 100 pounds. 


• Ability to recognize and identify degrees of similarities or differences between harmonious or contrasting combinations, 


as well as recognize individual characteristics of colors, formsshape, sounds, odors and texture, and odors associated 


with job-related objects, materials, and ingredientstasks. 


Environmental Adaptability 


• Ability to work under unsafe and uncomfortable and potentially unsafe conditions that require where exposure to severe 


environmental factors such as temperature variations, high winds, rain and snow, odors, toxic agents, noise, vibrations, 


wetness, dusts, machinery, explosives, diseasegas, vehicular traffic, and high voltage electrical currents.  This exposure 


may, vehicular traffic and/or dust can cause discomfort and presents where there isa high risk of serious injury or death. 


The City of Stoughton is an Equal Opportunity Employer.  In compliance with the American with Disabilities Act, the City 


will provide reasonable accommodations to qualified individuals with disabilities and encourages both prospective and 


current employees to discuss potential accommodations with the employer. 


   


Employee’s Signature  Supervisor’s Signature 


   


Date  Date 


 


 







 


City of Stoughton 


Position Description 


Name:  Department: Stoughton Utilities 


Title: Utilities Director Pay Grade:  FLSA: Exempt 


Date: OctoberMarch, 20182022 Reports To: Mayor 


 


Purpose of Position 


The purpose of this position is to direct and supervise and direct the electric distribution, water distribution, and wastewater 


collection and treatment operations of Stoughton Utilities, including system design and development, system maintenance 


and construction, utility coordination, financial management, billing and customer service, regulatory compliance, and 


utility administration. 


Essential Duties and Responsibilities  


The following duties are normal for this classification.  These are not to be construed as exclusive or all-inclusive.  Other duties 


may be required and assigned. 


• Supervises and dDirects wastewater, water, and electricall Stoughton Utilities operations; prepares and monitors 


budgets, plans, and goals; develops policies and procedures; implements operations study recommendations; maintains 


utility service quality standards; coordinates various construction and development programs; ensures compliance with 


Safe Drinking Water Act, Clean Water Act, and otherall local, State, and Federal mandates. 


• Provides direction and assistance to the Utilities Division Supervisors regardingDirects Stoughton Utilities personnel, 


processes, and technology, including engineering studies, utilities safety programs, CAD and SCADAtechnology and 


automation systems implementation, well abandonment and well head protection programs, and other programs. 


Provides information and assistance to, and coordinates activities with, other divisionsCity of Stoughton departments, 


consultants, auditors, regulatory agencies, customers, etcdevelopers, and elected officials. 


• Coordinates Directs Stoughton Utilities annual budget and capital improvement projects; program, and implements 


long-range plansstrategic vision.; oversees the work of consultants.  


• Coordinates Directs all electric, water, and wastewater infrastructure maintenance and construction projects with the 


direct assistance of the Utilities Operators Superintendent. 


• Supervises and dDirects and supervises the activities of Stoughton Utilities staffpersonnel.  In conjunction with the 


Director of Human Resources & Risk Management Director, participates in staff hiring and promotions,; provides 


employee feedback and coaching; , assists with disciplinary actions; , prepares personnel evaluations; , and provides 


assistance regarding staff development, and terminations. 


• Directs Stoughton Utilities public education and outreach programs.  Serves as the utility public information officer and 


represents Stoughton Utilities in press releases, media interviews, public statements and presentations, and community 


events. 


• Directs the Stoughton Utilities safety program coordination.   Participates on the Safety Team.  Responds to all safety 


requirements, requests, and concerns of utility employees.  Conducts safety investigations. 


• Facilitates staff meetings.  Represent Stoughton Utilities in reporting to the Mayor, Common Council, Utilities 


Committee, and the City of Stoughton Leadership Team.  Participates in required Utilities Committee and Common 


Council meetings.    Prepares monthly meeting agendas and notices, status reports, as requested, in additionand other 


scheduled and unscheduled presentations and reports.   


• Represents Stoughton Utilities in participation and communications with industry partners including Serves on the 


Wisconsin Public PowerWPPI Energy Board of Directors and serve as a representative to the Municipal Electric 


Utilities of Wisconsin (MEUW), lobbying organizations, regulatory agencies, legal representation, and elected officials.  







Utilities Director 


 
the Wisconsin Rural Water Association, Wisconsin Wastewater Operators Association, American Water Works 


Association, and the American Public Power Association.Serves as Director on the WPPI Energy Board of Directors. 


• Receives and resolves high-level public and regulatory agency inquiries and complaints, including those from elected 


officials and the Public Service Commission of Wisconsin, and implements resulting corrective action and/or policy 


revisions. 


• Complies with all Stoughton Utilities Safety Programs, and guidelines and regulations set by the Public Service 


Commission of Wisconsin, Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources, and the National Electric Safety Code. 


• Responds to planned and unplanned customer engagement opportunities and significant event response, including but 


not limited to large-scale outages, severe weather events, and drinking water or sanitary sewer emergencies.. 


  







Utilities Director 


 
Additional Tasks and Responsibilities 


While the following tasks are necessary for the work of the unit, they are not an essential part of the purpose of this position and 


may also be performed by other unit members. 


• Greet and direct visitors.  Answer, direct, and route telephone calls and messages. 


• Attends and assists with utility-sponsored public events, prepares public educational materials and participates in 


outreach efforts, and conducts system demonstrations and tours. 


• Assists all other Stoughton Utilities divisions as required. 


Minimum Training and Experience Required to Perform Essential Job Functions 


• Bachelor’s degree in Civil Eengineering or business administration, or related field, with preferredpreference for State 


of Wisconsin licensure for Professional Engineer, or Bachelor’s degree in Business, or related field.  A track record 


of successful management and supervisory experience required.  A minimum of ten 15 years of utilities utility 


leadership experience, including management and supervisory experience preferred.   


• Must have or obtain, within one year, Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources (DNR) Grade 1-GD Waterworks 


Operator License Certification with subclasses G and D, or such certification designated as Operator in Training.   


• Must have or obtain, within one year, Wisconsin DNR Wastewater Treatment Plant Operator License Certification – 


Basic, or such certification designated as Operator in Training. 


• Previous business economic development experience preferred but not required. 


• Knowledge of computer software used in the utility environment, including experience with utility system automation, 


asset management, and mapping platforms.  Advanced user of Microsoft Office applications (Word, Excel, and 


PowerPoint). 


• Possesses a vValid motor vehicle operator’s license is required.  


Physical and Mental Abilities Required to Perform Essential Job Functions 


Language Ability and Interpersonal Communication 


• Ability to perform complex data analysis, including the ability to audit, deduce, assess, conclude, appraise, analyze, and 


interpret an extensive variety of technical information and governmental regulations.  Requires discretion in determining 


and referencing such to established criteria to define consequences and develop alternatives. 


• Ability to provide first line supervision.  Ability to create consensus and collaboration, and train others.  Ability to 


advise and provide interpretation regarding the application of policies, procedures, and standards to specific situations. 


• Ability to classify, compute, and tabulate data and information, following a prescribed plan requiring the exercise of 


significant individual judgment.  Ability to compare, count, differentiate, measure, and sort information, as well as 


assemble, copy, record, and transcribe data and information. 


• Ability to comprehend and interpretutilize a wide variety of documents advisory data and information such asincluding 


civil engineering plans; engineering studies and reports; construction specifications; bid documents and tabulations; 


utility statistical reports, demand and consumption reports, and wholesale billing statements; financial reports and 


statements; budgets; activity reports, water reports, electric reports, wastewater reports, training forms, time sheets, 


payment due lists, city and utility policies and procedures; guidelines; non-routine letters and other correspondence; 


Public Service Commission of Wisconsin rules, regulations, and tariffs; Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources 


rules and regulations; State of Wisconsin  legal statutes; and safety rules and manuals., engineering studies, capital 


projects plans, Administrative Codes, State Statutes, Federal Register, and other requirements, safety manuals, 


engineering references, etc. 


• Ability to prepare a variety of documents including performance evaluations, training forms, time sheets, vehicle 


reports, letters and other correspondence, etc. using prescribed format and conforming to all rules of punctuation, 


grammar, diction, and style. 


• Ability to explain, demonstrate, and clarify to others within established policies, procedures, and standards, as well as 


the ability to respond to complex requests where established policies and procedures may not exist. 







Utilities Director 


 


• Ability to record and deliver information, explain procedures, and give and follow instructions. 


• Ability to, use and interpret civil, environmental, and electrical engineering and accounting terminology. 


• Ability to communicate in writing and orally with customers, effectively with Utilities division supervisorsdepartment 


and all levels of other City staffpersonnel, construction consultants and contractorscustomers, the Mayor, alderpersons, 


and other City officials, engineering and legal consultants, financial auditors, regulatory agencies, congressional 


delegateselected and appointed government officials, and the general public, and others verbally and in writing. 


• Ability to prepare a variety of documents including performance evaluations, training forms, time sheets, vehicle 


reports, letters, statements, notices, memos, narrative and statistical reports, and other correspondence, etc. using 


prescribed formats according to and conforming to allaccepted rules of punctuation, grammar, diction, and style. 


Supervisory Skills 


• Ability to assign, supervise, and review, develop, assess, and implement recommendations to improve the work of 


others. 


• Ability to make recommendations regarding the selection, training, discipline, advancement, and discharge of 


employees. 


• Ability to prepare meaningful performance reviews and participate in the delivery of such reviews. 


•  


Mathematical Ability 


• Ability to perform addition, subtraction, multiplymultiplication, and dividedivision, ; calculate decimals and 


percentages, fractions, and decimals; interpret and develop detailed descriptive statistical reports; and the ability to 


perform mathematical operations with  and make use of the principles of basic algebra, geometry, and descriptive 


statistics. 


• Ability to design and produce graphical representations of complex financial data. 


Judgment and Situational Reasoning Ability 


• Ability to carry out directives with direct supervision.  Ability to exercise independent judgment to apply facts and 


principles for developing approaches and techniques to problem resolution. 


• Ability to use functional reasoning in performingapply principles of influence functions systems such as supervising, 


managing, supervising, leading, teaching, directing, planning, coordinating, disciplining, and coaching, and controlling. 


• Ability to use functional reasoning and apply rational judgment in performing diversified work activities. 


• Ability to exercise the judgment, decisiveness, and creativity required in situations involving the evaluation of 


information against sensory and/ormeasurable or judgmental criteria; , and involving the direction, control and planning 


of an entire program or multiple programs.make decisions, and follow through on the consequences. 


Physical Requirements 


• Ability to operate equipment and machinery requiring monitoring multiple conditions and making multiple, complex, 


and rapid adjustments, such as a motor vehicles. 


• Ability to operate a variety of office equipment and machinery requiring simple but continuous adjustments, including 


such as computer terminal, calculator, photocopier, fax machine, telephone, etc.and other items used in performing 


essential functions. 


• Ability to coordinate eyes, hands, feet, and limbs in performing semi-skilled movements such as typing. 


• Ability to exert very moderate physical effort in sedentary to light work, typically involving some combination of 


stooping, kneeling, crouching and crawling, lifting, carrying, pushing and pulling. 


• Ability to operate a motor vehicle. 







Utilities Director 


 
Supervisory Skills 


• Ability to assign, supervise, and review the work of others. 


• Ability to make recommendations regarding the selection, training, discipline, and discharge of employees. 


Environmental Adaptability 


• Ability to work effectively in an office environment, at work sites, and in public meetings under safe and comfortable 


conditions, as well as in the field under uncomfortable and potentially unsafe conditions that require exposure to 


environmental factors such as temperature variations, high winds, rain and snow, odors, noise, vibrations, wetness, 


machinery, and vehicular traffic.  This exposure may cause discomfort and presents a risk of injury or death. 


  







Utilities Director 


 
The City of Stoughton is an Equal Opportunity Employer.  In compliance with the American with Disabilities Act, the City 


will provide reasonable accommodations to qualified individuals with disabilities and encourages both prospective and 


current employees to discuss potential accommodations with the employer. 


   


Employee’s Signature  Supervisor’s Signature 


   


Date  Date 


 







 
City of Stoughton 


Position Description 


Name:  Department: Utilities – Wastewater System Division 


Title: Wastewater System Supervisor Pay Grade:  FLSA: N 


Date: JanuaryMarch, 202217 Reports To: Assistant Utilities Director 


___________________________________________________________________________ 


 


Purpose of Position 


The purpose of this position is to provide superviseion to the Wastewater System Division, including personnel and daily 


operations, projects and development, and strategic planning, under the direction of the Utilities Director, including 


supervision of , direct, and coordinate the Stoughton Utilities wastewater treatment facilities and the sanitary sewer 


collection system operations and activities.  This position serves as the designated Operator in Charge of the Stoughton 


Wastewater Treatment Facility and assumes all obligations and responsibility for regulatory compliance.   


This position also efficiently and safely performs wastewater treatment system operations, maintenance, and repair tasks, 


and participates in construction projects, in accordance with Stoughton Utilities construction specifications and standards. 


Essential Duties and Responsibilities  


The following duties are normal for this classification.  These are not to be construed as exclusive or all-inclusive.  Other duties 


may be required and assigned. 


• Supervises and directs the daily operations and maintenance of the wastewater treatment plant and collection system, 


and; oversees and monitors the wastewater treatment process; .  ensures Ensures compliance with regulatory agency 


requirements and utility policies, including compliance with all requirements of the Wisconsin Pollutant Discharge 


Elimination System (WPDES) permit issued to the Stoughton Wastewater Treatment Facility.and other requirements.  


Ensures environmentally-responsible wastewater treatment and discharge via obtaining and testing routine wastewater 


treatment samples throughout the treatment process and, monitoring and recording plant operations and tank volumes., 


monitoring and testing wastewater influent and effluent quality conditions, and monitoring and recording data and 


operations on the water/wastewater SCADA system. 


• Supervises and directs the activities of wWastewater System Division personnel;.  cConducts regular division staff 


meetings, establishes and maintains productivity reports, prepares and assigns work orders, coordinates introductory 


and continuing training programs, reviews and approves timesheets, establishes and maintains staff work and leave 


schedules, and assists in the completion of performance evaluations.  Plans short and long-term division work plans and 


projects, and guides the division’s goals and vision. 


• Supervises, organizes, and leads routine safety meetings.  Conducts routine safety compliance checks on active job 


sites.  Oversees division operations to ensure safety policy compliance.  Report out findings to Stoughton Utilities 


management and safety compliance teams. 


• Supervises the division tool and equipment inventory, and evaluates and approves or denies requests from division staff 


for the procurement of new tools and equipment. 


• Supervises the installation of new sanitary sewer service connections.  Coordinates activities associated with sanitary 


sewer lateral connections with contractors, residents, and engineers.   


• Supervises and coordinates the distribution of field notifications for construction. 


• Supervises sludge storage and removal programs.  Maintains appropriate sludge storage capacity, nutrient management 


field records including ownership and contact information, regulatory soil sampling requirements, and all data necessary 


for regulatory compliance. 


• Routinely performs operator work tasks at active job sites to plan, direct, and supervise system and equipment 


maintenance and repair tasks.  Works onsite to recommend operational changes and safety improvements, and to 


evaluate staff knowledge, competence, and safety compliance. 







Wastewater System Supervisor 


 


• Repairs and maintains sanitary sewer collection mains and pumps.  Performs routine maintenance to sanitary sewer 


collection system infrastructure and equipment.  Flushes, Ttelevises, cleans, and repairs the sanitary sewer collection 


system. 


• Prepares and secures safe work sites, including truck and equipment setup, placement of warning signs and cones, traffic 


control and direction, and more.  Conducts worksite tailboard meetings to review projects and safety. 


• Operates the wastewater/water SCADA system. to monitor system health, record data and equipment readings, operate 


controls, evaluate influent and effluent flow, monitor lift station pumpage and plant treatment, and investigate system 


concerns. 


• Obtains and prepares samples of drinking water and wastewater treatmentinfluent and effluent quality conditions, 


wastewater treatment processes, and drinking water, and performs laboratory analysis including sample testing and 


calculations for biochemical oxygen demand (BOD), suspended solids, pH levels, volatile solids, phosphorous, 


ammonia, fecal coliform, chlorine residual, fluoride content, industrial effluents, glucose glutamic acid, and other 


analysis as directed.  Prepares graphs, charts, and reports from sample data, and reports out findings.  Makes adjustments 


toAdjusts drinking water and wastewater treatment and drinking water distribution operations and calculates amounts 


of chemical additives according to test results. 


• Maintains, calibrates, and repairs testing equipment.  Maintains knowledge regarding testing requirements for 


wastewater treatment facilities.  Cleans and maintains lab equipment.  Prepares and sends EPA samples as directed. 


• Prepares  annual reports in accordance with DNR, EPA, and other regulatory agency requirements, including, 


compliance maintenance annual reports, land application of biosolids annual reports, monthly discharge report, annual 


mercury reports, and annual air emissions reports., along with other Wisconsin DNR reports and EPA reports. 


• Develops and maintains  emergency response and maintenance programs for the sanitary sewer collection system as 


part of the Stoughton Utilities Capacity, Management, Operation and Maintenance (CMOM) program.  Performs self-


assessments on CMOM compliance. 


• Monitors industry loadings and compliance with routine sampling requirements. and bills industrial surcharges.  


Maintains listing of industrial facility contacts, and forms and maintains relationships with facility operations and 


maintenance managers.  Reviews laboratory results of industrial sampling and ensures facility compliance with 


discharge requirements.  Provides laboratory results to the Billing & Metering Supervisor and assists in the billing of 


industrial surcharges 


• Collaborates with the Asset & Facilities Coordinator to mMaintains material inventory and procurement.  Provides 


input and prepares recommendations for material quality standards and specifications.  Assists in the evaluation of 


proposals and material acquisition.  Cooperates in the year-end inventory process by supervising division staff through 


completion of the assignment.; receives packing slips; places new material into stock; enters data into computerized 


inventory program. 


• Assists in the preparation of the Utilities 20-year Capital Improvement Program, including conducting reviews of system 


reliability and making recommendations for system improvements.  Assists with the preparation and ongoing 


monitorings of the Utilities annual budget. 


• Makes recommendations for wastewater division vehicle replacements, additions, and retirements.  Provides input on 


vehicle standards and specifications.  Supervises routine maintenance schedules and requirements, monitors vehicle 


safety and regulatory compliance requirements, and schedules vehicle maintenance work.   


• Collaborates with the Distribution System Coordinator to make recommendations for new development design and 


system expansion.   


• Receives and responds to customer inquiries and complaints; makes recommendations and performs corrective 


actionmeasures, or schedules and assigns workorders to resolve  in response to customer inquiries and complaintsissues.  


Communicates with customers as required to resolve inquiries and complaints, and to provide notice of planned 


construction. 


• Coordinates and schedules the work of subcontractors working at the wastewater treatment facility and on the 







Wastewater System Supervisor 


 
wastewater collection system.  Reviews the quality of work completed by subcontractors to ensure compliance with 


utility construction specifications and contract requirements and expectations.  Communicates with subcontractors to 


discuss complaints and issues. 


• Attends and assists with utility-sponsored public events, prepares public educational materials and participates in 


outreach efforts, conducts treatment facility and collection system demonstrations and tours, and gives water safety 


presentations. 


• Maintains GIS software applications and databases, including wastewater collection system details, service connections, 


manhole inspections, main flushing and televising, and other records as directed. 


• Maintains an ability to work a flexible schedule to accommodate planned activities outside of the typical work schedule, 


including but not limited to planned plant and collection system maintenance work, as well as planned seasonal schedule 


changes and tasks. 


• Maintains an ability to serve on standby on-call duty, scheduled on a rotational basis within the Water and Wastewater 


System Division.  Maintains an ability whenever possible to respond to utility emergencies and assist those serving on-


call. 


• Complies with all Stoughton Utilities safety programs, and guidelines and regulations set by the Wisconsin Department 


of Natural Resources (DNR).  Ensures full Wastewater System Division compliance of the same. 


Additional Tasks and Responsibilities 


While the following tasks are necessary for the work of the unit, they are not an essential part of the purpose of this position and 


may also be performed by other unit members. 


• Maintains grounds and facilities, such as painting surfaces, ice and snow removal, custodial tasks, basic carpentry, basic 


plumbing maintenance, and similar tasks as assigned. 


• Provides emergency after-hours support to the Electric and Water System Divisions, including basic system repair, 


traffic control and direction, site preparation and cleanup, equipment transport and operations, electric line groundsman 


duties, and other tasks as directed. 


• Performs routine vehicle maintenance. 


• Performs other Stoughton Utilities tasks as directed. 


• Directs the operation of laboratory operations. 


• Supervises and directs the activities of wastewater personnel; conducts performance evaluations. 


• Directs the operation and maintenance of the wastewater treatment facility liquid and solids handling facilities and 


sewage collection system; conducts emergency repairs as required. 


• Receives and responds to customer inquiries and complaints; makes recommendations and performs corrective action 


in response to customer inquiries and complaints. 


• Maintains contacts with vendors; prepares proposal requests; receives and evaluates proposals; prepares purchase orders 


and acquires materials as required. 


• Maintains material inventory; receives packing slips; places new material into stock; enters data into computerized 


inventory program. 


• Assigns work orders, maintains records, and prepares reports as required. 


• Monitors industry loadings and bills industrial surcharges. 







Wastewater System Supervisor 


 


• Prepares annual reports, compliance maintenance annual reports, land application of biosolids annual reports, monthly 


discharge report, annual mercury reports, annual air emissions report, along with other Wisconsin DNR reports and 


EPA reports. 


• Program administrator for all Stoughton Utilities Safety Programs. 


• Ensures that all safety standards are met and complies with all Stoughton Utilities Safety Programs. 


• Develops emergency response programs for sanitary sewer system CMOM. 


• Recommends and implements new methods in the collection system and the wastewater treatment facilities. 


• Televises, cleans and repairs sanitary sewer collection system. 


• Operates wastewater/water SCADA system. 


• Assists with water and electric operations as required. 


Minimum Training and Experience Required to Perform Essential Job Functions 


• High School diploma or equivalent, technical training in wastewater treatment, and ten seven or more years wastewater 


operator experience, or any combination of education and experience that provides equivalent knowledge, skills, and 


abilities. 


• Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources (DNR) Wastewater Treatment Plant Operator - Advanced certification for 


the Stoughton Wastewater Treatment facilities. 


• Wisconsin DNR Grade 1 Waterworks Operator Certification with subclasses G and D for the Stoughton Waterworks. 


• Successful completion of Wisconsin DNR Advanced Laboratory exam. 


• Ability to maintain the required continuing education credits for the DNR Operator – Advanced certification. 


• Vocational or industry training in supervision and/or leadership, with demonstrated experience in leading others in a 


professional environment. 


• Commercial driver’s license with tanker and air brake certification required. 


Physical and Mental Abilities Required to Perform Essential Job Functions 


Language Ability and Interpersonal Communication 


• Ability to perform mid-level data analysis, including the ability to audit, deduce, assess, conclude, and appraise.  


Requires discretion in determining and referencing such to established criteria to define consequences and develop 


alternatives. 


• Ability to provide first line supervision.  Ability to create consensus and collaboration, and train others.  Ability to 


advise and provide interpretation regarding the application of policies, procedures, and standards to specific situations. 


• Ability to classify, compute, and tabulate data and information, following a prescribed plan requiring the exercise of 


significant individual judgementjudgment. Ability to compare, count, differentiate, measure, and sort information, as 


well as assemble, copy, record, and transcribe data and information.   


• Ability to comprehend and interpretutilize a variety of documentsadvisory data and information, such as work orders; 


utility maps and diagrams; construction specifications;  including maintenance records, blueprints,; lab records and 


reports,; operations reports, plant operation and maintenance manuals,; engineering reports;, technical operating 


manuals; city and utility policies and procedures; guidelines; non-routine correspondence; Wisconsin Department of 


Natural Resources rules and regulations; State of Wisconsin legal statutes; and safety rules and manuals.training 


manuals, State statutes and other regulations, permit requirements, etc. 







Wastewater System Supervisor 


 


• Ability to explain, demonstrate, and clarify to others within well-established policies, procedures, and standards, as well 


as the ability to follow specific instructions and respond to complex requests. 


• Ability to communicate in writing and orally with customers, department and all levels of City personnel, plumbers, 


developers, engineers, contractors, regulatory agencies, and the general public. 


• Ability to prepare letters, statements, notices, memos, narrative and statistical reports, and other correspondence using 


prescribed formats according to accepted rules of punctuation, grammar, and style. 


Supervisory Skills 


• Ability to assign, supervise, and review, develop, assess, and implement recommendations to improve the work of 


others. 


• Ability to make recommendations regarding the selection, training, discipline, advancement, and discharge of 


employees. 


• Ability to assist in the preparation of meaningful performance reviews, and participate in the delivery of such reviews. 


• Ability to comprehend and interpret a variety of documents including maintenance records, blueprints, lab records and 


reports, operations reports, plant operation and maintenance manuals, engineering reports, training manuals, State 


statutes and other regulations, permit requirements, etc. 


• Ability to prepare a variety of documents including operation and lab reports, activity reports, letters and other 


correspondence, etc. using prescribed format and conforming to all rules of punctuation, grammar, diction, and style. 


• Ability to record and deliver information, explain procedures, and follow instructions. 


• Ability to use and interpret civil and hydraulic engineering, mechanics, electrical, and basic chemistry and biology 


terminology. 


• Ability to communicate effectively with wastewater treatment plant and other Utility and City personnel, consultants, 


vendors, customers, and others verbally and in writing. 


Mathematical Ability 


• Requires the aAbility to perform addition, subtraction, multiplication, and division; calculate percentages, fractions, and 


decimals; interpret and develop basic descriptive statistical reports; and may require the ability to perform mathematical 


operations with fractions and algebra. 


Judgment and Situational Reasoning Ability 


• Ability to carry out directives without direct supervision.  Ability to exercise independent judgment to apply facts and 


principles for developing approaches and techniques to problem resolution. 


• Requires the aAbility to apply principles of influence systems, such as supervisionsupervising, managing, leading, 


teaching, directing, planning, coordinating, disciplining, and controlling.  Ability to exercise independent judgment to 


apply facts and principles for developing approaches and techniques to problem resolution. 


• Ability to use functional reasoning and apply rational judgment in performing diversified work activities. 


•  


• Requires the aAbility to exercise the judgment, decisiveness, and creativity required in situations involving the 


evaluation of information against measurable criteria, and involving the direction, control, and planning of an entire 


program or multiple programs. 


Physical Requirements 


 Ability to operate and maintain wastewater treatment facilities equipment and machinery such as forklift, including 


endloader, backhoe, roller, compression tools, meters, sewer cleaning machine, dump truck, end loaders, sewer jet 







Wastewater System Supervisor 


 
machine, air hammers, compactors, concrete saws, hand and power tools, generators, portable pumps, chemical pumps, 


freezing and thawing machines, locators, snow plows and blowers, sanitary sewer televising equipment, etc. 


•  and other equipment requiring monitoring multiple conditions and making multiple, complex, and rapid adjustments.  


Ability to repair complex equipment and machinery.  sanitary sewer televising equipment, etc. 


•  


• Ability to coordinate eyes, hands, feet, and limbs in performing skilled movements involved in the operation and repair 


of wastewater treatment facility and sewer collection system equipment. 


• Ability to make use of a variety of mechanic’s, carpentry, and electrical tools and equipment, including power tools. 


• Ability to operate SCBA equipment as required in the Stoughton Municipal Utilities Facilities. 


• Ability to operate a variety of office equipment including personal computer, telephone, etc. 


• Ability to exert regular and sustained heavy physical effort in very heavy work, typically involving some combination 


of climbing, balancing, stooping, kneeling, crouching, or crawling, as well as push, pull, lifting, and carrying, pushing, 


shoveling and digging, and pulling heavy objects and materials in excessweighing up to of 100 pounds. 


• Ability to climb and balance carrying heavy objects.Ability to recognize and identify degrees of similarities or 


differences between characteristics of color, shape, sound, texture, and odor associated with job-related objects, 


materials, and tasks. 


• Ability to meet all physical requirements of the Stoughton Utilities Advanced Certified Operator position description. 


Supervisory Skills 


• Ability to assign, supervise and review the work of others. 


• Ability to make recommendations regarding the selection, training, discipline, and discharge of employees. 


Environmental Adaptability 


• Ability to work effectively in an office environment, as well as in the field under uncomfortable and potentially unsafe 


conditions that require . 


• Ability to work effectively with frequent exposure to severe environmental factors, such as temperature variations, high 


winds, rain and snow, strong odors, toxic gas and other agents, machinery noise, vibrations,and wetness, dusts, 


machinery, explosives, gas, vehicular traffic, and high voltage electrical currents.  This exposure may cause discomfort 


and presents a risk of injury or death. 


  







Wastewater System Supervisor 


 
The City of Stoughton is an Equal Opportunity Employer.  In compliance with the American with Disabilities Act, the City 


will provide reasonable accommodations to qualified individuals with disabilities and encourages both prospective and 


current employees to discuss potential accommodations with the employer. 


   


Employee’s Signature  Supervisor’s Signature 


   


Date  Date 


 







   


City of Stoughton 


Position Description 


 


Name:  Department: Utilities – Water System Division 


Title: Water System Supervisor Pay Grade:  FLSA: N 


Date:  MayMarch, 202218 Reports To: Assistant Utilities Director 


 


Purpose of Position 


The purpose of this position is to provide superviseion to the Water System Division, including personnel and daily 


operations, projects and development, and strategic planning, under the direction of the Utilities Director.   


This position also efficiently and safely performs water distribution system operation, maintenance, and repair tasks, and 


participates in construction projects, in accordance with Stoughton Utilities construction specifications and standards. and 


coordinate water pumping and storage facilities, and water distribution system operations and activities for the City of 


Stoughton. 


 


Essential Duties and Responsibilities 


The following duties are normal for this position.  These are not to be construed as exclusive or all-inclusive.  Other duties may 


be required and assigned. 


• Supervises and directs the operation and maintenance of the water utility pumping, storage, and distribution system.  


Ensures compliance with regulatory agency requirements and utility policies.  ; pProvides recommendations and assists 


with the coordination and implementation of water pumping and distribution system improvements. 


• Supervises Coordinates the activities of Water System Division personnel.  Conducts regular division staff meetings, 


eEstablishes and maintains productivity reports, prepares and assigns work orders, schedules tasks as required, conducts 


performance evaluations, coordinates introductory and continuing training programs, reviews and approves timesheets, 


and recommends the approval of time sheets, establishes and maintains staff work and leave schedules, and assists in 


the completion of performance evaluations. and recommends the approval of employee leave, etc.  Plans short and long-


term division work plans and projects, and guides the division’s goals and vision.  


• Supervises, organizes, and leads routine safety meetings.  Conducts routine safety compliance checks on active job 


sites.  Oversees division operations to ensure safety policy compliance.  Report out findings to Stoughton Utilities 


management and safety compliance teams. 


• Supervises the division tool and equipment inventory, and evaluates and approves or denies requests from division staff 


for the procurement of new tools and equipment. 


• Supervises and directs the installation and maintenance of water service connections and metering.  Coordinates all on-


site activities associated with water distribution replacements and service lateral upgrades with contractors, residents, 


and engineers.  Coordinates metering installations and removals with Technical Operations Division staff. 


• Establishes and maintains the water metering standardization replacement program, and supervises the operation of the 


water meter testing program to ensure compliance with Wisconsin Public Service Commission (WPSC) regulations. 


• Supervises and coordinates the distribution of field notifications for construction and planned service interruptions. 


• Supervises the maintenance of the water utility’s material inventory; receives packing slips, places material in stock, 


and approves payment. 


• Supervises and performs the extraction of water samples on scheduled basis and submits samples for testing.  Ensures 


all water sampling mandates are followed, including appropriate chain of custody.  Monitors correct chlorine and 


fluoride residuals.  Coordinates and monitors annual lead and copper sampling programs, including maintaining 


accurate inventory of potential sampling sites.  







Water System Supervisor 


 


• Supervises recurring systemwide maintenance programs, including hydrant flushing and valve exercising, and ensures 


regulatory compliance.  Supervises recurring infrastructure maintenance and inspection programs, including tank and 


reservoir inspections and painting, station meter testing, etc. and ensures regulatory compliance. 


• Routinely performs operator work tasks at active job sites to plan, direct, and supervise system and equipment 


maintenance and repair tasks.  Works onsite to recommend operational changes and safety improvements, and to 


evaluate staff knowledge, competence, and safety compliance. 


• Repairs and maintains water mains, pumps, valves, curb stops, services, and hydrants.  Installs and maintains water 


service connections. Inspects, exercises, and performs routine maintenance of other water system infrastructure and 


equipment.  Performs all other industry-standard duties expected of a state certified water operator. 


• Prepares and secures safe work sites, including truck and equipment setup, placement of warning signs and cones, traffic 


control and direction, and more.  Conducts worksite meetings to review projects and safety. 


• Operates the water SCADA system to monitor system health, record data and equipment readings, operate controls, 


evaluate well pumpage and tower storage, monitor chemical addition, and investigate system concerns. 


• Maintains, calibrates, and repairs testing equipment.  Maintains knowledge regarding testing requirements for water 


distribution systems.  Cleans and maintains lab equipment.  Prepares and sends DNR samples as directed. 


• Maintains an inventory of privately-owned wells within the municipal boundaries.  Works with private well owners to 


ensure wells are properly permitted, compliance with regulatory testing and cross connection requirements, and proper 


abandonment when necessary. 


• Prepares reports in accordance with DNR, EPA, and other regulatory agency requirements. 


• Collaborates with the Asset & Facilities Coordinator to maintain material inventory and procurement.  Provides input 


and prepares recommendations for material quality standards and specifications.  Assists in the evaluation of proposals 


and material acquisition.  Cooperates in the year-end inventory process. 


• Coordinates the activities of Water Division personnel.  Establishes and maintains productivity reports, prepares and 


assigns work orders, schedules tasks as required, conducts performance evaluations, coordinates introductory and 


continuing training programs, reviews and recommends the approval of time sheets, schedules and recommends the 


approval of employee leave, etc. 


• Develops standard operating procedures to ensure safe, accurate, and proper water utility operations.  Recommends 


policy changes. 


• Assists with the preparation of the water utilityUtilities annual budget and 20-year capital Capital improvement 


Improvement Programplan, including conducting reviews of system reliability and making recommendations for system 


improvements.  Assists with the preparation and ongoing monitoring of the Utilities annual budget.Monitors annual 


expenditures for compliance with approved budgets and plans. 


• Recommends and implements new methods in the operation of the distribution system, and pumping and storage 


facilities. 


• Makes recommendations for water division vehicle replacements, additions, and retirements.  Provides input on vehicle 


standards and specifications.  Supervises routine maintenance schedules and requirements, monitors vehicle safety and 


regulatory compliance requirements, and schedules vehicle maintenance work.   


• Collaborates with the Distribution System Coordinator to make recommendations for new development design and 


system expansion.   


• Receives and coordinates the responseResponds to customer inquiries and complaints and performs corrective 


measures, or schedules and assigns workorders to resolve; makes recommendations and performs corrective action in 


response to customer issues.  Communicates with customers as required to resolve inquiries and complaints, and to 


provide notice of planned service interruptions. 







Water System Supervisor 


 


• Coordinates and schedules the work of subcontractors working on the water distribution system.  Reviews the quality 


of work completed by subcontractors to ensure compliance with utility construction specifications and contract 


requirements and expectations.  Communicates with subcontractors to discuss complaints and issues. 


• Reviews proposed engineering and construction plans for reconstruction projects and new building developments, and 


provides comments for corrections and additions. 


• Maintains records and prepares reports as required. 


• Monitors and oversees the utility’s water Cross-Connection Control Program, in accordance with Wisconsin 


Department of Natural Resources requirements. 


• Monitors and records data and operations on the water/wastewater SCADA system. 


• Prepares recommendations for materials purchases and quality standards, maintains contacts with vendors, assists with 


the evaluation of proposals, prepares purchase orders, and acquires materials as required. 


• Attends and assists with utility-sponsored public events, prepares public educational materials and participates in 


outreach efforts, conducts system demonstrations and tours, and gives water safety presentations. 


• Maintains GIS software applications and databases, including water distribution system details, valve and hydrant 


inspection and exercising, and other records as directed. 


• Prepares daily material sheets; reviews daily return-to-stock sheets; determines material to be retired and monitors 


retired materials procedures. 


• Maintains an ability to work a flexible schedule to accommodate planned activities outside of the typical work schedule, 


including but not limited to planned customer outages or system maintenance work, as well as planned seasonal schedule 


changes and tasks. 


• Maintains an ability to serve on standby on-call duty, scheduled on a rotational basis within the Electric System 


Division.  Maintains an ability whenever possible to respond to utility emergencies and assist those serving on-call. 


• Complies with all Stoughton Utilities safety programs, and guidelines and regulations set by the Wisconsin Public 


Service Commission of Wisconsin (PSCW) and Department of Natural Resources (DNR).  Ensures full Water System 


Division compliance of the same.that all safety standards are met by water utility personnel, and complies with all 


Stoughton Utilities Safety Programs. 


  







Water System Supervisor 


 


• Operates Utilities Geographic Information Systems (GIS) software; updates asset and property records via computerized 


systems as required.  Recommends mapping and collector data updates and system improvements.  


Additional Tasks and Responsibilities 


While the following tasks are necessary for the work of the unit, they are not an essential part of the purpose of this position and 


may also be performed by other unit members. 


• Disconnects water service to customers upon receipt of disconnection workorders due to delinquency or safety 


violations, and at customers’ request.  Conducts periodic reviews of disconnected properties for connection evaluation. 


• Installs water meters at customer premises.  Assists the meter technician with the maintenance and repair of water 


meters.  Reconnects water services and transfers water meters. 


• Maintains Stoughton Utilitiesgrounds and facilities, including removal of ice and snow from walkways and drives, and 


general maintenance taskssuch as painting surfaces, ice and snow removal, custodial tasks, basic carpentry, basic 


plumbing maintenance, and similar tasks as assigned. 


• Performs Provides emergency after-hours support to the Eother Stoughton Utilities tasks for electric, water, and 


wastewater Wastewater System Divisions, including basic system repair, traffic control and direction, site preparation 


and cleanup, equipment transport and operations, electric line groundsman duties, and other tasksoperations as directed. 


• Performs routine vehicle maintenance. 


• Assists with all utility operations as required.Performs other Stoughton Utilities tasks as directed. 


Minimum Training and Experience Required to Perform Essential Job Functions  


• High School diploma or equivalent, associate’s degree in water quality management or hydrology with training in water 


distribution systems or related, with a minimum of five or more years certified water operator experience, or any 


combination of education and experience that provides equivalent knowledge, skills, and abilities.  Associates degree 


in water treatment or water system management preferred. 


• Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources (WDNR) Grade 1 Waterworks Operator Certification for the Stoughton 


Waterworks, , with subclasses G and D is required, or the ability to obtain such certification. 


• Ability to maintain the required continuing education credits for the WDNR Grade 1 Waterworks certifications. 


• Vocational or industry training in supervision and/or leadership, with demonstrated experience in leading others in a 


professional environment. 


• Commercial driver’s license with tanker and air brake certification required. 


Physical and Mental Abilities Required to Perform Essential Job Functions 


Language Ability and Interpersonal Communication 


• Ability to comprehend and interpret a variety of documents including lab reports; Wisconsin Department of Natural 


Resources (WDNR) and Wisconsin Public service commission (WPSC) reports, rules, and regulations; time sheets; 


well readings; continuing property records for hydrants, valves, services, and meter; inventory records, reservoir and 


tower level charts; operational maintenance manuals; training manuals; state statutes and local ordinances; policy and 


procedure manuals; etc. 


• Ability to comprehend, analyze, and interpret water main plans and specifications, engineering drawings, and as-built 


diagrams. 


• Ability to prepare a variety of documents including WDNR and WPSC reports, purchase orders, time sheets, annual 


reports, meter reports, training reports, vehicle maintenance reports, etc. using prescribed format and conforming to all 


rules of punctuation, grammar, diction, and style. 


• Ability to record and deliver information, explain procedures, and follow instructions. 


• Ability to use and interpret civil and hydraulic engineering, mechanical terminology, and basic chemistry and biology 







Water System Supervisor 


 


terminology. 


• Ability to communicate effectively with Utility management and personnel, other City departments, law enforcement 


personnel, sales representatives, contractors, engineering consultants, insurance company representatives, and others 


verbally and in writing.Ability to perform mid-level data analysis, including the ability to audit, deduce, assess, 


conclude, and appraise.  Requires discretion in determining and referencing such to established criteria to define 


consequences and develop alternatives. 


• Ability to provide first line supervision.   


• Ability to create consensus and collaborationpersuade, convince, and train others.  Ability to advise and provide 


interpretation regarding the application of policies, procedures, and standards to specific situations. 


• Ability to classify, compute, and tabulate data and information, following a prescribed plan requiring the exercise of 


significant individual judgementjudgment. Ability to compare, count, differentiate, measure, and sort information, as 


well as assemble, copy, record, and transcribe data and information.   


• Ability to comprehend and interpretutilize a variety of documentsadvisory data and information, such as work orders; 


utility maps and diagrams; construction specifications;  including maintenance records, blueprints,; lab records and 


reports,; operations reports, facilities operation and maintenance manuals,; engineering reports;, technical operating 


manuals; city and utility policies and procedures; guidelines; non-routine correspondence; Public Service Commission 


of Wisconsin rules, regulations, and tariffs; Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources rules and regulations; State of 


Wisconsin legal statutes; and safety rules and manuals.training manuals, State statutes and other regulations, permit 


requirements, etc. 


• Ability to explain, demonstrate, and clarify to others within well-established policies, procedures, and standards, as well 


as the ability to follow specific instructions and respond to complex requests. 


• Ability to communicate in writing and orally with customers, department and all levels of City personnel, plumbers, 


developers, engineers, contractors, regulatory agencies, and the general public. 


• Ability to prepare letters, statements, notices, memos, narrative and statistical reports, and other correspondence using 


prescribed formats according to accepted rules of punctuation, grammar, and style. 


•  


Supervisory Skills 


• Ability to assign, supervise, and review, develop, assess, and implement recommendations to improve the work of 


others. 


• Ability to make recommendations regarding the selection, training, discipline, advancement, and discharge of 


employees. 


• Ability to assist in the preparation of meaningful performance reviews, and participate in the delivery of such review. 


 


Mathematical Ability 


• Ability to perform addition, subtraction, multiplicationy, and dividesion,; calculate percentages, fractions, and decimals 


and percents,; interpret and develop make use of the principles of basic algebra, geometry, and descriptive statisticsal 


reports; and may require the ability to perform mathematical operations with fractions and algebra. 


JudgementJudgment and Situational Reasoning Ability 


• Ability to carry out directives without direct supervision.  Ability to exercise independent judgementjudgment to apply 


facts and principles for developing approaches and techniques to problem resolution. 


• Ability to apply principles of influence systems, such as supervising, managing, leading, teaching, directing, planning, 


coordinating, disciplining, and controlling. 







Water System Supervisor 


 


• Ability to use functional reasoning and apply rational judgment in performing diversified work activities. 


• Requires the ability to apply principles of influence systems such as supervision, managing, leading, teaching, directing, 


planning, coordinating and controlling.   


• Ability to exercise independent judgment to apply facts and principles for developing approaches and techniques to 


problem resolution. 


• Requires the aAbility to exercise the judgment, decisiveness, and creativity required in situations involving the 


evaluation of information against measurable criteria, and involving the direction, control, and planning of an entire 


program or multiple programs. 


Physical Requirements 


• Ability to operate equipment and machinery requiring monitoring multiple conditions and making multiple, complex 


and rapid adjustments, such as forklift, backhoe, roller, compression tools, meters, dump truck, end loaders, sewer jet 


machine, meter test bench, air hammers, blacktop rollers, compactors, concrete saws, hand and power tools, generators, 


portable pumps, chemical pumps, mowers, freezing/ and thawing machines, voltmeter, locators, jacks, shovels, picks, 


axessnow plows and blowers, etc.and other equipment requiring monitoring multiple conditions and making multiple, 


complex, and rapid adjustments.     


• Ability to repair complex equipment and machinery. 


• Ability to operate a variety of water utility testing, metering, and maintenance equipment. 


• Ability to operate a variety of office equipment including personal computing devices, telephone, etc. 


• Ability to coordinate eyes, hands, feet, and limbs in performing skilled movements involved in the operation and repair 


of water distribution equipment. 


• Ability to exert regular and sustained heavy physical effort in moderate tovery heavy work, typically involving some 


combination of climbing, balancing, stooping, kneeling, crouching, or crawling, as well as lifting, and carrying, pushing 


shoveling and digging, and pulling heavy objects and materials in excess of over 100 pounds. 


• Ability to recognize and identify degrees of similarities and or differences between characteristics of color, shape, 


sound, taste, texture, and odor associated with job-related objects, materials, and ingredientstasks. 


• Ability to meet all physical requirements of the Stoughton Utilities Advanced Certified Operator position description. 


Supervisory Skills 


• Ability to assign, supervise, and review the work of others. 


• Ability to make recommendations regarding the selection, training, discipline, and discharge of employees. 


Environmental Adaptability 


• Ability to work effectively in an office environment, as well as at utility construction sitesin the field under moderately 


unsafe and uncomfortable and potentially unsafe conditions where that require exposure to severe environmental 


factors, such as temperature variations, high winds, rain and snow, odors, toxic agents, noise, vibrations, wetness, dusts, 


disease, machinery, explosives, gas, vehicular traffic, and high voltage electrical currents.  This exposure  may cause 


discomfort where there isand presents a risk of injury or death. 







Water System Supervisor 


 


The City of Stoughton is an Equal Opportunity Employer.  In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, the City 


will provide reasonable accommodations to qualified individuals with disabilities and encourages both prospective and 


current employees to discuss potential accommodations with the employer. 


   


Employee’s Signature  Supervisor’s Signature 


   


Date  Date 


 





